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St James's Place plc s the FTSE 250 histed

parent company of the St James’s Place Wealth
Management Group The Group provides high
quality wealth management advice, mvestment
management and related services to busmesses

and indviduals across the UK, through its
representatives — The St. James's Place Partnership

St James’s Place Wealth Management Group
manages £44 bilbon of chent funds

At the heart of the sustamed growth m our
busmess 1s the importance we place on
maintaming long lasting relationships with our
Partners and clients and serving them well Our
approach was once agam pubhcly endorsed during
the last twelve months, when St James’s Place
won several industry awards that were voted for
by clients, members of the public and fellow

mdustry peers
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Financial Highlights

FUNDS UNDER MANAGEMENT

£44.3 billion

PROFIT BEFORE SHAREHOLDER TAX

£190.7 million

+27%
2012 £34 8§ bilhon

+42%
2012 £134 6 mullion

£4.3 billion £327.2 million
+28% +18%

2012 £3 35 hillion

2012 £276 8 milhon

£6.8 billion £462.7 million
+21% +26%

2012 £5 6 bilhon

2012 £365 9 mulhion

PARTNERSHIF NUMBERS CASH RESULT

1,958 £168.8 million
+9.5% +84%

2012 1788 2012 £91 7 mihon

Visit us online

Our webstte and 1Pad app contains a full investor relation
section with news, reports, webcasts, financal calendar

and share price mmformation
www.3]p co uk click on Investor Relations

o
=
e
=
-
=
A
=
o
=
=
5
-

$JUAIITPIS [POUDLLS FIUDLLIPACS)

uonpuLiefur 20



St James's Place plc Annual Report and Accounts 2013

Chief Executive’s Statement

David Bellamy
Chief Executive

NET INFLOW OF FUNDS

£4.3 billion

(2012 £3 35 bilhon)

FUNDS UNDER MANAGEMENT

£44.3 billion

(2012 £34 8 bilhon)

013 will be remembered as one of the most stgmficant years

1n our ustory Quute apart from the strong performance m all
aspects of aur busmness, 1t was also a year in which we became a
wholly independent FTSE company for the first ume, having
attracted a number of new institutional shareholders as the

Lloyds Banking Group (LBG) sold their 57% holdng m us

As well as thanking Lloyds for thewr support in recent years, T would
like to thank our existing shareholders who have increased thewr
holdings m us Iwould also hike ta take this opportunity to welcome
our new shareholders and thank them for mnvesting 1n us

It was also a year in which we made some important decisions
for the future, affecting our back office infrastructure and our
distribution capabilities I comment further on bath these
imtiatrves later 1n this statement

Aganst this backdrop, and with the benefit of improved
sentiment for investments, ] am very pleased to report another
record year that saw our funds under management increase by
£9 5 billion to a new record lngh of £44 3 hillion

As Thave said previously, there 1s a reassuring consistency about
our business, which 1s most clearly demonstrated by the sustained
growth 11 our funds under management over the last five years
Over this perted of changing ecopomic and market conditions,
funds under management have grown by a compound 22% p a
through new business and 1nvestment performance to £44 bilhon

at the end of 2013

New Business and Funds Under Management

New single investments of £7 2 billion were 22% higher than
2012, with dlients choosing to invest broadly evenly across our
hfe, pension and umt trust/ISA investment tax wrappers
Alongside those new investments, our Partners once agamn did an
excellent job of locking afier clients and this 1s demonstrated by
the continued strong retention of existing funds enabling us to
report net inflows of £4 3 billion, up 28% on the previous year
As I mentioned above, those net inflows, together wath very
healthy growth 1n most equity markets, enabled us to report
growth in funds under management of 27% to £44 3 bilhon

Chients

At the heart of this sustamed growth 15 the 1mportance we place
on mamtaing long lasting relationships with our Partners and
clients and serving them well

We are very clear thatif we do this well, we wall mamtam our strong
retention record and attract new chents and mvestments through
referrals and mitroducuons ‘That was further evidenced last year

by the introduction of over 45,000 chients to St James's Place

Registered No 03183415
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We also regularly seek feedback from our clients and Partners
For example, each year we commassion the independent research
specralists, Ledbury Research, to conduct a review amongst a
random sample of cients Whulst there 13 always room for
mprovement, the results of their latest review, carried out at the
end of 2013, were very encouraging with clients reporting higher
levels of overall satisfaction, levels of service, communication and
advocacy relative to both the feedback given in previous years and
the wider marketplace

Such research, together with the direct contact we mamtatn with
chents, reassures us that our clients value the 1mportance we
place on looking after thewr wealth through our distinet approach

to mvestment management

Investment Management

Over the last 12 months, the slowly improving economic
backdrop and the continued low mterest rates have been key to
the growth 1n mvestment markets in the UK, US and Europe,
albeit at the expense of savers in tradinonal bank and building
soclety accounts

In the UK, the combination of economic policy and, in
particular, of keeping interest rates low for so long, appears to be
finally bearing fruut, with signs that the economy 15 umproving
The key indicators on growth and employment are locking more
posiive now than at any time 1n the last five years

Stock markets 1n the major economes performed strongly last
year, with the FTSE 100 index up 14% 1n capital growth, 19%
with dividends reinvested Shghtly lngher growth was seenn the
US and Europe, enabling investors 1n equities to enjoy improved
returns a§ companies continue to return to stronger growth and
profitability, the main exception beng the lower growth seen 1n
stock markets of the emerging economies and the Far East That
saud, the Japanese stock market had an excellent year, making
significant gains, albeit these were offset somewhat by the
wealaness of the currency

Aganst this backdrop, 5t James’s Place equity based and
managed funds also did very well last year, provading strong
double-digit returns for the majority of our chents who were
invested in them The general sentiment toward 1nvestment today
1 far more positrve than 1t has been for a number of years and,

at a tme when access to trusted advice 1s mereasingly n short
supply, I believe our Partners are very well positioned to provide
highly personalised advice to investors on how best to achieve
their investment objectives

The St James’s Place Partnership

In 2013, alongside the impressive financial results, we continued
to attract high quality advisers to jomn us The near 10% 1ncrease
1n the size of the Partnership to 1,958 was very encouraging and
bears teshmony to the putstanding reputation that we have buit
for both the quality of our clent proposition and the level of
support and development cur Partners receive Increasing the
number of Partners and providing them with the tools and
support to deliver hugh quality outcomes for clients 1s one of the
key drivers to our achieving our long term growth objectives

‘Whlst we are confident that we can continue to attract
estabhished high quality advisers, we are conscious of the fact that
very few companies are 1ovesting tn the development of new
adwvisers In recogmtion of this, we have mvested m our new
Academy programme Re-launched 1o 2012, we saw a further

60 students join the Academy last year, bringing the total to over
100 Alongside them, we also saw 40 Next Generation students
(sons and daughters of exasting Partners) begin their careers with
us via the Academy Ifall goes according to plan, we can expect
around 50 or so students to graduate as esther Partners or
advisers during the course of the next year We also axm 1o
attract a further 50-60 new entrants to the Academy during
2014 and are planning to expand the programme through the
introduction of regional based Academues, the first of which will
begin in Manchester later this year

We now offer the most comprehensive geographic access to wealth
management advice i the UK Notwithstanding the fact that we
reman very focused on our UK business, we see an opportumty to
expand our services overseas to the expatriate community This s
an area that we have been explonng for some time and Iam pleased
to confirm that we arc closc to completing the acquisition of 2
well-respected advaser business, which has an existing team of
advisers m Singapore, Hong Kong and Shanghat speciahising 1n the
provision of financial advice to members of the expatriate
community in the Far East This 13 an excring development for us
that we believe sits perfectly with our comprehensive investment
approach and, subject to regulatory approval, the acqustion should
be hinalised in the first few months of 2014

‘Back-office’ Admnistration

In 2013, we embarked on one of the most sigmficant
developments in our back office for some time The first step
combines our two major back offices under one management, and
that was completed at the start of 2014 TFDS, which already
administers our umit trust and ISA business, has now taken on the
mapagement of the team m Craigforth who admimster our other
onshore 1nvestment business

The secand step will be to put in place one umfied, client-centric
computer system that will be avallable 1o 2ll the back-offices,
enabling them to deliver improved service and mmproved
efficiency for the business
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Chief Executive’s Statement wssmed

Financial Performance
1 am pleased to say that the busincss's financral performance has
been very positive 1n 2013

On an International Finanmal Reporting Standards (IFRS) bass,
profit before shareholder tax mcreased to £190 7 million (2012
£134 6 mlhon)

Our European Embedded Value (EEV) baws operating profit fur
2013 was £462 7 nullion (2012 £365 9 rrallion) reflecting good
growth mm new business and a strong posttive experience variance

The Chief Financial Officer’s Report and Financial Review, on
pages 12 to 33, provide a comprehensive presentation of the
financzal results for the year

Dnvidend

Leading on from these profit results, we contimue to see a
growing cash result, a trend that 1s expected to continue with the
increasing matunty of funds under management

Conseguently, given our ongoing confidence m the profile of the
future cash emergence, we announced at the time of our interim
results a 50% increase mn the 2013 intennm dividend and 1ndicated
that the full year dividend would be increased by a simalar
amount

I'am thercfore pleascd to confirm the underlying cash result was
up 67% to £139 9 mullion and, 1n Ime with this statement, we are
pleased to confirm the 50% ncrease 1n the final dindend of 9 58p
per share, bringing the full year dividend to 15 96p per share

Furthermore, given our ongomng confidence 1n the cash
emergence gomg forward, we anticipate a dividend 1ncrease in
the range of 30 to0 40% 1n 2014 Beyond that, we fully intend to
continue with a progressive dividend policy, growing the future
dividend 1n hne with the underlying performance of the business

The final dividend for 2013, subject to approval of shareholders at
our AGM, will be paid on 16 May 2014 to shareholders on the
register at the close of business on 11 April 2014 and, as with last
year, a Dividend Reinvestment Plan (‘DRP’) contrnues to be
avatlable for sharehalders

Partners and Employees

The strength and continued growth of the business 1s due 1n no
small part to the hard work and dedication of our Partners, their
staff and all of our employees and administration support teams

On behalf of the Board and shareholders, I thank everyone
connected with St James's Place for their contribution to these
results and for their continued enthusiasm, dedication and
commitment

The St James’s Place Foundation

The St James’s Place Foundation has always been an important
part of the Group's culture and we were delighted to celebrate
the 21st anniversary of the Foundation in 2013 by raising a
further £4 § mulhon, enabling us to support over 600 charstable
projects This was very much a collective effort by the whole 5]P
community, including employees, Partners, supplers and others
connected to SJP T would hike to thank them all for helping to
raise such an impressive sum Further details of our CSR
activitzes are set out on pages 39 to 45

Cutlook

Tarn confident that the growth we achieved 1n 2013, in bath new
investments and Partner numbers, bodes well for the continued
momentum 1n our business and for future growth in hine with cur
medium term objectives

Hute—

David Bellamy
Chief Executave
24 February 2014

Registered No 03183415
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Our Business Model and Strategy

Our Business Model — What do we do?

St James’s Place spemalises in provding face-to-face advice to
chents through our dedicated advisers, the St James’s Place
Partnership, and 11 managing chient wealth with our distinctive
Investment Management Approach We ensure efficient
management of our business through effective outsourang

of the main admimstration activities

Our business 15 centred on the UK, attracting chents from the
mass afflucnt and, increasingly, the high net worth markets

Cur Partners monstor and review clients’ finanaial needs over
tue, adapting advice where necessary in order to ensure that
recommmendations remain appropriate The enduring nature of
these relationships 15 particularly important, and 1s founded on
mutual respect and trust This relationship-based approach 1s
greatly valued by our chients, no more so than 1n the recent period
of financtal uncertainty By focustng on getting this night, we can
support the chent and retain the funds under management over
the long term  We also attract new business and referrals from
sausfied chents

There 1= an ncreasing demand for trusted advice from
expertenced advisers backed by a strong brand and an organisanion
which 18 responsible for all aspects of the service Clients also
value and benefit from our uruique Investment Management
Approach We are able to support our delivery to chents {and
therefore shareholders) by extending our focus on strong
relationships to our mteractions with 1nvestment managers and
adminsstration providers, thereby ensuring positive outcomes

11 these 1mportant areas of cur business as well

Qur Business Strategy — Where are we going?
St James’s Place has always pursued a simple but effective
strategy for growth, baged on
— Development of the Partnership through recruitment of new
advisers and productivity improvements
Increased actmty in the Partnership results 1 the extension
of our service to new clients and new funds
— Dehverlng on our mvestment proposition
Positive performance of our Investment Management
Approach delivers growth in funds managed and helps ensure
posttrve chent relationships
- Meeting (and where possible exceeding) the expectations of
our clients
Postrve long-term relationships with clients ensures the
retention of funds for the long term and results 1n additional
bustness from existing clients and referrals to new chents

Measured 1n terms of funds under management, the business

has doubled over the last five years as well asin the five years
preceding that, a rate of growth which we aspire to repeat in the
next five years, subject of course to the vagaries of the markets
We believe that the strength of relationship between our Partners
and our chents, together with our approach to investment
management, means we are uniquely posttioned to contmue

to succeed in the wealth management market

Registered No 03183415
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The St. James’s Place Partnership

embers of the St James’s Place Partnership play the leading

role 1n delivering our wealth management service to the
‘mass-affluent’ market This market 15 growing and 10 2014 there
will be ¢ 1 mallion UK individuals with between £50,000 and
£5 milhon investable assets Theur assets total £1,700 billion
Further, 1t 15 eshmated this marketplace will grow over the next
four years to 10 7 mullion indivaduals with £2,100 billion
investable assets (Source Datamomtor)

Cur Partners, so called because of the way they work n
parmership with both their clients and their colleagues, have,

on average, over 17 years’ expertence We are pleased that our
Partnership includes some of the most experienced and able
professionals working 1n wealth management today Whlst all

of our Partners are experienced advisers, some have expertise

mn spectfic and highly technical areas 1f an indiwidual’s
circumstances require additional expertise, Partners will consult
with, and if necessary introduce, a specialist colleague Partners
also often work alongsmde other professional advisers, proniding a
complementary service and a fresh perspective

St James’s Place has chosen to promote cur services exclusively
through the Partnership This reflects the confidence we have 1n
our Partners’ ability to build and mamtain long-term working
relationships with ther chents, and so to be able to provide chents
with sound financal advice However, it also provides clients with
clanty of responsibality 1n relation to their financial dealings

St James's Place works with our Partners to establish long-term
relationships and take responsiihity for the financial needs of

our clients

We beheve establishing long-term relationships 1s important, and1t1s
a key part of our culture Chents need to be able to place reliance on
financial advice and so, being able to call upon the services of an
adviser who understands their mdnadual personal earcurnstances 1s
mmportant By establishang long-term relationships, the adviser can
ensure the advice 1s appropriate and clients will benefit from a source
of trusted advice as their inancual needs evolve over the years OQur
Partners are distributed througheut the United Kingdom, enablhng
face to face advice relatonships to be delivered to all cur chents,

wherever they may be

Finally, we are committed to supporting oar Partners’ ongoing
professional development to ensure that they remain approprately
qualified, technically able and equipped to delver a first class
service to their chents As a result, we are happy to guarantee the
switability of the advice that they pive when recommending any

of the wealth management products and services provided by
compamies 1n the St James’s Place Wealth Management Group
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Investment Management Approach

t the heart of the proposition to our chents 1s our mmvestment
mapagement approach

Successful investment 15 critical ta future financal well-bewng,
but1t14 a field which presents a umque problem future
performance 1s unpredictable As a result, when chents choose
nvestment managers, no matter how successful, they can never
be sure that they have made the right choice, and even if they
have, 1t may not continue to be the right choice over the years
to come

‘We believe that our approach to investment management
addresses these challenges We do not place clients’ money 1n the
hands of cur own team of mvestment managers, indeed, we have
no 1mvestment managers of our own Instead, we are free to
choose any mnvestment manager from any fund rmanagement hiem
anywhere 1n the world

The responsibiity of selecting the range of funds and fund
managers that are made available to St James's Place clients
at any one time falls upon the St James’s Place Investment
Commattee, advised by respected independent investment
research consultancies, led by Stamford Assooates

Stamford Associates share their extensive research of the global
investment markets with a small number of companies We are
particularly proud to have them on our team, as St James's Place
1¢ the only company they work with that provides wealth
management advice to private indvduals or Trustees

The Investment Committee meets regularly to monitor
performance and consider detailed reports from our consultants
and each investment manager Ifa change 1 the marketplace calls
for the 2ddition of another manager, the Commuttee will select
one. Equally, 1f the Commuttee’s monitoring activity leads to a
loss of confidence in the ability of an existing manager then it

will replace them

Successful long term 1nvestment also depends on judrcious
diversification ‘The Jnvestment Commuittes provides 1lustrations
as 10 how to do this through the provision of Example Portfolios,
which combine various managers’ funds 1n given proportions
depending on the broad nvestment objective Ultimately,
however, the right solution for each client can only be achieved
through the face-to-face advice process, which 15 the
responsibihity of the Partner concerned

Registered No 03183415
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Long-Term Client Relationships

Putting the client at the centre of everything we do1s core to our
culture and means we seek to run a gemunely chent-focused
busmess Through our relationship-based advice service, we aim
to help clients manage therr wealth m a way which reflects thewr
personal circumstances This approach has allowed us to develop
long-term relationships, founded on trust, with many of

our clients

‘We achieve this primanily through the activity of the St James’s
Place Partnership (see page 7) and their ability to provide an
individaalised service to each of our chents Our Partners
recogmse that no one chient's objectives or circumstances are

the same as another and so the advice must be taillored The |,
relationship between Partner and client 15 founded on mutual
respect and trust, and the emphasis 1s on bwlding and maintaning
along-term relationship Our high standards are maintained

and reinforced by the hagh expectations that members of the
Partnership have of each other As a result, clients often continue
the warking relationship with thewr Partner over many years,
appreciating a source of trusted advice as their financial needs
evolve over the years

Grven the importance of the Partner-client relanonship, we are
quite proud of the positive results we receive 1n our annual chent
survey, conducted by Ledbury Research, where we consistently
outperform the marketplace en all core satisfaction metrics In
our 2013 chent survey, 32% of clents rated their satisfaction level
at ten out of ten and 86% of chents agreed that we provided
excellent service  81% of clients were likely to recommend

St Jemes's Place to others

The followmng comments come from some recent chent research
1n response to the question ‘s there anything you would Like to
add wath regard to feedback on St James’s Place’

‘I'm just totally happy I wouldn’t recommend them to other
people 1f I weren’t. Recommendations can backfire, so you have
to know 1t’s good.’

‘What they’ve got right 1s their rapport with therr clients, 1t’s
on the right level. I work with another finanaal company and
they seem a bit condescending, whereas 5t James’s Place has
the rnght balance.’

‘My St James’s Place Partner 1s a gentleman, whom I can’t
recommend highly enough He 15 someone I go to before I make
any form of deciston, in my personal affairs not just my
financial affairs He 1s always attentive to my needs even

when I’'m not 1nvesting with St James’s Place, he 1s always
concerned, the net gffect qftbat 15 that when I do mvest then
St James’s Place gets a big chunk of 1t *

‘I find 1t an excellent company and the Partner 1s first class
I’ve got no problem with them He’s got a very good attritude,
he’s friendly, he comes round and visits us when we ask

I honestly couldn’t ask for anybody better’

The success of our approach 1s also evident from the fact that
over 90% of new investment 15 estimated to come from existing
chents or from referrals and intreductions from them Further,
once chents have invested, they tend to stay mvested and we are
particularly pleased with the consistent, year on year, low rate
of surrender of funds (typically less than 5%)

Despite receiving much posiuve feedback from chents, we never
become complacent and 1n 2014 we will continue our constant
striving to rmprove our standards
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Our Objectives and Related
Key Pertormance Indicators (KPIs)

Funds

Our objectives

Progress during 2013

Key Performance Indicators

Ta increase funds under
management (FUM) through a

combination @r growth 1n new funds

(new busmess), positive 1nvestment
returns (above market median
returns) and market leading
retention rates of existing funds
under management

New Businéss
Our objectives

During 2013, FUM wncreased to £44 3
billion representing growth of 27% over the
year 2s a result of £6 8 billion of gross inflows
(21% increase) and £4 3 bullion 1n net inflows
(28% increase), aganst the backdrop of
recovening markets (a 14% nse m FTSE 100
n 2013)

Progress during 2013

Funds under Management (£ Billzon)
The profitab:lity on all measures of the
Group s ultimately driven by the income we
carn from FUM The FUM have exhibited
compound annual growth of 19% over the
last ten years and 27% since incepion

Key Performance Indicators

To achieve year on year growth
m new business ahead of our
competitors with a medium to
longer term objective of annual
growth of 15 to 20% Ths s
achieved through a combination
of productivity and growth 1n
the Partnership

Financial
Our objectives

Durning 2013, the growth m new business, as
measured on the Annual Premmum Equivalent
(APE) basis (being new regular premmums
plus one-tenth of mngle premmums and umt
trust sales) was 16% The number of Partners
increased by 3 5% and APE per Partner
ncreased by 7% to £461 Bk (2012 £432 5k)

Progress during 2013

Growth in New Business (APE)

(£ Mullron)

In 2013, the growth i new business was 16%
resultung m compound annual growth of 19%
over the last ten years and 18% since nception

The proportion of our own business

{excluding third party new busness)
for the year was 88%

Key Performance Indicators

To achieve sustainable growth mn

reported pnﬁts on all bases and to
imcrease the levels of cash emerging

_from our business as it matures,
resulting 1 the opportunity to
distribute 1ncreased earnings to
our shareholders

Profit before shareholder tax on an IFR§
basis, EEV new business contribution, EEV
operating profit before tax and the cash result
all increased during 2013

Profit before ShareholderTax.

(£’ Mallion)

The IFRS reporning basis 15 the statutory
requirement It provides a measure of
periormance which recognises the ¢mergence
of profits in hne with the provision of
services, and 15 comparable with other
businesses In 2013, profit before sharcholder
tax (which 1s defined on page 16)
demonstrated growth of 42%

Registered Mo 03183415
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Number of Partners New Business per Partner (APE) &

The growth in the number of advisers in the (£°000)

St James's Place Partnership contributes to New business per Partner 1s a measure of the

the growth 1 new business year on year Itis productivity of the Partnership which has

key, not only to recruit good quahity advisers, contributed to the growth n new busmess

but also to retam those ziready with us over recent years

Duwrmg 2013, the pumber of Partners o

mcreased by 9 5% 1o 1,958 QB-
8
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New Business Contribution

on an EEV Basis (£ Million)

New business contnbution represents the
gross margin on the European Embedded
Value (EEV) reporting basis emerging from
new business sales, less the direct expenses
As such 1t 18 2 measure of the profitability of
new business sales In 2013, the growthin
EEY new buuness contribution was 18%

EEV Operating Profit before Tax
(£' Malhion)

The EEV reporting basus assesses the full
value of the long-term emergence of the
shareholder cash returns In 2013, we
expenenced growth of 26% year on year

Cash Result (£ Million)

The cash result {which 1s defined on page 17)
15 the combination of the cash ansing from
the business in force at the start less the
mveshment to acquire business in the current
period —n effect a proportidn of the cash
arising from the mn-force business 1s
reinvested for future cash returns The cash
result has grown by 84% 1n the period
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Chief Financial Officer’s Report

Andrew Croft
Chief Fmancial Offfeer

UNDERLYING CASH RESULT

 467%

FULL YEAR DIVIDEND

+50%

The, financial performance of the Group in 2013 was very
strong across all financial measures, continmng the positive
trend we have seen 1n recent years

We have previcusly commented on the growth in the size of the
Partnership and the record £7 2 billion of new investiments
whuch, together with the continumng excellent retention of chent
funds and strong investment markets, have led to 2 27% growth
in funds under management to a record £44 3 billion In thus
statermnent I will comment on the other financral results and, as
usual, addittonal information 1s provided 1n the Financial Review
on pages 16 to 33 which accompanies this statement

2013 saw LBG sell thear 57% shareholding through three
successful share placings 1n the market which resulted in some
£2 bilhon of our shares being acquired by both new and existing
shareholders Iwould like to jow David 112 thankung our exasting
sharcholders who acquired additional shares and 1n welcoming
our new shareholders

Financial Results

As shareholders are aware, we report our results on both an [FRS
and EEV basis as well as providing further detal on the cash
emerging from the business Further analysis on these messures
15 provided on pages 16 and 17

It1s worth noting that, whilst the EEV result 1¢ pnmanly driven by
the current year events {parbcularly new business and mvestment
perfarmance), the IFRS and cash results are the cumulative effect of
all previous years Hence thus year’s very posttive growth i [FRS and
cash result reflects the impact of growth and retention of funds under
manapement seen in earlter years

As [ commented in my Interim report, there were also 2 number of
developments during the year which impacted the results

Furstly, the UK bfe company entered mto a new remsurance treaty to
rewnsure the company's remaimning exposure of 1t closed book of
Protection business (hfe assurance, eritical llness and PHI) This
treaty resulted 1n the removal of both the nsurance and persistency
n1sk on thes business fram the balance sheet together with a one-off
imncrease m the cash result of £18 3 milionand a postave contribution
of £8 9 malhon to the IFRS result

Secondly, we were able to place a value on some hustoric capital
losses withm the Group which we now regard as being capable of
utilisation over the medmum term Wathin the IFRS result, a
deferred tax asset of £27 9 million {undiscounted) has been
established and within the EEV there was a resultant positive
expertence variance of £22 8 million post-tax (discounted) We
expect the benefit to be realised in the cash result in future years

Registered No 03183415
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Finally, the mtroduction of the new regulatory rules on adviser
charging at the start of 2013 has changed the nature of a number
of cash flows The two principal impacts were, firstly, appheation
of surrender penaluies to all new pension business, resulting 1n an
acceleration of cashflow from the first six years, and secondly, the
loss of tax rehef on the advice cost, which reduces the value of
certain business

Looking now at the performance of the key financral measures

Profit before Shareholder Tax on an IFRS Basis

The Board regards the profit before shareholder tax as the best
measure of the performance of the business on an IFRS basis and
the table below provides the five year record of the finanmal

result under this measure

As can be seen 1n Table A below, profit on ths measure was
£190 7 million, up 42% over the prior year This continues the
unpressive growth we have seen year on year resulting 1n
cumulative growth of 282% over the period Thus sustamed
growth reflects the mereasing cash result, driven by hugher funds
under management and the increasing matunty of the business

Table A Profit before Shareholder Tax

Profit before

shareholder tax Growth

£ Million %

2013 190 7 42%

2012 134 6 23%

2011 109 7 30%

2010 84 2 69%
2009 499 (23%)*

* Growth affected by economic conditions and excludes one-offs

EEV Result

The three key measures within the EEV results are the new
business profit, the operating profit and the net asset value per
share The development of these measures over the last five years
18 shown 1n Table B

Table B Key EEV Finanaal Measures

EEV new EEY net asset

business  EEV operating value

contnbution profit per share

£' Matlion £ Mallion Pence

2013 3272 462 7 5753
2012 276 8 3659 4610
2011 246 0 3715 3850
2010 2178 3326 3529
2009 155 4 2289 284 5

The new business profit at £327 2 mullion was up 18% during the
year and has grown tn each of the years since 2009, doubling aver the
period The growth i new business profit reflects increasing new
business volumes, posittve business mux and expense management

The operating profit mcreased hy 26% during the year to £462 7
mlhon reflecting both the graowth in the new business profit
together with strong positive experience variance mn the year

The net asset value per share on an EEV basis at the end 2013 was
575 3 pence, some 25% higher than the start of the year and has
more than doubled over the pericd

Cash Result

The Group's underlymg cash result1s principally dependent on
the value of client funds under management Since much of our
business does not generate net cash 1n the first s1x years, the level
of cash result will increase as a result of new business from six
years ago becormng cash generative

The first column 1n the table below shows how the underlying
cash arising from the business in-force at the valuation date
{in-force busmess) has grown by 30% i the year

Nearly 30% of funds under management are currently not yet
generating any positive cash flow However, they are expected to
become cash generative once they reach the end of thewr sixth
year, at which time they w1l support future strong organic
growth 1n the cash artsing from the in-force

Column 2 of the table shows the underlying level of cash earnings
that 15 ‘re-invested’ tn acquuring new business Despite the new
business growth during the period, the level of the investment
required has not increased over the last five years Indeed 1 2013
there was a positive cffeet from the regulatory changes, which has
actually reduced the strain The reduction in the level of
nvestment required means shareholders can now expect an
mproved return on the 1nvestment, with an expected internal
rate of return of ¢ 28 4%

The net effect of growing the cash anising from the in-force
business, whilst keepmg the level of cash invested 1o new business
relatively flat, 15 growth 1n the underlying cash result As can be
seen from Table C, the underlymg cash result was up 67% in the
year — a fourth successive year of sigmficant growth, a trend that
15 expected to continue

Table C- Cash Result

Cashinvested 10
Cashanungon  acquinagnew  Underlying cash

m-foree business business result Growth

£ Milhon £ Million £ Million Y

2013 188 2 (48 3) 1399 67%
2012 144 5 (60 5) 84 0 33%
2011 125 4 (62 4) 630 54%
2010 1023 (61 4) 409 74%
2009 88 8 (65 3) 235 (2%)
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The underlying cash result 15 an important mdicator for investors
as this 1s the key determinant 1n setting the annual didend to
shareholders The contimung strong growth 1n this measure

has enabled the board to increase the dividend sigmificantly in
recent years

In addition to the underlying cash result, there were postive
variances during the year totalling £28 9 mithon The main
contributor to this exceptional level of variances was the impact
of the remnsurance transaction noted earlier In addition, there
were a number of other posive and negative items totalling a
positive £10 6 millon

The total post tax cash result for the year was therefore
£168 8 mullion, compared with £91 7 rmllion for the prior year

Dividend

As the business matures, the cash emerging from the m-force
business 15 increasing year by year, whilst the proportion of this cash
that 15 re-invested i acquiring new business 1s falling

This combination means the cash avarlable for corporate purposes
and to return to shareholders 1s increasing Consequently the
Board has been able to follow a strategy of increasing the dividend
each year

Having mncreased the drvidend by 33% m each of the three previous
years, at the time of the intertm results, we declared an increase i
the 2013 mterum drvidend of 50% and indicated that the full year
didend would be increased by a similar amount  Therefore, the
Board has propesed a full dividend mcrease of 50%

Furthermore, given our ongoing confidence m the cash emergence
gong forward, we anticipate a dividend merease in the range of 30
t0 40% m 2014 Beyond that, we fully intend to continue with a
progressve dividend policy, growing the future dvidend in line
with the underlying performance of the business

Table 3 Dividend

Dividend per
share Growth
Pence %
2013 1596 50%
2012 10 64 33%
0on 80 33%
2010 60 33%
2009 45 2 5%

Capltal

A key financral objective 1s to ensure the Group’s solvency 1s
managed safely through both good and difficult times This 1
important not only for the safeguarding of our chients’ assets,
but also to ensure we can maintain returns to sharehclders

The Group continues to be capitalised well in excess of regulatory
solvency requirements, and the surplus solvency assets remamn
nvested prudently in cash, AAA rated money market funds and
UK government securtties The relative lack of balance sheet or
tmarket risk, together with this prodent investment policy has
provided for anmcreasingly resihient solvency posibon over
recent years, desprte the difficult financial and market
environment recently experienced At the year end, the total
Group solvency net assets were £507 6 mmlhion, well m excess
of the combined selvency requirement of £66 4 million of the
regulated entities within the Group

Future Developments

We have commenced an investment programme warking with
our key ‘back-office’ admimstration provider to enhance our
‘back office’ systems to accommodate both continued growth and
achieve huture effictency savings Whilst the majar systems
development costs will be borne by the admimstration provider
under 2 new long-term contract, we will incur our own 1nternal
project costs over the next couple of years and this 15 covered in
more detail n Section 5 of the Financial Review

Over a simular timeframe, national repulators are required to
implement the new EU Solvency Il regulations We are well
prepared for implementation and do not believe the Group
will be adversely impacted

Concluding Remarks

2013 bas been another strong year of financial performance for the
Group wrth the highlight being the strong underlymg post-tax cash
result, which has benefited from the growth and retention of funds
under management, not only in the current year, but more
importantly from that expertenced m earher years

The business remains in good shape As it confanues to mature, we
expect further growth in the profits and in particular increasing
cash emergence This developing cash result has enabled the Board
not only to increase the 2013 dividend by 50% but also to indicate
a further sigmficant increase in the 2014 dividend

N\ co

Andrew Croft
Chief Financial Officer
24 February 2014

Registered No 03183415
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Financial Review

The Financial Madel

As described earhier, the Group’s strategy 1s to attract and retain
retail funds under management on which we recetve an annual
management fee for as long as we retain the funds Ths 1s the
principal source of income for the Group out of which we meet
the overheads of the business, and mvest in growing the
Partnershup and 1n acquiring new funds under management

The level of Income 15 dependent on the level of chient funds and
asset values In addition, since a proportion of our business does
not gencrate net cash in the first six years, the level of income
will 1ncrease as a result of new business from six years ago
becoming cash generauve This deferral of cash generanion means
the business always has six years’ worth of funds "in the gestation
pertod’ (see page 28)

Group expendrture 15 carefully managed with clear targets set for
growth 1n establishment expenses in the year Other expenses
increase with business levels and are met from margins in the
products (see page 31) Inaddition, the Group will incur
development expenditure through investment 1n new dlent
services, computer systems and other corporate mitiatives

A small proportion of Group expenditure 1s required to support
management of existing funds, but the majority of expenditure 1s
mvestment in growing the Partnership and acquirmg new funds
The resulting new business is expected to generate income for an
average of 14 years, and 15 expected to provide a good return on
the investment (see page 28)

As the business matures, the proportion of the cash emergence
from the existng busnness required to support the acqusition of
new business 1s reduang This has resulted in strong growth in
both cash cmergence and IFRS profits

Given the high level of investment in new business generation
each year, nerther the cash emergence nor the IFRS profit
provides an easy guide to the profits Likely to emerge 1n the future
or the total econormc value of the business However,
consideration of the contribution to profits from just the in-force
busmess does provide a good indication of the underlying value
being generated by the business and results using the EEV
methodology (described below) are also useful in assessing the

economic value of our business

Presentation of Financial Results

Management beheves 1t 15 important for investors to apprecate not
only the short term net 1ncome position of our business, but also
the full, long term potennal We therefore complement our
statutory IFRS reporting with additional disclosure on an
embedded value basis (using EEV principles) This measure assesses
the discounted value of all future cash flows and we believe 1t better
reflects the full economic value of the performance of the business
We also provide analysis of the sources of cash emergence in the
year, which we refer to as the cash result

These three measures, which are desenbed in more detm] below,
provide mvestors with different perspectives on the performance
of the business in a particular year We believe the additional
disclosure wall assist them in making their own assessment of the
value of the business

The IFRS resultis the approach required for statutory reporting
purposcs The standards require that profits are recognised 1n
line wath the proviston of services and therefore broadly in line
with the cash emergence from a contract However, for long-term
business it seeks to spread some of the tnitial cash flows over the
whole duration of the contract through the use of mtangible
assets and liabihiies (known as DAC ~ Deferred Acqmsition Costs
and DIR — Deferred Income Reserve) and recognises the value of
certam future cash flows, partucularly deferred tax

One point of note in the [FRS methodology 15 the requirement
that the tax recogmsed in the accounts should wnclude the tax
incurred on behalf of poheyholders in our UK Life assurance
company Since the policyholder tax charge 1s unrelated to the
performance of the business, management believes 1t 1s useful to
provide additional disclosure of the profit before shareholder tax
Thus measure reflects the profit before tax adjusted for tax pad
on behalf of policyholders We beheve this measure provides the
most useful indicaion of IFRS operating performance n

the period

In arriving at the profit hefore sharehalder tax, 1t15 necessary to
estimate the analysis of the total tax charge between that payable
in respect of policyholders and that payable by shareholders
Shareholder tax 15 estimated by making an assessment of the
cffective rate of tax that 1s applicable to the sharcholders, with the
balance being treated as tax m respect of policyholders This s a
refinement to the esttmation approach previously used The
Directers consider that this refined approach both more
appropriately reflects the tax that 1s borne by shareholders un
their profits and smplifiey the approach for mvestors

The embedded value result s particularly useful for investors
seeking to assess the full value of the long-term emergence of
shareholder cash returns, since 1t includes an asset in the
valuation reflecting the net present value of the expected future
cash flows from the business Thus type of presentation 1s also
commonly referred to as a ‘discounted cash flow’ valuation Qur
embedded value 1s based on the EEV principles, which were set
out as an industry standard by the Chief Financial Officers (CFO)
Forum in 2004

Many of the future cash flows derrve from fund charges, which
change with movements 1n stock raarkets Since the impact of
these changes 1s unrelated to the performance of the business,
management belteves that the EEV operating profit (reflecting
the EEV profit before tax adjusted to reflect anly the expected
investment performance and no change m econcmic basis)
provides the most useful measure of performance m the perted
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Finally, the cash result measure has been developed with the
aim of assisting 1nvestors seeking to understand the sources of
cash emergence It1s based on IFRS, but removes non-cash items
such as DAC, DIR and deferred tax It 1s also adjusted to reflect a
level of regulatory solvency constramt an profits emerging from
regulated compantes such as our insurance businesses 1n line with
that required by the UK regulators The effect i¢to create a
measure which more reflects the underlying cash generated by
the business and which can be used by the Board in determimng
the drvidend payments to shareholders

Since the cash result can be impacted by one off items, timing
vartances and capitahsed impacts of changes m solvency
requirements management believes it 15 also useful to present an
underlying cash result excluding these effects Nerther of these
cash result measures should be confused with the IFRS cash flow
statement which 15 prepared 1n accordance with IAS 7 and
dusclosed on page 105

Section 1 below provides detail on the 2013 developments
mpacting on the financial result, Sections 2-4 below provide 2
commentary on the performance of the business on the IFRS,
EEV and cash result bases, whilst Section 5 covers other matters
of interest to shareholders

Section 1 Developments in 2013 Impacting

the Financial Result

Asnoted in the Chief Financial Officer’s Report, there were
three developments of note during the year which had significant
impacts on the financial statements and the same developments
will also affect emergence of profit in future years Comment on
the impact 15 included 1n the detailed notes 1z the following
sections, but to assist readers, a full analysis is also presented 1n
this section

1 Remmsurance Transaction

In early 2013 the UK Lfe assurance company entered 1nto a new
rensurance treaty to reipsure the Company's remainang
exposure on 1ts closed book of Protection business (hfe assurance,
critical 1llness and PHI) Thus treatment resulted in the removal
of both the msurance and persistency nisk on this business from
the balance sheet

The transaction resulted m a one-off release of the prudent
solvency reserves and realisation of the capitahised value of the
expected future margins Since the EEV measure already reflects
future profits the impact on EEV operating profit was small By
contrast, the mmpact on the cash result was a one-off increase of
£18 3 milhion 1n the year, due to the impact of immediate
recognition of the value of future profits Since the IFRS
approach had already recogmised some value for the future
cashflows through a DAC asset the net mmpact was a positive
contribution of £8 9 million to the profit before shareholder tax

As a result of the transaction, the protection business will no
longer contmbute to profit on any measure Our analysis presents
the 1mpact of the transachon as being effective at the start of the
year and so the result in 2013 reflects the expected lower ongoing
level of profit

2 Group Caprtal Losses Tax Asset

During 2013, the Company was able to place a value on old
capital losses within the Group These are now regarded as being
capable of utihsation over the medium term and so the expected
value was disclosed in the mterim reporting In the second half of
the year, further work has resulted 1n a refinement and reduction
of our estimate of the benefit and, at the same tume, the
implementation of changes 1n the corporation tax rate has also
reduced the overall benefit assumed 1n the IFRS aceounts We are
now fully reflecting the value of these losses in the IFRS result
though a deferred tax asset of £27 9 mulhon (undiscounted) so
there should be no further 1mpact on IFRS profit in future years
The same tax asset 15 valued at £22 8 mulhon (discounted) 1n the
post-tax EEV, and so contrbuted £28 6 mullion to the pre-tax
EEV operating profit m'the year

The Group did not utilise any of these capital losses in 2013 but
expects to recogmse positive impacts, of loss utilisation, i the
cash result i the next few years (which will emerge through the
Maiscellaneous line)

3 Changes due to the Retail Distributzon Review

New regulatory rules, following on from the Retail Dhstribution
Review (RDR), came into force at the start of 2013 A key
change was the introduction of ‘adviser charging’, with the
requirement that any advice should be the cost of the client rather
than a product manufacturer This change affected the nature of a
number of cash flows, and there were three conscquential
umpacts affecting the financials

1 The application of surrender penalties has been extended to all
new pension business, resulting 1n aceeleration of cashflow
from the first six years

2 Advice 15 now pad for by the chent and so there 15 no mitial
charge or expenses to be deferred within the IFRS result
through the DAC and DIR

3 Advice costs are no longer expenses of the UK hfe company
and so tax relief 15 no longer available within the hife
company’s tax computation (Historically the tax relief was
spread over seven years so the impact depends on the
reporting method)
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The unpacts of these changes are summarised 1n the following table

Cash Result

IFRS

EEV

Application  The acceleration’of the cashflow

of surrender reduces a previous new business

penalt:es strain and generates an 1ncrease 1n
the new business margin

The positive rmpact 1s only an
acceleration of cashflow, and so the
benefit 15 offset in the following six
years by an increase 1 the unwind
of surrender penalties

The additional new business
margn arising from the
acceleration of the cashflow 1s
deferred through the DIR, so the
posttive impact in the cash result1s
offset and the overall impact on

profit 1s small

The impact on future years 15 also
small

(Note that the 1mpact of this change
alone is a significent increase 1n the
DIR on new business, but see also

‘DAC and DIR’ below )

The earlier realisation of the
cashflow rcsults 1n a small increase
1 new business contrbution

Thus small impact 13 reflected
the new business margin and
future new business contribution

DACand Not relevant
DIR

Since the advice related cashflows
are no longer deferred, they dont
actually contribute to DAC and
DIR, and so the new business DAC
and DIR adjustments are much
stnaller than 1n prior years The
effect of the application of
surrender penalties change above
on the DIR 1s therefore reversed
and there 15 a further overall
reduction 1n 1ncome deferral,
whirch exceeds the reduction in
expense deferral

The impact of all the changes 1s
therefore an 1ncrease 1n the cash
result, which 1s partially mingated
by the new (lower) level of DIR
exceeding the new level of DAC
Overall from these effects there:s
an increase mn [FRS profit after tax
of ¢ £20 mullion 1n 2013, which
will grow 1n line with new
business in future years but offset
by the addiwonal unwind of
surrender penalties noted 1 the
cash result

Not relevant
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Cash Result

IFRS

EEYV

Loss of tax
relhief on
advice cost

Although tax relief 1s no longer
available on the advice cost, the
spreading effect means that the
negative umpact on the cash result
1s only fully recognised over seven
years During that period, the
impact 1s expected to be a
reduction of profit growth by
£3-4 milhon each year

This 1s reflected m a mumber of
lines within the cash result
analysis but prancipally through a
reduction 1n the marpin ansing
from new business, recognising
the full impact, offset by the
unwinding of prior years' tax
relief through the Miscellaneons
Line

The full impact of tax relief on
expenses 1s reflected in the IFRS
result through recogmtion of a
deferred tax asset The loss of the
tax rehef therefore gets fully
reflected as well and results in a
reduction of c £11 million 1n IFRS
profit after tax 1n 2013

Withm our analysis of the [FRS
result, the reduction will be
reflected incrementally 1n the cash
result over seven years, with the
offsetting balance of the negative
wnpact reflected 1n the IFRS
deferred tax mmpacts line

The full capitalised effect of the
loss of tax relief on all future
advice costs s reflected 1n the
new business contributon The
impact in 2013 15 a reduction of
c £20-25 million

Future new business will reflect
the new lower level of new
business margin

Overall

The cash result has increased
significantly m 2013 over 2012 as
a result of the increase m margin
ansing from new business

In future years the impact of the
Increase I margin arising from
new business will be offset by an
increase 1 the unwind of
surrender penalties, and growth
1n the cash result will also be
slowed by the cumnlative impact
of the loss of tax relief on advice
costs

The positive impact on the cash
result in 2013 15 larpely mingated
by adjustments m the IFRS result,
and so the IFRS profit after tax
has increased only slightly above
the trend from 2012 {after taking
into account cne-offs)

Future profits growth will slow
shghtly compared to the profits
growth trajectory of recent years,
mutigating the positive uplift

n 2013

The New business contribution
has reduced in the year, resulting
1n a corresponding reduction tn
the new business margin

Future EEV profits will reflect the
lower level of new business
contmbution
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Section 2. International Financral Reporting Standards
(IFRS)

The Board regards the profit before shareholder tax as the best
measure of the [FRS operating performance for the year It
provides a measure of performance which recognises the
emergence of profits in Ime with the provision of services, and 15
comparable with other businesses The detailed IFRS result 15
shown on pages 102 to 155 and 15 sumimnarised 1n the table below

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 December

2013 2012

£ Milhon £ Mithon

Profit before shareholder tax 190.7 134 6
Shareholder tax (04) (27 5)

IFRS profit after tax 190.3 107 1

An analysis of both the mavement 1n the profit before shareholder
tax and the shareholder tax itself 15 provided below

Profit before Shareholder Tax
The profit before shareholder tax for the year was £190 7 rrullion,
up 42% on the prior year result of £134 6 mullion

As commented on 1n Section 1, the 2013 result included a ocne-off
amount of £8 9 million, arsing from a new rewnsurance treaty
entered 1nto by the UK Iife company Thas treaty has remsured
the remalning insurance and persistency risk associated with that
company’s clased book of Protection business and the profit
reflects the release of the associated prudent solvency reserves
together with the realisation of the capitalised value of the
expected future margin

The key draver of the improved result was the increase m income
derwved from hngher funds under management During 2013, the
average level of funds under management exceeded £39 5 bilhion,
and was some 25% higher than in the prior year

A breakdown by scgment of the profit before sharcholder tax 1s
provided mn the following table

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 Decennber

2013 2012

£ Milhion £ Milhon

Life business 170 6 11t 7

Ut Trust business 539 335

Distribution business &) 53
Other (27 7) (15 9)

Profit before sharcholder tax 150 7 134 6

Life Busmess
The Life business profit for the year was £170 6 millon (2012
£111 7 mulhion) which was 53% hagher than the prior year

The principal contributor to this nise mn profit was the increase 1n
mcome derived from hugher funds under management The result
also benefited from 1mpact of the UK hife company cntering nto
a remnsuranee treaty which resulted o a onc-off positive impact of
£8 9 million {as noted above)

Umit Trust Business

The Unut Trust business profit for the year was £53 9 mullion
(2012 £33 5 mllion) which was also higher than the same penod
last year As above, the principal contnbutor to this rse m profic
was the merease in Income arising from hagher funds under
mahagement

Distnibution Business

The mpact of distribution activaty 1s separately :dentified from

‘Other’ operations St James's Place 182 verucally integrated

firm, allowing it to benefit from the synergies of combirung

management of funds wath distribunon Therefore, as well as the |
income generated on the funds under management, there 1sa

further margin from the distribution activity In any one year, this

result will depend upon the level of new busimess and expenses

The Dastribution business loss for the year was £6 1 million
(2012 profit of £5 3 million) The result reflects higher expenses
1n 2013 associated with the strong imcrease 1n Partner numbers
(up 9 5% 1n the period) The benefit from this mvestment in
recrutment will be seen m future periods with the overall loss
being mitigated by lugher levels of income ansing from the
additional Partners The resuit was also impacted by levies to the
Finanaal Services Compensation Scheme of £5 § milhon (2012
£6 2 mallhion) Whilst the overall impact on the Group of the
regulatory changes i 2013 was neutral, changes in the nature of
the cashflows resulted 1n himited reallocations of both income and
expense across the Group, which also contributed to the loss 1n
the year

Other

Other operations contributed a loss of £27 7 milhion (2012 loss
of £15 9 mullion) Included within this figure 15 the £8 1 million
(2012 £6 0 million) development costs related to cur back-office
mfrastructure project and regulatory change, £7 8 million (2012
£5 4 mullion) for the cost of expensmg share options, and ane-off
costs 1n relation to the reduction 1 the Lloyds Banking Group
{'LBG") sharcholdmng on 11 March 2013 of £6 2 msllion
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Shareholder Tax

The tax reported under IFRS each year 15 1mpacted by a variety of effects, both current and future, particularly ane-off events such as
the change mn corporation tax rate Therefore, to assist shareholders, the table below provides a ugh level analysis of shareholder tax
and the mmplied tax rate A mare detailed analysis 1s mcluded in Note 8 to the financial statements

Year Ended Year Ended

3t December 31 December

2013 2012

£ Mullion & Mallion
Expected shareholder tax (419) 337
Recogmition of capital losses 279 -
Market related tax effects - (4 0)
Other tax adjustments 16 20
Corporation tax rate change 120 82
Actual shareholder tax 0 4) (27 5)
Expected shareholder tax rate 22 0% 25 0%
Actual shareholder tax rate 0 2% 20 4%

The expected shareholder tax prinapally reHlects the current corporation tax rate applicable and will vary from year to year
depending upon the emergence of profit between the different tax regimes whuch apply to the 5t James's Place Group companues
More detail 15 included 1o Note 8 to the inancial statements

As commented on 1n Section 1, the recogmnon of the future effect of Group capital losses reduced the shareholder tax recognised in
the year by £27 5 uibon

‘The refinement of the method of estmatior: of policyholder tax during the year means the market related tax effects will normally
be zero m future The other tax adjustments are also typically small

The mmpact of the corporation tax rate change on deferred tax has been a recurring feature in recent years and reduced the tax
charge 10 both years The impact on shareholder tax in 2012 reflects implementation of corporation tax rate reductions totalling 2%,
from 25% to 23% The impact i 2013 reflects the implementation of a 2% reduction from 23% to 21% effective from Apnl 2014 and
a further 1% reduction to 20% effective from Apnl 2015

The overall impact of all of the above effects 1s to decrease the tax charge reported 1n the IFRS results to £0 4 nullion (2012 £27 5
mullion) However it 15 worth noting that the current year tax charge in the year was £38 3 milion (see Note 8 on page 121)

IFRS Profit after Tax
The following addrhonal analysis of the IFRS profit after tax resultidentifies the different contributions from the business in-force at
the start of the year, and the new business added during the year It starts from the cash result, which can be found on pages 26 and 27

New

Year Ended 31 December 2013 Notes In-Force Business Total

£ Malhon £ Milhon £ Million
Cash result 1 2211 (523) 168 8
DIR amortisation 2 113 7 18 1155
DAC amortisation 3 (915) (18) (93 3)
PVIF amortisation 4 (25) - (2.5)
DIR on new business 2 - 489 (48.9)
DAC on new business 3 - 315 315
Share options 5 (7.8) - (78)
IFRS deferred tax inpacts & 14 6 — 146
QOther IFRS 7 04 - 0.4
Corporation tax rate change 8 120 120

IFRS profit after tax 260.0 (62 7) 190 3

-y
=
-
S
=
<
=
=
=
Lr}
3
3
-

SURWAeS IDDHDU{_{ DUDUI2A05)

uenpuriofur a0



22

St James's Place plc Annual Report and Accounts 2013

FinanCial ReViCW contined

Year Ended 3] December 2012 Notes In-Force Busll::: Total
£ Million £ Million £' Milbon
Cash result i 152 2 (60 5) 917
DIR amortisation 2 936 58 99 4
DAC amortisation 3 747 (58 (80 5)
PVIF amortisation 4 24 - 24
DIR on new business 2 - {155 9 (155 9)
DAC on new business 3 - 1550 1550
Share options 5 59 - (5 4)
IFRS deferred tax impacts 6 (8 3) - 8 3)
Other IFRS 7 53 - 53
Corporation tax rate change 8 82 - 82
TFRS profit after tax 168 5 614 1071

The IFRS profit after tax from the business in-force at the start of
the year increased to £260 0 milbion (2012 £168 5 muthon) This
reflects both the increase in the underlying cash result 25 a result
of the increase in mgome from higher funds under management
but also the positive unpact from recognition of the future tax
benefit of capital losses (£27 9 rmllon)

The loss associated with acquiring new business for the year was
£6% 7 mullion (2012 £61 4 milhon loss) and should be viewed as
an investment for future profits The IFRS method seeks to
spread some mitial cashflows over the whole duration of the
contract and therefore the positive 1mpact of the higher initial
margin, which 15 evident in the lower cash result for new
busmess, 15 reversed through the DIR The mcrease 1n the cost
of new business therefore reflects the underlying higher
(non-deferrable) expenses in the year, particularly development
expenses and investment 1n the business

Notes
1 These figures are explalned 1o the analysis of the post-tax cash result in Section 4
2 DiR IFRS requires any uutial profit which arises on new business (either through
an imitial charge or surrender penalty} to be deferred at the outset and then
amoruised over the hife of the assoclated product or the surrender penalty period
Thas required treatment gives Tise to two adjustnents to arrive at the IFRS result
(2) The amorusaton of the apening deforred income, which ancrcases proft for
the pcrind, was £113 Tmallion (2012 £93 § mitlien) n the current year The
release 10 a particular year will depead upon the value of DIR at the start of
the year and the remamng hife of the poheres ta whach the DIR relates or the
remaining surrender penalty period The expected amortisation charge for
201415 £107 9 milbion
() The defirral of the immal profit axwocatcd with new business sales reduecd
the IFRS result by £48 2 mullion 10 2013 (2012 £155 9 millon) The deferral
of profit n any particular year will be dependont wpon the level ofnew
business
As commented on 1 Seetion 1, the intreduction of the new regulatory rules on
adviscr charging has resulted 1n 2 signibcant nuduction i the, Juvd of DIR on new
business in the current year
The carrent year deferral of £48 9 million dees, however, {nclude some business
that was issued 10 2013 but advised on before that date and therefore it fs
sccaunted for under the old method Ths Rgure 15 therefore not representative of
the on gong pesiuon If all the new business had been advised on after the start of
the year, we cstimate that the DIR on new business in the year would 1nstead have
been ¢ £35 mithon
3 DAC Specific new business acquisition expenses are required to be deferred in
the year they anse and then amortised 1 future years over the hife of the policies
to which the costs relate The treatment of these acquisition expenses pives rise to
two adjustments in the IFRS result

(2) The amortisanon of the apening DAC, which reduces profit for the penod,
was £91 § zullion (2012 £74 7 mllion) in the current year The chargeina
particular period normally depends upon the value of the DAC at the start of
the year and the remasning hfe of the policzes to which the DAC relates
However the 2013 result was alao affected by the mansaction to reassure the
Frotection bunness which resulted 10 an 1mparrment of the associated
nsuranee DAC with an rdditional neganve impact of £9 6 million post-tax
The expected emortisation charge for 2014 15 £82 3 mullion

(b) The deferral of the specific sacquimton costs, which were Incurred in the
current period, increased IFRS profits by £31 5 million {2012 £155 0
million) The deferral of expensea 1o any particular year will be dependent
upon the level of the acqusition costs which themselves wall be determned by
the level of new busmess -

As commented on m Section 1, the adoption of the new regulatory rules on

adviser charging at the start of 2013 has resulted in # signsficant reduction 1n the

level of DAC or cew business in the current year

The current year deferral of £31 5 million does, however, include some business

that was 1ssued 1n 2013 buz advised on before that date and therefore it 13

accounted for under the old method This Agure 15 therefore not representative of

the on-going positon Ifall the new business had been advised on after the start of
the year we esumate that the DAC on new business m the year would instead have
been ¢ £21 milkon

PVIF The IFRS balance sheet includes an asset representing purchased value of

in-force (‘PVIF') This asset js amortised over the remaning hfe of the policies

associated with thisasset The smortisation charge for the year was £2 5 million

(2012 £2 4mulbion) The charge for 2014 13 expected to be £2 6 mllion

Share options this figure 1s the nononal cost that 1s associated with the varzous

share option schemes

IFRS deferred tax Under IFRS, a deferred tax aszet is estzblished for tax benefits

that are expected to tmerge in future The asset then unwinds as the tax benefits

are recognised in the cash result Hustorically, these movements have contmbuted
small adjustments to the IFRS profit after tax result However, 1o 2013 the result
was impacted by both

— the establishment of a £27 3 million deferred tax assct, recogrsing the furure

benefit from capital losses wathin the Group which we now regard as being

capable of being utilised in the medium tevim, and

—loss of tax relief on advice costs as a result of RDR

Further comment ea these developments 15 included 1n Section 1 Cverall, the

1mpact an IFRS profit after tax was to wcrease profis by £14 6 milhon {2012

£8 3 million charge)

Gther IFRS Thisitem reflects a number of other adjustments from the cash

result For mstance, the cash result reflects the regulatory solvency requirement

10 hold prudent actuarnl reserves, but these are not held 1o the IFRS result

Therefore movements in these reserves (generally related to movements 1n the

stock markets) will mpact the cash result but are reversed 1o the IFRS There will

be a small rmpact, exther positive or negative, depending upon stock market
moverments, 1n furure years

Corperation tax rate change the above adjustments are all shown net of deferred

tax rates prevailing at the end of cach year, and this £12 0 mllion (2012 £8 2

million) reflects the effect on the deferred tax assets and Liabilities of the change in

the tax rate from 23% to 21% 1n 2014 and also the further change to 20% 1n 2015
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Whulst the Board considers the profit before shareholder tax 15
the best measure of the performance of the business, the total
IFRS result 1s presented grossed up for the inclusion of tax
incurred on behalf of policyholders in the table below

IFRS Profit before Tax Year Ended ear Ended

31 December 31 Decanber

2013 2

£! Mallion £' Malbon

IFRS profit before tax 461 2 251 8
Policyholder tax {270 5) (117 2)

Profit before shareholder tax 1907 i34 6
Shareholder tax (0.4) (27 5}

IFRS Proﬁt after tax 190 3 107 1

In 2013, the IFRS profit before tax for the year was £461 2
malhon (2012 £251 8 million) wath the principal contrmbution to
the change bemg the movement in the policyholder tax from a
£117 2 malhon charge 1n 2012 to a £270 5 milhon charge 1n 2013

The policyholder tax reflects the movement m the provision
within the umt hinked funds for UK tax payable The increase in
the provision arises principally as a result of the mncrease in the
stock markets during 2013 The movement between the
reporting dates has resulted 1n a tax charge of £270 5 millhion

Analysis of IFRS Assets and Net Assets per Share
The table below provides a summarised breakdown of the IFRS

position at the reporting dates \
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 3] December
2313 2012
£' Million z" Millicn
Purchased value of in-force* 320 333
Deferred acquisiion costs* 720.8 757 1
Deferred income* (466.7) (515 2)
Other IFRS net assets 112 4 878
Solvency net assets 507 6 403 5
Total IFRS net assets 906 1 762 5
* net of deferred tax
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
Pence Peoce
Net asset value per share 1759 150 4

Section 3. European Embedded Value (EEV)

Lafe assurance and wealth management business duffers from most
other businesses, 1n that the expected shareholder mncome from
the sale of a product emerges over a long penod in the future We
therefore complement the [FRS result by providing additional
disclosure on an EEV basis The EEV result brings mto account
the net present value of the expected future cash flows and we
believe this measure 1s useful to investors when assessing the total
economc valtue of the Group's operating performance

The table below and accompanying notes summar:se the profit
before tax of the combined business The detailed results are
shown on pages 166 to 176 and mnclude information about the
sensitivity of the results to key assumptions on page 174

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 December

2013 2012

£ Mullaion £' Mullion

Life business 3657 2939
Unt Trust business 1308 826
Distnbution (61) 53
Other (277) (159)
EEV operating profit 462.7 3659
Investment return variance 344.2 190 4
Economic assumption changes 106 37
EEV proﬁt before tax 8175 5526
Tax (161 9) (114 5)
Corporation tax change 18.9 216
EEV profit after tax 674 5 4597

Total EEV operating profit for the year, at £462 7 milhon, was
26% higher than the 2012 result of £365 9 mullion

EEY Operating Profit

Life Business

The Life business operating profit has increased to £385 7 rmullion
1n the year {2012 £293 % rmllion) marnly due to the sigmficant
contribution from expenence varances in the year A full analysis
of the result 1s shown below

Year Ended Year Ended

- 31 December 31 December

2013 2012

£ Milhon £ Mullien

New business contribution 2136 208 9

Profit from existing business

— unwind of ithe discount rate 89 4 769

— EXperience variance 539 65
- operating assumption change 46 a7

Investment income 42 29

Life business EEV operating profit 3657 2935
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The small increase i the new business contribution for the
year to £213 6 mullion (2012 £208 9 million) reflects the positive
umpact of the growth in new business being greater than the
growth in the associated expensés (the operational gearing}, but
15 offset by a negative impact of some £20-25 milhan from the
loss of tax relief on advice costs (see comment mn Section 1)

The unwind of the discount rate was £89 4 mllion (2012
£76 9 mllton), principally reflecting the higher opeming assce

The experience variance 1a the year was £53 9 million (2012
£6 9 million) The key contributor to the posrive variance 1n the
current year was a £28 6 mulhion pre-tax (£22 8 million post tax)
value placed on capital losses wathin the Group, which we now
regard as being capable of utilisation 1n the medum term In
addition the continued strong retention of chent funds
contributed a further positive variance of £26 8 milhon pre-tax,
with the balance made up by a number of small postave and
negatlve variances

There was a small posinve operating assumption change of
£4 6 million (2012 £1 7 million negative variance)

The 1nvestment income for the year was £4 2 malhon (2012
£2 9 milhon) and reflects an assumed interest rate earned on our
free assets

Umit Trust Business
The Unat Trust operating profit was £130 8 rmlhon (2012 £82 §
million) and a full analysis of the result 1s shown below

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 3t December
2013 2012
£ Mailron #' Mihon
New business contribution 113.6 679
Profit from existing business
— unwind of the discount rate 22.7 191
— experience variance &5 {23)
— operating assumption change - (2 8)
Investment mncome 10 05
Unit Trust business EEV
operating profit 130 8 826

New business contribution at £113 6 million (2012 £679
milhion) was 67% higher than the prior year as a result of the
strong new business growth n the period and control of growth
1n asseclated expenses

The unwind of the discount rate was £22 7 milhon (2012
£19 1 mullion), prineipally reflecting the higher opening asset

There was a small negative experience variance of £6 5
mulhon 2012 £2 3 mlhion negative vanance) which 1s accounted
for by a number of small positive and negative items in both years

There were no operating assumption changes during the
year (2012 £2 6 million negative variance)

Dustribution Business and Qther
The results from distribution and other operations have already
been comrmented on 1n the IFRS section

Al
Investment Return Vartance
The mvestment return variance reflects the capitahised impact on
the future annual management fees resulting from the difference
between the actual and assumed investment returns Given the
s1ze of our funds under management, a small difference between
the actual and assumed investment return can resultin a large
positive or negative variance

Durmg 2013, world stock markets rose, with, for example,

the MSCI £ world tndex increasing by some 24 3% Thus was
reflected 1n the investruent return on our funds, which
comfortably exceeded the assurmed mvestment return  As a result
there was a positive investment return vanance of £344 2 million
for the year

In the prior year, there was a positive investment vanance of
£196 4 million, reflecting the lower level of stock market
growth

Economic Assumption Changes

There was a positive variance of £10 6 mullion arising from
changes 1n the econoimic basis adopted at the year end and, 1n
particular, increases 1in ‘real’ yiebds above inflation (2012 £37
mullion negative variance)

EEV Profit before Tax

The total EEV profit befare tax for the year was £817 5 mullion
{2012 £552 6 milhon) The increase represents hoth the growth
1n the operating profit and the higher investment variance

i 2013

Tax
The tax charge at £161 9 rmllion (2012 £114 5 wullion charge)
was higher than 2012 reflecting the higher profit before tax

Corporation Tax Rate Change

A further 1% reduction in the Corporation tax rate (from 21%
to 20% 1n 2015) was announced i the 2013 Budget whach has
resulted in a further reduction n the future expected tax cost
of £18 9 mulhion. This reduction has been shown as a negative
tax charge
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EEV Profit after Tax

The EEV profit after tax was £674 5 mullion (2012 £4557
mithon) The principal reason for the variation 1s the change n
mvestment return varance

New Business Margin

The largest single clement of the EEV operating profitis the new
business contribution {see analysis in the previous section) The
level of new bumness contribuncn generally moves 1o line with
new business performance To demonstrate this hink and aid
understandmg of the results, we provide additional analysis of the
new business margin (‘Margin’) Thus 15 calculated as the new
business contnibution divided by a relevant aew business measure,
and 1s expressed as a percentage

The table below presents margin results based on each of the two
main measures of new busimess performance used by the
nsurance sector In a small change to previous practce, APE
margn in the table has been presented to disclose the new
business margin on just our own manufactured business as thisis
considered o be of greater importance to our investors and
moves the measure to be consistent with the PVNBP margin
calculation
— Annual Premmm Equivalent (APE) — calculated as the sum of
regular premiums plus 1/10th single premiums
— Present Value of New Business Premmum (PYNBP) —
calculated as single premiumns plus the present value of
expected premiums from regular precoum business, allowing
for lapses and other EEV assumptions

Restated*
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
Life business
New business contribution (£' Million) 2136 208 9
APE (£ Milhon} 5329 488 7
Margm (%} 40.1 427
PVNBP (£ Milhion) 4,758 0 4,424 4
Margin (%) 4.5 47
Umt Trust business
New busmess contribution (£' Mallion) 113 6 679
APE (£ Milhon) 2300 148 §
Margin (%) 494 457
PVNBP (£ Mithon) 23002 1,484 7
Margin (%) 49 46
Total busmess
New business contribution {£' Milhon) 3272 276 8
APE (£ Mullion) 7629 637 2
Margn (%) 429 43 4
PVNBP (£ Million) 7,058 2 5,909 1
Margia (%) 46 47

*The prior year APE figures have been restated 1o exclude pon-manufactured
business

The Life business margin has decreased from 4 7% t0 4 5% ona
PVINBP basis and margmally from 42 7% to 40 1% on the APE basis

In both cases, the movement reflects the net effect of a negative
mmpact from the loss of tax relief on adviser charges within the
UK bfe corpany’s ‘[-E' tax computation (as these adviser charges
are now being paid direct by the client and not by the company),
partially offset by the positive impact of growth m new business
being greater than growth 1o expenses (the operational gearing)

The Ut Trust margin has increased from 4 6% t0 4 9% on a
PVNBP basis and from 45 7% to 43 4% on an APE basis,
reflecting growth 1o new business volumes exceeding growth in
expenses (operational gearing)

The marginal decrease over the prior year on both the measures
for the manufactured business reflects the respective proportions
of Iife and wnat trust business

In addition ¢ our manufactured business, there was an additional
£102 3 milhon (APE) of non-manufactured new business,
resuling 1n a combined APE margm for the year of 37 8% (2012
37 2%) The improved margn reflects the lower proportion of
non-manufactured busness 1 2013

Analysis of the European Embedded Value and Net
Assets per Share

The table below provides a summarised breakdown of the
embedded value position at the reporting dates

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 Decemnber
2013 2012
£ Million E' Milken

Value of in-force
—Life 1,950 2 1,549 3
— Ut Trust 506 3 3835
Solvency net assets 507.6 403 5
Total embedded value 2,964 1 2,336 3
Year Ended Yeur Ended
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
Pence Pence
Net asset value per share 5753 461 0
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Financial Review wnumued

Section 4: Cash Result and Capital

In additton to presenting the financial performance on the IFRS and EEV basis, we also provide an analysis of the sources of cash
emergence in the year, which we refer to as the cashresult The cash result 1s based on the IFRS result, but removes non-cash items
such as DAC, DIR and deferred tax [t1s also adjusted to reflect a level of regulatory solvency constramt on profits emergmg from
regulated compames, such as our msurance P}uqmeﬁqea, w hine with that vequired by the UK regulators The effect s 2 measure which
more reflects the underlying cash emergence of the husiness, and which 1s available to pay dvidends An underlylng cash result s
also presented, stripping out the effects of one off items, timing variances and caprtahsed ympacts of changes 1 solvency requirements

Year Ended “Year Ended

31 December 31 December

2013 2012

£ Milhon. £ Milheon

Underlying cash result 139 9 84 0
Remsurance transaction 183 -
Vanance i0e 77
Cash result 168.8 97

In 2013, the underlyng cash result was £139 9 million (2012 £84 0 rullion) some 67% hgher than the prior year, principally
due to an mcrease 1in the netincome from funds under management In both years, there were positrve variances, and so the overall -
cash result mcreased to £168 8 mmllion (2012 £91 7 million) up 84%

The cash result 15 a combination of the cash emerging from the business 1n force at the start of the year less the investment made to
acquire new business during the year

The tzbles and commentary below provide an mdicanve analysis of the cash result, 1denafying the different contributions from the
business in-force at the start of the year, and the new business added during the year

+

New

Year Ended 31 December 2013 Notes In-Force Business Total
£ Million £ Malhon £ Mallion
Net annual management fee 1 2905 270 3175
Unwind of surrender penalties ? (103 4) {159 (119 3)
Netincome from funds under management 1871 111 198.2
Margin arising from new business 3 — 378 378
Establishment expenses 4 (36) (78 4) (87 0)
Development expenses 5 - (10 8) (10 8)
Regulatory Fees 6 (L)) (80) (89
Shareholder interest {regulated companies) 7 i3 - 3.3
Shareholder interest (non-regulated companies) 7 4.1 - 41
Miscellaneous 8 32 — 3.2
Underlying cash result 188.2 {48.3) 1399
Rewmsurance transaction 9 183 - 183
Variance 10 14.6 (4-.0) 106
Cash result 2211 (523) 168.8
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Year Ended 31 Drecember 2012 Notes In Force Busin; Total
£' Mulbon £' Million £ Malhon
Net annual management fee 1 2311 222 2533
Unwind of surrender penalties 2 855 (107 (96 2)
Net income from funds under management 145 6 115 157 1
Margim ansing from new business 3 - 133 133
Establishment expenses 4 {78 (68 4) (76 2)
Development expenses 5 - (8 8) (8 8)
Regulatory Fees 6 09 {8 1) (5 0)
Shareholder interest (regulated compamies) 7 24 - 24
Sharehalder interest (non-regulated companies) 7 ER | - 31
Miscellaneous 8 21 - 21
Underlying cash result 144 5 {60 5) 340
Variance 10 77 - 77
Cash result 152 2 (60 5) 917
Notes

Since all numbers are expressed after tax, they are impacted by the prevailing tax rate for cach year In 2013, the tax rate has reduced by 1% compared to the prior year

t

The net annual management fee This 1s the manufacraring margin the Group retains from the funds under management after payment of the sssociated costs (¢ g Investment
advisery fees and Partner remuneration) Broadly speaking, the Group retalns around 1% before tax (0 77% after tax) of funds under management

The level of net annual management fee was some 25% igher than 2012 This merease is in line wath the growth in funds under management which everaged £39 5 bilbon in
2013 compared to £31 § hilhion 1 2012

Unwind of surrender penalues This relates to the reserving methodology spplied to the surrender pemlties within the charging structure of the single premium hife bonds
and pensmons At the outset of the product, we establish 2 Liability net of the outstanding surrender penalty which would apply If the policy were to be encashed

Aa the surrender penalty reduces to zero, o the hahlity to the policyholder is enhanced by mereasing thewr funds by 1% per anmim over the first six years of the product hfe,
to correspond to this ‘unwind’ of the surrender penalty In other words, there1s a cost which affseta the annual management fee above

Like the et anpual mansgement fee, the unwind of surrender penzlties increases with the impact of investment growth of funds under management Howaver the increase 13
also yapacted by new funds but offset by the fact that the fands added s1x years ago have completed the surrender penalty period

As commented on in Section [, the leve! of unwind of surrender penalties will increase in Futare years due to the spplication of surrender penslties being extended o all
pension business Thi will actasa shght brake on the futare growth 1n netjacome from funds under management

Margin arising from new busmess Thisiy the cash impact of new business in the year aftes taking into account the directly attriburable expenses

At commented or 1 Section 1, as part of the implementation of the RDR rules, the application of surrender penalties was extended to all pension buuness This resultedna
sigruficant inerease 1n the margin ansing from new busess However, as also noted in Section 1, the pasitive impact has been offset by loss of tax rehief on advice costs

The overall impact was sull an mcrease in the margn ansing from new bumness, to £37 8 mllion in the year from £13 3 mullion1n 2012

The mapact of this inerease 1o the margin was the key driver of the reduction in the cast of investment in new busaess m the year

Establishment expenses These are the expenses of running the Group's infrastructure as shown 1n the table on page 31 In Loe with the rest of thos table, they are presented
after allowance for tax Thess expenses were 13% higher in the current year

The post-tax figure in th analyss has ngreased at 8 slightly higher rate than shown on the aforementioned table due to the impact of differing tax rates between the rwo
reporting periads

Development expenses These represent the sum of the other expendsture noted 1n the table on page 31 (e g developments, the cost of regulatory change and Academy) The
impa¢t oo the cash result tn the year was £10 8 million (2012 £8 8 mllion)

Regulatary fees This refates to the fees payable to the Regulatory bodies and the FSCS levy for the year The regulatory fees payable in the year were £8 3 million

{2012 £9 0 mllion)

Shareholder interest arising from regulated and non-regulated busnness This 13 the actual ;ncome accruing oa the investments and cash held for regulatary purposes together
with the mterest received oa the surplus capital held by the Group

The small increase i 1nterest recerved reflects the mereased leve] of assers invested

Muscellancous Thus represents the cash flow of the business not covered m any of the other categories

In addition to the income and expenses from other operations of the business, this 1tem has historically included the emerging profit of the group’s protectron (Life, eritcal
\llness and PHI) business As commented on m Section 1, as a result of the Reassurance transaction in the year, the emerging profits were capitahised and are reflected
elsewhere Thus item has therefore reduced by ¢ £3 million compared to prior years

Thus item also reflects the mmpact of structursl tming differences n the Iife company tax computauon As a consequence of the loss of tax rehef on advice costs commented
o 1n Section 1, this 1tem reflects the benefit of the unwind of the outstanding tax vehef on hustoric advice costs The positrve impact 1n 2013 i3 expected to 1educe by

¢ £1-2 mllion per annum over the next six years However, the 1tem will mstead benefit from the pontive impact of utilisation of the Group captal losses during this period
Remsarance transaction As commented an 1 Scction 1, there has been a one-off ympact on the cash result of £18 3 mulhon, reflectong the release of the assocated prudent
solvency reserves together with the realisation of the capitalised value of expected firture margms

Varance This reffects varances in the cash result in 2 year due to the impact of actual experience (Including ptions changes and investment performance) on
\nsurance reserves, as well a3 vartances in the settlement of tax related liabilities between the policyholders (unit-linked funds), the shareholder and HMRC

In 2013, the impact of strong tvestment performance, improvements in real yields and some assumption changes coatributed to 2 significant reduction in insurance reserves,
reteasing additional profit of £5 1 million The resultalso benefited by £6 0 millton from utilisation of brought farward pension losses and by nearly £10 mulhon from other
tax variance effects

The positi ¢ impacts were offset by 4 £4 0 million (past tax) cost of back-office infrastructure costs and £4 § mullien (post-tax) cost associated with LBG The overall impzct
1n the year was ah increase in the result of £10 6 million

The variance of £7 7 milHea in 2012 included £4 ¢ million from s modificatson to the calewlation of the surrender penalty position
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anancj.al RE‘,ViGW contimued

Return on In-Force Business
As shown in the tables above, the return on the in-force business 1s mamnly driven by the level of the annual management fees, the
unwind of the surrender penalues, and the level of expenses

The vast majority of the return relates 1o the net mcome from funds under management (annnal reanagement fees less the unwind of
the surrender penalty) Funds under management have been increasmng and, as they continue to develop, the future net mcome should
also mcrease correspondingly

In addition, a proportion of the new business has a surrender penalty which unwinds during the first s1x years and, conscquently, ths
business does not make a meamngful contribution to the cash result until year seven The table below provides an estimated breakdown
of the single premum business over the last six years where these surrender penalties apply These premiums are not yet generating

income within the cash result With

surrender
Year penalties

£’ Billion
2008 14
2009 16
2010 21
20n 22
2012 24
2013 35
Total 13.2

The total business not yet contributing to the cash result 15 £13 2 bilhon* whach 1s nearly 30% of the total funds under management at
31 December 2013 Clearly, the potential of this business depends on retention of our chents, however, for illustration purposes, af all
the business reached the end of the surrender period then the annual post-tax cash result (based on 0 77% post-tax earmngs from funds
under management) would be some £102 milhon hagher*

*1gnores stack market movernents and outflows since the date of original client investment

The Board therefore expects the cash earmings from the in-force business to increase as funds under management grow and the bustness

matures

Return on Investment in New Business
As noted 1n the table on page 26, £52 3 mullion (2012 £60 5 mllion) of the cash arising from the m-force business has been
re-invested 1n acquining the new business during the year

This imvestment in new husiness will generate mcome in the future that should significantly exceed the cost of mvestment and therefore
provide positive returns for shareholders The table below provides details of the new busiess added during the reporting periods and

different measures of valuing the investment Year Ended Year Ended
31 Decemb 31 Degemt
2013 2012
Post-tax 1nvestment 1n new business (£ Milhion) (523) (60 5)
Post-tax present value of expected future cash returns (£' Millon) 341 278 8
Post-tax present value of expected profit from mvestment (£’ Million) 261.8 218 3
Gross inflow of tunds under management (£'Tullion) 68 56
[nvestment as % of gross inflow* 08% 11%
New business margin (% of manufactured APE) 42.9% 43 4%
Cash payback period (years) 4 4
Internal rate of return (net of tax) 28 4% 22 5%

* The {m estment as a percentage of net mflow of funds under management was 1 2% compared wath 1 8% for the prior year
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The leve] of investment to acquire new business 15 not expected to increase sigmficantly 1n future years and therefore the proportion of
the cash generated from the in-force business that will be available to pay dividends to shareholders 15 expected to continue expanding

Capital Position .

In addition to presenting an IFRS balance sheet (on page 104) and an EEV balance sheet (on page 168), we beheve it 15 beneficial to
provide a balance sheet using the approach underlying our cash result Thisis because the cash result is adjusted for non-cash items such
as DAC, DIR and deferred tax The Board therefore considers this cash result balance sheet provides the best indication of the free

caputal of the Group which could be available to pay dividends

The following tablc analyscs the differences between the IFRS balance shect and the cash result balance sheet These adjustments
include netting out assets and Liabilities of the policyholder interest in unit-linked funds, and removal of a number of significant

“non-cash’ adjustments (in particular DAC, DIR and deferred tax)

Cash
IFRS Result
Balance Balance
Sheet  Adjustment'  Adjustment? Sheet 2012
£ Million £ Milhion £’ Malhon £ Million £ Mall:on
Assets
Deferred acquisition costs 883 8 - (888 8) - -
Acquired value of 1o force business 400 - (40 O - -
Developments 87 - - 87 14 6
Property and equipment 58 - - 58 36
Deferred tax assets 181 8 - (181 8) -
Investment property 7327 (7327} - - -
Equities 29,6148 (29,614 8) — - -
Fixed income securities 5,965 7 (5,898 0) - 677 84 4
Investment 1n Collective Investment Schemes 3,244 3 (2,722 0) - 5223 3217
Dervative inancial mstruments 142 9 (142 9) - — -
Reinsurance assets 64 2 - - 642 386
Insurance & nvestment contract receivables 499 - - 499 46 5
Income tax assets - — - - 852
Other recervables 5540 (324 0) 40 2260 192 8
Cash & cash equivalents 3,845 7 (3,648 6) - 197 1 182 4
Total assets 45,339.3  (43,083.0) (1,114 6) 1,141.7 969 8
Liabilities
Insurance contract habilittes 166 4 {395 0} 79 793 946
Other provisions 97 - - 97 92
Investrnent contracts 33,7175 (33,7109) - 66 54 4
Borrowings 98 7 - - 987 70 8
Denvative finanaial mstruments 878 {87 8) - - -
Deferred tax habiliues 496 6 {39 5) {210 5} 246 6 353
Insurance & 1nvestment contract payables 381 - - 381 24 9
Deferred income 5386 — (538 6) — -
Income tax liabilines 49 — - 49 773
Other payables 439 4 (314 4 1250 184 8
NAYV attributable to unit holders 85354 {8,535 4) - - -
Preference shares 01 - - 01 -
Total habilities 44,4332 (43,083 0) (741 2) 609 0 5513
Net assets 906.1 — (373 4) 5327 4185
Adjustments

1 Nets out the policyholder interest in umt-hnked assets and hiabihties
2 Removal of IFRS non-cash adjustments
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F iIlaIlCial RGVi@W continued

The movement n the cash result net assets 1s equal to the cash result adjusted for dividends paid 1n the year and other changes i equity
excluding the cost of share options (see page 103 — Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity)

The table above provides an analysis of the differences between the IFRS balance sheet and the cash result balance sheet As m previous
years, we also provide an analysis of the Solvency position The key difference between the cash result net assets (above) and the
Solvency net assets 1s an amount of additional reserves arising from the Irish solvency regulations These reserves include additional
prudentzal reserves over that required by the UK regulater As a result, the Solvency position 1s £507 6 mullion, which 1s £25 1 millhion
lower than the cash result net assets of £532 7 mullion (2012 £403 5 mallion and £418 5 miilion, respectively)

The Solvency positien can be further analysed between regulated and non-regulated entities, and can be assessed against the solvency
capital requirement as noted 1n the table below
Other
Life Regulated Other Total )
£ Millron £ Milhon £ Mallion £ Malhon

Solvency position

Solvency net assets 284 2 389 184 5 5076
Solvency requirement 45 3 171
Salvency ratio 576% 227% !

Included within the ‘other’ capital resources 1s an 1mplied reserve that 19 bemng built up to cover one year’s dividend cost |
At 31 December 2013 the amount set aside to date was £70 million compared to a full year dividend cost of £82 million |

Companson with previous valuattons would show that the Group solvency position has become increasimgly resilient, despite market
volanlity in recent years, reflecting the Group’s low appetite for market, credit and Liqudity risk in relation to sclvency

The Group continues to be capitalised well 1 excess of regulatory solvency requirements, with nearly 70% of cash result and solvem:y

assets mvested prudently in cash, AAA rated money market funds and UK government securinies Other assets (principally other
recervables) are less iquid An analysis of the hquid asset holdings 1s provided below

Analysis of Liquid Assets

Holding Name £’ Mallon £' Million

UK government gilts

2 25% UK Treasury 07/03/2014 94

5% UK Treasury 07/09/2014 74

5 8% UK Treasury 26/07/2016 , 120

2 5% UK Treasury Index Linked 17/07/2024 173

2% UK Treasury Index Linked 26/01/2035 21 6 677

AAA rated money market funds

BlackRock 112 1

HSBC 94 4

Insmight 850

Legal & General 750

Scotush Widows 650

JP Morgan 550

RBS 348

Santander 10 52213

Bank balances

{IK banks* 194 5

Others 26 1971
7871

* HSBC, Barclays, Lloyds, Bank of Scotland, RBS, Santander, NatWest aad Metro Bank
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Solvency II
National regulators are required to implement the Solvency IT regulations (when finalised) on 1 Jarmary 2016 As noted previously, we
do not believe the Group wall be adversely impacted by the new requirements and expect to see a reduction 1n the total capital we are

required to hold for regulatory purposes X
q
; 3
Share Optrons Maturity %
At 31 December 2013, there were 6 § milhon share options outstanding under the various share option schemes which, 1f exercised,
wall provide up to £19 1 milbon (2012 £34 0 mulhon) of future capital for the Company
The table below provides a breakdown by date and exercise price
Average Number of
exercisc  share options Potential
Earliest date of exercise price outstanding proceeds
£ Milhon £'Million ::1?
Prior to 1 Jan 2014 280 53 14 8 &
Jan — Jun 2014 242 02 06 - o
Jul— Dec 2014 - - 8
Jan — Jun 2015 296 03 08 S
Jui —Dec 2015 275 08 20 a
Jan — Jun 2016 388 02 09
68 191
Section 5: Other Matters
Thus final section covers a number of additional areas that will be of interest to shareholders g
g
Expenses @:
The table below provides a breakdown of the expenditure (before tax) for the combined financial services activities §
Restated* g
Year Ended Year Ended g
31 December 31 December
Notes 2013 2012
£ Million £' Malhion
Paxd from policy margmns and advice charges
Partner remuneration 1 407 1 3070
Investment expenses 1 1018 89 4
Third party adm:mstration 1 377 326
546.6 4280
Drrect expenses
Other new business related costs 2 650 555
Establishment costs 3 113 4 100 2
Academy costs 4 2.7 19
Other development costs 5 85 46
Back office infrastructure costs 6 50 —
Regulatory fees 7 116 120
Regulatory change costs 8 34 60
Contribution from third party product sales 9 (204) (21 4)
192.9 162 8
] 7395 591 8

* We have changed the presentation of this analyns of Group expenses to provide further information on corporate inttiatives, investments and other developments The 2012
comparative has been restated to be 1n a consistent format
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Notes

1 These costs are met from corresponding policy margins and any varmation in them from changes in the volumes of new business ar the level of the stock markets does not
directly impact the profitsbility of the Company

2 The other new business related costs, auch ag Partner inceativisation, vary with the level of new business Asnew business nises or falls, these costs will move 1o the
cotresponding direction

3 Establishment costs are the running costs of the Group's infrastructure and are relatively fixed in nature in the short term, slthough they are subject to inBationary increases
These costs will jncrease as the infrastructure expands to mazage the higher number of exasting clients and the growthin the Partnership and business volumes
The growth in establishment expenses during the year was higher than our original expectations as a consequence of an increase in expenditure associated with the kugh level
of Partoer recruitment o the year together with the costs relating to the higher busineas volurnes
We expect establishment expenses tn 2014 1o increase marginally ahead of our usual 10% operating tarpet reflecting the full year costs of the additional infrastructure added
1 2013

4 Wehare reverted o showing the Academy costs separately given the impartance of this iovestment we are making for the future The ncrease in the costsin 2013 reflects
the increased samber of students within the programme
2014 will see further growth in this investment 23 the Academy continues to expand and with the commencement of a regional academy 1n Manchester later 1n the year

5 Other development costs represent the expenditure associated with the on-going development in our investment praposition, torporate imtiatives, technology improvements
and other system developments These costs will vary year by year depending upon the extent of change snd/or investment planned
The development expenses were £8 5 million during 2013 (2012 £4 5 mulhon) and we expect a further increase 1n costsin 2014

& Asannounced 1o the half year repert, we have commenced an investment programme warking with our key outsourced provider to bring together and enhance our ‘back
office” <ystums, prepare us for cantinued growth and achlove future (Rciency savings
As cxpected, the project costs for 2013 were £5 0 million ard we anticipate expenditure of some £10 0 milhon during 2014

7 The regulatory casts ruprescat the fues payable to the rgulatory bodics of £6 1 million (2012 £5 1 millien), together with aur required contrbution to the Financial
Services Compensstion Scheme of £5 5 rulhion (2012 £6 9 mulhon)

B These are the anc-off costs of changing our systumy and proceis for the implementation of the adviser chatging rules As thuse changis have now been tmplemented, we do
not expect further expenditure 10 2014

9  Coarribution from therd party product new husines refleets the netmeomy recuived from wealth management husiness of £8 2 milhon (2012 L7 8 million), fram group
punston husiness of £0 5 milllon (2012 £0 9 mullioa) and From Pratcetion business at £11 7 million (2012 £12 7 mullion)

Movement in Funds under Management
The table below shows the movement 1n the funds under management of the Group during the reporting pertod

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 Decerober

2013 2012

£ Billion £ Bilhon

Openng funds under management 348 285
New money 1nvested 68 56
Investment return 52 30

46 8 371
Regular wathdrawals/maturities 0.7) on
Surrenders/part surrenders (1.8) (18
Closing funds under management 44 3 34 8
Imphed surrender rate as % of average funds under management 4 7% 4 9%
Net inflow of funds £4 30bn £3 35bn
Net inflow as % of opening funds under management 12.4% 11 8%

Shareholders wall be pleased to note that the continued strong retention of funds under management, together wath the level of new
maney invested, provides for a net inflow of funds of £4 3 bilron, £1 0 bilhon ngher than the prior year Thus net inflow represents
12 4% (2012 11 8%) of opeming funds under management and can be viewed as the orgamc growth of the business

Noted below 15 an explanation of regular withdrawals, maturities and surrenders

The regu]ar withdrawals represent those amounts selected by clients which are patd out by way of pengdic income The
withdrawals have been assumed 1n the caleulation of the embedded value new business profit

Maturities are those sums paid out where the plan has reached the selected maturity date (e g retirement date) The expected
maturities have been assumed in the calculation of the embedded value new business profit
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Surrenders and part surrenders are those amounts where clients have chosen to withdraw money from their plan Surrenders are
assumed to occur 1n the caleulation of the embedded value new business profit based on actual experience, updated on an annual baas,
by plan duration and the age of the client The implied surrender rate shown in the table above 15 very much a simple average and
reflects only recent experience Whalst 1t could be compared with the long-term assumptions unde lymg the calculation of the
embedded value, 1t should not be assumed that small movements m this rate will result ina change to the long term embedded value
assumpthions

Analysis of Funds under Management
The following table provides an analysis of the funds under management at 31 December 2013 spht by geography and asset type

2013 2012

£ Bilhon £' Billion

UK Equties 13.3 106
North American Equities 84 46
European Equities 50 41
Asia & Pacific Equities 3.9 39
Property 1.1 08
Fixed Interest ' 6.1 50
Alternative Investments 13 13
Cash 36 32
Other 16 13
Total 44 3 34 8
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Risk, Risk Management and

Internal Control

he mechanisms for dentifying, assessing, managing and

monrttoring nisks, mncluding internal controls, are an mtegral
part of the management processes of the Group Understanding
the risks we face, and managing them appropriately, enables
effective deciston-making, contributes to cur competitive
advantage and helps us to achieve our business objectives as set
out on pages 10 and 11 However, 1n establishing the system of
mternal control, the Directors have regard to the materality of
relevant risks, the likelihoed of nisks oceurring and the costs of
mutigating risks The system 1s therefore designed to manage,
rather than eliminate, the nsk of fatlure to achieve bustness
objectives and can provide only reasonable, not absolute,
assurance against matertal financial mis-statement or loss

Risk Management Framework

The Risk Management Framework, which 1s the responstbiity of
the Board, enables the continuous 1dentfication and assessment of
r1sks that may tmpact on the successful delivery of our Group
business objectives,

Overseeing our Risk Management Framework on behalf of the
Board 18 the Rusk Comrmmuttee This 1s made up of Non-executive
Board members and 1s responsible for ensuring that a culture of
effectrve msk identification and management 1< fostered acrass the
Group A report of therr activity during the year 15 on pages 62
and 63

The Rusk Commmttee 1s supported by a Rusk Execntive
Committee and the Risk Managerment team, whach take the lead
in ensuring an appropriate framework 1s i place and that there 18
on-going development and co-ordination of nisk management
within the Group

Ultimately, each division of the Group 1s responsible for
dentfying, managing and reporting 1s own risks each quarter
Each risk 15 assessed by considering its potentral impact and the
probability of 1ts occurrence and impact assessments are made
agamst financral and non-financial metrics Establishment of
appropriate controls 15 a core part of the risk management
process The Risk Management team supports Divisional
managers 1 these activities

Remstered Mo 03183415
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Frnancial Reporting Processes

Speafically in relation to the financal reporting processes, the main features of the internal contrel and risk management systems

mclude

— Extensive documentation, operation and assessment of controlsin key risk areas

— Monthly review and sign-off of all financial accounting data submitted by nutsourced providers and the results of all subsidiaries
within the Group

— Farmal review of financial statements by senior management, for both mdividual compames and the consolidated Group

Control Self-assessment

In 2013, the Group bas mtroduced a process of control self-assessments to support and chzllenge lme mahagers 1n their nsk
management The process requuires business arcas to review theiwr key controls and sign-off an thewr cficacy Where appropriate, action
plans are documented to improve the design and operation of the controls Following a successful pilot with some key areas the process
15 now being rolled-out more widely

Compliance wrth Corporate Governance Code and Turnbull

These protesses for identifying, evaluating and managing the signihcant risks faced by the Group have beenin place for all of the year
under review and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and Accounts They are regularly reviewed by the Risk Comuuttee
on behalf of the Board and accords with the Gudance for Darectors in C 2 1 of the UK Corporate Governance Code and with the
Turnbull Guidance for Directors on Internal Control

Risk Appetite and Risk Policies

At the centre of our Rask Management Framework 1s the Risk Appetite Statement In our Risk Appetite Statement, the Board clearly
sets out r1sk ‘boundartes’ 1 e a specification of the types of risks the Group 15 willmg to take and to what extent The Statement 1s
regularly reviewed and updated to ensure that 1t continues to embody the values which drive how the Group conducts itself It also sets
out how the Greup operates m 1ts chosen business and speaifies appropriate metries for monitoring this

In support of our Risk Appetite Statement, we have a number of Risk Pehaies which clearly establish our objectives, principles and high
level management activities in relation to each of the maimn types of risk that the Group faces When analysing risks, we use these
categories to help improve understanding and management of our exposure

Risk Schedules and Key Risk Indicators

Corporate and Divisional risk schedules and quarterly Key Risk Indicator reports are produced to facilitate the monrtoring of risks by
the Risk and Fmance Executive Coramruttees, Risk Commaittee and Board The Risk Management and Finance functions alse moniter

risk capital These schedules and indicators provide a mechamsm for capturing and consider:ng the sigificant risks facing the business
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties
The following tables summanse the principal nisks and uncertainties that are inherent within both the Group’s business model and the

market in which we operate These principal risks and uncertauues, and the high level controls and processes through which we wm to
mitigate them, are as follows

Risk

Descraption

Management and Controls

Advice

Advice given by an individual Partner or authorssed by
the Group 13 deemed unsurtable leading to redress costs,
potential reputational damage and prospective/
retrospective regulatory intervention

Advice gmdehnes are agreed by technurcal speciahsts and
reviewed by Group management These guidelines are
supported by Traming and Acereditation arrangements
with close compliance monitoring to ensure they are
{ollowed Approprate incentives exist to promote
Partner compliance, whilst non-compliance 1s subject to
censure and other sanctions The Group also has
approprizte professional indemmity insurance 1 place

Distribution
capability

The Group's distribution strength may be eroded due to
an mability to recrust and retain Partners of the
appropriate quahty

‘We employ a number of specialist managers specifieally
to manage the recruitment and retention of high quahity
Partners Formal retention strategies are 1n place to
ensure that, wherever possible, we retain pood quality
and experienced Partners All recrtment and
Tetention achrvity 15 closely momitored We are also
continuing to develop the S|P Academy, overseen by

a dedicated senior management team, to broaden our
recrultment streams

Ethos

Changes to the SJP ethos and culture adversely impact
the contipuing success of the business

We have a range of strategic mechanisms 1n place
mcluding, for example, regular surveys and consultahon
groups, which enable us to moniter the sentiment of our
staff and Partners We use these todentify any
potential adverse impacts upon, or trends withm, our
culture, which allows s o respond appropnately

Investment
Management
Approach

Our approach to vestment management may fail to
deliver expected returns to clients of the Group

We actrvely manage and monitor the performance of our
Investment managers through the Investment Comimttee
which also makes use of firms of professional advisers

— led by Stamford Assocrates — to help them wath this
key task At the same time, and to ensure chents can
manage their risks as well, we offer a broad range of
furds, which allows client diversification and mitigates
our new business, persistency and market rusks

Market changes

A new entrant or compettor in the adviser-based
wealth maragement market has an impact on the
success of SJP’s business

‘We closely momitor competitor activity and the
marketplace for signs of any potential new entrants or
threats, for example, a crowding of the high net worth
marketplace 1f firms concentrate on wealthier clients
As noted above, we have a proven track record 1n
Pariner acquisition and retention, which we beheve
would make it difficult for a new entrant to challenge
SJP’s position In addition, more established SJP
Partners often have significant equity stakes 1n ther
pracuoces and therr ability to access these is structured
to aid retention
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Risk

Description

Management and Cantrols

Outsourcing

The Group's dependence on outsourcing may come
under threat should any of its key mvestment
management or administration business partners
dewde to exit the market, signiheantly revise their
strategy or fal

We are a relatzonship business and beheve 1n the value
of mamntaning close working relationshups, particularly
with our cutsourcing partners who are central to our
busmess model Our focus on posiaive relationships
means we are able to work effectively and efficiently
together to delver the best result However, 1t also
provides protection as we would have warning of any
material change that could sigmficantly impact our
business In the extreme event, all our relationshups are
governed by formal agreements with notice periods and
full exat management plans, and if required, strong
alternative providers exist in the market Business
contipmity arrangements of each outsourcer are also
continually tested and improved and scenarto analysis
carned out

In recent years we have commenced an mvestment
programme to bring our ‘back office’ admimistration
systems tagether, to accommodate continued growth
We believe this imtiative has strengthened our business
adm1nistration OULSOUrCINg arrangements

Regulatory,
legslative
and tax
environment

That changes in the wider regulatory, legislative or tax
environment could have an adverse impact on the
Group's business and/or the Group could face a ine or
regulatory censure from failure to comply with
applicable regulaneons

Cur governance structures, management committees
and compliance monitoring activities seck to ensure we
remain compliant with regulation Our active approach
to maintaiung an open and mutually beneficial
relationship with our regulators provides ntelhgence
to mitigate the risk of operating in a hughly regulated
sector Membershap of appropriate trade bodies can
also provide mformation about proposed changes

The Group also engages the services of refevant

public relations and communications consultants

Retal
Distribution
Review

Further changes to the market, following the
completion of the regulators’ review of outcomes and
other thematic work, adversely impact the Group

During the period of implementing the oniginal
changes, the strength of the relatonship with our
clients was mvaluable 10 sustarning both our chients and
our business through the period of change and
uncertainty We are momitoring the regulators’ activity
and thinking, to mitigate as far as possible the nisk

of any further changes arising from the Retail
Dustribution Review
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Other Key Risks and Uncertainties
In addition to the principal risks and uncertamnties mentioned above there are other key risks and uncertainties that are imnherent within
the businesses and markets 1 which we operate These are detailed in the following table under the relevant risk categores, together
with the lngh level controls and processes through which we aim to mitigate these rigks

Financial Risks

Rask

Description

Management and Controls

Credit

The risk of loss due to a debior’s non-payment of a loan
or other line of credit, mcluding koldings of cask and
cash equivalents, deposits and formal loans with banks
and financral institutions

The Group has adopted a risk averse approach to credit
risk and has a stated policy of not actively pursumng or
acceptmg credit nsk except when necessary to support
other business ebjectives Loans and advances to
Partners are assessed on a prudent bagis and momtored

carefully

Liquidaty

The sk that the Group, although solvent, either does
not have available sufficient financizl resources to enable
1t to meet 1ts obhigations as they fall due, or can secure
such resources only at excessmve cost

The Group 15 averse to hquidity rsk and seeks to
munimuse this risk by not actively pursuing 1t except
where necessary to support other business objectives
Generally, free assets are mnvested 1n cash or near cash
assets with strong counterparties and the Group’s cash
sposition and forecast are monitored on a monthly basis
The Group also makes use of some bank financing 1n
certam, unlikely, arcumstances (including change of
control) the terms of these agreements could mandate
immediate repayment

Market

The xisk of loss due to the wmpact of movementn the
value of equity or other asset markets

The Group adopts a risk averse approach to market rsk,
with a stated so]vency policy of not actively pursuing or
accepting market nisk except where necessary to
support other business objectives Generally, free assets
are mvested 1n cash or near cash to rminiruse market
movement impact However, future profits are
dependent on annual management charges which wall
vary with market levels

Insurance

The risk that arises from inherent uncertainties as
to the occurrence, amount and timing of insurance
Liabilities The Group assumes msurance risk by
1sswing msurance contracts under wlich 1t agrees to
compensate the chent 1f a specified future event
QCCurs

The Group has a medim appenite for insurance sk,
only actwely pursuing it where benefial, or 1n support
of strategic objectives Historically, the Group msured
mortality and morbidity risks, through protection
business, but much of this risk has now been fully
reinsured through a combination of treaties Work
contynues on an arrangement to fully reinsure the
remaining protection business which, 1f successful,
would leave only a small amount of mortahity nsk
existing on other mvestment and pension 1nsurance
contracts The Group has no langeviry nsk as we have

never written annulty business

Further detail about the Group’s exposure to financial risks 1s included 1n Note 28 of the consolidated accounts
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Corporate Social Responsibility Report

St. James’s Place 1s committed to
growing our business 1n a way that
considers the economic, social and
environmental 1mpacts gf what we do.
We understand that responsible
management 1s 1mportant to all our
stakeholders — shareholders, clients,
Partners, employees, supphers and the
communities 1n which we operate.

O ur commitment to responsible management was established
1 the founding principles of the Company and 15 expressed
n both the ‘Cur Approach’ document, which1s shared with all
members of cur commumity, and the “What 1t means to be a
member’ brochure, which sets out the expectations for our
Partners We believe responsible management 13 embedded in
our culture and exists i the heart of our organisation
Reminders and encouragement 1o hive by this philosophy are
provided regularly, for example, through the promotion withm
our community of the St James's Place Foundation and the
charities 1t supports, through team meetings and by encouraging
our Partners and staff to live up to the hugh standards expected
of them

By living up to the expectations established within our culture,
we believe we will be able to demonstrate trustworthiness,
reliability and a commitment to the common good In a world
where the reputation of the financial services industry 13
constantly under pressure, we aspire to create an authentic
alternative which clients and suppliers can trust, and which the
commurnities we are part of can apprecrate and admire

'We are constantly seeking to improve cur delwery, but recent

public endorsements include

— Various awards relating to our chent offering including the
Caty of London ‘“Wealth Management Company of the Year',
the Personal Finance Awards ‘Best Financial Adviser’ and
the Financal Times/Investors Chronicle “Wealth Manager
of the Year’,

— Endorsement of our business model 1n the Shares Awards, and
by our peers, winmng 1n the insurance sector the Britain's
Most Admired Companies award, and

— Maintaimng cur inclusion m the FTSE4GOOD Index, which
comprises companies that mect plobally recogmised corporate
social responsibility craterta
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CSR Governance

Responsible management 15 central to our culture, and the task of maintainng this culture {including our CSR ambitons) 15 a key focus
of the Executive Commuttee of the Board, comprising the four Executive Directors Oversight of thus key aspect of our business 1s
provided by the full Board

The Executive Commuttee of the Board 1s supported in this ahjective (as 1n all of thewr wark) by a number of sub-committees, which
are chaired by the Directors and which mvolve other members of senior management Responstbility for specific areas has been further
delegated to a number of speciahist sub-commuttees

Managmg Committee Remnt
Our Culture and People Executive Committee of the  To ensure the strength and mantenance of the unique culture
Board throughout the SJP community
Our Chents Chient Steering Group To momitor the client care experience and promote high standards
1 all our interactions with chents
Qur Investments Investment Committee To ensure the Investment Management Approach and our fund
managers dehiver i hine with mandates and chent expectations
CSR overview, Local CSR Group To co-ordinate S§]P’s approach to CSR, with particular focus en
Community, Supphers and promoting local community engagement and environmental
the Eovirenment matters
The St James's Place Foundation Trustees To manage the §jF Foundation, including overseeing grant-making
Foundation and compliance with the charity’s objectives

Our Culture
Our culture 15 central to the success of our orgamsation and we are pro-active in building and reinforcing it

We recogmse that as our business grows we will have to take care to ensure that the culture we have nurtured 1s able to retam is key
elements whilst evolving to continue to deliver business success Our employee numbers have grown beyond 1,000 in 2013 and the
number of Partners has increased to 1,958 Both are expected to continue to grow n future years

To ensure continuity of vur culture, we ensure that all employees and Partners jorming the business are selected for thear it with our
corporate values, as well as their competency, and that they are grven a full induction as the first step 1n thear career with our business

At inductton, all employees and Partners receive a booklet entitled ‘Cur Approach’, which gives guidance on the culture and values of
St James's Place We belteve 1t 15 important for all areas of our community to know and understand our cbjectives, including the ethos
behind the St James's Place brand and how its integrity and values should be mamtamed We are keen to promote our corporate
culture and management style, to provide information about how we deal with internal and external commumnications, and to
encourage a shared commutment to the §t James’s Place Foundation

Members of the Partnership are also provided with a document entitled *“What 1t meaos to be a member’, which sets out a phlosophy
and some prinaples We believe the shared commitment to living up to these principles 1s what gives the Partnership 1ts competitrve
edge and makes it a group of professionals that other advisers aspire 1o joun The document emphasises integnity, trust, openness,
partnershup and teamwork and 15 designed to guide individual and corperate actions, decisions and standards across our commumty

Maintaiming the freshness of the commutrnent to its culture 15 a key challenge for all busiesses, and 1t 1s particularly relevant for SfP
gven the growth which has been achieved 1n recent years We recogmse this challenge and are pro-active in reinforaing our culture,
with key activitzes including an Annual Company Meeting, employee and Partner Surveys, regular Partner meetings, feedback
opporturaties for employees with Directors and a Leadership Cenference for sentor management These activities all provide
opportunities to renew our jomnt understanding and encourage commitment to our shared culture The same activities also provide
opportunities for all of our community to develop a common awareness of the finanaal and economc factors affecting the
Company's performance
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Cur People

We are a people business and take pride 1n al} our communuty
We believe that our success as a business depends on the loyalty
and dedication of our people, whether Partners or employees,
they provide the Group with a sustaimable competitive advantage
and the atttude, knowledge and commitment of our people
continues tn be a strong differentiator

Wc aim to attract the best people and help them fulfil thar
potential We secure their commutment by providing them with
an interesting and challenging carcer within a first class working
environment, and we seek to reward them competitively taking
1nto account the whole package and by encouraging equity
ownership We give credit where credit 1s due, and work hard
to recogmise individual performance

Employees

We are commuitted to mamtaining an appropriately skilled and
diverse workforce irrespective of age, sex, colour, race,
nationality, ethmerty or disability Information about the
breakdown of employees by gender 13 shown tn the

following table

Female Male
Board Dhrectors 2 8
Managers and decision-makers 42 262
Total employees 517 519

It 15 our policy to ensure that all job applicants and employees
being considered for promotion are treated farrly and on merit

In particular, we strive to give full and fair consideration to
applications from and promotions of disabled people, having
regard to their particular aptitudes and abilities, and where
appropriate, we will consider modifications to the working
environment so they can take up opportunities or enhance their
role We will similarly make every effort to achieve contmanty of
employment 1n the event of an employee becoming 1l or disabled,
for exaraple, by arranging appropriate tramng By adopting best
practice principles we seek to ensure that our responsibilities are
met as an equal opportunity employer and that everyone can
enjoy an environment that 15 free from discruminatron of any sort

We have a calendar of regular commumcation with employees
and this includes an employee satisfaction survey whuch we
conduct every other year Our most recent survey was i 2012
and we received a strong survey response rate of 86% (compared
to 85% 1 2010) which provided us with a good understanding of
how our employees are feeling on a number of important 1ssues
Our overall engagement score was 86%, which was sigrficantly
higher than the Ananual services benchmark ot 73% We plan to
continue with the bi-annual process which means our next survey
will bein 2014

We are keen to ensure that all individuals are encouraged to
develop and are given opportuniues to seek new challenges across
the busness We offer a range of development options which
reflect business priorines and offer employees the opportunicy

to grow their careers with us For example

~ we have bult on our apprenticeship programme launched 1n
2012, retaming 100% of our mmtial mntake of five and more
than doubling the size of the intake m 2013 to fourteen,

— we are members of the Insntute of Customer Service (‘ICS'),
and have a number of employees iavolved in the scheme both
as candidates and mentors of others,

— we offer a rolling programme of Knowledge Development
Meetings ("KDMs") which are short sessions available to all
employees to develop thewr knowledge of our business and the
external environment in which we operate,

— we support employees who want to achieve an externally
recogniscd professional quahficaten,

— we run management development activitzes for those wath the

“interest and ability to develop their careers as leaders i our
business, and

— we offer specific development programmes for the specialist
roles within our Freld Management Team

In 2013, the competitive nature of our rewards package for
employees was validated by a detailed review and companison
with the wader financal services market

Partners

Each year, we consult with Partners on a range of topics and we
continue to recerve a good response rate with 74% of Partners
responding to our 2013 Partner survey (75% 1n 2012) The
research provides us with useful feedback on areas where
Partners believe we are domng well and also where they beheve
improvements can be made It was particularly pleasing to see
Partners giving an average score of 8 6 out of 10 when asked to
rate the S[P proposition, with more than 20% of Partners rating
the proposition as better than 7 out of 10 However, some of the
feedback did rexnforce the importance of focusing on maintaining
our commutment to our culture

Our separate research with new Partners, who we consult with
once they have been with us for six months, continued
throughout the year Despite the increase in number of new
Partners joining during the year, more than 85% of these new
recrmts rated their intial months with the Partnership as 7 or
more out of 10 1t s also pleasng that more than 90% indicate a
willingness to recommend St james’s Place to former colleagues

Following the regulatory changes in 2012, 2013 saw the first
anniversary of renewals of Statement of Professional Standing,
confirmng achievement of contnuing professional development
which was successfully achieved by all of our Partners We are
pleased to continue providing support for those now pursuing
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further qualtfications, with around helf of Partncrs having plans
to progress to Chartered Status To support this we have worked
with CII to develop a new St James’s Place Advanced Module
which will enable our Partners to progress towards therr
Chartered level of professional qualification To further
demonstrate cur commitment to profesmional development across
the organisation, we have also formed a partnership wath
Loughborough University and designed a Master’s Degree
Pregramme 1n Wealth Management, which will be launched n
2014 and will be available to all employees as well as members
of the Partnershrp

We are contimung to grow the 5t James's Place Academy,
providing an opportumty for swiably qualified individuals to
receive traimng and assistance to join the adviser commumty
We offer three intake dates per year in London and are locking at
options to extend the Academy to a northern location 1n 2014
We have also launched a Next Generation Academy specifically
armed at bringing ‘sons and daughters’ of exishng Partners mto
their businesses Thus supports growth and helps buld succession
for existing successful businesses

Health and Safety

We work hard to create an excellent working environment for
cmployces and Partners  We ensurc every office complics with
Health and Safety regulations and also seek to improve awareness
through regular traiming sessions on subjects such as manual
handling, fire marshal and first aider training

Each year, we carry out fire evacuation tests and health and safety
wnspections, fire risk assessments (every other year) and the
actions :dentified from these are completed appropriately and
overseen by the Health and Safety workang group The working
group 1s charred by the Operations Director and meets at least
quarterly to review policies, review the progress against targets
and agree the action plan for the following year

*3

Our Clients

Putting chents at the centre of everything we do 1s core to our
culture and business model, as outhned under the secton Our
Business Model and Strategy on page 6 Our aim 15 to help clients
manage their wealth 1n 2 way which reflects their personal
clreumstances

In order to ensure that our business continues to be chent-
focused, we have established a Chent Steering Group wiach
meets regularly and monutors all areas of the business which can
affect the chient experienee Topies discussed cover all stages of
the chent hfe-cycle, including the sutability of advice, policy
administration, claims experience and, where relevant, chent
complaints

During 2013, the group was able to recommend enhancements to

exusting processes and the development of new ideas to bring

about improvements in the client experience, including

— further development of our on-line services,

~ the sharing of best practice client service examples with
Partners,

— providing Field Management traiung on the subject of good
client service, and

— the completion of thematic research focused on key areas of
clrent feedback

Despite recetving much positive feedback from clients, we never
become complacent and 1 2014 we will continue striving to
mmprove our support for chents

Community Activities

We are mindful of the role that we play 1n our local communtties
and providing support to those less fortunate than ourselves was a
key founding principle for the Company This resulted i the
establishment of the S5t James's Place Foundation 1n 1992, a
grant-making charity which receives support from all parts of the
St James’s Place commumty employees, Partners, chents,
supphers and shareholders During the year, the SJP commumity
raised £2 6 milhon resulting 10 a matching grant from the
Company of £1 ¢ milion You can find out morc about support
for our Foundation and 1ts activities on pages 48 to 50 or on the
webstte at www gjpfoundatnon co uk

An important element of the grants distributed by our Feundation is
the focus on chanties and community groups whch are local to our
offices In many cases, these are orgamsations that are also supported
by our employees or Partners

In 2013 we started a new corporate mmtiative, seeking to
recogmse and support our employees who volunteer Starting
with these involved in sport at a grass-roots level, and having
been inspired by the Olympics, we invited members of staff who
grve up their tume to support a local sports club or association to
apply for a small grant of up to £250 to be used for the benefit of
the club/assocranon The imniative was successful and we plan to
repeat and extend this imtiative 10 2014

We are proud of the generous spirit of our employees and the fact
that, according to feedback from our most recent employee
survey, over 40% of them are actively engaged 1n volunteering 1n
thewr local communities Thrs 1s an important part of cur culture
and 15 an area we are seeking to develop
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We are also pleased to be able to support Briush sport at all levels
and, 1n the year of 2a home Commonwealth Gamies, we are
pleased to be continuing our sponsorship of the Loughborough
Umversity Swimming programme This enables the squad to
recerve additional coaching, and, since our relationshup started m
2007, the team have medalled 1n all major UK and International
events including European, Commonwealth, World
Championships and Olympic Games Our support for the
programme will continue at least until the 2016 Olympic Games
1n Brazil

However, the central strand of activity in our Jocal communties

remarms our focus on schools and colleges The two key mutiatives

are

— support for our local further education establishment,
Cirencester College, and

— developing our activity 1n supporting schools with delivery
of Financial Education

Cirencester College

Cirencester College has over 1,600 students between the ages of
16 and 19 and cur main involvement 15 in providing support for
the 'Academics Programme’, of which there arc four, cach
designed for.students who aspire to work 1n a particular market
sector Thesc programmes arc operated through the College's
affiliation with the charity Career Acaderues UK (‘CAUK’) We
regularly support students with paid summer internships and also
provide extensrve personal mentoring and business coaching

§t James's Place sponsors a number of awards and continues to
have representation on the various Academy Boards at College
and National CAUK level We have also been able to offer 19
Academy students jobs following their graduation, as a direct
result of our relationship with the College

A fecent Academy graduate, who completed an Internship with
us, spoke of hus expenence saying

‘When I started my Internship, Ilacked eonfidence and wasn’t
sure what, y"an]thmg, I could contribute to a company Itke
St James’s Place I knew I was good with numbers, but didn’t
think I interacted with people particularly well which has
always held me back However, as a result of my Internship
experience and the requirement to work i an qﬂice
environment and frequently speak to people on the phone, T
have discovered that I am a ‘pecple person’ after all and I
didn't even know 1t! This has really opened my eyes to new
opportunities that previously I would have ignored as being
beyond me It was a real boost to my confidence and Ican’t
rate my Internship expenence highly enough.’

Fmnanaal Education

St James's Place 1s one of the leading providers of financial advice
to 1ndividuals and business owners m the UK We firmly believe
that Ainancial education should start at a young age and, as part of
our work with the local community, we are looking to make use
of our expertise to also help young people learn to manage their
finances better

During the year, we continued our programme of work with
local schools 1n conjunction with The Money Charnity (previously
Credit Action) 14 members of staff delivered hour long, financial
education sessions at a number of local schools to more than 500
pupils The feedback from pupils and staff was very positive with
most pupils indicating that they understood more about the
financial demands they will face as a young adult

In 2013, we also started an imitative, working with teachers from
local schools, to support them in the development of the financial
educaton curriculum in their own schools In previous mmitiatives
we have used our resources to provide one-off events, 1n this
tuhative we are seeking to develop a sustamnable teaching
resource 1n each scheol, which can be used more flexsbly by the
schools since 1t 1s not reliant on external input

During the course of a sumber of workshop days, teachers froma
number of local schools developed a set of topics and activities
which can erther be used together to create a day dedicated to the
subject (‘stand-still’ day), or can be spread over the course of a
number of weeks if used in indivadual lessons The lesson plans
mncluded topics within both the PSHE (Personal, Socal and
Health Education) and Maths curniculum and are targeted at
pupils in Year 9 or 10 In discussion with the teachers, 1t became
apparent that, when tallung about financial matters, 1t1s
beneficial for pupils to be able to hear the experience of people
other than just their teachers, and so an important element of the
delvery 1s support provided by volunteers from S[P The
materrals were trialled as a dedicated day 1n November, with

200 Year 10 pupils, which was supported by eight volunteers
from St james’s Place The session was very much appreciated by
both staff and pupils, and there were lots of 1deas emerging about
how to improve and further develop the materials In 2014, we
plan to work with the same schools to develop the materials
further and trial their use 1n other schools We will also explore
developing materals for older, pre-university, pupils
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Suppliers

St James'’s Place belteves in treating all our stakeholders fairly
We also believe 1 the benefits to be gained from bulding
long-term relationships based on mutual trust As a result, many
of our key suppliers have been assocrated with the Group for a
number of years and we have been able to cultivate very strong
and mutually beneficial relationships Key examples of the
positive and bheneficial relationships we have heen able to establish
with majer suppliers are those with our providers of cutsourced
administration services IFDS, Caprta and State Street

More generally, we expect all our supphiers to act n accordance
vwith the standards embedded 1n ocur culture, and will undertake
due diligence on new service providers to ensure we are
comfortable with ther approach to socally responsible
management We are particularly pleased that many of our
suppliers share our desire to make a positive and lasting difference
to the hves of those less fortunate than ourselves, and we are very
grateful to all those who have provided support to the St James's
Place Foundation, both through donations and through active
participation 1n many of the events

St James's Place has always placed great reliance on the support
of third party supphers and the continued success of our business
reflects, amongst other things, our success in cultivating and
managmg successful relationstups with suppliers ‘We are pleased
to have signed up to the Prompt Payment Code whach s
encouraged by the Department of Business Innovation and Sklls
(BIS) and demonstrates a comm:tment to good practice between
organisations and their suppliers Signatortes to the Code commut
ta paying therr suppliers within agreed and clearly defined terms,
and commut also to ensuning that there 15 a proper process for
dealing with any 1ssues that may anise

Our Investments

As a result of the success of our business, St James's Place 15 now
investing over £44 billion of assets on behalf of our chents This
gives us influence on stockmarkets and we recognise our
responsibility for managing these investments mn a socrally
responsible fashion

As deseribed under the section Our Business Model and Strategy,
our mvestment management approach 1s at the heart of our
1nvestment proposition to clients, and this involves an active
approach to selecting and monttoring fund managers from arcund
the world, wlulst retaining appropriate oversight responsibilities
Our fund managers will each have their own standards for how
they manage their portfolios responsibly, but as part of our
oversight we require that they all meet a munimum requirement

The Stewardship Code 15 2 set of principles or guidelines first
released in 2010 and updated 1n 2012 by the Financyal Reporung
Counal, directed at institutional vestors who hold voting rights
in United Kingdom companies Its principal aim 13 to ensure that
1nstitutional 1vestors, whe manage other pecple’s money,
actively engage mn corporate governance n the mterests of their
heneficiaries (the shareholders) St James’s Place requires that
our fund managers should comply with these principles in full
and as part of our oversight of the fund managers.we undertake a
process of momtoring annually

The Environment

St Jjames’s Place 13 commytted to managing the Group's
environmental impact through effective roanagement of our
enerpy systems, travel, water usage and waste recycling We
recognise the effect our business can have on climate (hange and
we take a positive approach to managing cur business activities,
whlst at the same hme encouraging all Partners and siaff to
congder their own personal mwnpact on the environment

We measure our environmental data from October to September
and the followng tables summarise both our absolute and
normalised CO,e ermissions 1n recent years for our core business
activihies, using 2013 converston rates as provided by DEFRA for
all our emission categories We also report on levels of paper
recycled and water usage The data has been checked and verified
by RSK

Growth o staff numbers caused us to muss our target for Absolute
Emusstons related to business travel However, we beat out targets
on afl other measures and were sigmficantly ahead of our three
year targets on al] the key Normalised Emussions measures

A reduction 1 the number of buldings during the period
contributed to the relatrve reduction 1n water usage, while the
rclative reduction in paper recycled reflected an overall reductien
In paper usage as a consequence of the introduction of our
Electronic Business Subrmssion system We will be reviewing our
objectives in 2014 and setting new targets for the next period
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1) Absolute Emissions {Core business operations, year to end September)

2013 Target % Change on 3 YR Target

Tennes COI: 010 2011 2012 2013 2010 2010-2013
Energy 2,954 2,947 2,683 2,704 2,844 -8 5% -4 0% 5y
Business travel 1,137 1,195 1,245 1,445 1,108 27 1% -3 0% g
Waste 116 112 111 108 110 -6 9% -5 0% g
Total 4,207 4,254 4,039 4,257 4,062 12% -3 4%
CO,e= Carbon Dioade equivalent — Methane and Nitric Acid are converted to Carbon Dioxide
Current targets were set1n 2010 for three years and will be reviewed aganin 2014
Absohure change jez)
Tonnes 2010 2011 2012 2013 on 2010 E
=]
Paper recycled 194 195 176 192 -1.0% E_
L
Absalute change E‘
Cubic Metres 2010 701 2012 2013 on 2010 g
Water usage 6,371 7,856 6,579 6,835 7 3% =
2) Normalised Emissions (per person, year to end September) 2018 Target % Change YR Targer
Tonoes COJE per person 2010 201 202 2013 FTE/ COp On 2010 2010-2013
Energy (FTO) 1992 1 869 1611 1492 1841 -25 1% -8 0% o
Business travel (FTE) 1638 1578 1 467 1 442 1 466 -12 0% -11 0% =3
Waste (FTO) 0078 0071 0067 0 060 0071 223 1% -10 0% E
Total * 3708 3518 3 145 2 994 3378 -19 3% -8 9% LE“
g
Normahsed g
Tonnes per person 2010 2011 2012 2013 l:hangc on 2010 g
Paper recycled (FTO) 0131 0124 0 105 0106 -19 1%
Narmahsed
Cubic Metres 2010 0N 2012 2013 chapge on 2010
Water used (FTO) 4 296 4982 3 949 3770 -12 2%
Number of persons 2010 2011 2012 2013 2013 Target
ETO (Full Time Occupants, reflecing building sharing) 1,483 1,577 1,666 1813 1,531
FTE (Full Tune Employees) 694 757 849 1002 742

Other In1tiatrves
Carbon offsetting — Recognising that we are unable to reduce our carbon ermissions to a zero level while energy 15 primarly sourced
from fosu] foels, we have made arrangements to offset our consumption through the purchase of carbon credits through the Carbon

Neutral Company

Electrome shareholder commumecations - We remain a member of the €Tree imtiative (www eTreeuk com), which encourages
shareholders to receive electronic commumeations, and 15 run 1n asseciation with the Woodland Trust “Tree for All’ campaign
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Approval of the Strategic Report

As part of the Annual Report by the Darectorsit1s a statutory requirement to produce a Strategic Report

The purpose of the report 15

‘1o mform members of the Company and help them assess how the Directors have performed therr duty under section 172 of the Companies det 2006
{duty to promote the success of the Company) *

The objective of the report is to provide shareholders with an analysis of the Company's past performance, to tmpart insight 1nto its
business model, strategics, objectives and prinaipal risks and to provide context for the financral statcments m the Annual Report

The Durectors consider that the report, comprising pages 1 to 50 of this document, meets the statutory purpose and objectives of the
Strategic Report

On behalf of the Board

D Bellamy A Croft

Chief Executive Chief Finanaial Officer
24 February 2014
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St. James’s Place Foundation

The St. James’s Place Foundation 1s a
grant-making charity with a difference,
reflecting the Group’s culture of giving
back to those less fortunate m society.
The vast majority of ﬂnds raised come
| Jfrom fundraising or generous donations
made by the Partners and employees of
St James’s Place each year. These funds
are then matched pound for pound by
the Company.

The Foundation has grown stgmificantly in the last 21 years and
has become one of the most successful company charines m the
UK with over £32 million raised and distnbuted to good causes
during this period

The Foundation Trustees are unmensely proud of the fact that
over 80% of the St fames’s Place Community give regularly to
the Foundation through their pay or earnings The Foundation
recerves almost £1 mullion annually through regular monthly
donations (before company matching) and 1t 13 this on-going
support that enables the Foundation to support charities over a
number of years with multi-year grants and to grow the amounts
given to good causes which match the Foundation's themes

2013 Review

2013 has been a successful year for the Foundation with over £4 5
mulbon rased, thanks to the commitment to fundrmsing by our
commumty On top of the support received from regular monthly
contributions, a aumber of successful events were held in 2013,
raising over £1 muillion before matching, including a canoe
challenge, walks/treks, eycle rides, spinathon, dinners/balls, golf
days, runs, triathlons, cake bakes and the like The Foundation
Trustees would hike to thank everyone who has contrbuted m any
way to ramng over £4 5 million during the year
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Furthering Our Reach - Helping those who need 1t most
Our continued success with fundratsing has meant that the
Foundation has been able to further its reach by donating 1n
excess of £4 mullion to good causes m 2013 both in the UK and
overseas, together with a further £4 milbon pledged as mult-year
grants to charities over the next three years subject to the
satisfaction of various conditions

The Foundation makes donattons of all sizes, from a few hundred
pourds to donations of over £1 million, with a particular focus on
small to medum size charities whom the Trustees believe are
best equipped to make 2 positive and lasting difference to people’s
hives Charties are selected based on the suitability of their
project and whether or not the work they do matches the
Foundation’s grant making themes and criterta These themes
currently mnclude cancer, the hospice movement and support for
chtldren and young people with disabtlities, life lrmiting 1llnesses

or those who are dlsadvantaged socaally or economically

These themes have been chosen by our cornmunity and are
regularly reviewed and updated

In addition to small grants of over £900,000, the Foundation has
been zble to make three major capital investments in 2013 These
capital projects will, once they have been completed, play 2 major
part in ensuring that hundreds of deserving children and young
people arc given the chance of hving more fulfilling lives and
reaching their full potentral

Smule, Suppert & Care

The §t James's Place Foundation has donated £1 million to the
charity Smule, Support & Care to help build a new respite centre
for disabled cluldren and their farmhies living 1n Hampshire, West
Sussex, Dorset and Wiltshare

The centre, which 1s due to open 1n m:d-2014, wall provade
cotnfortable accommodation 1n peaceful surrcundings and be
available to children with varying needs, ncluding the most
severely disabled children who requre specialist care and round
the clock professional support The new centre will enable short
breaks for 2 disabled child at the same time giving the chuld’s
parents or carers the chance to have some respite, providing a

hohday for all

www smilesupport org uk

Chacks

Chicks 15 2 national children’s charity providing the most
disadvantaged cluldren in the UK, aged between 8 and 15, respite
breaks at thewr current centres tn Devon and Cornwall Founded
in 1992, CHICKS offers breaks to over 1,200 disadvantaged
children a year, many of whom are young carers and often 1t's the
first "holiday’ they have ever had Generally lasung a week, the
children get to experience activities such as pony trekking,
swimming and rock chmbing, as well as trips to the beach and
200, and many rewvisit the centres annually The chanty also keeps
1n touch with the children throughout the year, especially at
vulnerable times like Christmas and seeks ways to ensure longer
term xmpact for each chuld wisiting thesr centres

The Foundation has agreed a ‘match fund” denation of £750,000
towards the conversion and refurbishment of a new centre on the
Staffordshire/Derbyshire border, ta enable the chanty to affer
further respite breaks to those living 1o the Midlands and North

www chicks org uk
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Onside

Finally, the Foundation has also pledged

£1 mllion to the youth chanity Onsde, to be matched by The
Queen’s Silver Jubilee Trust, towards the building of two new
youth centres in Wolverhampton and the Wirral, both set to
openin 2015 The new centres will give young people in these
two locations (ranked 40th and 60th respectively 1n the hist of the
UK’s most deprived areas) the opportunity to participate 1n
activities that would otherwise be out of thear reach

Onside 1s a national charity with one simple, but almost
old-fashioned, amm — to bwild a network of 21st century youth
centres, giving young people quality, safe and affordable places
to go 1n their Jeisure tume

T%ic new centres are modelled on the hugely successful Bolton
Lads and Girls Club, which has served the young of Bolton since
1889 and 15 the UK's largest single youth club with nearly 3,500
regular members Onside was established to rephcate thus success
1n other towns and aties by provading a broad range of agh
quality facalities and activities, such a dance studios, cimbing
walls, art studios, gyms, enterprice hubs, football pitches, as well
as carefully designed spaces for youth work and mentering

Onside currently has five centres located in Carlisle, Blackburn,
Oldham, Manchester and Wigan, together supporting over
10,000 young people a year, with a vision to have 20 centres

in operation by 2020

www onsideyouthzones org

Sport for Good — Helping young people by harnessing
the power of sport to change young hives

This year, the Foundation has continued to support seven
mndependent partner chanties thraugh the Sport for Good
programme Through the overall investment of £1 74 milhon the
lives of over one million disadvantaged and disabled children have
been improved i the last two years of the project The seven
chartties include local chanities Greenbank Sports Academy and
Positive Futures in Liverpool, Disability Sport Wales, Norwich
Community Sperts Foundation and Keyfund 1n the North East
The chanties winch operate nattonally include Panathlon
Challenge and Laureus/Active Communities Network who work
1n partnership to deliver the Urban Stars project

In 2013 alone, a total of £580,000 has been donated via the Sport
for Good programme and this investment has enabled each and
every chanity (whether local or national) to thrive, with three of
the seven charities exceeding their expected targets for the year
with the support of the Foundation

Plans for the Future

The Foundation plans to build on the success aclieved over
the last few years by connnuing to grow our fundraising and
mvesting in worthwhile charitable projects i the UK

and overseas

In addition to the employees and Partners contributing to the
Foundation on a monthly basis, we also have a number of excting
fundraising events planned for 2014 We have no doubt that the
SJP Commumty will continue to support the Foundation to
achieve 1ts objectives in 2014 and beyond

Registered No 03183415
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Board of Directors

Chairman

Sarah Bates
Chairman (Rem untl the AGM) (N)

Executive Directors

David Bellamy
Chref Execunve

Andrew Croft
Chief Fanancral Officer

Sarah joined the Board as an independent Non-
executrve Drrector m 2004 and she was appointed
Chairman on 1 January 2014 She is Char of the
Rermuneration Commuttes (from which posttion she
wili retire at the AGM) and she retired from the
investment Commattee on 31 December 2013
Sarah has aver thirty years' mnvestment experence
and a considerable amount of board and semior
managerent expertence She 15 Charman of

JP Morgan Amencan Investment Trust plc,
non-executive and sensor independent director

of Development Sceuritics plc and Witan Pacific
Investment Trust, and a non-executive director
of Polar Capital Techaology Trust and Worldwide
Healthcare Trust ple. She 15 a member of the
[nvestment Commuttee of the Unvermtiey
Superannuation Schemne and an adviser to the East
Rading Pension Scheme She 15 Chatrman of the
CRC Penmon Fund investment commuttee and
was previously Chairman of the Assomanon of
Investment Companies

Key

(A) - Member of the Audit Commattee

{R)— Member of the Rusk Commuttee

(E) — Momber of the Investment Committee

{Rem) — Member of the Remuaeration Committee
(N} —Member of the Nomination Committee

David joined the Company m 1991 and was appointed
to the Board 1n 1997, before becoming Chief
Executrve 1n 2007 He previously fulfilled a number
ofrolesat St James's Place including Group
Operations Director and Managing Drrector Davd
has worked n the financia services industry since
1973 and 15 2 Trustee of the St James’s Place
Foundaten He 15 also 2 member of the Financial
Conduct Authonty’s Prachnoners Panel

Ian Gascoigne
Manaping Director

Andrew joined the Company m 1993 and has been
Chief Finanaal Officer since 2004 He qualified asa
Chartered Accountant at PricewaterhouseCoopers
1988 and has e degree i Accounting and Economics
frorn Southampton University Andrew s a Trustee of
the St James's Place Foundation During 2013 ha was
appointed a lay adviser to the Finance & IT Board of
the Royal College of Surgeons of England

David Lamb
Managing Director (1)

lan has warked in the financal services industry snce
1986 and yined the Company m 1991 He was
appointed to the Board 1o 2003 He has a degree from
Lancaster Unrversity and an MA from Leicester
University lan isa Trustee afthe St James's Place
Foundation He 13 also on the Adwisory Beard of
Loughborough Unrversity Business Schoal

David joined 5]P 1n 1992 2nd was appomted to the
Board m 2007 He 15 a member of the Investrment
Commuttee end a Trustee of the St James's Place
Foundatton David1sa noo executive director of The
Henderson Smaller Companies Investment Trust ple,
a drectar of the Wealth Manegement Associanon, a
member of the Council for the CBI (South West) and
Governor of the University of the West of England
He1s 2 graduate of City University, London and 2
Fellow of the Institute of Actuanies
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Non-executive Directors

Vivian Bazalgette
Independent Non-executive Director

(I) (Rem) (A)

Simon Jeffreys
Independent Non-executive Director
(A)(Rem})

Iain Cormish
Sentor Independent Non-executive
Drrector {(A) (R) (N}

Vrvian joined the Board in July 2011 asan
independent Non-executive Director and 1s Chair of
the Investment Comrmuttee He is also a member of
the Remuneration and Audit Commuttees Vivian bas
a wealth of board and semor mansgement expenence
and has gver thirty years’ experience of investment
markets He (s a non-executive directar of
Hendersen High Income Trust plc, The Brunner
Investment Trust plc and Perpetual Income & Growth
Investment Trust ple Vivian is eurreatly Viee
Chawrman of the Governors of Dulwich Coflege and
adwvises the BAE Systems Plc Pension Fund and the
Investment Committee of the Nuffield Foundznon

Baroness Wheatcroft
Independent Non-executive Director

(R) (Rem) (N)

Simon was appointed to the Board as an independent
Non-executive Director on 1 January 2014 and1sa
member of the Audit apd Rermuneration Committees
He will become Chaur of the Audit Commuttee on

1 March 2014, following the finalisation of the 2013
accounts Srmon was a partner with
Pnicewaterhouse Coopers LLP (1986-2006) where
he lTed the firm's Glabal Investment Management
prectice, after which he joined Fidelity [nternational
Limuted as Group Chicf Adruniscrative Officer
(2006-2008) He Is now Chuef Cperating Officer

of Wellecome Trust and non-execunive director at
Henderson Internanonal Income Iovestment Trust,
Aon UK Limited, and SimCorp A/S, a Damsh
pubhecly listed financial services software conipany

Roger Yates
Independeat Non-executive Director
{R) (Rem)

Baroness Wheatcroft was appointed to the Board a3
an mdependent Non-executive Director im Apnl 2012
and 15 a member of the Risk, Nomination and
Remuneration Commuttees Baroness Wheatcroft s a
member of the House of Lords and is currently 2

pon cxscutive director of FIATS p A and of the
Assocation of Leading Vaaitor Attractions She
became chatrman of the Patrons Commuttes and

of the Investment Commuttee of the British Museum
n 2013 Baroness Wheatcroft has conmderable
experience of the media and journabism and was
previously Editor-in Chaef at the Wall Street Journal,
Europe, a former Editor of the Sunday Telegraph and
was Buminess and City Editor of The Tunes between
1997 and 2006 She hes been a non-executive
director of Barclays Group ple and Shaftesbury ple
and acts as an adviser to, or member of, vanous other

bodies, mcluding the UK/India Round Table

Roger was appomnted to the Board a8 an independent
Non-execitive Director on I January 2014 and1sa
member of the Risk and Remuneration Commuttees
He will become Chair of the Remuneration
Commuttes after the Anmal General Meeting 10
2014 Roger has over 30 years of investment
management experience at Morgan Grenfell, Invesco
a0d Henderson Group ple, where he was Chief
Executive Officer {1999-2008), and asan
independent non-executive director at F&C Asset
Manzgement ple (2009 only) He 1 currently

non executive Chairman of Pioneer Global Asset
Management S p A and Electra Private Equuty ple
and a non executive director of [P Morgan Elect ple
and IG Group Holdings plc

lain jomed the Board as an independent
Non-executive Director In October 2011 He was
appointed as Semior Independent Director and as
Char of the Risk Committee on 1 January 2014 He
15 currently Chasr of the Audit Committee but wall
step down as Chair from | March 2014 when Simon
JefFreys will become Chalr He 1s also a member of
the Nominatton Comumuttee lain has considerable
board and senior management expenence and was
Chaef Executive of the Yorkshire Bunlding Socety
from july 2003 undl December 2011, having foined
the Socetymn 1392 Prior to jownng the Society, he
was a Senior Consultant in KPMG's Strategy Services
Consultancy Practice, specialising 1n banking and
finance sector consultancy projects lanisa

non executive director of Arrow Global Group pic,
aad 13 an independent director of the Prudennal
Regulation Authority He also served as a member
of the FSA Practnoner Panel from 2007 to 2011,
becormng Charrmen 1n 2009
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Chairman’s Report

Sarah Bates
Chairman

1 am pleased to be making my first report as Chairman of

5t James's Place During my time as an independent
Non-executive Directar of St James’s Place [ have been fortunate
enough to serve the Board 10 many capacties, startaing with the
Investment Commuttee and Risk Commuttee, but more recently
as Semior Independent Director and Chawr of the Remuneration
Commuttee In my new role, I will also chair the Nominatton
Commuttee Asa result, [ know the Company well and am proud
to have been a Board member during a pertod of growth for
clients, shareholders and employees

That growth has been strong and the success has been reflected 1n
a number of ways, including the recogmtion given to us by
various industry awards such as Britain'’s Most Admired Company
{Top 1n Sector) award from Management Today, but also 1n the
progression of our stock market ranking As a Board, our task
over the next few years 15 to maintain such safe and sustamnable
growth as 15 i the interests of all our stakeholders Our challenge
1s threefold
— to mamntain those characteristics whach have led to the success
of the Company over the last 23 years,
— to adapt to the changing world around us and the opportumties
1t provides, and
— to build the management team and approach for the next
20 years

More information 15 provided 1n the next few pages about how
your Board works, and mn particular the formal structures which
are necessary and helpful in ensuring sound corporate
governance However, 1 believe (along with many commentators)
that these structures are not, on their own, sufficient to safeguard
the interests of chents and shareholders What 1s necessary i
addition 15 a set of values, a culture and an operating approach,
which topether support the effective stewardship of shareholders’
and clients’ interests The Board must therefore be prepared to be
consistent and clear-sighted in continuing 1ts leadership, support
and oversight of that culture and 1n particular the principle that
St James’s Place will seek to do the right thing for 1ts chients and
thus for 1ts shareholders This will be my main am in providing
leadershup to the Board

Board Composition

Reflecting the continung growth of our Company and the sale of
the Lloyds Bankmng Group (‘LBG’) shareholding, the Board has
seen a number of changes aver the last financal year

At the end of 2013, Charles Gregson stepped down as Chairman
1 order to be able to devote more time to hus other directorships
We are grateful for his contribution as both a Non-executive
Director and then Chairman Mike Power also stepped down at
the end of the year, having been Chair of the Risk Commuttee and
having contributed considerably to the way we think about nisk
over the last mne years However, we are pleased he will remain
as an independent Non-executive Director on the Board of

S5t James's Place International ple, the Group’s Dublin-based Life
company At the same tine, Jain Cormish became the Semor
Independent Director and Chairman of the Risk Commuttee

There was much change 1 the representation of LBG on the
Board during the year Furstly, i June, Steve Colsell was replaced
by Sue Harris and Alison Hewitt However, following the
completion of the sale of the LBG shareholding, both Sue and
Alison also stepped down from the Board We are grateful for the
support and insights of all those Directors who have represented
LBG during recent years

Regrstered No 03183415
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Finally, as part of our process of ongorng renewal of the Board,
we appointed two new Non-executive Directors Sumon Jeffreys
has 2 wealth of audit and financial services experience and we are
pleased that he wall be taking over as Chair of the Audit
Committee in March 2014 Roger Yates has extensive knowledge
and expertence, particelarly of the investment industry, and we
are pleased that he wall be taking over as Charr of the
Remuneratton Commuttee following the AGM We look forward
to the expertise and experience they will bring to the Board

The Future

2013 was a very sigreficant year for St James’s Place and its
shareholders Over the course of 12 months our shareholder base
has been transformed and we have welcomed new mvestors from
around the world However, our ambraions for the future haven't
changed We remain a well-respected and trusted provider of
high quality advice and wealth management services, and we will
continue to buwild on that success But we know that our success
stems from our culture, and so we will continue to focus on our
values, and 1n particular on deing the right thing for our chients
and thus for our shareholders

1look forward to working with the Board on these aspirations

s

Sarah Bates
Charrman
24 February 2014
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Corporate Governance Report

Board Leadership

Your Board 1s responsible for providing entrepreneurial leadership
and directzon to the Company, as well as setting cut 1ts strategic
aims, vision and values It1s also responsible for ensuring that
adequate controls exist in order to delver value to shareholders
and ather stakeholders who derive benefit from our activitzes

How have we complied wath the UK Corporate
Governance Code?

Under the UK Listng Rules, UK listed companies are required
to state whether they have complied with the provisions of the
UK Corporate Governance Code (the ‘Code’) during the year,
and where they have not comphed, they are required to explain
such non-comphance Details of how the Company has applied
the principles of the Code are set out 1n thus report, other than
the prineiples of the Code relating to remuneration, which are set
out n the Remuneration Report on pages 68 to 32 Your Board
considers that the Company has fully comphed with al! of the
Code's provisions during 2013 The provistons of the Code can be
found on the Financial Reporting Council’s website, at www frc

org uk

How dad your Board carry out 1ts work during 20137
During the year, six formal Board meetings were held, including
a full day Board Strategy meeting, and two ad hoc Board meetings
were held by telephone conference call Directors’ attendance at
Board meetings can be found on page 58

Board Committee

For each Board meeting, all members of the Board are supphed with
an agenda and pack containing reports and management mformation
on current trading, operational 1ssuss, compliance, nisk, accounting
and financtal matters The Chars of the vamous commttees af the
Board also report to the Board at each Board meeting and copies of
committee meetmg minutes are included 1n Board packs

Whilc the Board has a formal sehedule of matters speaifically
reserved for it, 1t acknowledges that it 15 responsible for focusing
on growing the business successfully by developing and promoting
appropriate pohcies and procedures and encouraging a culture of
wnovation and continual improvement Matters specrhically
reserved to your Board are set out below

- determimung the overall strategy of the Company,

— ensuring that the Company’s cperations are well managed and
proper succession plans are 1n place,

- Teviewing major trarsactions or irhatives proposed by the
Executive Directors,

— implementing appropriate corporate povernance procedures,

— periodically reviewing the results and operations of
the Company,

— ensuring that proper accounting records are maintained and
adequate controls are in place to safeguard the assets of the
Company from fraud and other significant nisks,

- wdenufying and managing risk, and

— deciding the Company'’s policy on chantable and
political donztions

structure

St. James’s Place plc
Shareholders
{iatters resarved to AGIM)

St. James's Place plc Board
{Chair = Sarah Bates)
{Matters reserved i0 Board)

Risk Committae
(TOR) (MEDs)
(Chair = lain Cornish)

Audit Committes
{TOR) (NEDs)
(Chair = 1ain Cornish}

(Chair = Sarah Batas)

Executive Board
{Execs)
{Chair = David
Bellamy)

Remuneration
Committee
({TOR) (NEDs)

Nomination
Committee
{TOR) (WEDs}
(Chair = Sarah Bates)

Investment
Committes
{TOR) (IMA)
(Chair = Vivian
Bazalgatte)

SJPI Board (BCM
& Mattars Rasg)
(Chair = A Croft)

Finance ExCo
{Chair = A Croft)

Risk ExCo
{Chair = 8 Tonks)

Distribution ExCo
(Chair =1 Gascoigne)

Operations &
Infrastructure ExCo
(Chair = S Gravestock)

Investment ExCo
{Chatr =D Lamb)
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How are other matters delegated to your

Board’s Committees?

Operational matters are delegated to management via the Board's
Executive Comumittee, comprising the Executive Directors of the
Board (the ‘Executive Board’) The Executive Board 15
responsible for communicating and implementng the Group's
business plan objectives, ensuring that the necessary resources are
put 1a place to achieve those objectzves and managing the
day-to-day operational activities of the Group The level of
committees below those of the mamn Board commuittees asnist the
Executive Board 1n executing these responsibilities

The Company marntamng a Board Control Manual which sets out
the primary pelicy and decision-making mechamsms within the
Company Itincludes the terms of reference for the vartous
commuttees of the Board, the Company’s risk poliaes and nisk
appetite statement Inaddihon, detailed job descriptions for each
Executtve Director are included, as well as a general job
description outhming the responsibilities of the Non-executive
Directors The Board Control Manual 15 updated by the Company
Secretary and approved by the Audit Commuttee on an annual
basis

How 1s your Board Orgamsed”

The Roles of the Charrman‘and Chief Executive

Sarah Bates was appointed as Chairman on 1 Jannary 2014,
followng the resignation of Charles Gregson from the Board on
31 December 2013

The division of responsibilities between the Charman of the
Board, Sarah Bates, and the Chief Executive, David Bellamy, are
clearly defined and documented As Chairman, Sarahis
responsible for leadershup of the Board, ensuring its continued
effcetivencss, and also promoting cffectrve commumcation
between the Executive and Non-executive Directors, and with
shareholders generally As Chief Executive, David Bellamy’s
primary responsibihity 15 to manage the Company via the
executive management team and implement the strategies
adopted by the Board

The Semor Independent Director

Tain Cormish 1s the Semor Independent Director, having
succeeded Sarah Bates in January 2014 The Sentor Independent
Director acts as a sounding board and confidant for the Chairman
and the Non-executive Directors Jain ensures he 1s available to
meet with shareholders and raises shareholder concerns with the
Board that are not resolved through normal channels

Ensurmg Independence

When determuining whether a Non-executive Director 1s
independent, your Board considers each mdividual against the
criteria set outin the Code and also considers how they conduct
themselves in Board meetings, mcluding how they exercise
judgement and independent thinking Taking these factors into
account, the Board believes that all Non-executive Directors
continue to demonstrate their independence

Procedures to Deal with Conflicts of Interest

Rigorous procedures are 1n place to deal with potential or actual
conflicts of interest Under this procedure, the relevant Director
must disclose to the Board the actual or potential conflict of
wnterest for discussion by the other members of the Board The
Board will consider the potential conflict on its particular facts
and decwide whether to waive the potential conflict and /or iumpose
conditions on such warver, 1f 1t believes thes to be 1n the best
interests of the Company Confhict authorisations are reviewed
annually by the Board

Durectors’ and Qfficers’ Indemuity and Insurance

The Company has taken out 1nsurance covering Directors and
officers against habilitzes they may mcur in their capacity as
Dhrectors or officers of the Company and its subsidiaries

The Company has granted indemnities to all of its Directors (and
Directors of subsidiary compares) on terms consistent with the
apphcable statutory provisions Quabfying third party indemnity
provisions for the purposes of section 234 of the Compames Act
2006 were accordingly in force duning the course of the inancal
year ended 31 December 2013, and rematn 1 force at the date of
this report

How are your Board Committees Structured?

There arc five commuttees of the Board Audit, Investment,
Nomination, Remuneration, and Risk The membership and
terms of reference of the commuttees are reviewed annually and
the terms of reference are available on the corporate website
(www sp co uk}, or on request from the Company Secretary
Biographical details for members of these Commuttees are set out
on pages 52 and 53
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Corporate (Governance Report contimed

Attendance at Meetings
The attendance by mmdividual Directors at Board meetings during
the year ended 31 December 2013 was as follows

Board

_ (6 mestings)

Sarah Bates 6/6
Vivian Bazalgette 6/6
David Bellamy 6/6
Steve Colsell® 3/3
Iain Cormsh 6/6
Andrew Croft 6/6
Ian Gascoigne 6/6
Charles Gregson® 6/6
Sue Harns™ 2/3
Alison Hewtt® 3/3
David Lamb 6/6
Mike Power™® 6/6
Baroness Wheatcroft 6/6

(1} Steve Colsell ceased being a member of the Board with effeet from 1 fune 2013
and Sue Harris and Alison Hewart were app d non-1ndependext No: e
Drrectors on 1 June 2013, as representatives of Lloyds Banking Group ('LBG')
pursuant to the Relationship Agreement between the Company and LBG  Under
this agreement, LEG was entitled to appowt up to two Noa executive Directors
to the SJP Board The agreement termnated in sccordance with its terms on
13 December 2013 following the disposal by LBG of xts shareholdmng in S|P Asa
consequence Sue Harris and Ahison Hewntt ceased being members of the Board
with effzct fram 31 December 2013

{2) Charles Gregson and Mike Power ceased being members of the Board with effect
from 31 December 2013

The Group Risk Director ts mvited to attend seme Board
meetings during the year to present s Group Rusk report He
also attends Risk and Audit Commuttee meetings during the year

How 1s your Board Supported?®

Induction and Continuing Professional Development

An appropriate induction programume 15 designed to enable new
Directors to meet senior management, understand the business
and future strategy, the main misks potentratly affecting the
Group, vinit office locations and speak directly to Partners and
staff around the country

Durning 2014, the Chairman and the Company Secretary will
continue to mmplement the induction programmes for Stmon
Jeffreys and Roger Yates, and wull also ensure continuing
professional development for all your Directors, based on their
individual requirements Thus mcludes tramning on topical 1ssues,
visits to head office and other locations to meet wath staff and
members of the Par{ncrshlp and attend seminars or other events
taking place throughout the year In addition to this, ad hoe
traming is set up in the year to deal with individual requests and
the Non-executive Directors are able to attend seminars or
conferences which they consider will assist them in carrying out
their duties Non-executive Directors are briefed on the views of
major shareholders at Board meetings and are provided with the
opportunity to meet with shareholders, as necessary

Directors have access to the advice of the Company Secretary at
all imes, as well as independent professional advice where needed
1n order to assist them in carryng out their duties

Board Evaluation

Following the externally-led evaluations carrned out by
Independent Audrt Limited e 2011 and 2012, and in ight of the
signuficant changes to the Board during the year, the Board
undertock a formal internal evaluation exercise 1n 2013 The
Chairman assessed the individual performance of each of the
members of the Board by a process mvolving interviews wath each
Board member, and the provision of feedback where relevant
Thus process also enabled the Chairman to review the completion
of the various actions arising from the Board evaluation carried
outn 2012 and to carry out a handover process with the
mcoming Chairman, Sarah Bates, prior to lum stepping down
from the Board at the end of 2013

Relations with Shareholders

The Board mamtains close relationships with institutional
shareholders through dislogue and frequent meetings and the
Chief Financtal Officer provides feedback to the Board on any
material topics rased by shareholders The Company also meets
regularly with the Group’s brokers who facihitate meetings with
wvestors and thetr representatives The'Chairman, Senior
Independent Director and other Non-executive Directors are
available for consultation with shareholders on request Board
members receive copies of the latest analysts’ and brokers’ reports
on the Company and attend shareholder and /or analyst meenngs
from time to time
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Report of the Audit Committee

Iain Cornish

Membership and Attendance 1n 2013

Commuttee mermbers Attendance
lain Cornish 6/6
Vivian Bazalgette 6/6
Mike Power'” 6/6

(1) Make Power ceased being a member of the Comrttee on 31 December 2013 and
Simon Jefreys jomed the Commttee an 1 January 2014

Role of the Commuittee 1n Summary

— To be responsible for the accuracy and integrity of the Group’s
financial statements,

— To review the external auditors’ reports thereon,

— To momtor the effectiveness of the Internal Audit function,

— To ensure the effectiveness of the systems of internal control,

— To review, and where approprate refer on to the Board, any
sigmficant control failures, and

— To report to the Board on how 1t has discharged
ats responsibilities

The integnity of the Company's financal results and the
effectiveness of its internal cantrol systems are of utmost
importance to the Directors The Audit Comuuttee assists the
Board 1 1ts aversight and momtoring of financial reporting and
internal controls, by tesing and challenging these areas and
working 1n conjunction with management and the external and
internal anditors as appropriate

The key activities of the Commuttee durmg 2013 mcluded

— reviewing the annual and half yearty Report and Accounts,
and associated announcements, mncluding the external
auditors’ reports,

— momtormg and reviewing the effectiveness of the Internal
Audtt function, wncluding progress agamst the Internal Audrt
plan,

— engagng with development of the Internal Audit plan for the
year and subsequently considenng the results of the Internal
Audit activity, particularly the major areas of internal audit
focus during the year, and

— considering the results of the Ioternal Control
Evaluation process

The Commuttee also mantained an appropriate relanonship with
the Company’s external auditors

Thas report aims to provide more m-depth details of the role of
the Audit Commuttee and the work 1t has undertaken during
the year

Iain Cornish
On bekalf of the Audit Commurtee
24 February 2014
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Report of the Audit Committee wmme

Comnuttee Membershup during 2013

The membershp of the Commuttee changed at the end of 2013
following the resignation of Mike Power from the Board Simen
Jeffreys joined the Commuttee on 1 January 2014 and 1t 1s
intended that he will become Chair of the Commuttee from

1 March 2014, following the process to finalise the 2013 Financial
Statements All members of the Audit Commuttee at the end of
the year were independent Non-executive Directors and this
remains the case at the date of this report The Board remains
satisfied that all members of the Audit Commuttee have the
experience and qualificabons to perform therr roles, noting m
particular that a majorty of members have recent and relevant
financial experience and expertise

Attendees at meetings during the year mcluded the Chief
Exccutive, the Chuef Financial Officer, the Rusk Director, the Head
of Internal Audit and members of the Finance team, as well as
representatives from the external auditors, Pricewaterhouse Coopers
Steve Colsell also attended meetings as the representative of Lloyds
Banking Group unt] his resgnation in June 2013, thereafter Sue
Harns attended a further meeting as LBG's replacement
representative In addition, as part of the annual development
programme, Charles Gregson was invited to attend as an observer
at three of the Audrt Commuttee meetings, and Sarah Bates was
mvited to attend one of the Audit Commttee meenings

Commuttee Actrvities during 2013

Report and Accounts

Asn previous years, the Commuttee spent 2 significant amount of

time reviewing the annual and half yearly Report and Accounts

The focus was particularly on process and conirol issues, for

examnple, confirming the process of how judgements were made,

who was 1nvolved and bow deaisions were unplemented The
topics dhscussed were driven both by connderation of nisk of
mus-statement of accounts, but also by consideration of risks 1n the
business Topics that recerved dedicated time m the year, bothin

Committee meetings and i separate less formal sessions, included

— actuaral assumptions, with a particular focus on persistency
used 1n the assessment of the embedded value,

- review of principal areas where the Group applies accounting
estmates, includimg valuation of deferred tax assets and
Liabihtzes and impawrment testing of other intangible assets,

~ 1mpact on the business of regulatory and legal risks, mcluding
disclosure and accounting,

— process for extending loans or advances to Partners and
assessing the risk of them being unable to repay,

— future financal implications of the new outsourced
admrmistration contract with IFDS, and

— reporting and disclosure of the fees paid by the Company 1n
connection with the placing by Lloyds Banking Group ple of

shares m the Company i March 2013

Having reviewed how all of these points were represented in the
Report and Accounts, the Committee concluded that their
treatment was appropriate

Early in the year, as part of a series of presentations by semor
managers from the business and following the announcement by
the FCA of an industry review, the Commttee recerved a
presentation on umt pricig This provided the Commuttee with
an opportumty to challenge the management and controls m this
important area The presentation also included consideration of
the relationship with State Street and the control environment
eround regular vahuation of assets and funds, which 1s also a key
part of the accounts

Finally in relation to the review of the Report and Aceounts, as part
of the regular Internal Audut plan, the Company's reportng
processes were, as usual, the subject of a number of mternal audits
These audits complemented the external audit and were taken into
account m the Commuttee’s review of the Report and Accounts

Internal Audit Function Effectiveness

In relauon to the effectiveness of the Internal Audit function, the
Committee speat a conaderable penod of tme 1n early 2013
discussing the scope and objectives of the Interpal Audst Plan and
testing to ensure that the mternal audit department had the
necessary resources, both internal and external, to ymplement the
plan 1n a timely manner

As part of that review, the Commuttee appointed Deloitte LLP
{'Delatte’) to conduct an independent review of the mternal
audit functron This review assessed the function i hght of the
growth of the Group, relevant industry standards, good practice
and the expectations of the Board, regulators and other
stakeholders Deloitte presented therr findings to the Committee
m July 2013 The review confirmed that the Internal Audit
function was operating with the necessary independence and
objectivity when carrying out its work However, Deloitte
recommended a number of changes intended to strengthen the
profile and resources of the internal audit team and improve 1ts
alignment with the risk functions opersting within the Group
The Committee accepted the recommendations 1n fall and has
monitored the progress of the actions to be implemented The
remaining zchons are expected to be completed 1n early 2014

Internal Audrt Actreity

As in previous years, the Commuttee was actively engaged 1
approving the Internal Audit Plan which was risk based The plan
covered a wide range of areas across the business but some of the
key topics addressed included anti-fraud controls and the
supervision of Partners The anti-fraud controls work was in
support of the External Auditors Internal audit activity n
relation to Partner actrvity 1s carried out annually piven the
mmportance of managing the advice risk 1n the business

Reflecting the impoertance of the current project working with
IFDS to upgrade some of the Group’s policy admimistration
systems, the Audit Commuttee also requested that the Internal
Audit team undertook work to review {and advise on controls for)
the project The project 1s expected to run for a number of years
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and Internal Audit will continue to momitor progress to help
ensure a successful outcome

Throughout the year, the Commuttee recetved regular updates from
the Head of Internal Audit in relation to the results from completed
audrts The Commuttee paid careful attention to any areas where
the audit led to remedial action being recommended The actions
anising were monitored to ensure completion In practice 93% of
actions were completed in hine with the onginal agreed deadhine,
with the rest being completed by appropriately revised deadlines

Internal Control Evaluation

The Board, through the Audit Comrmttee, conducts an annual
review of the effectiveness of the Group's systeros of internal
control, in line with the requirements of the UK Corporate
Governance Code The Group adopts the ‘three hines of defence
model’ as the design basis for 1ts mternal control framework and
the process for reviewing the effectiveness of the framework 15

aligned to the same model

In summary, the Chief Executive has ultimate responsibility for
the first two lines of defence and uses his knowledge of the
business, and that of s senior management team, to provide his
opiuon on the control systems Internal Audit then provides an
mdependent second opinion, from a third hine perspective, based
on Internal Audit activity condueted throughout the year and
Internal Audit’s appraisal and triangulation on the output from a
wide range of other sources

In 2013, the Chuef Executive was also able to take mto account the
output of the new ‘controls self-assessment’ (‘CSA’) processes for a
number of charunents within the Group This work had been
encouraged by the Audit Commuttee and was facilitated by the
Internal Audrt function The processes are now being embedded
and will be extended to the rest of the Group functions

during 2014

Jointly, the two optmions asmist the Audit Commuttee in completing
1ts annual review and enable the Audit Commuttee to attest on
behalf of the Board that 1t has been able to properly review the
effectiveness of the Company’s system of internal control
accordance with the ‘Turnbull Guidance for Directors on Internal
Control Where any matters have ansen from the review, the Audit
Commuttee has ensured that corrective action has been taken

Other Actity

Finally, a variety of jomt presentations about the business were
recetved from semor management The Commuttee also carried
out a formal review of the risk schedules, and received updates
from the Chair of the Risk Commuittee and reports from the
Audit Commuttee of St James's Place International plc {the
Group’s Irish-registered ife company) The Commuttee also
carefully considered the changes to the UK Corporate
Governance Code The Commuttee's terms of reference were
reviewed during the year and 1t 15 satisfied that they veman
appropriate and conform to best practice

wodzy stfaong

Fair, Balanced and Understandable’ Opinicn

The UK Corporate Governance Code now requires the Board to
give their opinion as to whether they consider the Company’s
Report and Accounts to be far, balanced and understandable To
aid the Board, the Audit Committee formally reviewed the
Report and Accounts 1n relation to this requirement and were
able to confirm the apmion of the Committee, based on the
activities and information described above, bemng that the Report
and Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2013 for

St James’s Place ple are indeed far, balanced and understandable
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External Auditor

The Commuttee has responsibility for the work of the external
auditors of the Company and during the year senior management
carried out 1ts annual review of the effectiveness, independence
and objectivity of the Company's external auditor As a result of
this review, the Commuttee concluded that the audit service of
Pricewaterhouse Coopers LLP was fit for purpose and provided a
robust evaluation of the risks underlying the Company’s
financial statements

SMAWRIDIG [DIAUDUL]

In relation to the review of the independence of the auditors, the
Commuttee noted the existence of a formal policy for the provision
of non-audit services by the Externzl Audizor The axm of the
pohicy 1s to ensure that external auditor objectnity and
independence 1s safeguarded by setting out the categores of
non-audit services which the external anditor 15 allowed to provide
to the Group and hmiting the amount of activity The financial
luirut for non-audit related advice and consultancy work by the
external audit firm 15 £100,000 per year Non-audit assignments
exceeding 25% of the audrt fee, either indrvidually or cumulatively,
must have the prior approval of the Audit Commuttee The amounts
pad to the External Audrtors during the year for audit and
non-audit related services are set out m the Notes to the Accounts
on page 120, but the amount for non-audit related services i the
year was £rul (2012 Lml) The Commuttee remains satisfied that
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP remains mdependent and objective in
relation to 1ts audit acuvities carried out for the Group

uonpuiofiey 2YIG

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP was appointed as the Company’s
external auditor 1n 2009 In 2014 the Lead Partner will rotate,
and since the audit service provided 1n recent years has been
deemed fit for purpose, the Company considers that putting the
audst engagement out to tender is not necessary at the current
time Having assessed the performance and independence of the
auditors as outhned above, the Commuittee recommends that
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP be re-appointed as external auditor
and a resolution to effect this will be put to shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting

The terms of reference setting out the Committee’s role and
authonty can be found on the corporate website at
www sjp co uk
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Report of the Risk Committee

Fostering 2 culture of effective risk management 15 of the utmost
importance to the Directors The Risk Commuattee assists the
Board in developing this culture, by providing leadershap,
direction and oversight of the Group’s management of risk

In pursuing these objectives, the Commttee’s key activities 1

2013 mcluded

— Monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness of risk management
m the Group and the sk management functions,
— Reviewing the risk appetate as well as the principal risks and

uncertaintics aH'cctmg the Group,

~ Considering reports produced by the Group’s Risk and
Compliance functions, to monitor the ongoing compliance
interaction with the Group's regulators, and

- Recerving presentations from members of senior management
about thewr business areas and reviewing the management of the

associated risks

The following report sets out in more detail the Committee’s key

Tain Cornish activittes in 2013

Membership and Attendance o 2013
Tam Cormish

Commuttee Members Attendance On bebalf of the Risk Commnttee
Mike Power(® 5/5 24 February 2014

lain Cormish® 5/5

Raroness Wheatcroft 5/5

(1) Mike Power ceased being a member of the Commttee on 31 December 2013
and Ropur Yates joincd the Commuttee on 1 January 2014, when Tsin Cornish
became Chair

{Z) Attended ooe meeting by telephone

Role of the Commuttee 1n Summary

— To foster a culture of effective risk identihcation and
management throughout the Group,

— To provide leadership, direction and oversight of the Group’s
management of risk,

— To review the principal risks affecting the Group and the ways
m whach the nisks are controlled and mitigated, and

— To report any material areas of concern to the full Board
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Committee Membership during 2013

‘The membership of the Risk Commuttee changed with effect
from [ January 2014, with Mike Power steppmng down on

31 December 2013 and bemg replaced by Roger Yates lain
Cormsh was appomnted Chair of the Commuttee All members of
the Risk Comrmittee have conmiderahle financial, risk and/ar other
experience and are mdependent Non-executive Directors

Regular attendees at Committee meetings during the year
included the Chief Executive, Managing Director,

Group Risk Director, the Compliance Officer, Head of Rusk
Management, the Corporate Actuary and a representative from
Lloyds Banking Group, the Company's major shareholder during
2013 Also, as part of the annual development programme,
Charles Gregson and Sarah Bates attended a pumber of Risk
Committee meetings )

Commuittee Activities during 2013

Overaght of the Risk Management Framework 1s key to delivery
of the responsibilities of the Commttes The framework and
associated documents are subject to annual review, and 1n 2013,
particular focus was grven to the articulation of the Group’s Rask
Appetite Statement and the breadth of the associated Key Risk
Indicator Swate The risk policies were also consaidered at the same
time m a dedicated meeting

The Comumuttee 1s supported 1n 1ts oversight of the Risk
Management Framework by the Risk Management team and the
Commttee spends a igmficant proportien of 1ts time recetving
updates from the Group Risk Director and the Head of Risk
Management, who both have direct access to the Chairman of the
Risk Commuttee should the need arise The Commuttee 15 also
able to review and provide challenge on the 1mplementation of
risk mrhigation 1n the business, and can test how cffectrvely the
culture 15 embedded

As 1 previous years, the Commuittee regularly receved and

discussed a suite of manapement imformation to aid thewr

monrttoring of risks and risk exposure in the business The

mformation included

— Rusk Schedules, setting out the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group, as well as how they are mitigated, and

— Key Rask Indicators (KRIs), assessing the current exposure to
key risks

During the year, and with the encouragement of the Commuttee,
the KRI swite was reviewed The Commuittee, working actively
with Risk Management and the Executive Board, contributed
extenstvely to the re-design and refinement of the new suite

of information

As part of therr oversight of risk management 1n the business, the

Commuttee continued to receive and review reports from a mumber

of Executive Commmuttees and other functions m the Group including

— mmutes of the Risk and Finance Executive Commuttee
meetings, where executive oversight 15 given to the
appropriateness and observance of the Group’s Risk Appente,

— reports from the Risk Commuttee of St James’s Place
International (the Group’s Insh registered ansurance company),

— reports produced by the Comphance and Actuarial functions
relating to the management of the risks faced by the regulated
subsidrary entitzes within the Group,

— an annual report from the Head of Risk Management on the
effectiveness of the Group's risk management systems, and

— an annual report from the Money Laundering Reporting
Officer on the anti-money laundering, bnbery and fraud
activities taking place within the Group

Smee most of the activity wathun the Group 1s regulated, the
Committee also considered regular updates on the Group’s ongomg
interactions with the PRA and FCA, and the wider regulatory
interactions with firms in the finencial services marketplace This
allowed them to memtor ongomg comphance with regulation

Finally, the Committee continued to recerve regular updates from
senuor executives on key corporate initiatives and spent time
discussing management of the assoctated risks The Commuttee
finds these presentations particularly useful mn grving an
opportunity for more detailed discussion and challenge of
particular areas of risk in the business Most of the topics were
presented as joint sessions with the Audit Commttee and allowed
members of both Committees wider experience of the
management of the Group and an opportunity to challenge senior
management Presentations i 2013 included

~ the Comphance Officer explaming the processes i place to
montor the quality of advice provided by the St James’s Place
Partnership, ncluding the ongoing supervision arrangements
and business checking procedures,

— the Commercial Director cuthning the strategy of the Group
to attract larger Independent Financial Advisers to jom the
Partnershup, often through the acquisition of larger established
businesses The Commuttee also reviewed the due dihgence carried
out pror to any acqusinon taking place and the procedures used
to momtor the integranon of the businesses mnto the SJP Group,

— the Corporate Actuary reporting on recent ICAAP (Internal
Capital Adequacy Assessmnent Process) work and discussing the
key r1sks affecting the financual position of the regulated
subsidiary entrties within the Group, the management of these
and the mmplied capital requirement, and

— the Busimess Development Director updating the Committee
on the programme to upgrade the Group’s thurd party
admimistration arrangements m the UK, including the
development of a new admmstration platform

The terms of reference setting cut the Commuttee’s role and
authornity can be found on the corporate website at www sjp co uk
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Report of the Nomination Committee

lain Cornish

Membership and Attendance 1n 2013

Committee members Attendance
Iain Cornish 3/3
Charles Gregson™ 3/3
Make Power" 3/3

(1) Charles Gregson and Mike Power ceased being members of the Commuttee on
31 December 2013 and Sarah Bates end Baroness Wheatcroft jomned the
Commuttes oo | January 2014, when Sarah Bates became Charr

Role of the Commattee i Summary

— To regularly review Board and commuittee composihon
and structure,

— To idenuify, report on and recomimend for Board approval
swtable candidates for appomtment to the Board, and

- To appropnatcly consider succession plannmg for Directors and
senior management, talung into account dlversn:y, €XpErience,

knowledge and skalls

Having the appropnate range of hugh calibre Directors on our
Board 1s key to achieving success 1n the Group’s strategic
objectives, whilst helping 10 mutigate the regulatory and other
isks faced by the Group

The Committee spent a considerable amount of time over the
past year lookang for new Non-executive Directors as part of the
Company’s policy of continually refreshing its Board This
process resulted i the appomntment on 1 January 2014 of

two new independent Non-executve Directors, Simon Jeffroys
and Roger Yates

The Commuttee also considered who should succeed Charles
Gregson as Chair of the Board, following his retirement at the
end of 2013 The Committee recommended to the Board the
appomtment of Sarah Bates (with Charles Gregson taking no
part in this process 1n accordance with the Code)

Succession planmng 15 also a core remit of the Cormmttee

In order to identfy appropriate successors for each sentor
management role, the Commuttee regularly reviews the
Company's succession plans Assessing and developing the talent
that hies below the Board 1skey to maintaining healthy
motwvational and retention levels amongst senior management,
as well as ensuring smooth transition when senior staff move In
the Company

Thus report provides further details of the role of the Nomination
Commuttee and the work 1t has undertaken during the year

Iain Cornish
On behalf of the Nommation Commaurtee
24 February 2014
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Committee Membership during 2013

The membershup of the Commuttee changed at the end of 2013
following the resignation of Charles Gregsen and Mike Power
from the Board Sarah Bates jomed the Commuttee and became
Chair of the Commttee with effect from 1 January 2014
Barcness Wheatcroft also joined the Commuttee at the same date

Commuttee Activities during 2013

During 2013, the Nomination Commuttee spent a considerable
amount of time 1denttfying two independent Non-executive
Directors to join the Board It carefully considered the calibre,
skulls, knowledge and expenience required to fill the roles and
complete the most approprate balance 1n Board composition
Given the planned retirement of Mike Power from the Board,
1t was decided to seck a candidate with considerable accounting
expertence The Commuttee also identihed the need for a
candidate with investment management experience, given the
mmportance of this area to the success of the Group

The Commuttee believed 1t inappropriate to narrow the search
towards a particular gender since 1t considered 1t was m the best
interests of the Company and shareholders as a whole to access
the widest pool of non-executive talent Ths 1s not to say,
however, that the Board does not appreciate the importance of
diversity The Commuttee believes that, in order for a Board to
be fully effective, 1t should consist of people from different
backgrounds and skl sets so that ‘group thinking’ 15 avoided and
constructive discussion enhanced It wall therefore continue to
focus on all these aspects when considermg candidates

Once suttable candidate profiles had been agreed upon and

drafted, an external recruitment consultant, Korn Ferry, with no

connection to the Company, was engaged to 1dentify the most
appropnate candidates These candidates met with semor
management and the members of the Nomination Committee
and were rigorously interviewed prior to bemng recommended to
the Board The Board 1n turn carefully examined each candidate
before approving therr appomntments

The Commritee also considered who would be the most
appropriate person to succeed Charles Gregson as Chair of the
Board on his rehrement at the end of the year After careful
review, it was considered that Sarah Bates had the requsite
expentence and sklls to become Charrman with effect from

{ January 2014 The Commuttee also confirmed that Sarah

The Commuttee continued to monitor and review succession
planning 1n relanen to the Company's senuor management 1n
order to encourage and develop 2 strong prpeline of talent It
believes that diversity extends beyond the Boardroom and that
developing all members of the sentor management team below
Board level 15 vital in order to develop and maintain an effective
succession programme During the year, the Committee
reviewed the Group’s succession plans with the Chief Executwve
and made suggestions as to how the plans could be further
strengthened It was noted that the Group had introduced a
pumber of new inmtiatives to develop senior talent below the
Board, includimg bespoke traming programmes with development
consultants, mentoring opportunities and a pilot programme
centred on healthy bving and wellbeing The Commuttee also
reviewed the succession plans for each of the Executive Directors
and members of the sexior mansgement team

The terms of reference setting out the Commuttee’s role and
authority can be found on the corporate website at www sjp co uk

uoday e

)
z
=
=
F]
A
i

SIURUATNG [OTUDUL]

uenpwIsfur PRo

remained independent and recommended her appointment to the
Board In accordance with the Code, nerther Charles Gregson nor
Sarah Bates were mvolved m the discussions relating to the Chair
of the Board
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Report of the Investment Committee

VYivian Bazalgette
Chair

Membership and Attendance 1n 2013

Committee members Attendance
Vivian Bazalgette 5/9
Sarah Bates® 9/9
Peter Dunscombe 8/9
David Lamb 9/9
Win Robbms 9/9
Attendees Attendance
Chris Ralph 9/9
Andrew Humphnes 7/9

(1) Sarah Bates ctased being a member of the Commurtee on 31 December 2013

Role of the Committee in Summary

— To oversee the Company’s Investment Management Approach,

— To momnitor the performance and switabihity of the Group's
range of independent fund managers,

— To ensure that the fund managers follow the terms of ther
agreements with the Company,

— To make recommendations 1n relation to the appointment or
removal of fund managers, and

— To consider any new funds which are to be made available to
the Group’s chents

The objective of the 5t James's Place approach to investment
management, 15 to generate consxstently superior mvestment
results over the medium term The Investment Commuttee 15 the
cornerstone of the approach and will select the best individuals
within the appropriate mvestment companies, monitor thear
performance on behalf of chients and, when necessary, make
changes to ensure the maximum probability of obtaymng future
good performance

Key activitzes 1n 2013 1ncluded

— conducting nine full meetings during the year and ten manager
monutoring sessions which saw 26 fund management
companies,

— overseeing changes to the range of funds as announced in
February and October 2013 As a result, five existing funds
were subject to a fund management change following the
appomntment of eight addional investment managers, and

— undertaking regular reviews of the range of Growth and
Income Portfoltos to ensure they maintained the appropriate
level of sk, volanlity and diversification to deliver agawnst their
objectives The outcome of these reviews was changes made to
the Defensive, Conservative and Adventurous Portfolios

The followng report sets out m more detail the Committees key
activiies 1n 2013

Vivian Bazalgette
Chair of the 5t Jomes's Place Investment Commitzee
24 February 2014
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Committee Membership during 2013

The membership of the Commuttee was stable throughout the
year However, Sarah Bates stepped down from the Committee at
the end of the year when she became Chairman of the Board

Committee Activities during 2013

2013 saw markets open in uncertainty but close with optimism
across the developed econormies The stirnulus policies of central
bankers and the gradually strengthening signs of economic
recovery have encouraged global markets in what has been a
remarkable year for developed global equities Returns from other
assets were more muted, although the great rotation from bonds
predicted by some has yet to mateniahse The 5t James’s Place
fund range continues to deliver strong returns for chents with
70% of the fund range posting above average performance over
the last ten years*

The strong progress of markets in 2013 and the continued support
of chents has seen the value of assets under our management grow
to £44 3 billion as at 31 December 2013 This quantum of assets
can provide opportumties, such as helping to keep fees down, but
can also bring challenges Much of the focus of the Commuttee
has been on the 1ssue of managers' capacity, working with them
to understand the volume of assets they can accommodate
without jeopardising the integrity of thewr mvestment style and
process With the annapated future growth in the value of assets
under management, effective oversight 1s key to delwver:ng future
performance and will remarn a major focus for the Commuttee

The changes overseen by the Commuttee in February 2013 saw
the imtroduction of two new fund management groups to our
panel Hamish Douglass of Magellan Asset Managersent, based in
Sydney, Austrahia was appointed to manage the International
Equity fund, and Tye Bousada and Geoff MacDonald of EdgePoint
Investment Group, based in Toronto, Canada were added as
satelhite managers of the Global Equity fund

In October, the Commuttee made a series of changes both to
indivadual funds and to some of the Growth Portfolios The
Committee appointed a blend of new managers Richard Rooney
of Burgundy Asset Management, Jonathan Asante of First State,
and George Loeming and Chad Clark of Select Equity Group to
manage the Worldwide Opportumties Unit Trust/ Worldwide
Managed fund Secondly, the Commuttee appointed Luke
Chappell of BlackRock and the UK equity team at Majedie, led
by James de Uphaugh to join John Wood of ] O Hambro m the
UK & General Progressive funds Finally, Migel Rudge of
BlackRock was appointed to take responsibihity for the

UK Absolute Return fund

The Commuttee undertcok regular reviews of the range of
Growth and Income Portfolios to ensure they mamtained the
appropnate level of risk, volatility and diversificatton to deliver
agamst their objectives These fund developments also
pravided an apportumty to introduce some changes to the fund
allocations for the Defensive, Conservative and Adventurous
Growth Portfolios

Stamford Asseciates dedicated a considerable amount of resources
and specialist skills to the Commttee principally via
comprehensive monitoring and the extensive evaluation of
potential new candidates Stamford Associates, working closely
with the Investment Management team, also played an active

role in the evolution of the Growth and Income Portfolios

Aon Hewitt provided speaizlist consulration to the Commuttee
on the St James’s Place Property funds

Finally, the Commzttee has devoted considerable tme to
considering the impact of Neal Woodford leaving Invesco
Perpetual 10 April this year to team up with Oakley Capital in
his new venture The Commuttee and Stamford Assocates have
held a number of in-depth meetings with Neid Woodford, Oakley
Caprtal, Invesco's senor management and portfolio managers,
and a number of alternative potential investment managers

based 1n the UK and in the US The Commuttee 15 pleased wath
the progress made and a decision will be made public in the

near future

The terms of reference setting out the Commuttee’s role and
authority can be found on the corporate website at www s1p co uk

* Source Financial Express, Analytics Dataasat 31 December 2013 Wesghted by
St James's Place funds under management, bid to hid basis, net income reravested
FPlease be aware that past performance 15 not indicative of future performance
The value of au investment with St James's Place will be directly linked to the
performance of the funds you select and the value can therefore go down and well
usup You may pet back less than you mnvested
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Sarzah Batas
Chairman

On behalf of the Board, I am pleased to present the Directors’
Remuneration Report for 2013 In accordance with the new
Directors’ Remuneration Reporting Regulations, the report s
split 10to two parts Our remuneration policy for 2014 and
beyond 15 set outin the Remuneration Poliey Report The Annual
Report on Remuneration sets out the remuneration paid to the
Executive and Non-executive Directors respect of 2013,
together with details of how the Remuneration Policy will be
implemented i 2014

Each part of the report will be subject to separate votes at the
AGM Shareholders will also be asked to approve a new long-term
incentive plan at the AGM

Key Remuneration Policy Considerations during 2013

As reported last year, during 2013 the Remuneration Committee

has carried out a thorough review of the Group’s remuneration

policy The mam objectives of this review were

— to design a suitable long-term mcentive plan to replace the
current plan, which expires 1n 2015,

~ to conmder overall pay levels in the context of the Group
generally, the Executive Directors’ sustained strong
performance and the mcreasing scope and complexity of the
Executive Directors’ roles,

— to ensure our remuneration policy supports the Group's
strategy through the creation of appropriate incentives to
encourage safe and sustainable growth, and to putm place a
remuneration pohicy which 15 regarded as fair and reasonable by
shareholders, staff, partners, regulators and other stakeholders

Summary of Main Remuneration Policy Decisions

The pohcy for Directors’ remuneration 18 to support and drive the
delivery of the Group's business objectives Remuneration
packages are designed to be sufficiently competitive to attract,
retain and motwvate executives of the highest calibre, with
performance-related incentives based on measures linked to the
safe and sustainable growth in long term shareholder value and
the delivery of a significant proportion of remuneration 1n

5t James's Place shares, thus alignmg the mterests of the
Executives with those of shareholders generally

The remuneraton review highlighted that our Executives’ total

target remuneration 1s some way below that of comparable

executives in compames of ssmilar size and complexaty and this

has been taken 1o account m formulating the Company’s policy

for 2014 and beyond The changes that the Commuttee 13

proposing are as follows

— Salaries will be increased by 3% for each of the Executive
Directors effectve from 1 March 2014 and 1n hine with average
workforce mereases for the Group

— The annual bonus potentiaf for all of the Executive Directors
will be increased from 120% to 150% of salary Asin previous
years, 50% of any bonus 1s payable mn cash, with 50% nvested
1n S]P shares and deferred for three years
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— 2014 PSP awards for Executive Directors wall remain
unchanged from 2013, but will be increased 1n 2015 from
190% of salary up to 200% for the Chuef Executive and from
175% of salary up to 190% for the other Executive Directors

With the 1ncreases to potential variable pay, the total packages of
the Executives will still be below the mid market level for
compames of 5JP's size

The Commuttee ts at the same time mtroducing other changes to

the Executive Dhrectors’ remuneration policy to strengthen

shareholder alignment

— A post-vesting holding requirement has been introduced for
PSP awards granted from 1 January 2014 unter the existing
PSP scheme, whereby Executive Directors will not be able to
sell thear shares for a period of s1x months post vesung For
awards granted from | January 2015 under the new PSP
scheme, this holding period will be extended to two years post
vesting (five years from grant of the award) except to meet
income tex and expenses on vesting/exercise

— The required level of shareholding that Executive Directors are
expected to build 1n the Company will also increase to 150% of
salary (from 100%) In addition, Executive Directors wall be
required to hold a further 50% of base salary exther in
Company shares or SJP funds, providing further alignment
with shareholders and clients

The Company will seek shareholder approval for a new long-term
ncentive plan (“The 2014 Performance Share Plan'), to replace
the exasting PSP Thus new plan will be used for the granting of
awards from 1 January 2015 The 2014 PSP will be surular in
design to the exasting plan, but taking 1nto account where
relevant developments in market and best practice The maximum
Tevel of awards which can be granted under the plan will be

250% ot salary {increased from 200% 1o the current plan) and the
Committee will retain flexability 1n the policy to increase awards
up to the maximum, but will consult with 1ts major shareholders
if the Commuttee contemplates making awards that exceed the
2015 levels referred to above

The total shareholder return (TSR) comparator group for the
TSR performance measure under the PSP 1s currently based on
the constituents of the FTSE 250 excluding certain sectors
Reflecting the more recent market caprtabisation of SP, the 2014
awards will use the compamies ranked FTSE 51 to 150 at the date
of grant (excluding investment trusts, the oil, gas and mining
sectors) No change 1s being proposed to the PSP performance
measures based on earnings per share

Duriag 2013, as part of the Commuttee’s review of the Group's
remuneration policy, the Commttee consulted with the Group’s
major shareholders and investor representative bodies regarding
the proposed new long-term incentrve plan and changes to the
Executive Directors’ remuneration policy The Commuttee
recerved helpful and welcome feedback on its proposals and our
major investors were supportve of our proposals We are grateful
to shareholders for their responses to our consultanon and for the
support they have grven

Corporate Performance and Remuneration for 2013
Shareholders will be aware that the Group has achieved strong
growth m recent years, whach has continued 1n 2013, duning a
period of considerable change for the industry The key highlights
are set out on pages 2 to 4 of this document

Qur Executives’ remuneration for 2013, on whach we are
reporting, reflects this Based on the three-year performance to
the end of 2013, 95% of the Executrve Directors’ PSP awards
granted 1n 2011 will vest in March 2014, asa result of total
shareholder return (TSR} and earnings per share (EPS) growth
near to or above the challenging performance targets set by the
Commuttee for the three years to 31 December 2013 In addition,
the Remuneration Commuttee detertmned that 98% of the
maximum annual bonus should be payable for 2013, reflecting the
strong financral results for 2013 and excellent progress against
other strategic objectives set by the Committee at the start of the
year Further detals are set out i the Remuneratzon Report

on pages 83 and 84

Summary

The Remuneration Committee has worked hard to ensure that
the changes to the remuneraticn policy that 1t 1s proposmng to
make this year support our corporate objectives over the longer
term and reflect the strong performance of the Company and
management The Committee beheves that the new policy
achieves this objective

I hope that you wall be supportive of the remuneration resolutions
to be proposed at the next AGM If in the meantime you have

any questions regarding our remuneration policy then my
colleagues and I on the Remuneration Commuttee will be pleased
to address them

Sarah Bates
Charman of the Remuneration Commuttee

24 February 2014
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

for the year ended 31 December 2013

Remuneration Policy Report

Thas part of the Directors' Remuneration Report sets out the
remuneration policy for the Company, which wall be subject
to shareholder approval at our AGM on 14 May 2014 The
Remuneration Commuttee (‘the Commuttee”) 1s currently
operating under this remuneration policy although 1t will be
legally effective (under the new Dhirectors’ Reporting
Regulations) from the date 1t recerves shareholder approval
at the AGM

In setting the remuneration pelicy for the Executive Directors,

the Commuttee takes into consideration a number of different

factors

— the Commuttee applies the principles set out mn Schedule A
of the UK Corporate Governance Code and also takes into
account best practice guidance 1ssued by the major UK
mstitutional investor bodzes, the FCA and other relevant
organisations,

~ the Commuttee has overall responsibility to be aware of the
remuneration polictes and structures of the Group as 2 whole
and 1t reviews remuneration pahcy on a firm-wide basis When
the Commuttee determines and reviews the remuneration
poliey for the Executive Directors it considers and compares rt
against the pay, policy and employment condittons of the Group
to ensure that 1t 15 comfortable that there s alignment and
equity between the two, and

- the Commuttee considers the external market 1 whach the
Group operates and uses comparator remuneration data from
tume to time, but as a gide only recogmsing that data can be
volanle and must be used carefully to avoid the risk of an
unwarranted upward ratchet in remuneratton The Commuttee
recogmses that there 15 often a need to phase-m changes overa
pened of time

The Commuttee’s overall policy, having had due regard to the
factors above, 13 for a substantral proportion of total remuneration
to bé based on variable pay This 1s achieved by setting base pay
2nd benefits up to mid-market levels, with annual bonus and long
term incentive opportumties linked to the achievement of
demanding performance targets In thus way, the Commuittee
facilitates alignment between the interests of shareholders and the
total remuneration pard to the Executive Directors and,
hustorically, the levels of vartable pay paid to the Executives have
varied considerably, reflecting the performance of the Group m
the relevant year

Remuneration payments and payments for loss of office can only
be made if they are consistent with the approved Remuneration
Policy or are otherwase approved by ordinary resolution of the
members of the Company ’

Engagement with Shareholders

The Committee’s policy 1s to engage with and seek the views of
1ts major investors and investor representanve bodies on any
proposed major changes to remuneration policy The Commuttee
will also engage on those aspects of implementation of that policy
that 1t considers appropriate  Any views expressed by shareholders
at general meetings of the Company or otherwise will be
considered by the Commuttee as part of any review of
remuneratron policy or sooner if appropriate

Remuneration Policy for Executive Directors

The remuneration policy 1s designed to support and encourage the
delivery of the Group’s short-term and long-term business
objectives

The following table summarises each element of the remuneration

policy for the Executive Directors, explaiming how each elernent
operates and how each part links to corporate strategy
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Salary

Purpose and link to strategy including
choice of performance metrics

To provide the core reward for the role

Sufficient level to recruit and retain indiwduals of the necessary calibre, taking 1nto account
the skalls, experience, demands and complesxity of the role

Operation

Reviewed annually and fixed for 12 months commencaing 1 March

Influenced by

role, experience and performance of the mdrvidual,

company performance,

external economic conditions,

average change mn broader workforce salary,

peniodic benchmarlang for each role against symilar UK listed companies, and

overall policy, having regard to the factors noted, 15 normally to target salaries up to
the mid market level

Maximum opportunity

Selary mnereases (in percentage terms) will normally be linked to the average of the workforce
generally other than i exceptional circumstances such as where the increase may be

higher for a ssgruficant change 1n responsibility, expenience or increase in role or the size or
complexity of the Group where increases may be phased

Where new Jomers or recent promotees have been given a starting salary below mid-market
level, a senes of increases above those granted to the wider workforce (in percentage terms)
may be awarded over the following few years, subject to satisfactory mdividual performance
and development 1 the role

The base salaries for the Executive Directors from 1 March 2014 are set out 1 the Annual
Report on Remuneration

Performance metrics

The Commuttee considers all of the factors descrnbed above when deciding how the salary
pohcy operates
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Directors’ Remuneration Report e
for the year ended 31 December 2013

Annual Bonus

Purpose and link to strategy including
chotce of performance metrics

Rewards the achievement of annual financral and strategic business plan targets and dehvery
of strategrc objectives

Deferred element ards retention, encourages long-term shareholding, discourages excessive
nisk taking and aligns with shareholder interests

Performance metrics reflect the key performance dnivers of the annual business plan,
achievement of which will reflect performance 1n hine with the Growp's strategy

Operation

Performance measures, targets and weightings are reviewed annually and set 1n lme with the
annual business plan

Bonus payments are determmined by the Committee after the year end, based on performance
against the targets set

50% of any bonus payable 15 paid in cash with the remaining 50% deferred into SJP shares,
the vesting of which 15 normally subject to a three year continuous service requirement

Drdends that accrue on the deferred shares are paxd to the Executrve Directors during the
three-year deferral period

All benus payments are at the discretion of the Commuttee

The Commuttee has the avernding discretion to scale back payments under the strategic part
of the annual bonus 1f 1t deems them to be 1mappropnate 1n the context of the overall financial
results of the Company

The Remuneration Commuittee has the over-niding discretion to adjust the bonus outcome
up or down (subject to the overall 150% maximum) to take account of factors such as an
exceptional positive or negattve event

Annual bonus payments wxcluding deferred amounts are subject to claw-back 1f there 15 found
to have been a material mis-statement, error or misconduet following the payment of the
bonus

Maxirnum opportumty

150% of base salary

Performance metncs

Performance measured over one year

At least half the bonus 1s based on financial measures reflecting the key priorties of the
busimess for the relevant year

Up to half of the annual bonus can be based on the achievement of key strategic objectives set
at the start of the year

Actual measures and weightings may change {rom year to year to reflect the husmess
prierities at that time

Details of performance criteria set for the year under review and performance against them 1s
provided in the Annual Report on Remuneration

20% of the annual bonus vests for threshold performance
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Performance Share Plan

Purpose and hink to strategy mcluding
choice of performance metrics

Incentivises the Directors to achieve superior long term shareholder returns

Provides long term retention

Focuses the Executives on longer term corporate performance and performance objectives
A mux of three performance conditions provides an appropriate balance of targets that both

ncentivise the Executives to achueve stretching long-term financial performance while also
keeping their interests ahigned to those of shareholders

Operation

Awards are granted annually with vesting on the third annrversary of the date of grant
dependent on the achievement of stretching performance conditions measured over a period
of threc financial years

Metrics and targets are set 1n hine with the business plan and are reviewed annually to ensure
they remamn appropriate as well as the weighting between them

Awards m 2014 will be made under the current performance share plan Dividend
equivalents may accrue on awards made 1n 2014 under the current plan between the date of
grant and the date of exercise of the awards These dividend equivalents will be released only
to the extent that awards vest The 2014 awards will have a post-vesting holding requirement
of six months whereby participants will not be able to sell their (net of tax) shares for a six
menth period following vesting Awards made from 2015 onwards will be made under a new
performance share plan {subject to the plan recemving shareholder approval at the 2014 AGM)
These awards will have a post vesting holding period of two years (net of tax)

For awards granted from 2015 dividend equivalents may accrue on awards between the date
of grant and the end of the two-year post-vesting holding period These dividend equivalents
will be released only to the extent that awards vest

Subject to claw-back in the event of 2 materal pusstatement, error or misconduct allowing
summary dismissal

Maximum opportunity

The maximum annual award under the plan rulesis 250% of salary as at date of grant
although the Commuttee will not 1ncrease above the 2015 award levels wathout prior
consultation with the Company's major shareholders

The PSP award levels for 2014 (as 1 2013) wall be 190% of salary for the Chief Executive and
175% of salary for the other Executive Directors (value of shares at date of award)

The Commuttee mntends to increase the PSP award levels for 2015 to 200% of salary for the
Chuef Executive and 190% of salary for the other Executive Directors (value of shares at date
of award)

Performance metrics

The vesting of awards 15 dependent on the achievement of three equally weighted
performanc:e measures as set out below The Committee may choose alternative measures
and welghtmgs between them if 1t deems 1t appropriate taking into account the strategic
objectives of the Company The vesting of at least one-third of the PSP award will however
be determined by a relative TSR target

The performance targets for the 2014 PSP awards will be based on

— EPS growth based on EEV adjusted profit,

~ EPS growth as above but excluding the rmpact of the EEV unwind of the discount rate
{effectively excluding the umpact of stock market muvements on earnings), and

— relative TSR performance

For each performance condrhon, a threshold and stretch level of performance 15 set
At threshold, 25% of the relevant element vests
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Directors’ Remuneration Report contiaued
for the year ended 31 December 2013

Pension

Purpose and link to strategy including
choice of performance metncs

Helps recruit and retain Executives

Provides a discrete element of the package to contmbute to post-renirement hfestyle

Operation

Defined contnbution pension scheme  20% of salary 15 paid mte the Group personal pension
scheme for the Executive or an equivalent cash amount via non-pensionable salary supplement
if the Executive 15 affected by the pension cap

Maximum opportunity

20% of base salary

Performance metrics

N/A

Qther Benefits

Purpose and hink to strategy including
choice of performance metrics

Qperate competitive benefits to help recrust, retain 20d support the well-being of employees

Operatien

Ineluding but not hmited to
Company car {or salary supplement in keu), private medical msurance, ife, crincal illness
and death in service cover, relocation assistance where necessary and the use of a driver for

business purposes

Participation 1o the Group’s all employee SIP and SAYE schemes

Maximum opportunity

Benefit costs are menitored and controlled and represent a small clement of total
remuneration costs

Performance metrics

N/A

Non-executive Directors’ fees

To attract high quality, experienced Non-executive Directors

The Chairman 15 pard an all-encompassaing annual fee, which 18 reviewed periodically by the
Committee

All Non-executive Directors receive a basic annual fee for carrying out their duties, together
with addtional fees being paid 1n respect of Board Comyuttee and other responsibilities,
with fee levels reviewed periodically by the Board They may also be paid addrional fees
(calculated at ap eppropriate day rate) i the event of exceptional levels of addiional time
being required, for instance in response to corporate developments

There 15 no prescribed maxamum annual increase Reviews take into account market data for
simijar non-executive roles i other companues of a sumilar size and/or busmess to St James's
Place as well as the time cormmrtment of 1ts Non-executive Direciors

The Company's Policy 1s to pay up to the mid-market level based on simular trme
commitments of chairman and non-execubives n similar sized Ccompanies
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The performance measures and targets that are set for the
Executive Directors’ annual bonus and PSP awards are carefully
selected to align with the Company’s strategzc and key
performance indicators

For the anmual benus financial and strategic measures are
reviewed and selected by the Commuttee annually The measures
selected and weighting between them may vary annually
depending on the key pnorities of the business for the year ahead
Robust and demanding targets wall be set annually taking into
account the economic environment, market expectations and the
Company's budget and business plan for the year ahead EEV
operating profit 1s used to assess financial performance as thus
measure reflects a number of key metrics including new business,
persistency, retention of funds under management and cost
control The balance 15 determined based on strategic measures
set annually on a balanced scorecard basis

The Company has used a comparative TSR measure and EPS
growth targets for the PSP for a number of years 1n Line with the
Group’s strategy of delivermng profitable growth and superior
returns to its shareholders The Committee will continue to
review the choice of performance measures and the
appropriateness of targets prior to each PSP award berng made
and will set robust and stretching measures for any alternative
measures used For the EPS growth measure stretching targets
will be set annually taking mnto aceount the economic
environment, market expectations and the Company’s budget and
busmess plan at that tme  For the comparative TSR measure the
Commuttee's pohcy is to set threshold vesting for median
performance rsing to full vesting for upper quartile performance
The Commuttee will assess annually the appropriateness of the
TSR comparator group

No performance targets are set for the SAYE and SIP awards as
these form part of all emplayee arrangements designed to
encourage employees across the Group te purchase shares n the
Company

Shareholding Guidehnes

Executives are required to bnld and mamtaimn 2 shareholding
equivalent to 150% of base salary Until the threshold 15 reached,
50% of vested shares from the PSP and other share awards (less
tax habalety) must be retained Executives are also required to
hold a further 50% of salary m shares and/or m cne or more SJP
funds, thus providing further ahgnment with shareholders

and clients

Annual Bonus Plan and Share Plan Policy

The Commattee will operate the annual bonus plan, deferred

bonus plan, PSP and all-employee share plans according to the

rules of each respective plan and consistent with normal market

practice and the Listing Rules, where relevant The Commuttee

will retain flexthihity m a number of areas tegarding the operation

and adminstration of these plans, includmg (but not humited to)

the followng

— Who participates in the plans

-- When to make awards and payments

- How to determine the size of an award, a payment, or when
and how much of an award should vest

— How to deal with a change of control or restructuring of the
Group

— In the case of stated good leaver reasons or otherwise, whether
a director 13 a good/bad leaver for incentive plan purposes and
whether and what proportion of awards vest at the time of
leaving or at the original vesting date{s) as relevant

— How and whether an award may be adjusted in certain
arcumstances {€ g for a rights 1ssue, a corporate restructuring
or for special dividends)

The Commuttee also retains the discretion within the policy to
adjust targets and /or set dafferent measures and aiter weightings
for the annual bonus plan and the PSP 1f events happen that cause
1t to determine that the onginal targets or conditions are no
longer appropmate and the arpendment 1s required so that the
targets or conditions achieve therr original purpose and are not
materally less difficult to satisfy

The use of discretion would where relevant be explamed 1n the
Anpual Report on Remuneration and may, as appropriate, be
subject to consultation with the Company'’s major shareholders

Awards made prior to the Effective Date

Eor the avordance of doubt, 1 approving this Poliey Report,
authority 1s given to the Company to honour any commitments
entered 1nto with current or former Directors that have been
disclosed to shareholders m previous remuneration reports This
includes all hastoric awards that were granted under any current
or previous share schemes operated by the Company but remain
outstanding (detailed on pages 87 to 89 of this Report) and which
will remain eligible to vest based on their original award terms
Details of any payments to former Directors will be set outn the
Annual Remuneration Report as they anse
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Directors’ Remuneration Report contimted

for the year ended 31 December 2013

Approach to Remuneration for Recruitment

and Promotions

The Commttee would aim to set a new Executive Director’s
remuneration package 1o line with the Company's approved pohey
at the time of appomntment The Comimttee will take into
account, 1n arriving at a total package and 10 considermg the
quantum for each element of the package, the skills and
experience of the candidate, the market rate for a candidate of
that expenence as well as the mmportance of securing the best
candidate For new appointments, base salary and total
remuneration may be set tnitially at below normal market rates on
the basis that 1t may be inereased once expertse and performance
has been proven and sustained

Annual borms potential will not exceed 150% of salary and
long-term 1ncentives will not exceed 250% of salary (not including
any arrangements to replace forfeited deferred pay) Partipation
1m the anmal bonus plan and Perforrance Share Plan will normally
be pro-rated for the year of joming and different performance
measures may be set from those applyng to the other Directors, 1
1t 1s appropnate to do so to reflect the mndrndual’s responsibihities
and the point 10 the year in which they jomed the Board

The Committee may make additional cash and /or share based
awards as 1t deems appropriate and if the arcumstances so
demand to take account of deferred pay forfersted by an executive
on leaving a previous employer Awards to replace deferred pay
forferted would, where possible, reflect the nature of awards
forferted m terms of delivery mechanism {cash or shares), time
horizons, attributed expected value and performance condytians
Other payments may be made in relabon to relocation expenses
and other incadental expenses as appropriate

In the case of an mternal appointinent, any variable pay element
awarded m respect of the prior role would be allowed to pay out
according to 1ts terms and any other ongoing remuneration
abligations existing prior to appomntment would continue

If appropriate and m exceptional circumstances the Committee
may agree, on the recrurtment of a new executive, a notice period
of 1n excess of 12 months but reducing te 12 months over a
specified period

For the appointment of a new Chatrman or Non-executive
Director, the fee arrangement would be set 1 accordance with
the approved remuneration policy at that time

Risk Management

Rask 18 managed within the remuneranon policy through the

Commuttee

— Taking mnto consideration the recommendations contamed
in the FCA Remuneration Code (‘the Code’) and essociated
gmdance which the Commuttee considers 1s relevant albeit
that 5t James™s Place 1s not speaifically required to comply
with the Code

— Structuring the annual bonus plan to contain a mix of financial
and strategic performance metrics, where performance
conditrons are taillored to the business outlook and strategy,
mcluding the management of sk within the business The
Cornmittee also retains the discretion to reduce the bonus
out-turn where approprate

— Assessing the performance metrics from a risk perspective,
with mput from the Chairman of the Risk Commuttee

— Reqring deferral of 50% of afinwal bonus payments into
St James's Place shares which are deferred for three years

— Requaring the Executive Directors to retam shares acquired on
vesting of PSP awards granted from 1 January 2014 to
31 December 2014 for a 1% month period post the date of
vesting, mncreasmg to a two-year peried for awards granted
from 1 January 2015

~ Ensuring that the majonty of the incentive pay comes 1 the
form of a long-term 1ncentive plan subject to stretchng
performance targets measured over multt-year performance
periods, with the performance pertod for subsequent awards
overlapping the previous award, together with an addinonal
two year holdmg period This ensures that there 1s no
par‘tlcular 1ncentive Lo maximaise performance OVEr a partlcular
period

— Incorporating claw back into the Company’s bonus and long
term incentrve plans

— Requiring the Executive Directors to build and maimtam a
substantial shareholding in the Company

Remuneration Policy across the Group

The remuneration pohicy for the Executive Directors s designed
with regard to the pohicy for employees across the Group asa
whole and the Conumittee aims, where appropriate, for there to
be a consistent approach apphied For mstance, the swite of
benefits i kind 15 consistent {other than m relation to quantum)
and all employees participate 1n annual bonus plans All
employees, including the Exceutive Directors, are offered the
opportunity to participate n the Group’s SAYE Share Option
Plan and Share Incentive Plan Semor managers participate in the
long-term mcentive plan

The remuneration policy for the Executive Directors 1s more
weighted towards varisble pay than for other employees to make a
greater part of their pay conditional on the successful delivery of
business strategy, and 1n line with shareholder mterests In
addition, more of sentor level remuneration 1s deferred than in
the case for the workforce as a whole

Employees were not consulted m respect of the Directors’
remuneration pohity, bat the Commttee does consider the
remuneration arrangements for the broader employee population
when determming the policy for the Executive Directors
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Remunerabzon Scenarios for Executive Directors

The chart below shaws how the proportion of each Executive Director’s remuneration package varies at different levels of performance
1n accordance with the pohey to be implemented 1n 2014 and using the assumptions set out below A significant proportion of
Temuneration 1s hinked to performance, particularly at maximum performance levels

Assumptions
Threshold = fixed pay only (salary, benefits and pension)

Target = fixed pay plus 60% vesting of the annual bonus and 50% vesting of PSP awards

Maximum = fixed pay plus 100% vesting of the annual bonus and PSP awards

Salaries used are those applying on 1 March 2014 and taxable benefits are those reported for the year ending 31 December 2013
Pension 15 based on 2014 policy apphed to 1 March 2014 salarres

Amounts have been rounded to the nearest £1,000 Participation i all employee plans, dividends payable on PSP awards over the vesting
pentod or on deferred share bonus awards are not included 1n the above scenarios and the table assumes no increase to the share price

Service Contracts

The Company’s policy 1s that service contracts may be terminated with 12 months’ notice from eather the Company or from the
Executive Director (except in certain exceptional recruitment situations where a longer notice period from the Company may be set
provided 1t reduces to a maximum of 12 months with a specified trme limit) Service contracts do not contam a fixed end date

Under their service contracts the Executive Directors are entitled to salary, pension contributions and benefits for their notice period
{except on termination for events such as gross misconduct where payment will be for sums earned up 1o the date of termination with
no natice periad only) The Company would seek to ensure that any payment 15 mitigated by use of phased payments and offset agamst
earnings elsewhere in the event that an Executive Director finds alternative employment during his notice, perind  There are no
contractual provisions in force other than those set out above that impact any termination payment
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In summary the position on cessation of employment 1s as follows

Provision Detailed terms
Notice period 12 months by either party
Termination payment Base salary plus benefits (including pension) An express obhigation on the Executive to mitigate his

loss Payments can be made on a monthly bass and reduced if an Executive 15 able to secure alternanve
employment In addition any statutory amounts would be paid as necessary

Remuneraton entitlements A pro-rata bonus may also become payable for the period of active service along wath the vesting of
on cessation outstanding share awards (in certan arcumstances as descnibed below)

Change of control As on terrmunation and with remuneration entitlements as described above

When considening the size of any proposed terminatton payment, the Commuttee would take into account a number of factors
mcluding the health, length of service and performance of the relevant Executive, including the duty to mitigate hus own loss, with a
broad ain to avord rewarding poor performance while dealing fairly with cases where the departure is due to other reasons, for
example illness or redundancy

Any unvested awards held under the PSP schemes will lapse at cessation, unless the 1ndividual 1s leavang for certain reasons (defined
under the plan as death, injury, 1ll-health, disability, redundancy, retirement, his office or emnployment being either a company which
ceases to be a Group member or relating to a business or part of a busmess which 15 transferred to a person who 15 not a Group member,
or any other reason the Committee so decades) In these circumstances, unvested awards will normally vest at the normal vesting date
(unless the Commuttee decides they should vest at cessation) subject to performance conditions berng met and scahng back 1n respect of
actual service as a proportion of the total vesting period {unless the Comimttee deaides that scaling back 13 inappropriate) The same
approach applies on a change of control

Any unvested awards held under the Deferred Bonus Scheme will lapse at cessation unless the Committee determmes otherwise In
these carcumstances the Commuttee may determine that unvested awards will vest at the cessation (unless the Commttee decdes they
should vest at the normal vesting date)

The Committee may agree to the payment of disbursements such as legal costs and outplacement services if appropriate and depending
on the circumstances of the leaving executive

Non-executive Directors’ Letters of Appointment

The Non-executive Drectors (including the Chairman) do not have service contracts or any benefits i kind arrangements and do nat
participate 1n any of the Group’s pension or incentive arrangements The appointment of each Non-executive Director can be
termunated by gaving three months’ notice (subject to annual re-appointment at the AGM) Any perzod of service longer than six years
1s subject to particularly rgorous review by the Nomuination Commuttee of the Board The Non-executive Directors’ letters of
appointment do not provide for any payment on termination except for accrued fees and expenses to the date of termination

The terms and conditions of Executive Directors’ service contracts and the letters of appointment of the Non-executive Directors are
avaiable for inspection at the Company’s registered office durmng normal business hours and at the AGM, the details of which can be
found on page 95

External Appointments

Executive Directors are permitted to be appomnted to an external board or commttee so long as this 15 unlikely to interfere with the
business of the Group Any fees received 1n respect of external appointments are retamed by the relevant Executive Director
Currently, no Executive Director acts as a non-executive director on the Board of another histed company, other than Dawvid Lamb,
who 1s a non-executive director of The Henderson Smaller Compames [nvestment Trust ple
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Directors’ Annual Report on Remuneration

The Annual Remuneration Report will be put to an advisory
shareholder vote at the 2014 AGM The information on pages 82
to 92 has been audited where indicated

How the Committee operates to set the

Remuneration Policy

The Remuneration Commuittee, on behalf of the Board,
determines the Company’s remuneration pohcy and the
remuneration packages of the Executtve Directors of the
Company and the Charrman In addinion, the Commuttee
monitors the remuneration of the senior management team,
mcluding the Group Risk Director and his cofleagues 1n the Rigk
Division, and oversees the operation of the Executive long term
incentive schemes and all employee share schemes

The membership and terms of reference of the Commttee are
reviewed annuatly and the terms of reference are available on the
Company’s website

Membership of and Attendance at the Remuneration
Committee meetings

The members of the Comnuttee (all independent Nen-executive
Directors) duning 2013 are set out below as well as their
attendance at meenngs during the financial year

Number of meetings

attended in 2013 out of

Name potential maxamu
Sarah Bates (Commuttee Chairman) i
Vavian Bazalgette W7
Patience Wheatcroft 6/7

Patience Wheatcroft was not able to attend one meeting due to a
prior commutment, but reviewed the papers and gave her
comments to the Commmittee Chairman prior to the meeting

Simmon Jeffreys and Roger Yates were appounted as members of the
Committee from 1 January 2014 Itis intended that Sarah Bates
will step down as Charrman of the Commuttee after the AGM
May 2014, to be replaced by Roger Yates

The Commuttee receives advice from several different sources
— The Company Secretary who acts as Secretary to the
Commuttee and provides advice on corporate governance, lepal
and regulatory issues as well as the design and operanon of the
long term incentive schermnes, and
— Members of the executive team or other third parties as they
see fit ncluding
— The Chief Executve to provide information on corporate or
individual performance to the Committee, or to provide
recommendations regarding the remuneration packages of
indivadual Directors
— The Charman to provide mformation on the performance
of individual Drrectors, including the Chief Executive

~ The Chief Financal Officer to provide explanations on
finaneial information relating to the Group

— The Chawrman of the Risk Commuttee as part of the
Company’s risk managernent process

— New Bridge Street as independent adviser to the Commuttee

Any recommendations from the management team are discussed
by the Commttee and adopted or amended as the Commuttee
sces fit No Director is present at any part of a meeting of the
Committee when their individual remuneration or contractual
terms are being discussed

Adwvisers to the Committee

The Commuttee 1s advised by independent remuneration
consultants New Bridge Street (a trading name of Aon Hewntt
Limated being an Aon plc company) New Brdge Street’s
appolntment as adviser to the Commuttee 15 reviewed annually
by the Commuttee

New Bridge Street provided advice to the Commuttee on
remuneration matters generally, including on executive pay, the
new legislanon on remuneration reporting and incentive plans
whach are of particular relevance to the Company New Bridge
Street 1s a signatory to the Remuneration Consultants’ Code of
Conduct and has confirmed to the Commuttee 1ts compliance
with the Code

The total fees paid to New Bridge Street for the advice provided
to the Commttee during the year was £149,832 Feesare charged
predominately on a ‘ime spent’ basis

Neither New Bridge Street, nor its parent company Aon plc, has
provided any other services to the Campany during the year other
than some consultancy work relating to property and hedge funds
which Aon Hewitt provided to the Investment Committee

The Commuttee has been adwised of the basis on which New
Bridge Street 15 orgamsed and managed as part of the wider Aon
orgamsation and the basis on which its staff are remunerated and
18 satisfied that these relatively minor additional services 1n no
way compromused the independence of advice provided by New
Bridge Street to the Commuttee

Engagement with Shareholders

During 2013, the Remuneratton Commuttee reviewed the
Remuneration Policy for the Executive Directors and other semor
executives As part of this process, it sought the views of the
Company'’s rajor shareholders and mvestor representatives and
other members of the Board Further details of the review process
are set out on page 58~
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How the Remuneraton Policy will be applied for 2014

2014 Salary Review
The salary mcrease to take effect from 1 March 2014 will be 3% for all Executive Directors (this 1s consistent with the average salary

mcrease provided to Group employees)

The current salaries as at 1 March 2013 and the proposed increases from 1 March 2014 are as follows

Increase from

Salary Salary Salary 1 March 2013

asat from. from to 1 March

1 Janoary 2013 1 March 2013 1 March 2014 2014

David Bellamy £465,000 £478,000 £492,000 3%
Andrew Croft £336,000 £346,000 £356,000 3%
Ian Gascoigne £336,000  £346,000 £356,000 3%
David Lamb £336,000 £346,000 £356,000 3%

The salaries of the Executive Directors were not increased in 2012 1n Line with the pohcy for senior management generally

Fees for the Chairman and Non-executive Directors
The fees for the Chairman and Non-executive Directors from 1 January 2014 (together with the fees for 2013) are as set out below
Fees for 2014 have been mncreased by 3%

2013 2014 Increase
Chairman £165,000 £170,000 3%
Base fee £26,250 £27,000 3%
Audit Committee Member . £15,750 £16,250 3%
Investment Commuttee Member £25,200 £26,000 3%
Risk Comnuttee Member £12,600 £13,000 3%
Remuneration Commaittee Member £9,450 £9,750 1%
Commuttee Chair £6,300 £6,500 3%
Semor Independent Director £2,625 £2,700 3%

Annual Bonus

The Executive Directors’ maximurn bonus opportumty for 2014 will be 150% of salary Half of the annual bonus will be determined
by EEV operating profit and half by key strategic targets 50% of the annual bonus earned for performance 1n 2014 wall be paid in cash
and the remaining 50% will be deferred in SJP shares for a three year period and subject to continued service

The EEV operating profit target set by the Commuttee 15 based on a shding scale to progressively reward incremental performance with
the bottom end of the scale representing an 1ncrease over the 2013 result The Board considers that the performance targets for the
annual bonus are commercially sensiive and 1s not disclosing them at thus time The performance metrics and performance agaimst
them will be disclosed 1o the 2014 Remnuneration Report to the extent that they do not remam commereally sensitive at that time

The team element of the 2014 annual bonus will be assessed by reference to key strategic targets based around the 2014 business plan,
mcluding elements relating to chients, shareholders and other key stakeholders Spealfic objectives include the delivery of excellent
service to the Group’s clients as measured by surveys and other chient feedback, enhanang the range of mvestment funds and
maintaimng strong nvestment performance, the successful recruitment and retention of high quahty new Partners, successfully
controlling and mitigating the matertal risks that could impact the Group, and mamtaining the Group's good relations wath its
shareholders and regulators
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Performance Share Plan Awards
The Executive Directors will each receave a PSP award in 2014 of 175% of salary, except for David Bellamy who will receve a PSP
award of 190% of salary

The PSP awards to be granted in 2014 will be subject to a relative TSR performance condition for one-thuird of the award and earnings
per share growth targets for two-thurds of the award as follows

2]
2
"
E
2
"

Average annnal adjusted Average anpual adjusted
EPS growth (includ:ng the EPS growth (excluding the
unwind of the discount rate) unwind of the discount rate)

TSR relative to the FTSE 51 to 150 (Note 1) 10 excess of RPI (Note u) in excess of RPI (Note 1)
% of one third % of one third % of one third
ofaward Performance ofaward Periormance of award
Performance level hurdie Performange required vesting required vesting required vesting
Below threshold Below Median 0%  Below 5% 0%  Below 5% 0% o
Threshold Medizn 25%  Atleast 5% 25% Atleast 5% 25% g
Stretch or above Upper Quartile or above 100% 16% or above 100% 16% or abave 100% B
b
vy
B
Notes 8
() FTSE 51 to 150, excluding investment trusts and companies in the FTSE o1l, gas producm and nuning sectors Straight Line vesting occura 1o between threshold and B
maxunum veitng =
(u) The first EPS performance condition 15 calculated by reference 10 adjusted consolidated profit after tax on the EEV basis of accounting for both the life and ynit trust
buuinesses (oo a fully diluted per share basis) The effect of the adjustment to the consolidated after tax figures will be to strip out the post tax EEV wnvestment 1 ariance and
T

any economic assumption change :a the final year of the performance pertod as these factors are tot wathin the control of management and can produce wide varisuons to
reparted earnings due to stock market fuctuations Howeves, this measure of EPS s still impacted by stock market movements in the prior year due to the impact of any such
movements oo the unwind of the discount rate 1n the current year

The secand EPS performance condition is caleulated w4 similar way to the first EPS condition, save that a forther adjustment 18 1ade to stnip out the impact of the unwind of
the discount rate Thus adjustment eliminates sey direct 1mpact of stock market volauhity a0d changes in the economic assumptions throughout the whole threc-year perod
of the performance condition

Straight line vesting occurs in between threshold end maximum vestng
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Remuneration Payable in respect of Performance tn 2013

Directors’ Remuneration (audited)
The following table sets out each element of remuneration for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2013 {or peniod thereof for

appointments or cessations during the year)

Salary Annual Long term
& fees Benefits® Pension™ bonus®™  mcentives™ Othertt Total
£ £ £ £ £ £ £
Executive Directors

Dawvid Bellamy 2013 475,833 59,516 95,167 563,244 1,726,979 —- 2,920,739
2012 465,000 53,792 93,000 255,750 1,531,736 11,102 2,410,380
Andrew Croft 2013 344,333 41,191 68,867 407,704 1,149,358 - 2,011,453
2012 336,000 41,192 67,200 184,800 1,062,255 11,102 1,702,549
Ian Gascoigne 2013 344,333 47,619 68,867 407,704 1,149,358 - 2,017,881
2012 336,000 46,792 67,200 184,800 1,062,255 11,102 1,708,145
David Lamb 2013 344,333 50,585 68,867 407,704 1,149,358 — 2,020,847
2012 336,000 41,328 67,200 184,800 1,062,255 11,102 1,702,685

Non-executive Directors
Sarah Bates 2013 66,675 66,675
2012 65,564 65,564
Vivian Bazalgette 2013 82,950 82,950
2012 76,287 76,287
Steve Colsell 2013 10,938 10,938
2012 26,250 26,250
Iain Cormush 2013 67,200 67,200
2012 63,876 63,876
Charles Gregson 2013 165,000 165,000
2012 165,000 165,000
Sue Harns 2013 15,313 15,313
2012 - -
Alison Hewntt 2013 15,313 15,313
2012 — —
Mike Power 2013 102,200 102,200
2012 79,974 79,974
Patience Wheatcroft 2013 48,300 48,300
2012 34 144 34,144

Notes

{1) Benefits comprise the enutlement ta company car or cash equnalent, fuel, privace health care, Life and entical llness cover, permanent bealth insurance and health
screeming and are generally the amounts which are returned for texation purposes

¥ The contributions made to the money purchase group penvion scheme for David Bellamy, Andrew Croft, Ian Gascoigne and David Lamb were £95,167 (2012 £93,000),
£68,867 (2012 £67,200), £68,867 (2012 £67,200) and £68,867 (2012 £67,200) respectively, being 20% of base salary carned in 2013 To the extent that peasion
contributions were capped by legislation, a non per ble salary suppl was pad to the Executive Directors for the balance

@) As explained on page 72, half of the anoual bonua 13 pwd 1m cash, wath the ather half being used to purchase 5t James's Place shares which are subject to forfaiture for three
years under the terms of the Deferred Banus Scheme

(1v) The value of the long-term imcentives is the value of shares vesting under the PSP scheme 1n the year (1¢ the three year performance period ends in that year) together with
value of the dividends that would have been recerved dunag the three year performance penod

(v) The value of the SAYE ophions exercised an 3 May 2012 when the mid-market price of St James's Place shares was £3 32

{v1) Mike Wilson, 2 Former director of the Company, was pad £200,000 1n 2013 (£200,000 in 2012) 1 respect o hug role as Charrman of the 5t [ames’s Place Foundation,
asnsting the Academy and the recrmitment and retention of members of the St James's Place Partnership

{11) David Lamb was a non-executrve director of the Henderson Smaller Compamiea [nvestmesnt Trust ple during the year and was paid a fee of £4,500 1n 2013 10 connection

with that role
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Details of Variable Pay Earned 1n the Year

Anpual Bonus
For the year under report, the performance conditons which appled to the bonus and the resulting payout under these were as

follows
Weighting Payout
Weighting (% of Maximum Payout (%o of
Measure (% of salary) maxumum) Threshold value Actual (% of salary) maxamaum)
EEV operating profit
range of between
£382m and £417m 30% £25% £382m £417m £462 Tm 30% 25%
EEV profit from new '
business profit range
of between £280m and
£325m 30% 25% £280m £325m £321 Im 27 5% 23%
Strategic business plan Assessment by the
objectives Commuttee of the Performance
performance of the assessed
Executive Directors as by the
a team 1n relation to the Commttee
vanous objectives set by as descmibed
the Commuttee at the more fully
60% 50% start of the year below 60% 50%

Annual Bonus Strategic Targets Performance Assessment

As described 1n other parts of the Report and Accounts, the Company delivered strong performance n 2013 for our clients,
shareholders and other stakeholders The Commuittee considered these three groups when setting the strategic targets for 2013,
together with other objectives set outin the 2013 busmess plan In serving our clients well, developing our employees and the
Partnership for the future and striving to improve the effectiveness of our orgamsation, we will be best placed to meet our long-term
business objectives, and create additional value for our shareholders We also focus on the importance of safe and sustainable growth
through prudent management of risk and the highest standards of regulatery comphance

The Commattee assessed how well the Executive team had performed i relation to the objectives set at the start of the year The
Committee did not place fixed weightings on the factors assessed, but made 2 jidgement hased on the Commmittee’s view of the relative
1mportance and impact of those factors over the course of the year For some factors the Commuttee was able to putin place
quantitative metrics, and for others more qualitative judgments were made, depending on the nature of the strategic objective

As regards clent satisfaction, the Commuttee took wnto account the following objectrves

-~ The independent client satisfaction survey results for 2013 were very strong and 1n some categores the results were the highest
achieved since the annual survey began m 2007 In summary, §4% of clients rated their ‘overall satisfaction” with S]P 25 8 or more
out of 10 (compared to 73% 1 2012) and 81% of clients would be happy to recommend SJP to therr contacts compared to 70%
2012) In the annual Wealth Account survey, 88% of clients rated the value of thewr relationship with their SJP Partner as 8 or more
out of 10

— Chents continued to beneht from above average pt:rfurmance across the majority of funds, over a three, five and ten year period
Over the ten year period 70% of funds outperformed therr peer group

— The Group won a number of industry awards, further detals of which are set out on page 3%, many of which were voted on by
clients

— The above factors, together with strong service levels, generally, contributed to excellent retention of funds under management, with
95% of existing funds beng retained (see page 32) and an 8% reduction mn complaint levels compared to 2012
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In terms of strategic objectives designed to ensure the success of the business in the future, the Comruttee took 1nto account

— the growth m the size of the Partmership of 9 5% 1n 2013, considerably above the target for the year of 5-7%,

— the success of the Academy in attracting suitable candidates to the courses run i 2013, with over 80% of recrts joining the
Academy 1 2012 and 2013 being retamned,

~ the high levels of retention for both employees and members of the Partnershup, assisted by ddditional traiming and development
opportunuties launched 1o 2013 for both the senor management team, the Partnership and the workforce generally, and

~ the successful placing by Lloyds Banking Group ple of 1ts major shareholding 1n the Company during the year, assisted by the strong
levels of support and demand for 8jP shares from institutional investors, due to the strong results of the Group 1n recent years and
the Group’s successful investor relations programme

In addition to the above, the Committee assessed and noted the satasfactory completion of the vartous strategic objectives set out in the

business plan, wncluding

— the entering 1nto of a remsurance treaty with SwissRe that crystallised the future value of protection pohicies, reduced msurance and
perustency risks and resulted in an increase in cash profits of approxamately £18 mullion,

— the complenon of various objectives desygned to enhance and strengthen the monitorng and mitigation of key regulatory risks
mmpacting the Group, and

~— the implementaton of phase one of the back office mtegration programme, which included the nigning of a new contract for the
admunistration of the Group’s UK hife and pension polimes with IFDS, who already administer the Group’s umt trust and ISA pohces

Taking all the above strategic objectives into account, the Commuittee awarded the maximum bonus available under the team
performance element of the annual bonus scheme, recogmsing that & hugh proportian of the strategic objectives were graded as
‘outstanding’ or ‘above stretch’ and that all of the major business plan objectives had been satisfactorily completed

Nates

() Profit from new business is the EEV pew business contribution plus the profits artang in the distmibution company as shown 1 the segmental analvas

(1) The Commuttee has the diseretion to scale back the anntal boous payable in raspect of the strategic measures if it considers it 1nappropriate in the context of the overall
financlal results of the Group The Commuttee reviewed the Group's performance and agreed that no scale-back was appropriaze

i) The Cammittee retams the discretion ta amend each element of the borus, up ar down, within the overall cap of 120% of salary, to teke wnto account other relevant factors
such 28 the Grou.p': performance compared to competitor orgamisations or, fornstance, an exceptional pasitive or negative event which mmpacts the Group The Commuttee
reviewed the Group’s performance s well as competitors and the externsl market at the end of the performance period and agreed that oo adjustment was required

(v)Half of the bonus 1s pard iy cash, wath the remamder bemg invested 1n the Company's shares and deferred for three years, under the Group's deferred bonus plan

Long-Term Incentave Awards
Vesting of Performance Share Plan (PSP} awards (audited)

Cn 31 December 2013, the awards made on 15 March 2011 under the PSP reached the end of their three-year performance period
These will vest on 15 March 2014, being the third aumiversary of the date of grant The performance conditions which applied to the
2011 PSP awards, and the actual performance achieved agamst these conditions, are set out 1n the table below

Average annual adjusted Average annual adjusted EPS
EPS growth (1ncluding the growth {excluding the unwind
unwind of the discount rate) of the discount rate) in excess
TSR relative to the FTSE 250* 1 excess of RPI of RPI
% of one

% of one thurd third of % of one thard
Performance of award Performance award Performance of award
Performance level burdle regquired yestung required vesting required yesting
Below threshold Below Medran 0% Below 5% 0% Below 5% 0%
Thresheld Median 25%  Atleast 5% 25%  Atleast 5% 25%
Stretch or above Upper Quartile or above 100% 16% or above 100% 16% or abave 100%
Actual Achieved 18 out of 179 compames 13 8% 85% 16 8% 100%

Above Upper Quartile 100% Note 1 Note 1

*  FTSE 250, excluding investinent trusts and companies i the FTSE oi, gas and mimung sectors

Nate 1 In calculating the performance target relanng to EPS growth, meluding the unwind, for the three years to 31 December 2013, the Commuttee excluded the ‘one-of” costs of
£6 2 million 1ncurred by the Company 1 relation to the placing by Lioyds Bantong Group ple {LBG) of 20% of it shareholding in SJP 1n March 2013 The Committee
considered that these costs were not incurred in the ordinary course of businessand were unforeseen at the tme the performance targets were set and that 1 was far and
reasonable to exclude them The impact of the adjustment to the EPS growth (indluding the unwind) was to increase the EPS growth over the three year perrod 1o
31 December 2013 from 13 1% to 13 8%, with the result that the percentage vesting 1n relation to the one-third of the award based on EPS (including the unwind) increased
From 80% to 85% The impact of the adjustmen: of the EPS growth (excluding the uowind) was to increase EPS growth over the three year period to 31 December 2013 from
15 9% to 16 8%, with the result that the percentage vesting in relation to the one-third of the award based on EPS (excluding the unwind) mncreased from 9% 10 100%
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Accordingly, the total percentage of the 2011 PSP awards vesting was 95%, which resulted m the following awards vesting to the

Executive Directors

Total mumber Percentage Yalue of

of shares of awards Number of shares vesting

Director granted vesting  shares vesting (£°000)°

David Bellamy 267,322 95% 253,970 £1,653

Andrew Croft 177,912 9% 169,025 £1,100

Tan Gascoigne 177,912 95% 169,025 £1,100

David Lamb 177,912 95% 169,025 £1,100
Nete

{1) The deemed share price used 1o ealevlate the value of shares vesung was £6 51 bang the three month average to 31 December 2013 (as the awards will not actually vest untl

15 March 2014)

Share Awards granted to the Executive Directors in 2013

Number of S]P % of face

. Average shares over value that

shares price whuch award would vest

atdate of wasgranted Facevalueof  atthreshold

Dharector Type of award Basis of award granted grant (Note1} award (£'000) performance

David Bellamy Nil cost option  190% of salary of £478,000 £5 155 176,178 £908 25%

Andrew Croft Nil cost option  175% of salary of £346,000 £5 155 117,458 £606 25%

lan Gascorgne Nii cost option  175% of salary of £346,000 £5 155 117,458 £606 25%

David Lamb Nil cost option  175% of salary of £346,000 £5 155 117,458 £606 25%
Note

{i) The number of abares awarded was calculated based on the average share price over a perfod of three days prior to the date of graot on 21 March 2013, being £5 155 per
share The face value of the sward figure is calculated by muluplying the number of shares awerded by the average share price figure of £5 155

PSP awards are structured as m cost optrons and there 13 therefore no exerase price payable on exeraise Dividend equivalents accrue
to the Executive Dhrectors between the date of grant and exercise of the award, but are released only to the extent that awards vest
Further details of the performance conditions whach apply to the awards are set out in Notes (1) and (u) on page 81
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Directors’ Remuneration Report contimued
for the year ended 31 December 2013

Total Sharehclder Return Performance
The graph below shows a comparison of the Company's TSR performance against the FTSE All-Share mdex over the last five financial

years The Company conaiders this to be the most appropriate comparative index, given the broad nature of the index and the
companies within it

Total Remuneration for the Chief Executive
The table below shows the total remuneration figure for the Chief Executive during each of the financial years shown The total
remuneration figure includes the annual bonus and long-term incentive awards which vested based on performance i those years

{and ending 1n that year for PSP scheme awards)

Year ending 31 December

2009 2010 2011 2012 13
Total Remuneration £1,039,723  £1,495,600 £1,998,758 £2,410,380 £2,920,739
Annual Bonus (% of maximum) 52% 96% 63% 46% 98%
LTIP vesting (% of maximum) 0% 57% 83% 87% 5%

The total value of the PSP award vestng i 2013 15 £1,650,000 Of thus, 52% (£855,831) 1s due to share price increase over the

vesting pertod

Relative Importance of Spend on Pay
The following table sets out the percentage change 1n profit, dondends and overall spend on pay 1n the year ending 31 December 2013,

compared ta the year ending 31 December 2012

2012 2013 Percentage

£ Million £ Malhon change

Opcrating profit after tax 107 1 190 3 78%
Dividends 540 82.1 52%
679 886 30%

Employee remuneration costs
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Percentage Increase in the Remuneration of the Chief Executive
The table below shows the percentage movement in the salary, benefits and annual bonus for the Chief Executive between the current
and previous financral year compared to that for the average Group employee

% change

2012 t0 2013
Chief Executive
Salary ' 28
Benefits (Note 1) 106
Bonus 1202
Average per Employee
Salary 36
Benefits (Note 11) (13
Bonus 669
Notes

(1) See Note (1} on page 82 for further detals
(11} The benefits costs reduced manaly due to lower costs being achieved for the Group's lafe and entical illness cover

Share Awards
The tables below set out details of share awards that have been granted to indivaiduals who were Directors during 2013 and which had

yet to vest at some point during the year

Performance Share Plan — Awards held m return for Qualifying Services during 2013 (audited)

Balanceat Balance at
1 January Granted Lapsed Exercised 31 December
Director 2013 1 year™ m yeart mn yeart™ 2013 Dates from which exercisable
David Bellamy - 316,6660 - 42,117 268,020 - 8 Mar 2013 to B Mar 2016
267,3220 - - - 267,322 15 Mar 2014 to 15 Mar 2017
242,220 - - - 242,220 26 Mar 2015 to 26 Mar 2018
176,178 - - 176,178 21 Mar 2016 to 21 Mar 2019
Andrew Croft 219,6079 - 29,208 184,411 - 8 Mar 2013 to 8 Mar 2016
177,912 - - - 177,912 15 Mar 2014 to 15 Mar 2017
161,206 - - - 161,206 26 Mar 2015 to 26 Mar 2018
117,458 — 117,458 21 Mar 2016 to 21 Mar 2019
Tan Gascoigne 219,607% - 29,208 184,411 - 8 Mar 2013 to 8 Mar 2016
177,912 - - - 177,912 15 Mar 2014 to 15 Mar 2017
161,206 - - - 161,206 26 Mar 2015 to 26 Mar 2018
117,458 - — 117,458 21 Mar 2016 to 21 Mar 2019
David Lamb 219,607 — 29,208 185,285 - & Mar 2013 to § Mar 2016
177,912® - - - 177,912 15 Mar 2014 to 15 Mar 2017
161,206 - - - 161,206 26 Mar 2015 to 26 Mar 2018
117,458 - — 117,458 21 Mar 2016 to 21 Mar 2019

Notes

(1) These awards were made on 8 March 2010 when the St James’s Place share price was £2 57 The performance peraod 1s the three year period ending on 31 December 2012
The three performance conditions, each in respect of one-third of the award, relate to {f) EPS {Including the 1mpact of the unwind of the discount rate, as described more
fully on page 73) (1) EPS excluding the impact of the sud unwind and (1) TSR compared to the FTSE 250 Index, excluding investment trusts aod companies in the ail, gas
and muning sectors The EPS scale starts at RP1 +7% for 25% of the award to vest and eads at RPI +16% for 100% of the award to vest, with pro rata vesting between the
sard pornts The TSR sliding scale 15 between median and upper quartile, wath 25% of the TSR part of the award vesting at medban Up to 11,764 shares (being the £30k
Inland Revenue cap on ‘approved’ share opt:ons) can be exercised vis # linked award under an approved share opuon scheme with an exercase price of £2 55

({1} These awards were made on 15 March 2011 when the St James's Place share price was £3 14 The performance period 13 the three year penod ending on 31 December 2013
The performance conditions, each in respect of one third of the award, relate to (1) EPS (mcluchng the impact of the unwind of the discount rate, as described more fully on
page 73), (1) EPS excluding the fmpact of the said unwind and (iu) TSR compared to the FTSE 250 Index, excluding avestment trusts and compantes i the oil, gas and
rining sectors The EPS scale starts at RPI +5% for 25% of the award to vest and ends at RPI +16% for 100% of the award to vest, with pro rata vesting between the said
pomts The TSR shiding scale 11 between median and upper quartile, with 25% of the TSR part of the award vesung st median

(115) These awards were made on 26 March 2012 when the 5t James's Place share price was £3 73 The performance period 13 the three year period ending on 31 December 2014
The performance conditions, each 1o respect of one-third of the award, refate to (1) EPS (including the impact of the unwind of the discount rate, as described more fully on
page 73) (1) EPS excluding the impact of the said uawind and () TSR compared to the FTSE 250 Index, excluding investment trusts and compames 1n the oil, gas and
mining sectors The EPS scale starts at RP{ +5% for 25% of the award to vest and ends at RPI +16% for 100% of the award to vest, with pro rata vestung between the sard
poInts The TSR shding scale 1 berween median and upper qua:tlk, with 25% of the TSR part of the award vesting at median
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D iI'GCtOl’S, Remunel'ation Rep Ol’t contmued ‘
for the year ended 31 December 2013

(iv) These awards were made on 26 March 2013 when the St James's Place share price was £5 115 The performance perdod 14 the three year period ending on 31 December
2015 The three performance conditions, cach mn respect of one-third of the award, relate to (i) EPS {including the tmpact of the unwind of the discount rate, as described
more fully on page 73) (1) EPS excluding the rmpact of the said uowind and (uf) TSR compared to the FTSE 250 Index, excluding investment trusts and companies 1 the ofl,
gas and rmuning sectors The EFS scale starts at RPI +5% for 25% of the award to vest and ends at RPI +16% for 100% of the award to vest, with pro ruta vesting between the
said points The TSR sliding scale 15 between median and upper quartile, wrth 26% of the TSR part of the award vesting at median Up to 774 shares (being the £30k Intand
Revenue cap on ‘approved” share options) can be exercised via a inked award under an approved share option scheme wath an exercuse proice of £5 155

(v) These awards lapsed due to the performance condiuon based on TSR {more fully described m note (1) above) not beang fully satisfied and, a3 a result, 13 3% of the award
lapsed at the end of the performance penod (42,117 shares lapsed for David Bellamy and 29,208 shares lapsed for the other Executive Directors) The additional shares that
lapsed were due to the Execytives exercimng thesr linked approved share oprions (see note (1)) prior to the exercise of therr PSP awards {se¢ alsa note {v1} belaw for
more details) .

(v1) On 23 December 2013, when the mud market price was £7 125, David Bellamy exercised 10,199 shares at an option price of £2 55 under an approved award, resulting ina
gunof £46,252 Asaresult, David Bellamy's related PSP award over 274,549 sharea bapsedin respect of 6,529 shares, equivalent mn value to the gan arisng en exercise of
the appreved award David Bellamy then exercrsed the remaming balance of 268,020 shares under the related PSP award on the same date resulting in a gain of £1,903,332
On 15 August 2013, when the mid- market price was £6 175, Andrew Croft and lan Gascolgne exercised 10,199 sharesatan option price af £2 55 under an epproved award,
resulting 1n a gain of £36,37) each Asaresult, Andrew Croft's and lan Gascofgne’s related PSP awards aver 190,399 shares each lapsed 1o respect of 5,988 shares,
equivalent 15 value to the gain arising on exercise of the approved award Acdrew Croft and lan Gascoigne then exerased the remainng balances of 184,411 shares cach
under the related PSP award on the same date resulting in a gain of £1,138,737 each On 2 April 2013, when the mid-market price was £5 105, David Lamb exercised 19,199
shares at an option price of £2 55 under an approved award, resulting 1n gan of £26,153 Asa result David Lamb's related PSP award over 190,399 shares lapsed 1o respect of
5,114 shares, equivalent in value to the gain arising on exercise of the approved award On 2 Angust 2013, when the mid-market price was £6 345, Davad Lamb excrcised the
remamng balance of 185,285 shares under the related PSP award resulting 1n a gun of £1,171,427

Deferred Bonus Scheme — Shares held during 2013 (audsted)
The table below sets out details of the awards held by the Directors under the deferred element of the annual bonus scheme
durmg 2013

Ralance at Balance at
1 Jaguary Released Awarded 31 December [
Director 2013 during year® durning year™ 2013} Vesting Date i
Dawvd Bellamy 89,990 89,990 - — 10 Mar 2013 Il
77,558 - - 77,558 15 Mar 2014 |
49,563 - — 49,563 26 Mar 2015
- 24,591 24,591 21 Mar 2016 |
Andrew Croft 67,757 67,757 - — 10 Mar 2013 3
58,357 — — 58,397 15 Mar 2014
35,813 - - 35,813 26 Mar 2015
- 17,769 17,769 21 Mar 2016
fan Gascmgne 67,757 67,757 - — 10 Mar 2013
58,397 — - 58,397 15 Mar 2014
35,813 - - 35,813 26 Mar 2015
- 17,769 17,769 21 Mar 2016
David Lamb 59,287 59,287 - — 10 Mar 2013
58,397 - - 58,397 15 Mar 2014
35,813 — - 35,813 26 Mar 2015 |
- 17,769 17,769 21 Mar 2016 |

Notes

(1} These deferred share awards were awarded oa 10 March 2010 equalin value to the Executive’s 2009 annusd cash bonms The 5t James's Place share price on the date of the
award was £2 54 and on the date of release (11 March 2013) was £5 365 These deferred share awards were awarded on 21 March 2013, equal 1n valve to the Executive's
2012 annual cash bonus These shares will be held for a restnicted period ending on 21 March 2016 The St James’s Place share price on 21 March 2013 was £5 07

(1) Outstanding awards at the year-end relate to deferred share awards awarded 1o 2011, 2012 and 2013 (see (11) sbove)} The share price at the date of the 2011 award (15 March
2011) was £3 14 and s at the date of the 2012 award (26 March 2012} was £3 733

(u1) Further details of the deferred element of the anmial bozus scheme are set out on page 72 Dividends accrue to the Executive Directors during the three year period while
the shares are subject to forferzure
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SAYE Share Option Scheme — Shares held durmg 2013 (audlted)
Details of the options held by the Directors in 20113 under the SAYE scheme and any movements during the year are as follows

Options Options
held at held at
1 January Granted Lapsed Exercised 31 December Exercise
Director 2013 m year 1n year n year 2013 price  Dates from which exeraisable
Dawid Bellamy 3,040 - - - 3,040 £2 96 1 May 2015 to 31 Oct 2015
Andrew Croft 3,040 - - - 3,040 £296 1 May 2015 to 31 Oct 2015
Ian Gascoigne 3,272 - - - 3,272 £275 1 Nov 2015 to 30 Apr 2016
David Lamb 3,272 - - - 3,272 £275 1 Nov 2015 to 30 Apr 2016

Note
(1) At 31 December 2013 the mid-market price for St James's Place shares was £7 28 The range of prices between | January 2013 and 31 December 2013 was between £4 253

and £7 28

Share Incentzve Plan — Shares held during 2013 (qudited)
The table below sets out detauls of the awards held by the Directors under the Share Incentive Plan durmg 2013

Matching
Partnership shares
Balance at shares allocated Balance at

1 January allpcated during 31 Decémber Holdmg perrod
Director 2013 dunng year year 203 (zratching shares)
Andrew Croft® 642 - - 642 26 Mar 2010 to 26 Mar 2013
- 296 29 325 26 Mar 2013 to 26 Mar 2016
Tan Gascorgne? 502 - - 502 28 Mar 2011 to 28 Mar 2014

Notes

(1) 584 partnership shares were awarded on 26 March 2010 at a price of £2 5675 per share, 1n returs for £1,500 beang deducted from Mr Croft’s pre tax slary A further 58
matching shares were awarded on the rame date 296 partnership shares were swarded on 26 March 2013 at 2 price of £5 065 per share, 1n return for £1,500 being deducted
from Mr Croft's pre-tax salary A further 29 matching shares were swarded on the same date

{ii) 457 partnership shares were swarded on 28 March 2011 3t a price of £3 2775 per share, 1o retura for £1,500 beang deducted from Mr Gascowgne’s pre tax salary A further
45 matching shares were awarded on the same date

{1u) The partnership and matching shares will be held by an employee benefit trust an behalf of the Directar The matching shares must be held for 2 minimam period of three
years from the date of the award

Between 31 December 2013 and 25 February 2014 there were no exercises or other dealings in the Company’s share awards
by the Dhrectors

Share Interests and Shareholding Guidelines (audited)

To align the interests of the Executive Directors with shareholders, the Executive Directors are required to build up a shareholding
equivalent to 150% of salary, to be achieved through retaiming at least 50% of their net of taxes gain arising from any shares vesting

or acqured under the various incentive share plans, until such time as the upper himut of their share ownership target has been met
Executives are also required to hold a further 50% of salary n shares and/or 1n one or more St James's Place fund portfolios, thus
providing further alignment wath shareholders and chents Detals of the Directors’ interests in shares are shown in the following table
All of the Executive Directors have met the shareholding guidehine
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Directors’ Remuneration Report contuned

for the year ended 31 December 2013

Directors® Interests in Shares

% of base

salary held

. SJP shares

Shares held at  Shares held at asat 31

1 Jaouary 31 December December

Ihrector 2013 2013 20130
David Bellamy 1,346,608 1,294,458 1,971%

Andrew Croft
Ian Gascoigne
Dawvid Lamb
Sarah Bates
Vivian Bazalpette
Steve Colsell™
Iarn Cormush
Charles Gregson™
Sue Harris™
Alison Hewrtt™
Mike Power(?

Patience Wheatcroft

746,298 803,738 1,691%
688,515 693,263 1,459%

428,041 415,003 873%
13,500 13,500
20,000 20,000
12,535 12,535
1,500 1,500

Notes

(1) Calculated usng the mid market price at 31 December 2013 of £7 28p

{u) The interests of the Directors indude those of thewr Connected Persons as defined m section 96B(2) of the Finanual Services and Markets Act

(1) The 1nterests of the Exceutive Directors set out above include deferred bonus scheme swards held in trust for the Durectors, details of which are set out on page 88
The interests of the Executive Directors also include awards under the Share Incentve Plan, details of which are set out on page 89

(1v) The Company's reguster of Directors’ interests contans full details of Directars’ sharcholdings and any share swards under the Company’s various share schemes

(¥) Steve Calsell ceased being a member of the Board with effect from | June 2013 and Sue Harris and Alison Hewntt were appointed non-independent Non-executive Directors
on 1 Junc 2013 Sue Harns and Alisen Hewitt ¢rascd being members of the Baard with effect fram 31 December 2013

(v1) Charles Gregson and Mike Power ceased being members of the Board with effect from 31 Decenber 2013

{vs)Dusclosure of the Directars’ interests in share awards 13 given on pages 87 to 89 of the Remuneration Report and also in Note 33 — Related Party Transactions

Between 31 December 2013 and 20 February 2014 there were no transactions 1n the Company’s shares by the Directors

Executive Directors’ Shareholdings and Outstanding Share Awards

Qutstanding
Beneficlally  QOutstanding DBS SAYE SIP
owned at PSP awards awards (no options (no shares (no

31 December (performance performance performance performance

Director 20139 conditions)™  condihions)™ conditions)™  condihions)®
David Bellamy 1,294 458 685,720 151,712 3,040 -
Andrew Croft 803,738 456,576 111,979 3,040 967
Ian Gascoigne 693,263 456,576 111,979 3,272 502
David Lamb 415,003 456,576 111,979 3,272 -

(i) No share awards bave vested but remain unexercised
{11} Details on the PSP awards are set out oo page 87
{m)Details on the DBS awards are set out on page 88
(¥) Details on the SAYE optiona are sct out on page 89
(v) Details on the SIP shares are set out on page 82
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Dilution

Dilution himits agreed by shareholders at the time of shareholder approval of the varigus long term incentive schemes allow for

the following

— up to 5% of share caprtal in ten years to be used for grants to employees under discretronary schemes,

— up to 10% of share capital 1n ten years to be used for grants to employees under all employee share schemes, and

— up to 15% of share capitalip ten years to be used for grants to employees and members of the St James’s Place Partnership (the
Group’s sales torce) under all share schemes1 e both the employee and “Partner’ share schemes This mcreased limit reflects the
unique structure of the business and the importance of the Partnership to the continued success of the Group (Shareholders are not
being asked to approve a 15% of share caprtal lirit 1n relation to the new long-term mcennve plan at the AGM )

The table below sets out, asat 31 December 2013, the number of new ordinary shares in the Company which have been 1s5ued, or are
capable of being 1ssued (subject to the satisfaction of any applicable performance conditions) as a result of opnions or awards granted
under the various long term incentive schemes operated by the Company 1 the ten years prior to 31 December 2013
% of total
Numberof  issued share

new ordinary capital asat
shares of 31 Decemper

Share Scheme 15 pence each 2013
SAYE schemes 3,853,078 0 75%
Executive share schemes 13,634,552 2 64%
Partners’ share schemes 21,175,793 4 11%
Total 38,663,423 7 50%

In addrtton, as at 31 December 2013, the Group’s Employee Share Trust held 889,932 shares in the Company which were purchased in
the market to satisfy awards made under the PSP and executive share option schemes

A further 2,167,880 shares, registered to employees under the terms of the Group’s deferred bonus scheme, have been allocated by the
Group’s Employee Share Trust These shares are allocated to the relevant indviduals on a restricted basis whereby the recipents

arc not entitled to the sharcs until completion of the three year restricted period  Further details of the deferred banus scheme arc set
out on page 72

Interests in Shares Held in Trusts

Certain Executive Directors and employees are deemed to have an interest or a potential interest as potential discretionary beneficiaries
under the 5t James’s Place Employee Share Trust As such, they were treated as at 31 December 2013 as being interested 1n zero
ordinary shares of 15p in the Company, such shares bemng held by § G Hambros Trust Company {Channel Islands) Limited, the trustee
of that trust
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued
for the year ended 31 December 2013

Staterment of Shareholding Voting at AGM

At last year’s AGM held on 21 May 2013, the Directors’ Remuneration Report receved the following votes from shareholders ,

Remuneration Report |

Total number % of vates

of votes cast

For 423,055,306 99 3%
Aganst 2,945,481 0 7%
Abstentions 104,101 N/A
Total 426,104,888 100%

Thas report was approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by

Sarah Bates
Charrmen, Remuneration Committee

24 February 2014
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Directors’ Report

The Directors present their Report and the Annual Report and
Accounts and the audited consohdated Financial Staternents of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 All of the
Drrectors were 1n office throughout the financtal year and up to
the date of signing this report with the exception of Steve Colsell,
Charles Gregson, Sue Harris, Alison Hewitt and Mike Power, as

detailed below

The information that fulfils the Companies Act requirements of
the Strategic Report can be found 1n the following sections

Princapal risks and uncertamties

The Rusk and Risk Management
sechon on pages 36 and 37

Internal control and rsk

managfment

Strategic Report on pages 34
and 35

Performance and development
of the business during the

year and position at the end of
the year

Chief Executive's Statement on
pages 2 to 4, the Chief Financral
Ofhicer’s Report on pages 12 to
14 and the Financral Review on
pages 16 to 33

Information on hkely future

developments

Chief Executive’s Statement
on pages 3 and 4, the Chief
Finanenal Officer’s Report

on page 14 and the Finanaal
Review on pages 22, 28 and 32

Mhrectors’ and Officers’
Indemmty and Insurance

The Corporate Governance
Report on page 57

Fimanaal and non-hnancial KPIs

Key Performance Indicators on
pages 10and 11

Environmental, employee and
socal commumty matters

The Corporate Soaal
Responsibility Report on pages
3%to 45

Contractual or other
arrangements essential to the
business of the Company

Page 95

Results and Drvidends

‘The conschdated statement of comprehensive income 1s on page
102 and proft for the financral year attributable to equity

shareholders amounted to £190 3 million An interim dividend of
6 38 pence per share, which equates to £32 7 million, was paid on
25 September 2013 (2012 4 25 pence per share/£21 4 million)
The Dhrectors recommend that shareholders approve a final
dividend of 9 58 pence per share, which equates to £49 4 milbon
(2012 final dividend of 6 39 pence per share/£32 4 mlhon) to be
pad on 16 May 2014 to shareholders on the register at the close of
business on 11 April 2014

In 2012, the Directors miroduced 2 Dividend Reinvestment Plan
(‘DRP'), detads of which are set out on page 178

Status of Company
‘The Company 1s registered as a public mited company under the
Companies Act 2006

Qur Directors

Detatls of the Mhrectors as at 24 February 2014 and thewr
biographies are shown on pages 52 and 53 Brief particulars of the
Directors’ membership of the Board commuttees are contained 1n
the Corporate Governance Report on pages 5% to 67

Sue Harns and Alison Hewitt were appotnted non-independent
Non-executive Directors on 1 June 2013, as representatives of
Lloyds Banking Group {'LBG") pursuant to the Relanonship
Agreement between the Company and LBG They replaced
Steve Colsell who resigned from the Board on 1 June 2013
Under the Relationship Agreement, LBG was entitled to appont
up to two Non-executive Directors to the SP Board The
Relationship Agreement terrmmnated in accordance wath 1ts terms
an 13 December 2013 following the sale by LBG of 1ts major
shareholding 1n SJP and, as a consequence, Sue Harris and
Abson Hew:tt resigned from the Board on 31 December 2013

Simor Jeffreys and Roger Yates were appointed to the Board
as independent Non-executive Directors on 1 January 2014
Charles Gregson and Mike Power resigned from the Board
on 31 December 2013

The Company’s current Articles of Assocation require that any
Darector appointed during the year to fill a casual vacancy must
stand for reappointment at the next Annual General Meeting and
that, at each Annual General Meeting, all those Directors who
were elected or last re-elected at or before the Annual General
Meeting held 1n the third calendar year before the current year,
shall retire from office by rotation Directors can be removed
from officc by an ordinary resolution of sharchelders or 1n certan
other arcumstances as set out 1n the Articles of Association

In accordance with the recommendations of the UK Corporate
Governance Code, the whole Board of Directors will retire by
rotation at the Annual General Meeting 1n 2014 Beforea
Director 13 proposed for re-election by shareholders, the
Chairman considers whether s or her performance continues to
be effective and whether they demonstrate commitment to the
role After careful consideration, the Charrman 1s pleased to
confirm that, following the performance evaluation referred to on
page 58, the Directors seekang re-election continue to make a
valuable contribution to the Board Your Directors each bring a
great deal of experience to the Board as a result of their varied
carcers and we behieve this diversity 1s essennal to contributing to
the appropriate mix of slalls and experience needed by the Board
and its committees in order to protect shareholders’ mterests
The Chayrman 1s also happy to confirm that the Directors have
demonstrated their continued commitment to their roles and
continue to dedicate suffictent time to their duties The Board
therefore recommends to 1ts shareholders that all the Directors
retinng at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting should

be re-elected
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Directors’ Report wumed

Except as stated 1n the Directors’ Remuneration Report, no Director has, or has had during the year under review, any materal
1nterest n any contract or arrangement with the Company or any of its subsidiaries Details of all Executive Directors’ service
contracts are set out in the Remuneration Report on pages 77 and 78

The Company does not have agreements with any Director or employee that would provide compensation for loss of office or
employment resulting from a takeover, except that provisions 1n the Company’s share schemnes may, 1n certain circumstances, cause
share awards granted to employees under such schemes to vest on a takeover

Power of the Directors
The Directors are respensible for managing the business of the Company and their powers are subject to any regulations of the Articles,
to the provisions of the Statutes and to such regulations as may be prescnbed by Specal Resolution of the Company

The Company’s Articles of Association contain, tar example, specific provisions and restrictions concerning the Company's power to
borrow money They also provide that Directors have the power to allot unissued shares, up to pre-determuned levels set and approved
by shareholders in general meetings Thus also apples to the Directors alletting equity securities otherwise than in accordance with
statutery pre-emption rules

Substantial Shareholders
As at 24 February 2014, the Company had been notified of the following interests disclosed to the Company under Disclosure and

Transparency Rule 5

Holding at % held at Holding at % held at

31 Decernber 31 December 24 February 24 February

Shareholder 2013 2013 2014 2014
Amenprise Financial Inc 29,026,817 563 27,806,089 547
FMRLLC 27,409,642 532 26,148,313 507
BlackRock, Inc 25,518,707 495 25,905,501 503
Kames Capital 21,556,900 418 21,335,588 414

The 1nterests of the Directors, thewr farmihes and any connected persons m the 1ssued share capital of the Company are shown on page 90

Share Capatal

Structure of the Company’s Caprtal

As at 31 December 2013, the Company’s 1ssued and fully paid up share capital was 515,215,983 ordinary shares of 15p each All
ordinary shares are quoted on the London Stock Exchange and can be held 1n uncertificated form via CREST Details of the movement
1n the 1ssued share capital during the year are provided 1n Note 30 to the financial statements on page 147

Yoting Rughts
At any General Meeting, on a show of hands, each member who 15 present in person has one vote and every proxy present who has been
duly appomnted by a member entitled to vote on a resolution has one vote On a poll, every member who 15 present n person or by

proxy shall have one vote for every share of which he 15 the holder

Forms appointing a proxy sent by the Company to shareholders, in relation to any General Meeting, must be recerved by the Company
or their registrars not less than 48 hours before the tume appointed for holding of the meeting or adjourned meeting

Restrictions on Voting Rights

If any shareholder has been sent a notice by the Company under section 793 of the Compames Act 2006 and failed to supply the
relevant mformation for a period of 14 days, then the shareholder may not (for so long as the default continues) be entitled to attend or
vote etther persenally or by proxy at a sharcholders’ meeting, or to exercise any other nght conferred by membership in relation to

shareholders’ meetings

If those default shares represent at least 0 25 per cent of their class, any dividend payable in respect of the shares will be withheld by the
Company and {subject to certain hmited exceptions) no transfer, other than an excepted transfer, of any shares held by the member 1n
certficated form will be registered
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Aruacles of Assoaation

The full nghts and cbligations attaching to the ordinary shares of
the Company are set cutin the Articles of Association The
articles can be amended by a special resolution of the members of
the Company and copies can be cbtamed from Compames House
Holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive the Company’s
Reports and Accounts, attend, speak and exeraise voting rights
and appoint proxies to attend general meetings

Restrictions on Share Transfers

There are restrictions on share transfers, all of which are set out
n the Articles of Association Restrichons include transfers made
in favour of more than four jornt holders and transfers held in
certthicated form Directors may decline to recognuse a transfer,
unless 1t 15 1n respect of only one class of share and lodged (and
duly stamped) with the Transfer Ofhce The Directors may also
refuse to regster any transfer of shares held it certficated form
which are not fully paxd Directors may also choose to dechne
requests for share transfers from 2 US Person (as defined under
Regulation § of the Umnited States Securities Act 1933) that would
cause the appregate number of beneficial owners of 1ssued shares
who are US Persons to exceed 70

The registraton of transfers may be suspended at such times and for
such periods (not exceeding 30 days in any year) as the Directors
may from tume to time determine m respect of any class of shares

The Company 15 not aware of any agreements between
shareholders that restrict the transfer of shares or votung riphts
attached to the shares

Employees

Full details of the Group's approach to emplayee involvement,
traimng, development and commumication can be found 1n the
Strategic Report within the Corporate Social Responsibility
Report section on page 41

Bribery Act 2010

During 2013, the Company carried out 1ts annual review to
ensure that 1t has adequate policies and procedures n place to
prevent bnbery and corruption This included reviewing the
Bribery Act Pelicy Statement, along with other related policies
and procedures, and providing traning to employees and
Partners The Bribery Act Policy Statement 15 available to all
employees and Partners via the Company's intranet

Signaficant Contracts and Change of Control

The Company has a number of contractual arrangements which
1t considers essential to the business of the Company Speaifically,
these are committed loan facilines from a number of banks

and arrangements with third party providers of

admimstrative services

A change of control of the Company may cause some agreements
to which the Company 15 a party to alter or terrinate These
include bank facility agreements and employee share plans

The Group had commitied fachhes toralhng £37 9 mallion as at
21 February 2014 which contain dauses which require lender
consent for any change of control Should consent not be given,

a change of control would trigger mandatory repayment of

the facilitzes

All the Company’s employee share plans contain provisions
relating to a change of control Outstanding awards and options
may vest and become exercisable on a change of control, subject
where appropriate to the sausfaction of any performance
conditions at that timne and pro-rating of awards

Annual General Meeting

The Company’s Annual General Meeting will be held on

14 May 2014 at The Royal Aercnautical Society, 4 Hamilton
Place, London W1] 7BQ at 11 0fam

Authority to Purchase Own Shares

At the Annual General Meeting in 2013, shareholders granted
authority to the Directors for the purchase by the Company of ws
own shares This authority will expire at the end of the Annual
General Meeting to be held 1n 2014, or 18 months from the date
granted, whichever 1s the earlier During the year, the Company
did not purchase any of 1ts own shares The Directors will
propose the renewal of the authority to purchase 1t§ own shares at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

Shareholders are also being asked at the AGM to approve a new
long term incentive plan, further details of which wall be
contained 1n the AGM documentation

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities
Thus statement 15 set out on page 97 The complete Corporate
Governance Report 15 set out on pages 56 to 67

Going Concern

The Company’s business actrvities, together with the factors likely
to affect its future development, performance and position are set
out i the Strategic Report, as referred to on page 33 The
financial posihon of the Company, its cash flows, Lquidity
position and borrowing facilities are described in the Strategic
Report on pages 16 to 33 In addition, the Notes on page 130 and
papes 135 to 145 and the Risk, Rusk Management and Internal
Control section on pages 34 to 38 mclude the Company's
objectives, pohicies and processes for managing 1ts capatal, its
financial nsk management objectives, details of its financal
mstruments and 1ts exposures to credit risk and hquidity
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D i]f'GCtOI'S ’ Rep Ort continued

As shown on pages 29 and 30 of the Strategic Report, the Group’s
capital position 15 strong and well 1n excess of regulatory
requrements The long-term nature of the business results in
considerable positive cash flows, ansing from existing business
As a consequence, the Directors beheve that the Company 15 well
placed to manage 1ts business risks successfully

The Directors confirm that they are satisfied that the Company
and the Group have adequate resources to continue 1 business
for the foreseeable future For this reason, they continue to adopt
the gomng concern bagis in preparing the accounts Further
information on the basis of preparation of these accounts can

be seen 1n Note 1 to both the Consolidated Accounts under
International Financial Reporting Standards and Parent Company
Accounts on UK GAAP basis

Disclosure of Information to Anditors

Each of the Directors, at the date of approval of thus report,

confirms that

— 50 far as each Director 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit
information of which the auditors are unaware, and

— each Director has taken all reasonable steps to ascertain
relevant audat information and ensure that the auditors are
aware of such information

This confirmation s given and should be mterpreted in
accordance with the provisions of section 418 of the Compames
Act 2006

Independent Audrtors

The auditors, PriceWaterhouseCoopers LLF, have indicated thewr
willingness to continue m office and a Resalutton that they be
re-appointed until the end of the 2015 Annual General Meeting
will be put to shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on

14 May 2014

On behalf of the Board

D Bellamy A Croft

Chaef Execunave Chief Finanaal Officer
24 February 2014
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Statement of Directors’

The Directars are responsible for preparing the Annual Report,
the Directors’ Remuneration Report and the financial statements
1o accordance with apphcable law and regulations

Company law requrres the Directors to prepare financial
statements for each financal year Under that law the Directars
have prepared the Group financial statements n accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by
the European Union, and the Parent Company financial
statements 1n accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (Umted Kingdom Accounting
Standards and applicable law} Under company law the Directors
must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied
that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and the Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for
that period [n preparing these financial statements, the Directors
are required to

— select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently,

— make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable
and prudent,

— state whether [FRSs as adopted by the European Union and
appheable UK Accounting Standards have been followed,
subject to any material departures disclosed and explaned 1n
the Group and Parent Company financial statements
respectively, and

- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless 1t 1s 1nappropriate to presume that the Company will
continue 1n business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any tume the
financial pasition of the Company and the Group and cnable them
to cnsure that the financial statements and the Directors’
Remuneration Report comply with the Comparues Act 2006 and,
as regards the Group financual statements, Article 4 of the IAS
Regulation They are also responsible for safeguarding the

assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detectzon of fraud and
other irregulanties

The Directors have chosen to prepare supplementary mformation
1n accordance with the European Embedded Value Principles
1ssued 1n May 2004 by the Chief Financial Officers Forum, as
supplemented by the Additional Gudance on European
Embedded Value Disclosures 1ssued i October 2005 (‘the EEV
Principles’) When compliance with the EEV Principles 15 stated,
those principles require the Directors to prepare supplementary
mformation m accordance with the Embedded Value
methodology (EVM) contained 1n the EEV Principles and to
disclose and explam any non-compliance with the EEV Guidance
mecluded 1n the EEV Principles

Responsibﬂities

In preparing the EEY supplementary mnformation, the

Directors have

— prepared the supplementary information 1n accordance with
the EEV Pninciples,

— dentified and described the busmess covered by the EVM,

— apphed the EVM consistently to the covered business,

— determuned assnmptions on a reahstic basis, having regard to
past, current and expected future experience and to any
relevant external data, and then applied them consistently, and

—~ made estimates that are reasonable and consistent

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and mtegrity
of the corporate and financial information included on the
Company’s website Legislaton m the United Kingdom govermng
the preparatien and dissemunation of financial statements may
duffer from legislation in other jurisdicnons

Each of the Directors, whose names and functions are histed in
Board of Directors section of the Annual Report confirm that, to
the best of their knowledge

~ the Group financal statements, which have been prepared 1
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, give a true and
fair view of the assets, habilies, financial position and profit of
the Group,

— the European Embedded Value (‘EEV’) supplementary
information has been prepared 1n accordance with the
European Embedded Valie pnnciples 1ssued in May 2004 by
the Chief Financial Officers Forum as supplemented by the
Additional Gmdance on European Embedded Value Disclosures
1ssued in October 2005 (‘the EEV Principles’),

— the Strategic Report includes a fair review of the development
and performance of the business and the position of the Group,
together with a description of the principal risks and
uncertamnties that it faces, and

— the Directors consider that the Annual Report and Accounts,
taken as a whole, 15 fair, balanced and understandable and
provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess a
eompany's performance, business model and strategy

By order of the Board

H Gladman
Company Secretazy
24 February 2014
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Independent Auditors’ Report

to the members of St. James’s Place plc

.

REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

Our opinion

In our opimien the consohidated financial statements,

defined helow

— gwe a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s affairs a< at
31 December 2013 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for
the year then ended,

— have been properly prepared in accordance with International
Financal Reporting Standards (‘TFRSs’) as adopted by the
European Union, and

— have been prepared 1n accordance with the requirements of the
Compantes Act 2006 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

This cpimon 15 to be read m the context of what we say in the
rematnder of this report

What we have audited

The consolidated financal statements, whach are prepared by

St James's Place plc, comprise

— the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2013,

— the conschdated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended,

— the consolidated staternent of changes in equity and
consolidated staternent of cash flows for the year then
ended, and

— the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a2 summary of aigmficant accounting pohcies and other
explanatory information,

The financial reporting framework that has been appled in ther
preparation comprises applicable law and IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union

‘What an audit of financzal statements involves

We conducted our audit 1n accordance with International

Standards on Audiiing (UK and Ireland) ('ISAs (UK & Ireland)’)

An audit 1nvolves obtaiming evidence about the amounts and

disclosures 1n the financial statements suficient to give reasonable

assurance that the financial statements are free from material

musstaternent, whether eaused by fraud or error This includes an

assessment of

— whether the accounting pohes are appropriate to the Group’s
arcumstances and have been consstently apphed and
adequately disclosed,

— the reasonzbleness of signuficant accounting estirnates made by
the Directors, and

— the overall presentation of the financal statements

in addition, we read all the financial and non-financial
information 1n the Annual Report and Accounts (the ‘“Annual
Report’} to entfy material inconsistencies with the audited
consohdated financial statements and to dentify any information
that 18 apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially

inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of
performing the audit If we become aware of any apparent
material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the
implications for our report

Overview of our audit approach

Materrality

‘We set certain thresholds for matertality These helped us to
determne the nature, tming and extent of our audit procedures
and to evaluate the effect of musstatements, both individually and
on the financal statcments as a whole

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiahity
for the consolidated finanuial statements as a whole to be

£15 mullion In arrving at this Judgement we have had

regard to profit before tax attributable to sharcholders’ returny
because, 1n our view, this 1s the most relevant measure of

undertying performance

We agreed with the Audit Commuttee that we would report to
them musstatements 1dentfied durtng our audit above

£0 75 mullion as well as misstatements below that amount that,
iz our view, warranted reporting for qualitative reasons

Overview of the scope of our audit

The Group 1s structured to reflect its vertically integrated
msurance and wealth management operations situated,
predominantly m the UK and also 1n the Republic of Ireland The
consalidated financal statements are a consolidation of five
financally significant reporting units, comprinng the Group's
operating businesses and centralised functions and the St James’s
Place Unit Trusts where they are considered to be subsidaraes of
the Group

In establishung the overall approach to the group audit, we
determined the type of work that needed to be performed at the
reperting units by us, as the group engagement team, or
component auditors from uther PwC network firms operating
under our mstruction Where the work was performed by
component auditors, we determined the level of involvement we
needed to have m the audit work at those reporting units to be
able to conclude whether sufficient appropriate audit evidence had
been obtained as a basis for our opinion on the consohdated
financal statements as a whole

Accordingly, the five financially sgmficant reporting units
required an audit of their complete financal information, due to
their size and/or thewr risk characteristics Specific andit
procedures on certain balances and transactions were also
performed over those St James's Place Umt TFrusts regarded as
subsidiaries of the Group Thus, together with additional
procedures performed at the consolidated level, gave us the
evidence we needed for our opimon on the consohidated financial
statements as a whole
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Independent Auditors’ Report wammed

to the members of St. James’s Place plc

Areas of particular avdit focas

In preparing the financal statements, the Directors made a
rnumber of subjective judgements, for example n respect of
sigmficant accounting estimates that involved making assumptions
and conmdering future events that are inherently uncertain

We primanly focused our work mn these areas by assessing the
Directors’ judgements agamst available evidence, forming our
own judgements, and evaluating the disclosures in the financial

statements

In our audit, we tested and examined information, using sampling
and other auditing techmques, to the extent we considered

Area of focus

How the scope of our audat
addressed the area of focus

necessary to provide a reasonable bass for us to draw conclusions
‘We obtaned andit evidence through testing the effectiveness of
controls, substantive procedures or a combination of bath

We conaidered the followang areas to be those that required
particular focus in the current year This 15 not a complete hst of
all risks or arcas of focus identificd by our audit We discussed
these areas of focus with the Audit Commuttee Their report on
those matters that they considered to be sgnificant 1ssues 1n
relation to the Anancial statements 15 set out on pages 59 to 61

Area of focus

How the scope of our audat
addresaed the area of focus

Existence and
valuation of
financial
mvestments and
investment
property

We did not assess
these mvestments
to be a sipnificant
nisk area for

our audit but
their magmtude
in the context

of the financral
statements meant
that they were an
area of focus for
testmg

St James’s Place
plc cutsources
the custodian
and valuation
achvities Our
audit procedures
therefore focus
on the evidence
available over
these cutsourced
processes

‘We agreed the existence of all holdings
of the financial investment portfolin to a
confirmation received from independent
custodians as at 31 December 2013

‘We independently agreed the existence of a
sample of holdings of Investment Properties
as at 31 December to the Land Register
mantained by the Land Registry

‘We obtained and read the International
Standard on Assurance Engagements (‘ISAE’)
3402 ‘Assurance Reports on Controlsata
Service Orpamsation’ for State Street’s Global
Fund Accounting and Custody operations
whach provided a description of the systems
and controls i place and the results of the
testing of the operational effectiveness of
their controls Where appropriate, we placed
rehiance on the controls described in the
ISAE 3402 report to gain evidence over the
valuation and exastence of the investments
withm the portfolo

In addrtion to our controls testing we
independently re-priced a sample of denvative
mvestments as at 31 December 2013 We

also independently re-priced all equity, fixed
mncome and collective investment scheme
investments at a point in time durmg the

year to complement our controls relance

We agreed our independent prices to those
provided by State Street

For Investment Properties we tested the
inputs to the valuation process and tested the
reasonableness of the rental yield assumptions
used by the Directors in the valuation of the
portfoho as at 31 December 2013

Fraud mn revenue
recognition

ISAs (UK &
Ireland) presume
there 15 a risk of
fraud 1n revenue
recognition
because of

the pressure
management may
feel to achieve the
planned results

We focused on
the transactions
which included

a judgemental
element 1n their
calculation, for
example the
determination of
the amortisation
pertod for the

deferred income

{Refer also to note
2 to the financial

‘We evaluated the relevant IT systems
and tested the mternal controls over
the completeness, accuracy and trming
of revenue recogmsed in the financial
statements

We assessed the Directors’ judgements

and esumates that had a direct impact on
revenue, for example the amortisation profile
of the deferred income and the dassification
of 5t James's Place plc products between
wsurance and mvestment business

‘We tested Journal entries posted to revenue
accounts that met speaific criteria to 1dentify
unusual or irregular items

statements )

Rusk of ‘We assessed the overall control environment
management of the Group, including the arrangements
overnde of for staff to ‘whistle-blow’ mappropmate

internal controls
[SAs (UK &
Ireland) require
that we consider
this

actions, and mterviewed senuor management
and the Group’s internal audit function

‘We examined the significant accounting
estimates and judgements relevant to the
financial statements for evidence of bias by
the Directors that may represent a risk of
material misstatement due to fraud We also
tested journal entries
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Gomg Concern

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the Directors’
statement, set out on page 95, 1n relation to gorng concern

‘We have nothing to report having performed our review

As noted m the Directors’ statement, the Directors have
concluded that it 1s appropriate to prepare the consolidated
financial statements using the gong concern basis of accounting
The going concern basis presumes that the Group has adequate
resources to rematn 1n operation, and that the Directors intend 1t
to do so, for at least one year from the date the financial
statements were signed  As part of our audit we have concluded
that the Directors” use of the going concern basis 1s appropriate

However, because not all future events or conditions can be
predicted, these statements are not 2 guarantee a5 to the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern

OPINIONS ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE

COMPANIES ACT 2006

In our opinion

— the mformaton given 1n the Strategic Report and the
Directors’ Report for the financial year for whach the
consolidated financal statements are prepared 15 consistent
with the consohdated financial statements, and

— the informanon given in the Corporate Governance Statement
set out on pages 61 and 94 in the Annual Report with respect to
internal control and risk management systems and about share
capital structures is eonsistent with the financial statements

OTHER MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO
REPORT BY EXCEPTION

Adequacy of information and explanations recerved
Under the Compames Act 2006 we are required to report to you
i, 10 our opimion we have not received all the information and
explanations we requare for our audit We have no exceptions to
report ansing from thes responsibility

Directors’ remuneration

Under the Compames Act 2006 we are required to report to you
if, m our opimon, certain diselosures of Directors’ remuneration
speaified by law have not been made We have no exceptions to
report ansing from this responsibthty

Corporate Governance Statement

Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required to report to you
if, 1n our opimon a corporate governance statement has not been
prepared by the Parent Company We have no exceptions to
report ansing from this responsibility

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the part of the
Corporate Governance Statement relating to the Parent
Company’s comphance with mne provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code (‘the Code’) We have nothing to report having
performed our review

On page 97 of the Annual Report, as required by the Code
Provision C 1 1, the Directors state that they consider the Annual
Report taken as a whole to be fair, balanced and understandable
and provides the mformgtlon necessary for members to assess the
Group’s performance, business model and strategy On page 60,
as required by C 3 8 of the Code, the Audit Commuttee has set
out the signihicant 1ssues that 1t cunsidered 1 relation to the
financial statements, and how they were addressed Under 18As
(UK & Ireland) we are required to report to youif, m our
oP]nlOn

— the statement grven by the Directors is materially inconsistent
with our knowledpe of the Group acquired 1n the course of
performing our audst, or

— the section of the Annual Report and Accounts describing the
work of the Audit Commuttee does not appropriately address
matters commumnicated by us to the Audit Comrmuttee

‘We have no exceptions to report arising from this responstbality

Other information 1n the Annual Report

Under [SAs (UK & Ireland), we are required to report to you if,

in our opiuon, mformation in the Annual Report is

— matenally inconsistent with the information 1n the audited
consolidated hnancial statements, or

— apparently maternally incorrect based on, or matenally
mconsistent with, our knowledge of the Group acquired 1n the
course of performing our audit, or

— 15 otherwise misleading

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibibity

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND THE AUDIT

Our responsibilities and those of the Directars

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities set out on page 97, the Directors are responsible
for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements and
for beang satisfied that they give a true and fair view

Our responsibility 15 to audit and express an opinton on the
consolidated financial statements 1n accordance with applicable
law and ISAs (UK & Ireland) Those standards require us to
comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards
for Auditors

This report, including the opimons, has been prepared for and
only for the Company’s members as a body in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other
purpose We do not, n giving these oprions, accept or assume
responsibihity for any other purpose or to any other persen to
whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands 1t may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent 10 wriing

OTHER MATTER

We have reported separately on the Parent Company financial
statements of §t James's Place ple for the year ended

31 December 2013 and on the information 1n the Directors’
Remuneration Report that 1s described as having been audited

Crarg Gentle (Senor Statutery Audxtor)
Jfor and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutery Auditors

Bristol

24 February 2014

Notes
The marntenance and integrity of the St Jamey’s Place ple wehute 13 the
responsibility of the Directors, the work carred out by the auditors does nat
1evolve consideration of these matiers and, accordingly, the auditors accept no
responsbility for any changes that may have eccurred to the financial statements
since they were imtially presented on the website
Leguslation 1o the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination
of financial statements may differ fram legislation in other jurisdictions
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Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 December

Notes 2013 20i2*

£ Mallion £" Milhon

Insurance prernum mncome 612 661
Less premrums ceded to remnsurers (54.3) (26 9)
Net insurance premium income 6.9 392

Fee and commission tncome 4 1,013 3 643 1
Investment return 5 58311 3,576 7
25 12

Other operating income

Net income

Policy claims and henefits

3 6,853.8 4,260 2

— Gross amount (50 2) (52 6)
— Remsurers’ share 205 210

Net policyholder claums and benefits incurred (297) (31 6)
Change 1n insurance contract habilitzes

— Gross amount (423) (300
— Rewnsurers’ share 256 {0 4)
Net change 1n insurance contract habilities (16.7) (3049

Investment contract benefits

Fees, commission and other acquisrhon costs
Admimistration expenses

13 (5,449.4)  (3,4152)

(734.7) (409 0)
(158.9)  (1190)

Other operating expenses 32) 32
6 (8968) (531 2)
Profit befare tax 3 461 2 2518
Tax attributable to pelicyholders’ returns 8 (270.5) (117 2)
Profit before tax attrnbutabie to sharebolders® returns 190 7 134 ¢
Total tax expense 8 {270 9) (1447
Less tax attnbutable to policyholders’ returns 8 2705 1172
Tax attributable to sharehclders’ returns 8 (0.4) (27 5)
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 190 3 107 1
Profit attributable ta non-controlling interests (0.2) -
Profit attributable to equity shareholders 1905 107 1
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 190.3 107 1
Pence Penee
Basic earnings per share 10 374 215
10 367 212

Diluted earmings per share

*  Restated ta reflect the adoption of IFRS 10 Sce Note 1a

/

The Group has no other comprehensive income or expense and therefore a separate consolidated statement of comprehensive income

has not been presented

The notes and informatton on pages 106 to 155 form part of these accounts
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Consolidated Statement
of Changes in Equity

Attributable to Equity Sharcholders

Treasury Non-
Share Share Shares  Retained Misc controlling
Notes Capital  Premium Reserve  Earnings  Reserves Total Interests Total
£ Mallion £ Mdhon £ Milhon £ Milken £ Million £ Malhon £ Milhoo £ Milhon
At 1 January 2012 740 110 4 85y 5001 23 678 3 — 678 3
Profit and total comprehensive
mncome for the year 107 1 107 1 107 1
— Dividends 11 (45 3) (45 3) 45 3)
— Exerase of optrons 20 173 193 193
Consideration paid for own shares 24 24 (2 4)
Own shares vesting charge 20 (2 @) - -
Retained earnings credit in respect of
share option charges 31 ‘ 54 54 54
Retained earmings credit in respect
of proceeds from exercise of share
options held in trust 01 01 01
At 31 December 2012 76 0 1277 (89) 5654 23 762 5 - 762 5
Non-controlling interests arising on
the purchase of subsidiaries during
the year 02 02
Profit and total comprehensive
ncome for the year i90 5 190 5 (0 2) 190 3
— Dividends 11 (65 3) (65 3) {65 3)
— Tssue of share capital 03 03 03
— Exercise of options 10 45 155 155
Constderation paid for own shares , {53 &3 53
Own shares vesting charge 4 (4 0) - -
Retamed earmings credit n respect of
share option charges 31 78 78 78
Retaned earnings credit in respect
of proceeds from exercise of share
optians held m trust 01 01 01
At 31 December 2013 773 1422 (102) 6945 2.3 906 1 - 206 1

The number of shares held 1n the Treasury Share Reserve 1s given in Note 30 Share Capital on page 147
Mascellaneous reserves represent other non-distributable reserves

The notes and mformation on pages 106 to 155 form part of these accounts
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Consolidated Statement
of Financial Position

31 December 31 December I Jamoary
Notes 2013 2012* 2012%
£ Matlion £' Mallion £' Millicn
Assets
Intangible assets
— Deferred acquisihon costs 12 888 8 9N 6 865 1
— Acquired value of 1n-force business 12 40.0 43 2 45 4
— Computer software 12 87 117 8 4
— Customer hist 12 - 30 09
9375 1,029 5 920 8
Property & equipment 13 58 36 54
Deferred tax assets 14 1818 190 9 248 §
Investment property 15 7327 5976 5505
Investments
- Equities 29,614 8 21,472 8 17,306 3
- Fixed income secunties 5,965.7 511740 3,811 3
— Investment 1n Collective Investment Schemes 3,244.3 2,909 6 2,312 2
— Derivative Fanancial Instruments 1429 86 1 301
Remnsurance assets 21 64 2 386 390
Insurance and investment contract receivables 4995 46 5 44 5
Income tax assets - 852 413
Other recervables 17 5540 5261 5572
Cash & cash equivalents 18 3,845.7 3,080 1 2,368 1
Total assets 45,3393 35,183 6 28,235 6
Liabilhties
Insurance contract habilnes 20 466 4 424 Q 394 0
Other provisions 22 27 52 31
Finanaal habihities
— Investment contracts 23 33,717.5 27,147 4 22,2273
— Borrowings 24 98.7 707 43 8
~ Derivative Financial Instruments 878 525 43 4
Deferred tax liabihties 25 496 6 2690 218 9
Insurance and mvestment contract pa}fables " 381 24 9 299
Deferred income 26 538.6 616 5 5369
Income tax liabilities 49 772 12 4
Other payables 27 4394 435 8 393 2
Net asset value attributable to unit holders 16 8,535 4 5,293 5 3,654 4
Preference shares 01 - -
Total liabihities 44,433 2 34,421 1 27,557 3
Net assets 906 1 762 5 678 3
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital 30 71.3 760 740
Share premium . 142 2 1277 110 4
Treasury shares reserve (102) B9 (8 5)
Miscellaneous reserves 2.3 213 23
Retaned earmungs 694 5 565 4 5001
Shareholders’ equuty 906 1 7625 678 3
Non-controlling interests - - —
Total equuty 906 1 7625 678 3
Pence Pence Pence
Net agsets per share 1759 150 4 1375

*  Restated to reflect the adoption of IFRS 10 See Note 12

The financial statements on pages 102 to 155 were approved by the Board of Directors on 24 February 2014 and signed on 1ts behalf by

Yo, A co

D Bellamy A Croft
Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer

The notes and information on pages 106 to 155 form part of these accounts
Registered No 03183415
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Consolidated Statement
of Cash Flows

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
Nates 2013 2012*
£ Malhon £ Milhon
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax for the year 461 2 251 8
Adjustments for
Deprecation 13 16 23
Revaluation 13 o0t 04
Amortisation of acquired value of n-force business 12 32 32
Amortisation of computer software and customer list 12 2,5 06
Share based payment charge 31 78 54
Interest income (22.5) 229
Interest paid 28 17
Changes 1n operating assets and habihties
Decrease/(increase) in deferred acquisition costs 828 {106 5)
Increase 1n mnvestment property (135 1) (467
{ncrease m mvestments (%,382.2) (6,125 6)
(Increase)/decrease 1n reassurance assets (25 6) 04
Increase in insurance and mvestment contract recervables 34) 20
Increase 1n other recervables (22 4) (30
Increase 1n insurance contract habihities 42 4 300
Increase in pravisions 05 61
Increase in financial habihties (exchuding borrowings) 6,605.0 4,929 8
Increase/(decrease) 1n ingurance and investment contract payables 13.2 {50)
{Decrease) /increase n deferred income (77 9) 798
Increase m other payables 36 42 6
Increase m net assets attributable to upat holders 3,241.9 1,639 1
Cash generated from operating activities 799 5 6811
Interest recetved 225 229
Interest pard (28) (17
Income taxes (pad)/received (14 8) 180
Net cash from operating activities 804 4 7203
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquasition of property & equipment 39 {0 9)
Disposal/(acquisiion) of mtangible assets 12 05 (3 6}
Acquisition of subsidiaries and other business combinations, ret of cash acquired (¢.1) 24
Net cash from investing activities (124) (69
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from the 1ssue of share capital 158 19 3
Consideration paid for own shares (53) 24)
Proceeds from exercise of options over shares held 1n trust 01 01
Proceeds from 1ssue of non-redeemable preference shares 0.1 -
Acqusition of non—controlhng nterests 02 _
Additional borrowings 300 700
Repayment of borrowings (20) A3 1D
Dividends paid 11 {65 3) (45 3)
Net cash from financing activities (26 4) (14)
Net increase 1n cash & cash equivalents 7656 7120
Cash & cash equivalents at 1 January 3,080.1 2,368 1
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held - -
Cash & cash equivalents at 31 December 3,845 7 3,080 1

* Restated to reflect the adoption of IFRS 10 See Note 1a
Exchange rate fluctvations result from cash held in the umt-linked funds
The notes and mfortnation on pages 106 to 155 form part of these accounts
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts

under International Financial Reporting Standards

1 ACCOLUNTING POLICIES
St James's Place ple (‘the Company’) 15 a company 1ncorporated and demiciled in England and Wales

Statement of Compliance
The Group financial statements consahdate those of the Company and 1t« subsidiaries {tagether referred to as the ‘Group’)

The Group financial statements have been prepared and approved by the Directors i accordance with Internatianal Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (‘adopted IFRSs') and mterpretations 1ssued by the International Financial Reporting
Interpretziions Cornmuttee ('IFRIC’) and those parts of the Companies Act 2006 that are apphcable when reporting under IFRS

The following new and amended standards, which the Group have early adopted as of I Janwary 2013, have had a material impact on the
Group's reported results

JIAS 28 Revised —Investments 1 associates and joint ventures
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

IFRS 12 Dasclosure of Interests in Other Entines
Amendments to IFRS 10, 11 and 12 on Transition Gudance

The following new, revised and amended standards, which the Group have adopted as of 1 January 2013, have not had any material
impact on the Group’s reported results

1A81 Amendment — Presentation of Finaneral Statements
1AS 12  Amendment — Income Taxes

IFRS7 Amendment ~ Financial Instruments Dasclosure
1FRS 13 Fawr Value Measurement

Annual Improvements to IFR8s 2009 — 2011 Cycle

As at 31 December 2013, the following standards and wnterpretation, which are relevant to the Group but have not been apphed 1n the
financial statements, were 1n 15s5ue but not yet effective

IAS32 Amendment — Financial Instruments Presentation

IAS36 Amendment — Impairment of Assets

1AS39 Amendment - Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement
IFRS 9 Finanaal Instruments — Classification and Mcasurement

IFRS9 Amendment— Financal Instruments

IFRS9 Amendment — Hedge Accounting

IFRIC  Interpretation 21 —Levies

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010 — 2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011 — 2013 Cycle

The adoption of the above standards and interpretation 15 not expected to have any materral impact on the Group’s results reported
within the financial statements other than requiring additional disclosure or alternatve presentanon

The Group financial statements also comply with the revised Statement of Recommended Practice 1ssued by the Association of British
Insurers 1n December 2005 (as amended 1n December 2006), to the extent that 1t 1s consistent with IFRS standards

Basis of Preparation
As discussed 1in the Directors’ Report, the going concern basis has been adopted m preparing these accounts

The financial statements are presented 1n pounds Sterling, rounded to the nearest one hundred thousand pounds They are prepared on

a historical cost basis except for assets classified as investment praperty, investments and derwvative financial instruments, and lrabrlities
classified as investment contracts, insurance contracts and third party holdings m unit trusts, which are held at fair value

Registered No 03183415
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The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make judgements, estmates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and hiabilities, income and expenses The estimnates and assocrated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the aarcumstances,

the results of which form the basis of maling the judgements about carrying values of assets and habihties that are not readily apparent
from ather sources Actual results may differ from these estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting estimates are recogmsed in the
peried i winch the estimate 15 revised 1f the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods, 1f the
revision affects both current and future penods

Judgements made by management un the application of IFRSs that have sigmificant effect on the financial statements and cstimates with a
significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are discussed in Note 2

The hnancial statements are prepared 1 accordance with the Companies Act 2006 as applicable to companies reporting under IFRS and
the accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented 1n these consohidated financial statements

Summary of Sigmificant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financal information mcorporates the assets, liabilitres and the resulis of the Company and of 1ts subsidiaries
Subsidiartes are those entities 1n which the Group directly or indirectly has the power to govern the finanmal and operating polices 1n
order to gain benefits from 1ts actvities (mcluding unit trusts n which the Group holds more than 30% of the units) Associates are all
entitres over which the group has significant influence but not control and are accounted for at fair value through the profit and loss
The Group uses the 2cquisiion method of accounting to account for business combinations and expenses all acquisition costs as they
mcur The financal statements of subsidiaries are included 1n the consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases Accounting policies of subsidianies have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with pohicies adopted by the Group

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the group 1s recognised at fair value at the acqusition date Subsequent changes to
the fair value of the contingent conmderation that 1s deemed to be an asset or Liabihity 1s recognised 1n accordance with IAS 39 m the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income

The treatment of transactions with non-controlling interests depends on whether, as a result of the transaction, the Group alters
control of the subsidiary Changes in the parent’s ownership interest 1n a subsichary that do not result 1n a loss of control are accounted
for as cquity transactions, any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests arc adjusted and the fair value of
the consideration paid or receved 1s recogmised directly 1n equity and attnibuted to the owners of the parent entity Where the Group
loses control of the subsidiary, at the date when control 15 lost the amount of any non-controlling interest 1n that former subsidrary 1s
derecogmised and any investment retamned in the former subsidiary 1s remeasured to its fair value, the gain or loss that 15 recognised in
profit or loss on the partial dispusal of the subsidiary includes the gain or loss on the remeasurement of the retained interest

Intragroup balances, and any mncome and expenses or unreahsed gains and losses arsing from 1ntragroup transactions, are elumnated
tn preparing the consolidated financial statements

{b) Product classification
The Group's products are classified for accounting purposes as either insurance contracts or nvestment contracts

(1) Insurance contracts
Insurance contracts are contracts that transfer ssgmficant msurance risk The Group's product range includes a variety of term
assurance and whale of ife protection contracts involving significant insurance risk transfer

(u) Investment contracts
Contracts that do not transfer significant 1nsurance risk are treated as investment contracts The majority of the business written by the
Group 15 unut linked investment business and 1s classified as investment contracts
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts

1
under International Financial Reportlng Standards continued

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

(c) Long-term busmess

(1) Insurance premium revenue

For umit linked 1nsurance contracts, premums are recogmsed as revenue when the labibties arising from them are recognised
All other premiums are accounted for when due for payment

Investment contract premiums are not included 1n the statement of comprehensive income but are reported as deposits to 1nvestment
contract liabilities 1n the balance sheet

{11) Revenue from investment contracts

Fees charged for services related to the management of investment contracts are recogrused as revenue as the services are provided
Imtral fees, 1ncluding dealing margins from unit trusts, which exceed the level of recurring fees and relate to the future provision of
services, are deferred These are amortised over the anticipated period 1n which services wall be provided

(1) Policy daims and benehts
For insurance contracts, death claims are accounted for on notification of death Critieal dlness daims are accounted for when

admitted All other claims and surrenders are accounted for when payment 1s due

For mvestment contracts, benefits paid are not included 1n the statement of comprehensive income but are instead deducted from
investment contract habilites The movement 1n investment contract benefits within the statement of comprehensive income
principally represents the investrent return credited to pohicyholders

Following the implementanion of the Retail Distribution Review (‘RDR’) on 31 December 2012, exphart advice charges are payable to
St James's Place distribution company by most clients who wash to recerve advice with their investment ina St James's Place retail
mvestment product St james's Place facmbitates the payment of these charges for the client, by arranging withdrawals from the chent’s l
policy, which are then recogmised as income to St James's Place distribution company A proportion of the charge 15 then paid to the

St James’s Place adviser (‘Fartner’) who provides the advice (see (g)(1) Expenses) |

(1) Acqusition costs
For msurance contracts, acquiniion costs comprise durect costs such as imtial commission and the wdirect costs of obtanng and processing
new business Acquisition costs which are immcurred durmg a financal year, net of any impairment lasses, are deferred and then amortised aver

the perted during whuch the costs are expected to be recoverable and 1n accordance wath the mecidence of future related margins

For investment contracts, only directly attributable acquisition costs, which vary with and are related to securing new contracts and
renewing existing contracts, are deferred, and only to the extent that they are recoverable out of future revenue These deferred
acquisition costs, which represent the contractual right to benefit from providing 1nvestment management services, net of any
impairment losses, are amortised on a straight-hne basis over the expected lifetime of the Group’s investment contracts All other costs
are recogrused as expenses when imcurred Note, following the implementation of the Retail Dastribution Review (‘RDR’) on

31 Iyecember 2012, the iuttal advice costs are no longer an acquisition cost inked to the contractual right to beneft from providing \
investment management services and so they are no longer deferred

(v) Insurance contract habilites

Insurance contract liability provisions are deterrined following an anmral actuarial nvestigation of the long-term fund 1n accordance
with regulatory requurements The provisions are calculated on the basis of current infermation and using the gross premum valuation
method The Group's accounting policies for insurance contracts meet the mmmum speafied requirements for lability adequacy testing
under [FRS 4, as they consider current esumates of all contractual cash flows, and of related cash flow such as claims handling costs

Insurance contract habiliies can never be definitrve as to their timing nor the amount of claims and are therefore subject to subsequent
reassessment on a regular basis
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(1) Investment contract liabilities

All of the Group's investment contracts are umt lnked Unit linked habilities are measured at fair value by reference to the value of the
underlymng net asset value of the Group’s unitised investment funds, determined on a bid value, at the reporting date An allowance for
deductions due to (or from) the Company in respect of policyholder tax on capital gains (and losses) in the hife assurance funds 1s also
reflected 1n the measurement of unit linked liabilities Investment contract habilities are recognised when units are first allocated to the

policyholder, they are derecogmsed when umuts allocated to the policyholder have been cancelled

The decision by the Group to designate 1ts unit hinked habilities as fair valve through the profit and loss statement reflects the fact that
the underlying investment portfolio 18 managed, and 1ts performance evaluated, on a fair value basis

{vut) Insurance and mvestment contract recervables and payables

Insurance and investment contract recervables and payables are 1mitially recogrised at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost,
using the effective interest methed, less impairment losses

(d) Remsurance
Remsurance premmms are accounted for when due for payment and remsurance recoveries are accounted for in the same peniod as the
related claim

The accounting policy for reassurance assets has been amended to reflect only amounts recoverable from reinsurers 1n respect of
msurance contract habhties Amounts recoverable from reinsurers m respect of claims and amounts payable 1n respect of future
remnsurance premiums are reported as part of insurance and nvestment contract recervables and payzbles, respectively There 15 no
mmpact on the Group's reported results from this change

(¢) Fee and commission 1ncome

Fee and commission income comprises

(1) fees charged for services related to the management of investment contracts,

{u) advice charges pard by clients whe wish to receive advice with their investment in a St fames’s Place or third party retail
mnvestment product, and

(1) commussion, due 1n respect of products sold on behalf of third parties

Investment contract management fees are generally recognised as revenue a5 the services are provided (see also accounting pohcy
note ¢ (1))

Advice charges and commussion are recogmsed 1o full on acceptance and inception of the associated pohicy by the relevant product
provider Where the product provider retains the nght to clawback of commission on an indemmty basis, turnover on sale of these
products 13 recognised net of a provision for the esumated clawback

{f) Investment return

Investment return comprises :mvestinent income and investment gains and losses [nvestment income mcludes dividends, interest and
rental income from investment properties under operating leases Dividends are accrued on an ex-dividend basis, and rental income 15
recognised 1n the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the term of the leage Interest, which 1s generated an
assets classified as fair value through profit or loss, 1s accounted for on an accruals basis

(s} Expenses

(1) Partner remuneration

Whulst the implementation of the Retail Distribution Review ('RDR’) on 31 December 2012 has resulted 1n changes to Fee and
Commisston income recerved (see () Fee and Commussion), there 15 no change to treatment of Partner Remuneration

Partner remuneration comprises imtial commission and 1mtial advice fees ('IAF’) {paxd for imtial advice, at policy outset and within an
‘titial peried’), renewal commuission and renewal advice fees (payable on regular contributions) and fund fee commssion or ongoing
advice fee (‘'OAF') (based on funds under management and payable on the policy anniversary) Initial and renewal commssion and
advice fees are recognised 1n line with the associated premium 1ncome, but 1nst1al commission on wsurance and investment contracts
may be deferred as set out in accounting policy (¢) (iv) Fund fee commission and ongeing advice fee are recogmsed on an accruals bass
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts

under International Financal Reporﬁng Standards continued

1, ACCOUNTING POLICIES contimued

Commussion and advice fees 1n respect of some 1nsurance and mvestment business may be pad m advance on renewal premiums and
accelerated by up to five years The unearned element of this accelerated remuneration 1s recognised as an asset within other
recervables Should the contributions reduce or stop within the initial pertod, any unearned amount 1s clawed back

(u) Operating lease payments

Leases where a ssgnificant propartion of the risks and rewards of awnership 16 retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases
Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on a strarght-line basis over the term
of the lease Lease meentives recerved are recognised in the statement of comprehensive ncome as an imtegral part of the total lease
expense and are spread over the life of the lease

(h) Income taxes

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax payable by the Group i respect of policyholders and
shareholders Income tax 1s recognised in the statement of comprehensive income except to the extent that 1t relates to items
recognised directly 1n equity, in which case 1t 1s recogmsed 1n equty

(1) Current tax
Current tax 15 the experted tax payable on the taxable income for the year, nsing tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the

reperting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years

(1) Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s provided using the liability method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
lLiabilitzes for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes The following differences are not prowided for
the 1mtial recognition of assets or habilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit, and differences relating to investments in
substdiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future The amount of deferred tax prowvided 1s based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and Liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date

A deferred tax asset 1s recognised only to the extent that 1t 15 probable that future taxable profits wiil be avazlable against which the asset
can be utihised Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that 1t 15 no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised

Deferred income tax assets and lizbilthies are offset when there1s a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current
tax habihties and when the deferred income taxes assets and habikities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authonty on
erther the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there 15 an mtention to settle the balances on a net basis

{1} Policyholder and shareholder tax

The total mcome tax charge 1s a separate adjustment within the statement of comprehensive income based on the movement in current
and deferred income taxes 1n respeet of income, gainsand expenses The total charge reflects tax incurred on behalf of policyhalders as
well as shareholders, and so it 15 useful to be able to idennfy these separately Shareholder tax 1s estimated by making an assessment of
the effective rate of tax that 1s applicable to the shareholders, with the balance being treated as tax in respect of policyholders

(1) Drvidends
Drvidend distributions to the Company’s shareholders are recogrused in the period 1n which the dividends are paid, and, for the final
dividend, when approved by the Company’s shareholders at the Annual General Meeting

(1) Intangible assets
1) Deferred acqusition costs
See accounting policy ¢ (1v)

() Acqmred value of mm-force business

The acquired value of m-force business i respect of insurance business represents the present value of profits that are expected to
emerge from insurance busmess acquired on business combinations Itis calculated at the time of acquisitton using best estimate
,actuanial assumptions for interest, mortahty, persistency and expenses, net of any mmparment losses, and 1t 15 amortised as profits
emerge over the anucpated hives of the related contracts m the portfolio An mtangible asset 13 also recogmsed in respect of acquired
mvestment management contracts representing the fair value of contractual rights acqured under those contracts The acquired value
of in-force business 1s expressed as a gross figure 1n the balance sheet with the associated tax mduded within deferred tax Liabilitzes It
15 assessed for impairment at each reporting date and any movement 1s charged to the statement of comprehensive income
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() Computer software
Computer software 13 stated at cost less accumulated amortsation and any recogrsed impairment loss The carrying value is reviewed
for rmpairment when events or changes 1n arcumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable

Computer software 15 recognised as an intangible asset during development with amortisation commencing when the software s
operational Amortisation 1s charged to the statement of comprehensive income to administration expenses oD a straight-line basis over
four years, being the estimated useful Iife of the intangible asset

{1v) Customer list
During the year, custamer List (renamed renewal income) was reclassified as a financial assct and disclosed withun other recaivables to better
reflect of the nature of the asset Sec accounting policy o {Other recaivables policy) for information relating to the treatment of other recervables

Customer hst was recogmsed as an mtangible asset and represented the value of future commussion income streams following the
acquisiton of financial services’ businesses and was amortised over four years as the income stream was realised  Customer hist was
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any recognised impairment loss The carrying value was reviewed for tmpairment
when events or changes in circumstances mdicated that the carrying value may not be recoverable

(k) Property & equipment
Items of property & equipment are stated at cost Jess accurnulated depreciaton Cost 1ncludes the original purchase price of the asset

and the costs attmbutable to bnnging the asset to 1ts working condition for 1ts intended use Land 1s shown at fair value, based on
valuations by external independent valuers The carrying value 15 reviewed for impairment when events or changes 1n circumstances
mdicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable and any assets that may have suffered impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date

Depreciation 15 charged to the statement of comprehensive income to admunistration expenses on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the property & equipment as follows

Computers 3 years
Fixtures and fittings 5 years
Office equipment 5 years

Land 1s not depreciated

(1) Iavestment property
Investment properties, which are all held withun the unit linked funds, are properties which are held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation They are stated at fair value

An external, independent valuer, having an appropriate recogmsed professional quahification and recent experience in the location and

category of property being valued, values the portfolio every month

The fair values are based on open market values, being the estimated amount for which a property could be exchanged on the date of
valuation between & willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s length transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties had
each acted knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion

Any gain or loss arising froora change i fair value 15 recogmsed 1o the statement of comprehensive income wrthin mvestment meome
Rental return from investment property 1s accounted for as described 1n accounting policy {f)

(m) Investments

The Group's ipvestments are intially and subsequently recognised at fair value through profit or loss, with all gains and losses
recognised within investment income 1n the statement of comprehenstve income  The fair values of quoted finanuial investments, which
represent the vast majority of the Group's investments, are based on the value within the ad-ask spread that 1s most representative of
fair value 1f the market for a financial investment 15 not active, the Group establishes fair value by using valuation techniques such as
recent arm’s length transactions, reference to sumlar listed 1nvestments, discounted cash flow models or option pricing models

The decision by the Group to designate 1ts investments at fair value threugh the profit and loss reflects the fact that the investment
portfolio 15 managed, and its performance evaluated, on a far value bass
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts

under International Financial Reporting Standards continued

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
The Group recogmses purchases and sales of mvestments on trade date The costs associated with investment transactions are included
within admimstration expenses m the statement of comprehensive income

(n) Dervative finanaal instruments

The Group uses derivative financal instruments within same umit linked funds, wrth each contract mitially and subsequently
recogmsed at fair value, based on observable market prices All changes in value are recogmsed within investment income 1 the
statement of comprehensive imncome

(o) Other recervables

Other receivables are imtially recognised at fair value and subsequently held at amortised cost less impairment losses, except for
renewal income which 1s beld at fair value The value of any impairment recognised is the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estmated future cash Aows, discounted at the original effective 1nterest rate See accounting policy
note p (Impairment policy) for information relating to the treatment of impaired amounts

(p) Impairment policy
Formal reviews to assess the recoverability of deferred acquisiion costs on msurance and investment contracts, the acquired value of

m-force business, renewal income and loans are carried out at each reporting date  The recoverabibity of such assets 1s measured and the
asset 15 deemed impaired if the projected future margins are less than the carrying value of the asset The carrying amounts of the
Group's other assets that are not carried at fair value are also reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there 15 any
mdication of impairment If there 15 any indication of wrecoverability or impairment, the asset’s recoverable amount 15 estimated based
an the present value of its estumated future cash flows

Imparrment losses are reversed — through the statement of comprehensive income —if there 1s a change 1n the esimates used to determine
the recoverable amonnt Such losses are reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depremation or amortisanion where applicable, if no vmparment loss had been recogmised

(g} Cash & cash equivalents
Cash & cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term hughly liquid investments, and bank

overdrafts to the extent that they are an mtegral part of the Group's cash management

Cash & cash equivalents held within unit inked and unat trust funds are classified at fair value through the profit and loss All other
cash & cash equivalents are classified as loans and recevables

(r) Provisions
Provisions are recogmised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events such that 1t 1s probable

that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can
be made Provisions are measured as the discounted expected future cash flows taking account of the risks and uncertaintees assocrated
with the speafic hability where appropriate

{s) Borrowings
Borrowings are measured initially at fair value, net of directly attributable transaction costs, and subsequently stated at amortised cost

The difference between the proceeds and the redemption value 1s recogmsed 1n the statement of comprehensive 1ncome over the
borrowing period on an effective interest rate basts Borrowings are recogmsed on drawdown and derecognised on repayment

(t) Other payables
Other payables are recognised imtally at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective mterest method

(1) Net asset value attnibutable to unit holders

The Group consolidates unit trusts m whach 1t holds more than 30% of the units and exercises control The third party interests in
these umit trusts are measured at fair value, since the underlying investment portfolios are managed on a fair value basis, and they are
presented in the balance sheet as net asset value attnbutable to unit holders Income attnbutable to the third party interests 1s
accounted for within mvestment income, offset by a corresponding change in mnvestment contract benefits
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(v) Employee benefits

(1) Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution personal pension plan for its employees Contributions to this plan are recognised as an
expense 1n the statement of comprehensive mcome as incurred The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contmbutions 1f the fund does nat hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current 2nd
prior penods

() Share-based payments

The Group cperates a number of share-based payment plans The fair value of equty instruments granted 1s recogmised as an expense
spread over the vesung period of the nstrument which accords with the period for wiuch related services are provided, witha
corresponding 1ncrease m equity m the case of equity settled plans The total amount to be expensed 15 determmned by reference to the
farr value of the awards at the grant date, measured using standard option pnicing models

At each reporting date, the Group revises s estimate of the number of equity mstruments that are expected to vest and 1t recogmses
the 1mpact of the rension of orrginal estimates, 1f any, mn the statement of comprehensive mcome, such that the amount recogmsed for
employee services are based on the number of shares that actually vest The charge to the statement of comprehensive 1come 1s not
revised for any changes in market vesting conditions

(w) Treasury shares

Where any Group company purchases the Company’s share capital, the consideration paid 1s deducted from equty attributable to
shareholders, as disclosed in the Treasury Shares reserve Where such shares are subsequently sold, reissued or otherwise disposed of,
any consideration recesved 15 mcluded 1n equrty attributable to shareholders, net of any durectly attributable incremental transaction
costs and the related income tax effects

(x) Foreign currency translation
The Group’s presentation and the company’s functional currency 1s pounds Sterhng

Foreign currency transactions are translated into sterling using the exchange rate prevaihing at the date of the transactions Monetary
assets and habilitres denominated 1n foreign currencies are translated uaing the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date and the ’
gain or losses on translation are recognised 1n the statement of comprehensive income

Non-monetary assets and liabilities which are held at hustorical cost are translated using exchange rates prevailing at the date of
transaction, those held at fair vaiue are translated using exchange rates ruling at the date on whach the fair value was determined

Cy) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported 1n a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker
The chief operating decsion maker, which 1s responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the cperatnng segments,
has been 1dentihed as the Board of the Company

(z) Current and non-current disclosure

Assets which are expected to be recovered or settled no more than twelve months after the reporting date are disclosed as current
within the notes to the accounts Those expected 1o be recovered or settled more than twelve months after the reporting date are
disclosed as non-current

Liabihities which are expected and due 1o be settled no more than twelve months after the reporting date are disclosed as current
within the notes to the accounts Those liabihities which are expected and due to be settled more than twelve months after the
reporung date are disclosed as non-current
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under International Financial Reporting Standards contiaued

1(x) ADOPTION OF IFRS 10 — IMPACT OF CONSOLIDATION OF UNIT TRUSTS
This new standard establishes the principles to determine whether one entity controls another, where such control exists the
controlling entity 1s required to consolidate the other entity in 1ts financal statements The Group has early adopted IFRS 10 with
effect from 1 January 2013 Umit trusts are now therefore being accounted for as a subsidiary when the Group holds more than 30% of

the units

+

Comparative financial information has been restated tollowing the early adoption of IFRS 10 The tables below show the effect on the
statement of financial poation, the statemnent of comprehensive 1ncome and the statement of cashflows There was no 1mpact on the

earnings per share calculation

Impact on Statement of Financial Position

31 December 1 January
Increase/(decrease) 2012 2012
£' Milhon £ Mathen
Assets
Investments
— Eques 2,481 2 1,562 9
— Fixed mcome secuntes 371 532
— Investment in Collective Investment Schemes {1,199 5) (690 5)
— Derivative Financral Instrurments — 15
Other recervables 177 270
Cash and cash equvalents 831 388
Total assets 14196 983 3
Liabilities
Financial habilities
— Dertvative financial mstruments 07 -
Other payables 16 16 8
Net asset value attributable to umt holders 1,418 7 976 5
Total lrabihities 1,419 6 933 3
Impact on Statement of Comprehens:ve Income Year Ended
31 December
Increase/(decrease) 2012
&' Muthon
Other investiment return 1690
Net income 1690
Net change 1n investment contract benefits {165 0)

Profit before tax
Tax attributable to pohicyholders’ returns

Profit for the Perlod
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Impact on Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended
31 December
2012 9
£ Malhion g
Changes 1n operating assets and habilities g
Increase in investinents (321 3} s
Increase in other receivables 93
Decrease m financial habilihes {excluding borrowmngs) 07
Increase in other payables (15 2)
Increase 1n net assets attributable to umt holders 442 2
Cash generated from operations 44 3
'}
Net cash generated from operating activities 443 s
Net increase 1n cash and cash equwalents 433 g
Cash & cash equivalents at 1 January 388 :.,-':
Cash & cash equivalents at 31 December 831 ?

2 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Judgements

The prumnary area in which the Group has applied judgement m applying accounting policies lies 1n the dassification of contracts
between mnsurance and investiment business Contracts with a signuficant degree of msurance risk are treated as insurance All other
contracts are treated as imvestment contracts The Group has also elected to treat all assets backing hnked and non umt hnked contracts
as fair value through profit or loss although some of the assets in question may ultimately be held to maturiy

Estimates

The principal areas in whuch the Group apphes accounting estumates are

— Deterpmmung the value of msurance contract habilrues

- Decxdmg the amount of management expenses that are treated as acquisition expenses

— Amortisation and recoverability of deferred acquisihon costs and deferred income

— Determunung the fair value, amortisation and recoverability of acquired in-force business
— Deterpumng the fair value hability to policyholders for capital losses in umt funds

— Determmmng the value of deferred tax assets
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Estimates are also applied 1n determining the amount of deferred tax asset recogmsed on unreheved expenses and the value of other
provisions

Measurement of insurance contract Irabilitres

The assurnptions used in the calculation of insurance contract liabilities that have a sgmficant effect on the statement of comprehenaive
mcorne of the Group are

— The lapse assumption, which 1s set prudently based on an mvestigation of experrence during the year

— The level of expenses, which 15 based on actual expenses in 2013 and expected long term rates

— The mortality and morbad:ty rates, which are based on the results of an investigation of experience during the year

— The assumed rate of investment return, which 1s based on current gilt yields

Greater detai on the assumptions apphed 15 shown 1n Note 20

Acquisition expenses

Certain management expenses vary with the level of new business and have been treated as acquisition costs Each line of costs has
been reviewed and its variabilrty to new business volumes estuntated on the basmis of the level of costs that would be curred 1f new
busmess ceased
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2 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES contmued
Amortisation and recoverability of Deferred Acquisition Costs (‘DAC’) and Deferred Income (‘DIR’)

Deferred acqusition costs on investment contracts are amortised on a straight-line basis over the expected hfetime of the underlying
contracts The expected hfetune of the contracts has been esumated from the experienced termination rates and the age of chients at
inception and maturity

Deferred income 1s amortised on a strarght line basis over the surrender penalty period as income 15 recogmised from the paliey

Deferred acqusinon costs and deferred income on nsurance contracts are amortised over the period during which the costs are
expected to be recoverable in accordance with the projected emergence of future margins

Deferred acqusihon costs relating to msurance and nvestment contracts are tested annually for recoverability by reference to
expected future mcome levels Future income levels are projected using assumptions consistent with those underlying our embedded

value calculation

Acquired in-force busmess

There have been no new business combinations generating acquired 1n-foree business during the year The acquired value of the
m-force busmess 15 amortised on a basis that reflects the expected profit stream anisung from the business acquired at the date of
acqmsiton This profit stream is estimated from the experienced termination rates, expenses of management and age of the clients
under the mdmvidual contracts as well as global estimates of investment growth, based on recent expenence at the date of acquisition

The acquired value of m-force business relanng to msurance and investiment contracts 15 tested annually for recoverability by reference
to expected future income levels

Valumng capital losses 1n unit funds
In hine with TAS 12, the Group has recogmsed a deferred tax asset in relatton to capital losses at the reporting date This asset has been
tested for impairment against the level of capital gains realistically expected to arse m future

Much of the benefit of the deferred tax asset on capital losses will be shared with palicyhalders The pohcyholder investment contract
lizbility has therefore heen increased to reflect the fair value of this additianal benefit The assumptions that have 2 significant effect an
the fair value of the liabihity are as follows

— The sssumed rate of investment return, which 1s based on current gt yields

— The lapse assumption, which 1s set prudently based on expenence during the year

— The assumed peried for development of capital gains, whuch 15 estimated from recent experience

Determining the value of deferred tax assets

In hine with IAS 12, the Group has recognised deferred tax assets for future tax benefits that will accrue The asset value has taken inte
consideration the likelihood of appropriate future income or gains aganst whach the tax asset can be utthsed [n particular future
mvestment 1ncome from the existing assets wall be sufhcient to utilise the unrelieved expenses and capital gains crystallising 1n the
umit hinked funds will utthse the capital losses Tax assets in relation to deferred income will be utihised as the underlying income

1s recogrused

3. SEGMENT REPORTING

IFRS 8 Operating Segments requires operating segments to be ident:fied on the basis of internal reports about components of the
Group that are regularly reviewed by the Board in order to allocate resources to the segment and to assess its performance

The Group’s reportable segments under IFRS 8 are therefore as follows

1 Life business — offering pensions, protection and investment preducts through the Group’s hife assurance subsidiaries,

2 Unit Trust business — offering umt trust investment products, including ISAs, through the St James’s Place Umt Trust Group,

3 Distribution business — the distmbution network for the St James’s Place hife and unit trust products as well as financial products
such as anmnties, mortgages and stakeholder pensions, from third party providers
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The figures for segment ncome provided to the Board i respect of the distribution business relate to the distribution of the products
of third party providers only The figures for segment profit provided to the Board take account of fees and commussions payable by the
ife business and umit trust business to the distribution business
@
4 Other — all other Group activitzes §
[«
o
]

Separate geographical segmental information 15 not presented since the Group does not segment rts business geographically, 1ts
customers being based and 1ts assets managed predommnantly in the United Kaingdom

The income, profit and asscts of these segments are sct out below

Segment Income i
Annual Premium Equivalents (‘APE’)
APE, being regular premiums plus one tenth of single premiums, 1s the imncome measure that 1s montored on a monthly basis by

the Board
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YearEnded = Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2013 2012+
£ Milhon £' Malhon
Life busiess 532.9 488 7
Umit Trust business 230.0 148 5
Distrnbution business 1023 106 1
Other business - —
Total AFPE 865.2 7433 o
Restatement to reconcile to IFRS basis g‘
Life business 5
Exclude investment business APE (330 5) (486 0y ?
Duflerence between insurance business APE and premium recawvable 588 63 4 E
Less insurance premtum tncome ceded to remsurers (54 3) (269 g
Fee income {management fees) 460.7 498 2 2
Net movement on deferred income 70.8 (43 5)
Investment mcome (prumarily in umt hinked funds) 4,886.3 3,016 5
Unit Trust business
Exclude unit trust APE (230.0) (148 5)
Fee income {(deahng profit and management fees) 1509 166 3
Net movement on deferred mncome 7.1 (3s1)
Investment income 03 03
Distribution business
Exclude distnbution APE (102.3) (106 1)
Fee and commission income recervable 3192 580
Other investment income 0.2 08
Other business
Income recervable 46 02
Investment income on third party holdings in consolidated unt trusts 939 2 5§55 3
Other investment income 51 38
Other operating income 25 12
Total adjustments 5,988 6 35169
Net mmcome — IFR§ 6,853 8 4,260 2

*  Restited 1o reflect the adoption of IFRS [0 Se« Note 1a

All segment 1ncome 1s generated by external customers and there are no segment income transactions between operating segments as
measured by APE
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3 SEGMENT REPORTING contimued
Segment Profit

Three separate measures of profit are monitored on 2 monthly bas:s by the Board These are European Embedded Value (‘EEV'), IFRS

(both pre-tax) and the post-tax cash result

EEV Operating Profit

EEV operatimg profit1s monttored on a monthiy basisby the Board The components of the EEV operating profit are included in more
detail 1n the Supplementary Information on EEV basis within the Annual Repert and Accounts on pages 166 to 176 A reconctliation of

EEV opcrating profit to IFRS profit before tax 15 shown below

L
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

2013 2012
£ Mallion £ Malbon
Life business 3657 2939
Unit Trust business 1308 826
Distribution business (61) 53
Other business (277) {159
EEV operating profit 4627 365 9
Investment return variance 344 2 150 4
Economic assumption changes 106 37
EEV profit before tax 8175 552 6
Adjustments to IFRS basis
Deduct amertisation of acquired value of in-force 32 32
Movement 1n life value of 1n-force (net of tax) (360 1) (273 4
Movement m unit trust value of in-force (net of tax) (122 8) (777
Tax of movement 1n value of in-force (140 7) 63 7)
Proftt before shareholder tax 1907 134 6
Tax attributable to policyholder returns 2705 117 2
[FRS profit before tax 461 2 251 8
Cash result Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
£ Mallion £’ Milhion
Life business 143 8 59 4
Unit Trust business 448 336
Dastrsbution business “#7 4{
Other business (151) (5 3)
Cash result after tax 168 8 917
IFRS adjustments (after tax)
Share option expense (78) 54
Deferred acquisition costs ('DAC’) '(629) 82 4
Deferred mcome {'DIR’) 679 (63 8)
Acquired value of in-force {'PVIF") (26) (2 5)
Sterling reserves 04 56
IFRS tax adjustments 265 © 9
IFRS profit after tax 150 3 107 1
Shareholder tax 0.4 2758
Profit before shareholder tax 1907 134 6
Policyholder tax 270 5 117 2
IFRS profit before tax 461 2 251 8
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IFRS segment result
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2013 2012 &
£ Mallion £ Million é
Life business g
-~ shareholder 170 6 1117 -
— policyholder tax gross up 2705 1172
Umt Trust business 53.9 335
Dastribution business (61) 53
Other business (277) {15 9)
IFRS profit before tax 461 2 251 8
y
=
Included within the EEV, IFRS profit before tax and past-tax cash result are the following ;
Year Ended Year Ended 5—
31 December 31 December ,L.:
203 2012 =
£ Malhion £ Million E
Shareholder interest income 7.3 56 2
Depreciation 16 23

Segment Assets
Funds under Management (FUM’)

FUM within the $t Jemes’s Place Group, rounded to the nearest £0 1 balhon, are monitored on a monthly basis by the Board “g
31 Decemhber 3i December g-«
2013 2012+ =
£ Mallion £' Mialhon a
Life business 34,100 0 27,300 0 %
Unut Trust business 10,200.0 7,500 0 s
Total FUM 44,300.0 34,800 0
Exclude thard party heldings in non-consolidated wnit trusts (1,6656) (2,089 5)
Add balance sheet hiabilities 1n unt linked funds 5456 499 8
Adjustments for other balance sheet assets excluded from FUM
DAC 888 8 971 6
PVIF 40.0 432
Computer software 87 11 7
Goodwill - 0
Property & equipment 58 &
Deferred tax assets 181.8 190 9
Fixed income securities 677 84 3
Collective investment schemes 5230 322 4
Rernsurance assets 64.2 38 6
Insurance and vestment contract recevables 499 46 5
Income tax assets - 852
Other recervables 2299 1931
Other recervables ehminated on consolidation (1519) (199 1)
Cash & cash equivalents 197 1 182 5
Other adjustments 543 “2
Total adjustments 1,039 3 3836
Total assets 45,339 3 35,183 6

*  Restated ta reflect the adeption of IFRS 10 See Nate 12
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4, FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 December

2013 2012

£ Malhon £ Million

Unst Trust management fees 131 8 106 4
Unit Trust dealing profit 19.1 599
Advice charges 250.8 —
Thard party fee and commssion 1ncome 730 58 2
Life company managernent fees 460 7 498 2
Movement in deferred income 779 (79 6)
Total fee and commuission 1ncome 1,013 3 643 1

5 INVESTMENT RETURN

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 December

2013 2012%

£ Mallion £’ Mallioa

Dividend income 455.6 4197
Interest 1ncome 22.5 228
Rental mncome 41.8 356
Unit hinked funds cross holding mvestment imcome 3581 262 9
Net realised gains 454.1 179 5
Net unrealised gains 3,5598 2,096 4
Income attributable to third party holdings 10 unit trusts 939 2 5553

Total investment return

5831.1 3,576 7

*  Restated toreflect the adoption of [FRS 10 See Note [a

6. EXPENSES
The following rtems are included withmn the expenses disclosed 1n the statement of comprehensive income

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

2013 2012
£ Mallion £ Mallion
Employee costs (see Note 7) 886 679
Deprecration 16 23
Revaluations g1 04
Amortisation of acquired value of in-force business 3.2 32
Amortisation of DAC 117 1 977
Amornsation of computer software 25 03
Deferral of DAC (34 3) (204 2)
Partner remuneration 4071 3070
Payment under operating leases 101 99
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of the parent Company and censolidated
financial statements 01 01
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for other services
— The audit of the Company’s subsidiaries 06 035
— Audit-related assurance services 01 01

— Non-audit related services
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7 EMPLOYEE COSTS

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 December

2013 2012

£ Mallion £' Millien

Wages and salaries* 669 525
Social security costs 89 60
Other pension costs in relation to defined contribution schemes 50 44
Cost of share awards and options 78 50
Total employee costs 886 679
Average number of persons employed by the Group dunnE the year 985 854

* During the year the wages and salanes disclosure has been expanded to include employee benefits 1o kind of £6 4 million (2012 —£6 5 muthon) with the comparative figure

having been represented to reflect this change

The above information includes Directors’ remuneration Detals of the Directors’ remuneration, share options, pension entitlements

and 1nterests in shares are disclosed in the Remuneration Report on pages 70 to 92

8 INCOME TAXES

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 3 Decermber
2013 2012
£ Million £ Mallion
UK corporation tax
— Current year charge 290 310
— Adjustrent 1n respect of prior year 25 (13)
QOverseas taxes
— Current year charge 6.8 76
— Adjustment 1o respect of prior year - (0 3}
383 37¢
Deferred tax on unrealised capital gains and losses i vt inked funds 2781 94 5
Deferred tax on unrehieved expenses 22 79"
Deferred tax on pensions business losses 64 _
Deferred tax on Group Company capttal losses (279) -
Deferred tax charge on other items
— Current year charge (14 2) 152
— Adjustment 1n respect of prior year - (awn
Effect on deferred tax of change in tax rate (120) (8 2)
2326 107 7
Total tax charge for the period 2709 1447
Attributable to
— policyholders 2705 1172
— shareholders L 04 2758
2709 144 7
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8 INCOME TAXES contmued

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 December

Deferred tax 2013 2012
£ Milhion £ Million
Balance at 1 January 78.1 (29 &)
Charge through the consohdated statement of comprehensive income 2326 107 7
Ansing on acqusttions during the year 41 _
Balance at 31 December 314.8 781

The deferred tax components to which movements above relate to are disclosed 1 Note 14 Deferred Tax Assets and Note 25 Deferred
Tax Liabilities

Inctuded within the deferred tax current year charge 1s 2 credst of £1 7 milion (2012 £0 1 muflion credit) relating to share based
payments Dretails of share based payments are disclosed in Note 31 Share-based Payments

The change 1n the corporation tax rate from 23% to 21% effective from 1 April 2014 and from 21% to 20% effective from 1 April 2015
have been incorporated mnto the deferred tax balances and 1s quantihed 1n the reconahation of the tax charge below and on page 123

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

Reconcihation of tax charge 2013 2012
£ Milhon £’ Milion
Profit before tax 461.2 251 8
Tax at 23 25% (2012 24 5%) 107 2 617
Effects of
Overseas withholding tax in unit hinked funds - 61
Overseas rates of tax (2.4) (14)
Deferred tax 1n respect of unit linked funds - 475
Shareholder deduction for policyholder tax 207 6 382
Policyhelder tax rate differential - 21
Group company capital losses (27 9) —
Share options (2.7) —
Disallowable expenses 14 —
Adjustment 1n respect of prior year 0.8 (2 6)
Change 1n tax rate (120) 82)
Other adjustments (11) 09
Total tax charge for the year 2709 144 7

The policyhalder tax rate differential velates to the effect of the difference between the sharehnlder tax rate of 23 25% (2012 24 5%)
and the policyholder tax rate of 20%
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Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
Reconciliation of tax charge 2013 2012
£ Million &' Mihon
Prafit before tax 461.2 2518 g
‘Tax attributable to policyholders’ returns¥ (270 5) (117 2) E
Profit before tax attributable to sharchelders’ returns 1907 134 6 ]
Shareholder tax charge at corporate tax rate of 23 25% (2012 24 5%) 44 3 23 25% 330 24 5%
Adjustments-
Tax regrme dafferences
Difference due to Life Insurance tax regime (‘Deferred Income Reserve”) - 21
Dafference due to overseas subsidiaries {24 (14
24 (1 3%0) 07 0 5% -
Market related . :_::
Dafference due to Life Insurance tax regime ('UCG’) - 40 g
- - 40 3 0% P
Other E‘
Creation of deferred tax asset on Group Company capital losses (27.9) - z
Adjustment in respect of prior year 08 (2 &} e
Share options 2.7) -
Dnsallowable expenses 1.4 -
Other L)) 06
(29.5) (15 5%) (20 (1 5%)
Change 1 tax rate (120)  (63%) ©2)  (61%) g
3
Shareholder tax charge 0.4 02% 275 20 4% =
Policyholder tax charge 270.5 117 2 k-
Total tax charsc for the year 2709 1447 g
o
g

*  Profit before tax attributable ta policyholder returas 15 equal to the policybolder tax charge

9 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
During the year the Group acqured the following subsidiaries in ine wath the Group'’s strategie objective of growing the Partnership

Subsidiary undertalang Principal activity % Shareholding Date of acquisition
Dellkirk Lid Holding Company 100 22 January 2013
BFS Financial Services Limited*** IFA" 00 22 January 2013
EW Smuth & Co Independent Financial Advisers Limated*##* IFA" 100 22 January 2013
LP Holdco Limited Helding Company 43 3° 24 January 2013
Lansdown Place Group Holdings Limited*** Holding Company 924 24 January 2013
LP Wealth Management Limited#+* IFA" 24 January 2013
Lansdown Place Financral Management Ltd#** TFA" 100 24 January 2013
LP Auto Enrolment Solutions Lumited*** Auto Enrolment 100 24 January 2013
Chapman Hunter Group Limited Holding Company 100 1 March 2013
Chapman Associates Limited*#% IFA" 100 1 March 2013

* Independent Financual Adviser

** In all cases the percentage shareholding 1s equal to voung rights except for LP Holdeo Limitad where 43 3% aquity share capital 15 beld but 60% of the voting interests of the
company are held .

***Pre-exssung subsidiary of the acquired holding company
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9 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS contirued

The acquisitions contributed £4 7 million to revenue and 2 £0 4 milhion profit before income tax for the year between the acquisihon
dates and the statement of financial position date Due to the acquistions prepaning financial statements up to the date of purchase 1t 1s
nat practicable for the Group to caleulate the revenue and profit or loss of the combined entities for the current reporting period as
though the acquisition date for all business combinations had been as of the beginning of the annual reporting period

The net assets, farr value adjustments and consderation for these acquisitions are summarised below (all values shown as at their
acquisition dates)

Farr value
Book value adjustments Fair value
£ Mallion £ Malhon £' Miallion
Financial assets 47 i03 150
Cash and cash equivalents 13 - 13
Financral habilities (6 8) - (6 B)
Total (0 8) 103 9.5
Consideration
Cash consideration 77
Deferred consideraticn 13
Contingent consideration 05
Total consideration 9.5
The non-controlling interest 15 calculated using the equity methed i
At acquisition
£ Mathon
Fair value of non-controlling mterest 02

The contingent consideration was payable if certamn performance targets were met, being based on the indvidual Partner
performances As at the financial posiion date all the deferred and contingent consideration has been paid or agreed to be pad 1n full
with no changes to the imtially recognised amount

10 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

203 2012
Pence Pence
Basic earnings per share 374 215
Diluted earnings per share 367 212
The earnings per share (‘EPS’) calculations are based on the following figures
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
' 2013 2012
£ Mathon £' Mathon
Earnings
Profit after tax { for both basic and diluzed EPS}) 190 3 107 1
Werghted average number of shares
Werghted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue ( for basic EPS) 509 4 497 7
Adjustments for ouistanding share options 92 85
Weighted average number of ordinary shares { for diuted EPS) 518 6 506 2
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11 DIVIDENDS
The following dividends have been paid by the Group

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2013 2012 2013 01
Pence per Penice per £ Milhon £' Mallion

Share Share
Final drvidend in respect of previous financial year 6.39 4 80 326 239
Interim dividend in respect of current hnanaal year 6.38 425 327 21 4
Total dividends 12 77 905 653 4513

The Mirectors have recommended a final dividend of 9 58 pence per share (2012 6 32 pence) Thisamounts to £45 4 million
(2012 £32 6 mlhon) and wall, subject to shareholder approval at the Annual General Meeting, be paid on 16 May 2014 to those
shareholders on the register as at 11 Apnil 2014

12. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer
software
& other
Lafe Life Unst Trust Acqurred speafic
busmess business business valueof  software
—insurance —investment —investment m-force develop-  Customer
DAC DAC DAC Total DAC business ments list Total
£ Miallion £ Malhon £ Mudlion £ Mihkon £ Midhon £Million £ Milion £ Milhion
Cost
At | January 2012 103 6 964 8 245 3 1,313 7 73 4 87 09 1,396 7
Addraons £l 157 4 437 204 2 - EN 24 2102
At 31 December 2012 106 7 1,122 2 2890 1,517 9 73 4 123 33 1,606 5
At 1 January 2013 106 7 1,122 2 2890 1,517 9 73 4 123 33 1,606 9
Additions 05 23.8 10.0 343 - - - 343
Disposals - —_ - — - (05) - (05)
Reclassification - - - - - - 33 (3:3)
At 31 December 2013 107 2 1,146 0 2990 1,552 2 734 118 - 1,637 4
Accumulated amortisation
At | January 2012 86 2 294 8 67 6 448 6 270 03 - 4759
Charge for the year 60 731 18 6 977 32 03 03 101 5
At 31 December 2012 922 367 9 862 546 3 302 06 013 577 4
At 1 January 2013 922 3679 862 546 3 302 06 03 5774
Charge for the year 135 822 214 1171 32 25 - 1228
Reclassification - - - - - - (0 3) (0 3)
At 31 December 2013 1057 4501 107 6 663 4 334 31 - 699.9
Carrying value
At ]anual_'y 2012 17 4 670 0 1777 865 1 46 4 8 4 09 920 8
At 31 December 2012 145 75413 202 8 971 6 432 117 30 1,029 §
At 31 December 2013 15 6959 191 4 888 8 400 8.7 - 9375
Current 879
Non-current 8496
9375

Qutstanding amortisation perrod
At 31 December 2012 6 years 14 years 14 years 13years  4years 4 years

At 31 December 2013 6years l4years 14 years 12 years 4 years
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts

under International Financial Reporting Standards contnued

12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS continued

Amortisation of deferred acquisition costs 15 charged within the fees, commmssion and other acqusnition costs hine 1n the statement of
comprehensive mncome The amortisation of the acquired value of in-force business, 15 charged within other operating expenses with
the amon tisation of computer software and customer Lst charged within administration expenses Amortisation profiles are

reassessed annually

13 PROPERTY & EQUIPMENT

Fuxtures,
Fitangs,
Computers &
Office
Equpment Land Total
£ Mallion £ Mialhon £ Milhon
Cost
At 1 January 2012 323 14 337
Additions 06 03 09
Revaluation - (0 4) 04
At 31 December 2012 329 i3 342
At 1 Jaouary 2013 329 1.3 342
Additions 37 02 39
Revaluation - (1) (0 1)
At 31 December 2013 366 1.4 38.0
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2012 283 — 283
Charge for the year 23 — 23
At 31 December 2012 3086 - 306
At 1 January 2013 306 - 306
Charge for the year 16 - 1.6
At 31 December 2013 322 — 322
Net book value
At 1 Janwary 2012 40 14 54
At 31 December 2012 23 13 16
At 31 December 2013 44 14 58
Current 17
Non-current 4.1
58
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14 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
31 December 31 Decemnber
* 2013 2012
£ Milhon £' Mullion g‘
Life business — unreheved expenses 737 759 §
Life business — net capital losses in unut hinked funds — 37 E
Life business — pension business - 64
Life business — deferred income 23.7 402
Unut Trust business — deferred 1ncome 48.2 571
Caprtal losses on hquidations 27.9 -
Other 83 76
Total deferred tax assets 1818 190 9
Current 368 425
Non-current 1450 148 4
181 8 1809

Appropriate 1nvestment income, gains or profits are expected to arise aganst which the tax assets can be vulised In particular, future
mvestrent income from the existing assets will be sufficient to utthse the unreheved expenses and capital gains erystallising the
umit linked funds wall utilise the captal losses Tax assets in relation to deferred income will be utilised as the underlying income

15 recogrused

At the reporting date there were unrecogmsed deferred tax assets of £01l (2012 £0 2 mulhon)

SHAW IS FOLUEDULY

o

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTY “5'

a1l

31 December 31 December @:

2013 2012 ]

£ Mithon &' Mallion E

Balance at 1 January 597.6 550 9 g
Addrhions 194 1 128 9
Disposals (67.3) (55 8)
Changes 1n fair value 83 (26 4)
Balance at 31 December 7327 5978

Investment property 15 held within unit linked funds and 1s considered current

The rental income and direct operating expenses recognised in the statement of comprehensive mcome 1n respect of investment

properues are set out below All expenses relate to property generating rental income

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 3t December

2013 2012

£ Malhon £" Malhion

Rental income 418 396
Direct operaling expenses 51 54

At the year end contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment property amounted to £0 1 mulbon
(2012 £0 1 mlhon) and to dispose of investment property amounted to £ml mulhon (2012 £20 0 mulhion)
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts

under International Financial Reportlng Standards continued

16. ASSETS HELD TO COVER LINKED LIABILITIES AND THIRD PARTY HOLDINGS IN UNIT TRUSTS

Included within the balance sheet are the following assets and habihities which represent the net assets held to cover hnked habihires
and those attributable to third party holdings i umt trusts ('UTMI’) The difference between these assets and habibties and those
shown 1n the consolidated balance sheet represents assets and habilities held outside the umt linked funds and the UTMI

31 D \- D h
2013 2012

£' Malhon £' Milhon
Assets
Investment property 7327 5976
Investments
—Equities 29,614 8 21,472 8
— Fixed income securines 5,897 9 5,032 6
—Investment in Collective Investment Schernes 27183 2,587 1
— Currency forwards 97.7 S77
— Interest rate swaps 86 16
— Coantracts for differences 29.4 200
— Other dertvatives 72 68
Other recervables 324.1 333 3
Other recervables ehiminated on consolidation 1519 199 1
Cash & cash equivalents 3,648.6 2,897 6
Total assets 43,231 2 33,206 2
Liabilities
Financial habihities _
— Currency forwards 494 342
— Interest rate swaps 11.8 15
— Contracts for differences 24.8 159
— Other derivatives 1.8 i3
Other payables 241 6 2990
Other payables eliminated on consolidation 2162 147 9
Total habilhities 545.6 499 8
Net assets held to cover linked hiabilities and third party holdings 1o unit trusts 42,685 6 32,706 4

*  Restated to reflect the adoption of IFRS 10 See Note 1a

Net assets held to cover hnked lizbalities and third party holdings in unit trusts are considered to have a maturity of up to one year smce
the corresponding unit habihties are repayable and transferable on demand

31 December 31 December

2013 2012*

£’ Million £' Milkon

Investment contracts 33,717 5 27,147 4
Net asset value attributable to unit holders 8,535 4 5,293 5
Insurance contract liabilities 3950 3365
Consolidation adjustments 377 {71 0)
Net habihities held to cover linked habilities and third party holdmgs tn unit trusts 42,685 6 32,706 4

* Restated to reflect the adoption of IFRS 10 See Note 1a

‘
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17. OTHER RECEIVABLES

31 December 31 December
2013 2012+
£ Mafhion £' Mailion
S8t James’s Place Partnershup loans 144.2 1399
Prepayments 25.0 150
Advanced Partner remuneration 222 212
Unit hinked funds and UTMI (including outstanding security sales) 341 3333
Umt Trust deahing receivables 40 33
Renewal income 16.6 -
Muscellaneous 17.9 13 4
Total other recervables 554.0 5261
Current 432.2 403 5
Non-current 121.8 122 6
554.0 £§261

*  Restated to reflect the adaption of IFRS 10 Seg Nate 1a

The fair valuc of loans and receivables included in other recervables 1s not matenially different trom amortised cost St James's Place
Partnership loans are interest bearing (hnked to Bank of England base rate plus a margm), repayable on demand and secured aganst the
future renewal income streams of that Partner The 5t james's Place Partnership loans are shown netofa £3 8 mullion provision

(2012 £6 7 mullion) During the year £0 8 mullion of the provision was utihsed (2012 £0 5 mullion addition) and £2 1 mallion

(2012 £0 S mulbion) was written off to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Movement in renewal income
31 December

2013

£' Mallon

At ] January 2013 _
Redassificabion 30
Additions 167
Revaluation {3.1)
Total renewal income 16 6

The key assumptions used for the assessment of the fair value of the renewal mcome as follows
31 December

2013
Lapse rate¥* 15.0%
Discount rate 6 2%

*  Future income streams are projected making use of persistency assumptions derived from the Company's own experience or, where msufficient data exists, from external
mdustry expenence These assumptions are reviewed on an annual basis

These assumptrons have been used for the analysis of each busmess combination classified wathin renewal income

18 CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

31 December 31 December

2013 2012#

£ Mallion £ Milhon

Cash at bank 195 5 182 5
Cash held by third parties 1.6 —
Cash & cash equivalents held outside umt hinked and umt trust funds 1971 182 5
Balances held within unit inked and unit trust funds 36486 2,897 8
Total cash & cash equivalents 3,845 7 3,080 1

*  Restated to reflect the adaptian of IFRS 10 See Note Ia

All cash & cash equivalents are considered current
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts

under International Financial Reportlng Standards continued

19 INSURANCERISK

Insurance risk arises from inherent uncertainties as to the occurrence, amount and timing of msurance liabihties The Group assurnes
msurance risk by 1ssung insurance contracts under which the Group agrees to compensate the client {or other beneficiary) 1f a specified
future event {the insured event) occurs The Group 1nsures mortality and morbidity nisks but has no longevity nisk as we have never
written any anmuity business The Group has a medwum appetite for insurance risk, only actively pursuing it where financally
heneficial, or in suppart of strategic objectives

Rask Drescription Management
Underwriting Farlure to price appropriately fora The Group ceased wrihng new protection business in April 2011
nisk, or the mmpact of antr-selechion Expenence 1s momtored regularly For most business the premmum

or deduction rates can be re-set Durmg the year the Group fully
rewsured the remamng UK msurance risk

Epiderc/disaster An unusually large number of claims ~ Protection 1s provided through reinsurance During the year the
amﬁlg from e smgle madent or event  Group fully reinsured the remaming UK 1nsurance nisk

Expense Adpumstration costs exceed expense  Admunistration is outsourced and a tanff of costs 15 agreed The
allowance contract 1s momtored regularly to rationahse costs ncurred Internal

overhead expenses are monitored and closely managed
Retention Loss of future profit due to more Retention of insurance contracts 15 closely momtored and
1 clients than anticipated withdrawing  unexpected expertence 1s imvestigated Retention expenence has

therr funds continued m hne with assumptions durmg 2013

20 INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES

2013 2012

£' Mallon £' Mallion

Balance at 1 January 424 0 394 0
Movement 1n unit hnked habilities 585 287

Movement 1 non-umt hnked habilities

— New business (03) 03
- Existing business 63 36
— Other assumption changes (10 3) 08
— Experience variance (11 8) {28
‘Total movement in non-umt linked habilxties (16 1) 13
Balance at 31 December 466 4 424 0
Umit hoked 3950 336§
Non-unmt hnked 71 4 8758
466 4 424 0

Current 1007 835
MNon-current 3657 334 5
466 4 424 0
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Unit linked habilities move as a function of net cash flows into policyholder funds and underlying investment performance of

those funds

Assumptions used 1n the calculation of Labilities
The principal assumptions used 1n the calculation of the habilities are

Assumption

Description

Interest rate

Mortality

Morhidity
— Critical Illness

Morbudity

— Permanent Health Insurance

Expenses

Persistency

The valuation interest rate 1s calculated by reference to the long term gilt yield at 31 Decemnber
2013 and the speafic gits backing the habilities The specific rates used are between 2 5% and
3 3% depending on the tax regime (1 3% and 2 5% at 31 December 2012)

Mortahty 15 based on Company experience and 15 set at 72% of the TM/F92 tables with an

addiaenal loading for stnokers There has been no change since 2006

Morbidity 15 based on Company experience There has been no change during 2013 Sample

annual rates per £ for a male non-smoker are

Rate
Age 2013 2012
25 0000760 0 000760
35 0001334 0001334
45 0003182 0003189

Morbadity 15 based on Company experience There has been no change durmg 2013 Sample

annua) rates per £ mcome benefit pa for 2 male non-smaker are

Rate
Age 2013 2012
25 000548 0 00548
35 0 01447 001447
45 003138 003138

Contract liabilines are calculated allowing for the actual costs of admunistration of the business
The assumption has been amended to allow for changes to the underlying admimstration costs

Annual Cost

Produet 2013 2

Protection business £35 69 £34 30

Allowance 15 made for a prudent level of lapses within the calculation of the liabilities The rates
have not changed 11 2013 Sample annual lapse rates are

Lapses

2012 & 2013 Year 1 Year S Year 10

Protection business 7% 9% 8%
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts

under International Financial Reporting Standards continued .

20 INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES continued

Sensitrvity analysis

The table below sets out the senaitrvity of the profit on insurance business and net assets to changes 1n key assumptions The levels of
sensitwvity tested are cons:stent with those proposed in the EEV principles and 1 eflect reasonably possible levels of change it the
assumptions The analysis reflects the change in the vanable/assemption shown while all ather vaniables/assumptians are left
unchanged In practice vartables/assumptions may change at the same time, as some may be correlated (for example, an increase in
interest rates may also result in an increase in expensesif the increase reflects igher inflation) 1t should alsa be noted that 1 same
instances sensiivities are non-hinear The sensttivity % has been apphed to proporaion the assumption e g application of a 10%
sensitivaty to a withdrawal assumption of 8% will reduce 1t to 7 2%

Change 1n Change1in
profit profit Change m Change 1
Changen before tax before tax net assets net assets
Senauvity analyns assumption 2013 2012 2013 2012
% E Million £ Mathen £ Million &' Million
Withdrawal rates -10% @1-1) 47 {10 (38)
Expense assumphions -10% 1.2 13 1.0 11
Mortality/morbidity -5% 00 (29) 0.0 {2 3)

A change 1n interest rates will have no materia] impact on msurance profit or net assets
21, REINSURANCE ASSETS

31 December 31 December

2013 2012
£ Mallion £ Milhion
Remsurers’ share of insurance contract habihities
— Long term imsurance contract hability 605 35 7
— Claims outstanding 37 29
Remnsurance assets 64.2 386
Current 161 10 2
Non-current 48.1 28 4
64 2 386
During the year the Group fully remsured 1ts remaimng UK protection book of business
A reconcihation of the movement 1n the net reinsurance balance 15 set out below
2013 2012
£ Malhon £ Million
Reinsurance assets at 1 January 386 390
Remnsurance component of net change 1 claims provision 08 0 3)
Remnsurance component of change 1n insurance liabilities 24.8 01
Relnsurance assets at 31 December 642 38 6

The overall impact of reinsurance on the profit for the year was a net charge of £8 2 milhon (2012 charge of £6 3 mullion)
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22. OTHER PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABEILITIES

Office Other
Endowments  resiructuring provisions Total
£ Malhon £ Milhon £ Mallion £ Million
At 1 January 2013 0.5 10 717 9.2
Utihised/released during the year (0.1) (10) - (11
Addrtional provisions - - 16 16
At 31 December 2013 04 - 93 97
Current - — 60 60
Non-current 0.4 - 33 3.7
0.4 - 93 97

!

The endowments proviston relates to the cost of redress for mortgage endowment complaints The provision 1s based on estimates of
the total nwmber of complaints expected to be upheld, the average cost of redress and the estimated timing of settlement

The office restructuring provision represented the expected amounts payable under a number of non-cancellable operanng leases for
office space that the Group did not occupy The provision was based on estimates of the rental payable until the approximate dates on
which the Group expected exther to have sublet the affected space or to have reached break dauses within the relevant

lease agreements

The other provisions represent a reserve in respect of self insured habilities

As more fully set out 1n the summary of principal risks and uncertanties on pages 36 and 37, the Group could 1n the course of 1ts
business be subject ta legal proceedings and/er regulatory activity Should any such materal circumstance arise, a provision would be
estabhshed based on the Board’s best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation Whle there can be no assurances, the
Directors do not beheve, based upon information currently available to them, there 15 any such actmvty that would have a material
adversc effect on the Group’s financial position

23 INVESTMENT CONTRACT BENEFITS

- 2013 2012+

£ Malhon £' Milbon

Balance at 1 January 27,147 4 22,2273
Depasits 4,612 3 4,225 5
Withdrawals (2,091 7y (1,667 1)
[nvestment contract benefits (principally representing 1nvestiment expense/mcome) 5,449.4 34152
Less mvestment contract benefits attributable to fund deductions (460.7) (498 2)
Less investment contract benefits attmbutahle to third party holdings m umt trusts (939 2) (555 3)
Balance at 31 December 33,7175 27,147 4
Current 2,528 8 2,036 1
Non-current 31,188,7 25,111 3

33,7175 27,1474

# Restated to veflect the adoption 2f IFRS 10 See Note 1a
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts

under International Financial Reporting Standards continued

24, BORROWINGS
31 December 31 December
2013 012
- £ Million £ Million
Bank loan 98.7 07
Current 17 07
Non-current 940 700
98 7 707

During the year pew loans of £10 0 million with Bardlays Bank ple (variable interest rate, repayable aver hive years), £10 0 million with
Santander UK plc (variable interest rate, repayable over three years) and £10 0 milhon with Metro Bank ple (vanable interest rate,
repayable over 10 years) were agreed, 1n addition to the £45 0 mullion loan from Barclays Bank plcand a £25 0 mullion loan from Royal
Bank of Scotland ple agreed i the prior year, in order to continue to finance loans from the Group to members of the St James's Place
Partnershup The Partners’ loans are secured against the future renewal income streams of that Partner

Bank loans also includes £750,000 (2012 £750,000) from Bank of Scotland which 15 secured on property disclosed in Note 13 to
the accounts

The Group also puarantees £103 6 mullion (2012 £89 6 milhon) of direct loans from Bank of Scotland and £1 2 million (2012 £n1]) of
direct loans from Metro Bank plc te members of the St James’s Place Partnership drawn under total facithties of £125 0 mallion {2012
£125 0 milhon) and £20 0 malhon (2012 £ml) respectvely In the event of default of any indwidual Partner loan the Group guarantees
to repay the cutstanding balance of that loan These Partners’ loans are secured against the future renewal mcome streams of that
Partner As the Company’s guarantee 1s contingent, these loans are not shown as a financal hability under borrowing

The fair value of the outstanding bank loans are not materially different from amartised cost

25 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

31 December 31 December

2013 2012

£ Mallion £ Mullion

On deferred acquisition costs 168 0 214 5
On acquired value of in-force business 80 99
In respect of unit linked funds 3141 407
Other 65 39
Total deferred tax hiabilities 496.6 2690
Current 617 291
Non-current 4349 2399
496 6 2690

26 DEFERRED INCOME
31 December 3] December

203 2012

£ Mallion £ Malbion

Life business 297 3 368 2
Unit Trust business 2413 248 3
Total deferred income 5386 616 5
Current 1196 127 6
Non-current 4190 488 5
5386 6165
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27. OTHER PAYABLES
31 December 31 December
2m3 2012+
£ Mallion £ Malbion
Accruals 742 58 4
Ut Trust dealing payable 468 46 9
Umit hnked funds and UTMI (including outstanding security purchases) 2416 2991
Miscellaneous 768 314
Total other payables 4394 435 8

*  Restated to reflect the adoption of IFRS 10 See Note 1a
All other payable balances are considered current
The fair value of financial liabrlities 1n other payables 1s not materially different from amortised cost

28 FINANCIAL RISK

Risk management objectives and risk policies

The Group seeks to manage risk through the operation of unit inked business whereby the policyholder bears the financial rusk
In addition, shareholder assets are invested 1n highly rated investments

Under IFRS 7, the Group 1s required to analyse their exposure to the following risks
— Credit risk

— Liqudity rsk

— Market nsk

— Currency risk

Credit risk 1s the risk of loss due to a debtor’s non-payment of a loan or other hne of credit Credit visk also arises from heldings of
cash and cash equivalents, deposits and formal loans with banks and financral institutions The Group has adopted a risk averse approach
to such risk and has a stated policy of not actively purswing or accepting credit risk except when necessary to support other objectives

Risk Description Management
Shareholders’ assets Loss of assets Shareholder funds are predomimnantly invested 1n AAA rated umtised
. money market funds and deposits with approved banks Maxamum

counterparty lumts are set for each company within the Group and
aggregate lmuts are also set at a Group level

Investment matching of Loss of value of assets These Liabilities are matched by fixed interest securiies with munimum

non-linked habiities AAA credit ratings or UK Government Gilts, maximum counterparty
Lxmuts for such heldings are again set for each company within the
Group and at an aggregate Group level

Remsurance Fallure of counterparty or Credit ranngs of potential reinsurers must meet or exceed
counterparty unable to meet munimum speated levels Consideration is alsa given to size,
habilities risk concentratons/ exposures and owpership in the selection of

rewsurers The Group also seeks to divermfy its remnsurance credst risk
through the use of a spread of remnsurers

Partner loans and advances Inability of Partners to repay loans  Loans and advances are managed m lne with the Group’s secured
or advances from SJP lending policy Loans are secured on the future renewals” income

stream expected from a Partner’s portfolic and loan advances vary
in relation to the projected future mcome of the relevant Partmer
Qutstanding balances are regularly reviewed and assessed on a
conservative bams Supportis provided to help Partners manage therr
business approprately Appropriate provision 1s made where there 1s
objective evidence of imparrment
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts

under International Financial Reporting Standards contimued

28. FINANCIAL RISK contmued
Liquidity risk s the risk that the Group, although solvent, either does not have available sufficient financral resources to enable 1t to
meet 1ts obligations as they fall due, or can secure such resources only at excessive cost The Group 13 averse to hqudity risk and seeks

to munimise this risk by not actively pursuing it except where necessary to support other objectives

Risk

Descrpuon

Management

Cash or expense
requrement

A sigmaficant cash or expense

requirement needs to be met at short

notice

All free assets are mvested i cash or cash equivalents and the cash
posihion and forecast are momtored on a monthly basis Also, the Group
maintains a margin of free assets m excess of the mummum required
solvency capital within its regulated ennnes

Market risk 1s the impact a fall 1n the value of equity or other asset markets may have on the business The Group adopts a sk averse
approach to market risk, wrth a stated solvency policy of not actively pursuing or accepting market risk except where necessary to
support other objectives However, the Group accepts the risk that the fall in equity or other asset markets will reduce the level of
annual management charge income derived from policyholder assets and the risk of lower future prohts

The table below summarses the main market risks that the bumness 1 exposed to and the methods by which the Group seeks to

mitigate them

Ruisk Descripuien Management

Chent habiities As a result of 2 reduction i equity Thes resk 15 substantially mitigated by the Group’s strategic focus en
values, the Group may be unable to  umt-linked business, by not providing guarantees to chents on polcy
meet chent habihnties values and by the matching of assets and habilites

Tax In adverse market conditions, when  The tax postion 1s momtored closely, in particular the size and sources
the Group 1s realising investment of relevant ncome streams
losses rather than gamns, the working
of the I-E tax regume can lead to
short-term capital meffiaences,
mcluding the deferral of the cash
benefit arisimg from tax relief
on expenses

Retention Loss of future profit on mvestment Retention of mvestment contracts 1s closely monitored and unexpected

contracts due to more chients than

EXPErience variances are mvesugated Retenton has remamed

anticipated withdrawing thesr funds,  consistently strong throughout 2013, despite the challenging economic
particularly as a result of poor environment and volatlity, and fund surrender rates have remaned low
mvestment performance atc 5% !

New Business

Poor performance in the financial
markets 1n absolute terms, and
relative to inflation, leads to
exasting and future clients rejecnng
investment in longer term assets

The benefit of longer term equity investment 1o a range of riskier
financial assets 15 fundamental to our business model Advice and
marketing remain valid even when market values fall, however, greater
artention 1s required to support and give confidence to exisang and
future clients in such arcumstances, and this 13 taken account of by the
Group in 1ts actvrties

Currency risk

The Group 14 not subject to any sigmficant currency itk since all materal shareholder inancral assets and financial lrabilities are

denominated 1 Sterling
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Categonies of financial assets and financial habilities
The categories and carrying values of the financial assets and financial habihties held 1n the Group’s balance sheet are surmmarised 1n the

table below
Fmanacral Financial
assets at habilizesat Financral
fair value fatr value habihties
through through measured at
profit  Available for Loans and profit amortised
31 December 2013 and loss® sale recervables and loss™ cost Total
£ Mathon £ Milhen £ Mallion £ Milhen £ Mallion £ Milhion
Finaneial Assets and Iovestment Properties
Investment properties 7327 732.7
Equities 29,614 8 29,614 8
Fixed mcome securities 5,965 7 5,965 7
Investment m Collective Investment Schemes 3,244.3 3,244 3
Dernvative financial instruments 142.9 142 9
Other vecewvables®
— St James’s Place Partnership loans 144.2 144.,2
— Renewal 1ncome 16 6 - 16.6
— Other 346 0 346.0
Total other receivables 166 490 2 506 8
Cash & cash equivalents 3,648.6 ! 1971 3,8457
Total financial assets and investment
properties 43,3490 166 6873 44,0529
Financial Liabilities
Investment contract benefits 33,7175 33,717.5
Borrowings 987 928 7
Derrvative financial instruments 878 878
Other payables 439 4 439.4
Net asset value attributable to unit holders 8,535.4 B,535.4
Total financral habihties 42,340.7 5381 42,878.8
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts

under International Financial Reporting Standards contmued

28. FINANCIAL RISK continued

Financial Financial
assets at liabnhities at Financial
fair value fair value lialkties
through threugh, measured at
pmﬁt Loans and rofit amortised
31 December 2012% and losst™ recervables and loss™" cost Total
£ Millien & Mullion £ Malhion £ Million £' Mallion
Financial Assets
Equities 21,472 8 21,472 8
Fixed mcome securities 51170 5,117 0
Investment 1n Collective Investment Schemes 2,509 6 2,909 8
Dervative financmal instruments 86 1 861
Other recervables®
— St James's Place Partnershop loans 1399 1399
— Other 3500 150 0
Total other recervables 439 9 489 9
Cash & cash equivalents 2,8976 182 5 3,080 1
Total financial assets 32,4831 672 4 33,155 5
Frnancial Liabilities
Investment contract benefits 27,147 4 27,147 4
Borrowings 707 707
Dervative financial instruments 529 529
Other payables 435 8 435 8
Net asset value attributable to unut holders 52935 5,293 §
Total financial lhaabilitzes 32,493 8 506 5 33,000 3

*  Restated to reflect the adoption of JFRS 10 See Note 12

(1) All financial assets and Liabiltues st farr value through profit or loss are designated as such upon 1nitial recognition
(2) Other financal assets exclude prepayments and unearned commission from other receivables

The carrying value of the umt linked imvestrment contract liabilhes may differ from the amount cantractually required to pay at
maturrty Maturity valucs of the inancial hiabilitses vary with future palicyholder mvestment and withdrawals as well as ivestment
return, coupled with the impact of capital losses in the funds The contractual value required to be pad to pohcyholders as at

31 Dceember 2013 would be £38 9 mullion lower than the investment contract benefits stated above
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Income, expense, gains and losses arising from financial assets and finanaal habihties
The mcome, expense, gans and losses arsing from fAnancaal assets and finaneal labilities are summarnised 1 the table below
Financial Financaal
assetsat lrabilibesat Fanancral e
farr valne farr value hazbrities 8
through through  measuredat g
profit  Avalable for Loans and profit amortised g
Year Ended 31 December 2013 and loss® sale recervables and logs™ cost Total "
£ Milhon £* Malhon £ Mallion £ Millron £ Millhion £ Mahon
Financial Assets and Investment Properties
Investment propertics
Urut hnked assets 58256 5,825 8
Fixed income securities (20) (20
Investment 1 Collective Investment Schemes 20 20 =
Other recetvables 2
— St James’s Place Pertnership loans 75 7.5 .
— Renewal moome (3-1) (3.1 =
Total other recervables (31) 7.5 44 £
Cash & cash equivalents® 09 09 ;_-
Total financial assets and mvestment g
properties 5,8256 (3.1) 84 5,830 9
Financial Liabilities®
Investment contract benefits 4,049 5 4,049 5
Borrowings - -
Net asset value attrmbutable to umit holders 939 2 939 2 g
Total financial habilities 4,988.7 4,988 7 8
Py
)
Finanoal Finanemal LS“
assetsat lsabiliues at Financal E
faur value far valye Habilimes 2]
through through measured at 8
profit Loans and profit amortised
Year Ended 31 December 2012% and loxs®™ recervahles and losst cost Toral
£ Mallton £ Mithon £ Mihon £ Malbon £ Mdbhaon
Financial Assets
Unit hinked assets 3,570 § 31,5705
Fixed income securities 07 07
Investment 1n Collective [nvestment Schemes [ 15
Other receivables
— St James's Place Partnership loans 33 33
Total other recervables 313 33
Cash & cash equivalents® 07 07
Total financial assets 3,572 7 40 3,576 7
Financial Liabihities™
Investment contract benefits 2,361 7 2,361 7
Borrowings — -
Net asset value attributable to umt holders 5553 5553
Total financial hab:ilities 29170 2,917 0

*  Restated to ruflect the adoption of IFRS 10 Sc¢ Note 1a

(1) Al francial assets and liabilities at far value through profit or loss are designaced as such upon initial recognition

(2) The majonity of the return from cash & cash equivatents is inctuded within unt linked assets

(3) Noxe of the change in the fair value of financial bainlities at fair value through profit or loss s atmbutable to changes i thewr credat risk
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts

under International Financial Reporting Standards contmued

28. FINANCIAL RISK continued

Fair value eshimation

Finanaal assets and iabilities, which are held at farr value 1n the firanaal statements, are required to have disclosed therr fair value
measurements by level of the following fair value measurement hierarchy

— Quoted prices {unadjusted) 1n active markets for identacal assets or habilities (Level 1)
— Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or Labihity, erther directly (that 1s, as prices)

or indirectly {that 15, derived from prices) (Level 2)
— Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that 15, unobservable inputs) (Level 3)

The following table presents the Group's assets and liabilities measured at fair value

31 December 2013 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3  Total balance
£ Malhon £ Mallion £ Mallron £ Mitlion
Financral Assets and Investment Properties
Investment property 7327 7327
Equities 29,614.8 29,614 8
Fixed income securities 5,965 7 5,9657
Investment 1n Collective Investment Schemes 3,243 0 13 3,244 3
Dernvative financial instruments 142 9 1429
Qther receivables 16.6 16 6
Cash & cash equivalents 3,648 6 3,6486
Total financial assets and 1nvestment properhes 36,506 4 6,108.6 750.6 43,365 6
Financial Liabilities
Investment contract benefits 33,717.5 33,7175
Dervanve financial imnstruments 87.8 878
Net asset value attributable to umt holders 8,535 4 8,535 4
Total imancial habilites 8,635.4 33,805 3 - 42,340 7
31 December 2012% Level 1 Level 2 Level3  Total balance
£ Mulion £ Muhon £ Mulion £' Million
Financial Assets
Equities 21,472 8 21,4728
Fixed income securities 5,117 0 5,117 0
Investment 1 Collective Investment Schemes 2,908 0 16 2,908 6
Derivative finanaal instruments 36 1 361
Cash & cash equivalents 2,897 6 2,897 6
Total financral assets 27,278 4 5,203 1 16 32,4831
Finanaal Liabilities
Investment contract benefits 27,147 4 27,147 4
Derwative financial instruments 529 529
Net asset value attributable to unit holders 5,293 5 5,293 5
Total financial habilities 52935 27,2003 - 32,4938

*  Restated to reflect the adoption of IFRS 10 See Note 1a

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets 1s based on quoted bid prices at the reporting date, as described in the
accounting policy (m) These instruments are included 1n Level 1 Instruments included in Level 1 comprise primanly histed
equity instruments
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The Group closely monitars the valuation of assets 1 markets that have become less hiquid Determaning whether a market 15 active
requires the exercise of judgement and 15 determined based upon the facts and cireumstances of the market for the mstrument bemng
measured Where 1t 15 determined that there 1s no active market, farr value 1s established using a valuaton techmque The techmques
apphed 1ncorporate relevant information avatlable and reflect appropriate zdjustments for credit and hquidity risks These valuation
techmques maximise the use of ahservable market data where it 15 avaidable and rely as Iittle as poasible on entity speaific estimates The
relative weightings given to differmg sources of information and the determination of non-ebservable wputs to vahuation models can
require the exercise of wignificant judgement

If all sgnuficant mputs required to fair valuc an mstrument are observable, the mstrument 1s included in Level 2 1f one or more of the
significant inputs 15 oot based on observable market data, the instrument 15 mcluded 1n Level 3

Note that all of the resulting fair value estimates are included m Level 2, except for certamn equities and immvestments in Collective
Investment Schemes (*CIS’) and investment properties as detailed below

Speaific valuation techniques used to value Level 2 financal assets zud Liabilities include
« The use of observable pnices for 1dentical current arm’s length transactions

Specafic valuation techmques used to value Level 3 inancal assets and lrabihties inclede
— The use of observable prices for recent arm’s length transacticns
— Other techmques, such as discounted cash flow and historic lapse rates, are used to determine farr value for the remaining

financral 1nstruments
There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year

Transfers into and out of level 3 portfolios
Transfers out of level 3 portfolios ar1se when mnputs that could have 2 sigmificant impact on the 1nstrument’s valuation become market
observable, conversely, transfers into the portfolios arise when consistent sources of data cease to be avalable

Transfers m of certam equities and investments 1n Collective Investment Schemes (‘CIS’) occur when asset valuations can no longer be
obtained from an observable market price1 e become 1lhquid, in hquidation, suspended ete The converse 1s true :f an observable
market price becomes available

During 2013 IFRS 13 was adopted resulting 1n investment properties now being included withuin the Level 3 portfoho As this IFRS 15
to be applied prospectively as of the beginning of the annual period 1n which 1t 15 mmtially apphed the investment property openung
balance has been presented within transfers into Level 3

The following table presents the changes in Level 3 financial assets at fair value through the profit and loss

2013 2012
* £* Malhon £' Malhion
Opening balance 1.6 038
Transfer :nto Level 3 597 8 07
Additions during the year 213 8 —
Disposed duning the year (67.7} -
Gams recognised m the income statement 5.1 -
Closing balance 750.6 16
Total gains for the year included m the statement of comprehensive income for assets
held at the end of the reporting period 48 03

Additions include £194 1 milhon of investment properties and £19 7 milhon of renewal income Gams recogrused in the statement of
comprehensive income are mcluded within imvestment return for certain equities and mnvestments 1z Collective Investment Schemes
and 10vestment property, and within admimstratzon expenses for the renewal income
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts

under International Financial Reporting Standards continued

28. FINANCIAL RISX continved

Sensitivity of Level 3 valuations

The valuation of certain equities and mvestments 1n Collective Investment Schemes ('CIS") are based on the latest observable price
available Whalst such valuations are sensitive to estimates, 1t 15 believed that changing the price applied to a reasonably possible
alternative would not change the fair value significantly

The valuation of renewal income 15 based on discounted cash flows and historic lapse rates The effect of applying 1easanably possible
alternative assumptions of 2 movement of 100bps on the discount rate and a 10% movement m the lapse rate would result inan
unfavourable change m valuation of £1 6 million and a favourable change 1n valuation of £1 9 mill:on, respectively

The 1nvestment property valuation has been prepared using the ‘market approach’ valuation techmique ~ using prices and other relevant
information generated by market transactions 1mvelving 1dentical or comparable (¢ e sunilar) assets, as such it 15 again beheved that
changing the price applied to a reasonably possible alternative would not change the fair value significantly Moreover, any change 1n
the value of mvestment property 15 matched by the assocrated movement 1n the pohcyholder Liability and therefore would not 1mpact en
the shareholder net assets

Credit risk
The following table sets out the maxmmum cred:t risk exposure and ratings of financial and other assets which are nesther past due or

mmpaired and susceptible to credit risk

Umt linked
funds and
third party
holdings 1n
31 December 2013 AAA AA A BBB Unrated  unot trusts? Total
£ Millon £ Million £* Mallion £ Million £ Mull:on £ Million %' Million
Fixed income securtties 677 5,898.0 85,9657
Investment iz Collective Investment
Schemes® 5223 37 2,718 3 3,244.3
Cash & cash equavalents 4.3 1825 07 9.6 3,648 6 3,845 7
Amounts due from reinsurers
— Claims outstanding 37 37
— Remnsurers share of long term
msurance contract liallities 605 605
Total amount due from remsurers 64 2 642
Other recervables 385 324 1 3626
Total 522.3 136.2 1825 07 518 12,589 0 13,4825

(1) Credit nsk relating to umt linked snd unit trust funds 1s borne by the policyholder/umt holder
(2) Investment of shareholder assets in Collective Investment Schemes refers to nvestment i unitised money market funds held for the longer term
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The table below sets out the comparative credit risk analysis as at 31 December 2012

Uait linked
funds and
third party
holdmgsin
31 December 2012% AAA AA A BBB Unrated umt trusts Total
£' Mallion £ Million £' Million £' Milhon £ Malhon £ Mallson £' Milhion
Fixed income secunities 843 5,032 7 5,117 0
Investment in Collective Investment
Schemes 3216 08 2,587 2 2,909 6
Cash & cash equivalents 226 158 9 10 2,897 6 3,080 1
Amounts due from reinsurers
— Clamms outstanding 29 29
— Remsurers share of long term
msurance contract llabihities 357 357
Total amount due from rewnsurers 386 386
Other receivables 167 3333 3500
Total 4058 9 612 158 9 10 175 10,850 8 11,495 3

*  Restated to reflect the adoption of TFRS 10 See Nate 12

Financial assets that are either past due or impaired
Loans to §t James’s Place Partnershup of £144 2 mulhon (2612 £139 $ mullion) are net of an impairment provision of £3 8 million
{2012 £6 7 mllion) (see Note 17) The movement 1n the impairment loss recogmsed within administration expenses in the statement
of comprehensive income was a credrt of £0 2 mullion (2012 £0 7 mullion charge) The factors considered 1n determuning the
imparrment mclude default history, the nature or type of the Partner loan, exposure levels to individual Partners and whether the

mdividual Partner 1s active or has left

There are no other Anancal assets that are imparred, wauld otherwise be past due or impaired whose terms have been renegotiated or

are past due but not rmpaired
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts

under International Financial Reporting Standards continued

28. FINANCIAL RISK contnued

Contractual maturity and l1qu1d11:y analysis

The following table sets out the contractual maturity analysis of the Group’s financial assets and financial habilrties as at
31 December 2013

Total ex.
Ut Wit Imked
linked funds and
funds and thard party
Uptol 1-5 Over5 other unit holdings
31 December 2013 year years years holders  umit trusts* Total
£' Malhon £ Malbon & Million £ Majlion £ Malhon £ Mithon
Financial Assets
Equities 29,614 8 29,614 8
Fixed income securtties 16.8 120 38.9 67.7 5,898 0 5,965 7
Investment in Collective Investment Schemes 522.3 5223 2,7221 3,244 3
Derivative financial mnstruments 1429 142 9
Other receivables
— St James's Place Partnership leans 412 85.0 18.0 144.2 - 144 2
— Renewal income 166 166 - 166
— Other 21.9 219 324.1 346 0
Total other recervables 797 850 18.0 1827 324 1 506 8
Cash & cash equivalents 197.1 197.1 3,648 6 3,8457
Total financial assets 8159 970 569 969 8 42,350 4 43,320 2
Financial Liabilities
Investment contract benefits 33,717 5 33,7175
Borrowings 47 890 50 98 7 - 98.7
Derivative financial tnstruments 878 878
Other payables 1978 197 8 241.6 4394
Total financial habilities 2025 850 50 29 5 34,046 9 34,343 4

*  Pinancial habibtoes included noder unit linked funds and net assets attnbutable to umt holders are deemed to have a maturity of up to one year since the corresponding unit
linked Liabalities are repayable and transferable on demand In practice the coatractual matunities of the assets may be longer than one year, but the majoriry of assets held
within the umt linked and unut trust funds are highly iquid and the Group also actively momiters fund hqudity

Regmstered No 03183415
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The table below sets out comparative contractual maturity and hqudity analysis as at 31 December 2012
‘Total ex
Undt Unit linked
linked Funds and )
fundsand third party g
Uptail 1-5 Over s other unit holdings in E
31 December 2012% year years years holders  unut trusts®* Total §
£ Milhon £ Milhon £ Mallion £' Milhon £' Mithon £ Mllion e
Financial Assets
Equitzes - 21,4728 21,4728
Fixed income securities 121 122 600 84 3 5,0327 51170
Investment 1n Collective Investment Schemes 322 4 322 4 2,587 2 2,909 6
Derrvative financal instruments - 861 861
Other recervables -
— St James's Place Partnership loans 342 829 228 139 9 1399 g
— Qther 170 170 3330 3500 g
Total other receivables i 512 829 228 156 9 3330 489 9 :;"
Cash & cash equivalents 1825 182 5 2,8976 3,080 1 )
Total financial assets 568 2 951 828 746 1 32,405 4 33,1556 §
Financial Liabihities b
Investment contract benefits - 27,147 4 27,147 4
Borrowings 707 707 707
Denvative finangal instruments - 529 5§29
Other payables 149 1 149 1 286 7 4358
Total financtal habilities 149 1 70 7 219 8 27,4870 27,706 8

*  Restated ta reflect the adoption of IFRS 10 See Notz 12
** Financwl liabilities inciuded under umt hoked funds and attributable to unit holdersare deemed to have a matunity up to one year as they are repayable or transferable
on demand
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Sensitivity analysis to market risks

The majonty of the Group’s busmness 15 umt linked and the direct assomated market risk 15 therefore borne by policyholders (although
there 15 a secondary impact as shareholder income 15 dependent upon the markets) Finanaal assets and habilities held outaide umitised
funds primarily consist of fixed interest securities, units in money market funds, cash and cash equivalents, and other assets and
habihties The fixed interest securities are held to match non linked Liabilities and the hability values move broadly an hine with the
matching asset values such that fair value iterest rate nisk 1s immaterial, although these 15 some residual risk due to imperfect
matching  Cash held 1n uniised money market funds and at bank 1s valued at par and 15 unaffected by movement in interest rates
Other assets and habilities are sirmlarly unaffected by market movements

As a result of these combined factors, the Group's financial assets and Liabilinies held outside umtised funds are not materrally subject to
market risk, and movements at the reporting date m interest rates and equity values have an immaterral impact on the Group’s profit
after tax and equity Future profits from annual management charges may be affected by movements in interest rates and equity values
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts

under International Financaal Reporting Standards continued

29 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT AND ALLOCATION

1t 1s the Group’s policy to mamtain a strong capital base in order to

— protect pohoyholders’ and crediters’ interests,

— support the development of 1ts business and create shareholder value, and
— meet regulatory requirements at all times |

Within the Group each subsidiary manages its own capital in the context of the Group capital plan  Caprtal penerated 1n excess of |
planned requirements 1s returned to the Group's parent, 5t James’s Place ple, normally by way of dividends The Group capital plan 1s
monitored by the Finance Executive Commuttee on behalf of the St James's Place plc Board

The Group’s policy 1s for each Company to hold the hugher of
— the Company's internal assessment of the capital required, and
— the capital requirement of the refevant supervisory body plus 2 specified margin aver this to absorb changes

Generally, because of the nature of the business and the current regulatory rules, the higher requirement 1s that of the supervisory
body plus the speched margin B

The following entities are under supervisory regulation and have to mamtain a minimum level of regulatory capital

Entity Regulatory Body and Jurisdiction

PRA & FCA Long-term msurance business
Central Bank of Ireland Life msurance business
FCA UCITS Management Company

FCA Personal Investrment Fum

St James's Place UK ple |

St James's Place [nternational ple

St James’s Place Umt Trust Group Limited
St James’s Place Wealth Management plc

St James's Place Reassurance (2009) Lumited
St James's Place Trust Company Jersey Limted
St James's Place Wealth Management (PCIS) Lunited

FCA Reassurance Company
Jersey Financial Services Commmssion
FCA. Securities and Futures

FCA Personal Investment Fairm
FCA Personal Investment Firm
FCA Personal Investment Firm

BFS Financial Services Limited
E W Smuth & Co Independent Financial Advisers Limited
Lansdown Place Financial Management Ltd

The PRA regulatory requirement for 5t James’s Place UK ple, which makes up the majority of the Group caprtal requirement, 1ncludes
the prescribed minrmum solvency margin requirement (the Capital Resources Requirement (‘CRR’)) and an assessment of the risks
faced under the business, known as the Individual Capital Assessment The capital requirement 1s assessed and monitored by the
Finance Executive Committee, a committee of the 5t James's Place UK plc Board

The regulatory requirements for the remaining companies withun the Group are assessed and monitored by the relevant Board

There has been no material change in the Group’s management of capital during the period and all regulated entines exceed the
minimum solvency requirements at the reporting date

Capital composition
The prinupal forms of capital are included in the tollowing balances on the consolidated statement of inancial position

31 December 31 December

2013 2012

£ Million £ Million

Share capatal 773 760
Share premmm 142 2 1277
Treasury shares reserve (102) 3]
Mascellaneous reserves 23 23
Retamned earmings 6945 565 4
906 1 762 5

The zbove assets do notall quahfy as regulatory capital Analyss of the assets which do qualafy as regulatory capltal 15 given 1n Section 3
of the Financial Review on page 30 The Group and its individually regulated operations have complied with all externally and
internally imposed capital requirements throughout the period

Registered No 03183415
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30. SHARE CAPITAL
Number of

COrdinary Share
Shares Capital
£ Milhion
At 1 January 2012 493,422,751 740
— Exercise of options 13,408,396 20
At 31 December 2012 506,831,147 760
— Exeraise of options 8,384,836 13
At 31 December 2013 515,215,983 773

The total authorised number of ordinary shares 15 605 milhion {2012 605 mulien), with a par value of 15 pence per share
(2012 15 pence per share) All msued shares are fully pad

Included in the 1ssued share capital are 3,338,458 (2012 3,052,273) shares held in the Treasury Shares Reserve wath a normnal value of
£0 5 million (2012 £0 5 mllion)

The number of shares reserved for 1ssue under options and contracts for sale of shares, including terms and conditions, 15 included
within Note 31

31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
Durnng the year ended 31 December 2013 the Group operated a number of different equuty settled share-based payment arrangements,

whach are aggregatcd as follows

— SAYE plan — this 15 a standard HMRC approved scheme that 15 available to all employees where individuals may contribute up to
£250 per month over three years to purchase shares at a price not less than 80% of the market price at the date of the invitation
10 participate

- Share incentive plan (‘SIP’) — this 15 an HMRC approved scheme which 1s available to all employees where individuals may invest up
to an annual lumit of £1,500 of pre-tax salary in SJP shares, to which the Company will add a further 10% If the shares are held for
five years then they may be sold free of income tax or CGT

— Executive deferred bonus schemes — under these plans the deferred element of the annual bonus 15 used to purchase shares at market
value 1n the Company The shares are held by the Company unt1] vesting after three years and, 1n addition to the performance
targets, which apply prior to any entitlement being granted, further performance conditions may also apply on vesting

-- Executive performance share plan —the Remuneration Commuttee of the Group Board may make awards of performance shares to
the: Executive Directors and other semor managers Two-thirds of shares swarded to Directors are subject to an earnings growth
condition of the Group and one-third of shares awarded to Directors are subject to a comparative total shareholder return (“TSR")
condition, both measured over a three year period Further information regarding the vestng conditions of the earnings growth and
total shareholder return dependent portions of the award 1s grven 1 the Remuneration Report on page 73 Awards made to senior
managers are largely only subject to the earnings growth condition of the Group

— Partner share option schemes — these were offered to the Partners of the 5t James's Place Partnership and vest over three to six years
subject to satisfying personal sales related performance criteria The last award under these schemes was made 1a 2007

— Partner performance share plan — a new scheme was launched 1n January 2008 whereby Partners are entitled to purchase shares m
the future at nomunal value (15p) The number of shares the Partners are entitled to purchase will depend on their personal sales
production 1n the year of the award and valrdation over the following three years This scheme 15 now closed with no further awards

being made )

Share options outstanding under the various share option schemes, together with shares due under the deferred bonus scheres at

31 December 2013 amount to 14- 3 rmllion shares (2012 2t Ormllion) Of these, 5 3 million (2012 107 million) are under option to
Partners of the St James’s Place Partnershp, 7 5 million (2012 8 7 mullion) are under option to executives and senior management
(includmng 2 6 mallion (2012 3 2 mallon) under option to Directors as disclosed 1n the Remuneration Report on pages 87 to 89) and
1 5 mulbon (2012 1 6 million) are under option through the SAYE scheme These are exercisable on a range of tuture dates
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts

under International Financial Reporting Standards contmued

31 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS continued

The table below summanses the share-based payment awards made in 2012 and 2013

Executive
Share Incentive Executive Performance
SAYE Plan Deferred Bonus Share Plan
Awardsin 2012
Date of grant 23 March & 26 March 26 March Various
26 Sept

Number granted 1,621,267 4,528 747,571 1,590,512

Awards in 2013
Date of grant 25 March 26 March 21 March 21 March
Number granted 249,691 4,998 435,177 1,335,003
Contractual hife 3 5 years 3 years 3 years 3 S years
Vesting conditions 3 year saving 3 year saving 3 years' 3 years'
pened period service and service and
achievernent achievement
of perscnal of sarnungs
targets and TSR
10 some targets

Imstances

Financial assumptions underlying the calculation of fair value
The fair value expense has been based on the fair value of the instruments granted, as calculated using appropriate derivative pricing
models The table below shows the assumptions and models used to calculate the grant date fair value of each award

Executve
Share Incentive Executyve Pexformance
SAYE Plan Deferred Bonus Share Plan
Valuation model Black Black Black Monte
Scholes Scholes Scholes Carlo
Awards 1n 2012
Fawr value (pence) 102 1/110 6@ 364 7 364 7 212 3/364 7%
Share price (pence) 362 0/369 9 364 7 3647 3415t 371 QW
Exeraise price (pence) 296 0/275 0 0 00 G 00 000
Expected volatility (% pa)®” 34/32 N/A N/A 34
Expected dividends (% pa) 22/24 N/A N/A® N/A
Rusk-free interest rate (% pa) 07/03 N/A N/A N/A
Volatihity of competitors (% pa) N/A N/A N/A 1710 69
Correlation with competitors (%) N/A N/A N/A 20
Awards i 2013,
Fair value (pence) 142 0 5070 5100 331 5/510 0@
Share price (pence) 5055 5070 364 7 510 09
Exeraise price (pence) 3890 000 000 000
Expected volatlity (% pa)® 30 N/A N/A 30
Expected dividends (% pa) 21 N/A N/AD N/a
Rask-free interest rate (% pa) 04 N/A N/A N/A
Volatihity of competitors (%o pa) N/A N/A N/A 18 to 107
Correlation with competitors (%) N/A N/A N/A 20

Regstered No 03183415
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Notes
(1) Expected valatility 1s based on an analysis of the Company’s hastoric share price volaulity over a perad (typcally three or five years) which 15 commensurate with the
expected term of the options or the awards
(2) 1n 2012 =nd 2013, the vesting period for the SAYE plan was three years The vesting period may be extended by up to ax months n order to catch up on missed
contributions Py
(3) Dividends payable on the shares during the resmicted period are pad out dunag the restricted peraod for the executive deferred bonus schemes and no dividend yield g
assumpton 15 therefore required §
(4) The awards made under the executive performance share plan are dependent upen earmungs growth in the Company {two-thirds of the award) and a total sharcholder retarn 2

of 2 comparator group of cornparues (one-third of the award) This results 1o having twa fair values for each of che awards made 1n the table above, the first being in relation 1o
the comparator total shareholder return and the second relating to the Company’s earnings growth

(5) Awards were made under the executive performance share plan on two separate occasions during 2013 (2012 5)

(6) There were no awards made 11 2012 or 2013 fer the executive share option schemes or the sales management share option schemes

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2013 2013 512 2012 -
Weghted Weighted 5
Number of average Number of average §
options exercise price options £xercise price =
SAYE Ld
Outstanding at start of year 1,572,172 £263 1,987,287 £170 g
Granted 249,691 £389 1,621,267 £2 86
Forfated (98,824) £283 (594,764) £2 88
Exercised (235,702) £204 (1,441,618) £1 50
Outstanding at end of year 1,487,337 £292 1,572,172 £2 63
Exercisable at end of year 5,862 £3.07 5,468 £2 25
Executive Share Options®
Outstanding at start of year 524,348 £201 987,443 £1 84
Granted - - g
Forfeited - — ]
Exercised (388,904) £194  (463,095) £1 66 &
Outstanding at end of year 135,444 £222 524,348 £2 01 §
Exercisable at end of year 135,444 £2 22 524,348 £2.01 g
Partner Share Options g
Outstanding at start of year 10,411,138 £277 17,892,050 £2 45
Granted - —
Forferted - (24,667) £1 37
Exercised (5,238,467) £272 (7,456,245) £202
Outstanding at end of year 5,172,671 £2,81 10,411,138 £2 77
Exercisable at end of year 5,162,046 £281 10,398,388 £2 77

The average share price of the options that were exeraised dunng the year was 572 § pence (2012 357 5 pence)

The SAYE plan options outstanding at 31 December 2013 had exercise prices of 242 pence (228,112 options), 296 pence
(281,319 options), 275 pence (737,739 options}, 389 pence (240,167) and a weighted average remaining contractual hfe of 1 6 years

The options outstanding under the executive share option schemes at 31 December 2013 had exercise prices ranging from 170 5 pence
to 254 pence and a weighted average remaining contractual hife of 0 9 years

The options cutstanding under the Partner share option schemes at 31 December 2013 had exercise prices ranging from 162 pence to
465 pence and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 2 0 years
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts

under International Financial Reportmg Standards contnued

31 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS continued
Share Incentive Plan (ml cost option — no proceeds on exercise)

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

2013 2012

Number of Yumber of

options options

Outstanding at start of year 15,658 12,043
Granted 4,998 4,528
Forfeited (581) (670)
Exeraised (464} (243)
Outstanding at end of year 19,611 15,658
Exercisable at end of year - —

Executive Performance Share Plan (nil cost option — no proceeds on exercise)

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 Detember

2013 2082

Number of Number of

options options

OQutstanding at start of year
Granted

Forfeited

Exercised

Cutstanding at end of year
Exercsable at end of year

5,270,375 5,851,489
1,335,003 1,590,512
(369,221)  (407,200)
(1,067,559) (1,764,426)
5,168,598 5,270,375
516,514 40,494

Partner Performance Share Plan (15 pence nominal share value option — 15 pence per share on exercise)

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

Cutstanding at start of year
Granted

Forfeited

Exercised

Outstanding at end of year
Exercisable at end of year

2013 202
Number of Number of
options optony

307,500 2,617,500
- (223,854
(176,500) (2,086,146)

131,000 307,500

Executive Deferred Bonus (no proceeds on exercise)

Year Ended Yeor Ended

QOutstandmg at start of year

Granted

Forfeited

Exercised :
Outstanding at end of year

Exerasable at end of year

31 December 31 December
2013 2012
Number of Number of
shares shares

2,923,687 2,690,807
435177 47,571
(19,598)  (53,957)

(1,128,384)  (460,734)

2,210,882 2,923,687

Registered No 03183415
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Early exercise assumptions
The following allowance has been made for the impact of early exercise once options have vested

(1) SAYE plan — all option holders are assumed to exercise half-way through the six month exercise window

(2) Executive, sales management and partner share option schemes — it 1s assumed that 10% of option holders are forced to exercise
their options each year irrespective of the level of the share price For the remainder 1t 15 assumed that one-half will exercise thear
options each year if the share price 15 at least 33% above the exercise price

Allowance for performance conditions

The executive performance share plan wcludes a market based performance condition based on the Company’s total shareholder return
relative to an index of comparator compames The impact of this performance condition has been modelled using Monte Carlo
sumulation techniques, which involve running many thousands of sumulations of future share price movements for both the Company
and the comparator index For the purpose of these simulations 1t 15 assumed that the share price of the Company and the comparator
index are 20% (2012 20%) correlated and that the comparator index has volatihties ranging between 18% pa 0 107%pa

{2012 17%pa to69%pa)

The performance condition 1s based on the Company’s performance relative to the comparator index over a three year period
cominencing on | January each year The fair value calculations for the awards that were made i 2013 therefore include an allowance
for the actual performance of the Company’s share price relative to the idex over the period between 1 January 2013 and the vartous
award dates

Charge to the consohdated statement of comprehensive income
The table below sets out the charge to the consolhidated staternent of comprebensive income in respect of the share-based
payment awards

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 Decemnber

2013 2012

£ Mallion £' Mulbon

Share-based payment expense 7.8 54

32 FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS
At 31 December 2013 the Group had the following anoual commitments under non-cancellable operanng leases in connection with the
rental of office buildings and office equipment with varying lease end dates ranging from 2013 to 2028

31 December 31 December

2013 2012

£ Malhion £' Mallion

Within one year 05 19
Between two and five years 34 23
In more than five years 6.7 66
Total financral commitiments 106 108

As at 31 December 2013, there was £0 2 million (2012 £1 0 xmillion) of future mummum sublease payments expected to be recerved
under non-cancellable sub-leases
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts

under International Financial Reporting Standards contmued

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Company and the Group have entered into related party transactions with Lloyds Banking Group ple ("LBG’), various subsidiarzes
of LBG and the Darectors of the Company and the Group

Transactions with LBG and LBG group companies

The following transactions were carried out, on an arm's length basis, with LBG and 1its subsidianes during the year

— Comrmssion of £0 4 million (2012 £0 8 milhon) was recervable from the sale of banking services for §t James’s Place Bank
(2 division of Halifax plc)

— Fees of £2 O mallion (2012 £1 1 million) was recavable from the sale of pensions offered by Scottish Widows

— Commussion of £1 0 million (2012 £0 9 mlhon) was recevable from the sale of Halifax, Cheltenham & Gloucester, Bank of
Scotland, Birmingham Midshires, Scottish Widows and The Mortgage Business mortgages

— Commussion of £0 7 mullion (2012 £0 § mullion) was recervable from Bank of Scotland Anmuty Service

— Commission of £36,380 (2012 £37,000) was recevable from Bank of Scotland 1n respect of corperate banking mcome m 2013

— During the year, deposits were placed with Bank of Scotland and Lloyds TSB on normal commercial terms At 31 December 2013
these deposits amounted to £63 7 million (2012 £54 7 million)

— Amounts lent by, or assigned to, the Bank of Scotland to members of the St James's Place Partnership, under guarantee by
St James's Place, totalled £103 6 mullion (2012 £89 6 mulhon)

— Amounts lent by the Bank of Scotland to the Group totalled £0 8 malhon (2012 £0 8 malhon)

— Tax fees of £26,886 (2012 £27,000) n respect of annual tax compliance and ad-hoc tax advice were charged by LBG plc to certan
unit trusts

— Fees of £41,564 (2012 £26,250) were payable to LBG in respect of the services of non-executive St James’s Place Board Directors

Durng the year, Lloyds Banking Group made three separate placements of thewr holding in 5t fames’s Place ple

On 11 March 2013, Lloyds Banking Group plc placed 20% of its holdng in St James's Place ple (*SJP") on the market through an
accelerated book buld reducing 1ts holding from 57% to 37% As part of this transaction, fees of £5 2 milbon were pud by 5JP toa
thurd party which ordmanly would have been paid by the vendor In the Board's view this payment was i the mterest of SJP and

1ts shareholders

On 29 May 2013, Lloyds Banking Group plc placed 15% of its holding 1n St James’s Place ple (‘STP’) on the market reducing its
helding from 37% to 21%

On 10 December 2013, Lloyds Banking Group ple placed its remaming 21% holding in St James's Place ple (“S[P"} on the market
reducing 1ts holding from 21% to ml

As at the 31 December 2013 Lloyds Banking Group plc remained a related party by virtue of their Non-executsve Directorships on the
St James's Place plc Board As of 1 January 2014, due te the resignations of these Non-executive Directors, Lloyds Banlung Group ple
were no longer a related party

Transactions with St. James’s Place unit trusts*

In respect of the non-consolidated St Jamnes’s Place managed unit trusts that are held as 1nvestments 1n the St James’s Place life and
pension funds, there was income recogmised of £16 1 million (2012 £21 9 mullion income) and the total value of transactions with
those non-consolidated unit trusts was £32 1 million (2012 £86 3 million) Net management fees recervable from these umit trusts
amounted to £19 4 mallion {2012 £30 1 mulhon) The value of the investment into the non-consohdated umt trusts at 31 December
2013 was £92 2 milhon (2012 £203 4 million)

* 2012 comparatives restated to reBect the adoption of IFRS 10 See Note 1a

Registered No 03183415
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Transactions with key management Personncl

The compensation paid to key management personnel, being the Board of Directors of St James’s Place, 15 set out 1n the Remuneration
Report on page 82 The Remuneration Report also sets out transactions with the Directors under the Deferred Bonus Scheme, the
Performance Share Plan, the Executive Share Opuon Scheme and the SAYE Share Option Schemes, together with details of the
Directors’ 1nterests m the share capital of the Company

The charge to the statement of comprehenaive income mn respect of the share-based payment awards made to the Executive Directors of
St James's Place during 2013 was £2 8 mullion (2012 £1 4 million)

Commussion and advice fees of £865,019 (2012 £814,687) was pard, under normal commeraial terms, to St James’s Place Partners
who were related parties by virtue of being connected persens with key management The outstanding amount payable at 31 December
2013 was £105,440 (2012 £230,191)

At the start of the year, a 5t Jarnes’s Place Partner, connected to Mr Andrew Croft, held 55,000 options under the Partner share
option scheme, exercisable berween 26 July 2005 and 27 July 2006 (expiry dates between 25 July 2015 and 26 July 2016) at exercise
prices ranging between £2 36 and £3 28, and 18,333 cptions under the Partner performance share plan exercisable on between 8
March 2012 and 8 March 2015 at an exerase price of £0 15 During the year 40,000 options under the Partner share option scheme
were exercsed (2012 31,000) at £2 36 and £3 28 leaving a balance at 31 December 2013 of 15,000 options under the Partner share
option scheme In addition, 5,000 vested award shares were exercised under the Partner performance share plan at £0 15 leaving a
balance at 31 December 2013 of 13,333 vested award shares under the Partners performance share plan The 40,000 options and 5,000
award shares were exercised on two separate occasions 20,000 at £2 36 and 20,000 at £3 2B on 2 April 2013 when the share price
was £5 105 and 5,000 at £0 15 on 15 August 2013 when the share price was £6 175, realising a gan of £121,525

34 INTERESTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED ENTITIES

Unconsohdated Structured Entatzes

The Group operates urvestment velucles, such as umt trusts, primanily to match unitholder hiabilities The investment vehicles are
primanly financed by investments from umit holders Note 1 sets out the judgements mherent in determining when the Group controls,
and therefore consohdates, the relevant mnvestment vehicles

‘The majority of the risk from a change 1n the value of the Group’s investment in unconsolidated unit trusts 1s matched by a change in
policyholder Labilities However, the maximum exposure to loss 15 equal to the carrying value of the investment with the balance beng
mcluded within investments in Collective Investment Schemes At 31 December 2013, the total net asset value of unconsochidated unit
trusts m which the Group held a beneficial interest was £1,789 3 mithon

The following umt trusts are not consohdated within the Group accounts however the Group does act as the manager of these

unt trusts
Net asset value ag at
% of ownership interest 31 December
Mature of Measurement
Name of entrty 2013 212 relationship method 2013 2012
— £ Mulhion £' Mallion
Manager of
St James's Place Property Uit Trust 000 000  umttrust N/A 393 4 266 4
Farr value
through
Manager of profit
St James's Place UK Fagh Income Unit Trust 6.61 507  umttrust and loss 1,395 9 1,087 8

1,789.3 1,364 2
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34. INTERESTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED ENTITIES continued

Assocrates

The following unit trusts are not consohdated wrthin the Group accounts however they do meet the critenia of an assocrate

Netasset value as at

% of ownership interest 31 Decemher
Nature of Measurement
Name of entity 2013 2012 relabonship method 2013 212
£ Millron £’ Mallion
Fair value
through
Manager of profit
St James's Place UK High Income Unut Trust 6.61 507 umt trust and loss 1,395.9 1,097 8

1,3959 1,097 8

35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
Investment Holding Compames
Life Assurance

Unat Trust Management
Dastribution

Management Services

IFA Acquisitions

Internal Reassurance

*  Directly held by St James's Place plc

St James's Place Investments plc*

St James’s Place Wealth Management Group ple*

St James’s Place UK ple

St James's Place International ple (incorporated iz Ireland)
St James's Place Uit Trust Group Limited

St James's Place Wealth Management plc

St James’s Place Management Services Lumted

St James's Place Acquisition Services Limited

St James’s Place Reassurance (2009) Limited

The Company owns erther directly or mdirectly 100% of the votung ordinary equity share capital of the above-named subsidiarzes

A full hst of subsidiartes 1s available on request from the registered office and wall be submutted with the Company’s Anmual Return

All of these companies are registeved i England and Wales and operate principally m the United Kingdom except where

otherwase stated

Due to ongong sclvency requirements, there are restnctions on the amount of distributable reserves within the bfe assurance, wmt
trust and financial services operating companies of the Group which restricts theur ability to transfer cash dividends to the Company

Registered No 03183415
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The following subsidranes of 5t James’s Place plc have taken advantage of the exemption from statutory audit granted by section 479A

of the Companies Act 2006 In accordance with section 479C, St James’s Place plc has therefore guaranteed all the outstanding

lLiabilitzes as at 31 December 2013 of

Angha Financal Lirmted (03835743) %‘

BFS Financial Services Limited (4609753) E

Chapman Hunter Group Limited (6034452) &

Chapman Associates Limited (3047530)

Delllark Lim:ted (5487108)

Entellus Limited (01611224}

EW Smuth & Co Independent Financial Advisors Limited (4088394)
Lopsystem Limited (01503754)

M H § {Holdings} Limnited (00555995)

St James's Place 1990 Limited (02513402)

St James's Place Acquisition Services Limited (7730835)
St James'’s Place Admimistration Limited (00740495)

St James's Place [nvestment Trust Lunuted (00205445)
St James's Place Investments plc (01773177)

St James's Place Partnership Lumted (00425643)

St James’s Place Property Services Lirmted (02608806)
St James’s Properties Limuted {01075927)

SJPC 2000 plc (SCO13363)

SJPC Group Limited (01873546)

SJPC 7 Limited (02102279)
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In addition, the Group accounts consohdate the following unit trusts
St James’s Place Allshare Income Umt Trust

St James's Place Alternative Assets Umit Trust

St James's Place Balanced Managed Unit Trust

St James’s Place Continental European Uit Trust

St James's Place Corporate Bond Unit Trust

St James's Place Equuty Income Unrt Trust

St James's Place Ethacal Unit Trust

St James's Place Far East Unit Trust

5t James’s Place Gilts Unit Trust

St James’s Place Global Emerging Markets Unit Trust

St James's Place Global Equity Income Unrt Trust

St James's Place Glebal Equaty Unat Trust

St James’s Place Global Umt Trust

St James's Place Greater European Progressive Unit Trust
St James's Place High Octane Unit Trust

St James's Place Index Linked Gilts Uit Trust

St James's Place International Corporate Bond Umt Trust
St James's Place International Equity Unit Trust

St James's Place [nvestment Grade Corporate Bond Umt Trust
5t James’s Place Managed Growth Unat Trust

St James’s Place Money Market Unit Trust

St James's Place Mults Asset Unit Trust

St James's Place North American Unit Trust

St James's Place Strategic Managed Unat Trust

St James's Place UK and General Progressive Uzt Trust
S5t James’s Place UK and International Unit Trust

St James's Place UK Absclute Return Unit Trust

St James’s Place UK Growth Unit Trust

5t James’s Place Worldwide Opportumties Unat Trust

LICTI DL Dfllf Eeiiely]

All of these unit trusts are managed in the Umted Kingdom




156 S5t James’s Place plc Annual Report and Accounts 2013

Parent Company Accounts
on UK GAAP Basis

Contents

157 Independent Auditors’ Report
159 Balance Sheet of the Parent Company
160 Notes to the Parent Company Accounts

Registered No 03183415




St James's Place plc Annual Report and Accounts 2013

157

Independent Auditors’ Report

to the members of St. James’s Place plc

REPORT ON THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

Our opinion

In our opimon the Parent Company financal staternents,

defined below

— prve a true and fair view of the state of the Parent Company’s
affairs as at 31 December 2013 and of 1ts cash flows for the year
then ended,

— have been properly prepared in accerdance with Unated
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

— have been prepared 1n accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006

This opion 15 to be read 1n the context of what we say 1o the
remainder of this report

What we have audited

The Parent Company financial statements, which are prepared by

St James's Place plc, comprse

— the Balance Sheet of the Parent Company as at 31 December
2013, and

— the notes to the Parent Company financial statements, which
include 2 summary of sgmficant accounting policies and other
explanatory mformation

The financial reporting framework that hes been applied in ther
preparation comprises apphcable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (Umted Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice)

in applymng the financial reparting tramework, the divectors have
made 2 number of subjecuve judgements, for example mn respect
of sigmificant accounting estimates [n making such estimates,
they have made assumptions and considered future events

Certain disclosures required by the finanaal reporting framework
have been presented elsewhere in the Annual Report and
Accounts (the ‘Annual Report’), rather than in the notes to the
financial staternents These are cross-referenced from the

financial statements and are identified as audited

What an audit of financial statements involves

‘We conducted our audit in accordance wath International

Standards on Audiing (UK & Ireland) ('ISAs (UK & Ireland))

An audit mvolves obtaining evidence about the amounts and

disclosures m the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable

agsurance that the financnil statements are free from material

misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an

assessment of

— whether the accounting policies are approprate to the Parent
Company’s circumstances and have been consstently apphed
and adequately disclosed, ,

— the reasonableness of sigmificant accounting estimates made by
the directors, and

— the averall presentation of the financial statements

[
g
=
a
=
=
3
In addition, we read all the financial and non-financal
mformation in the Annual Report to 1dentify material
inconsistencies with the audited Parent Company financial
statements and to 1dentify any mformation that 15 apparently o
materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the g
knowledpe acquired by us 1 the course of performing the audit B
8

If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or
incensistencies we consider the implicatrons for our report

OPINIONS ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE

COMPANIES ACT 2006

In our opimion

— the information given in the Strategic Report and the
Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the Parent
Company financial statements are prepared 1s conslstent with
the Parent Company financial statements, and

— the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited
has been properly prepared in accordance with the Compamnes
Act 2006
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OTHER MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO

REPORT BY EXCEPTION

Adequacy of accounting records and information and

explanations recerved

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you

o, 1n our opinion

— we have not recerved all the mformation and explanations we
require for our audst, or

— adequate accountmg records have not been kept by the Pareat
Company, or returns adequate for cur audit have not been
recerved from branches not vistted by us, or

— the Parent Company finanaal statements and the part of the
Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are notin
agreement with the accounting records and returns

uorzpuziofur 1ay3()

We have no exceptmns to I‘EPOI"IZ arlsmg from this l'ESPODSlblllty

Directors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you
if, 1n our epmion, certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration
specified by law have not been made We have no exceptions to
report ansing from thus responsibility

Other information m the Annual Report

Under ISAs (UK & Ireland}, we are required to report to you if,

1n our opanior, information 1n the Annual Report 15

— materzally mconsistent with the information 1n the audited
Parent Company financial statements, or

— apparently materially mncorrect based on, or materially
inconsistent with, our knowledge of the Parent Company
acquired 1n the course of performing our audit, or

— 15 otherwise misleading

We have no excephions to report antsing from this responsibility
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Independent Auditors’ Report wome

to the members of St. James’s Place plc

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND THE AUDIT

Our responsibilities and those of the directors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’
Respongibilities set out on page 97, the Directors are responsible
for the preparation of the Parent Company financial statements
and for being satisfied that they give a true and tair view

Our responsibility 15 to audit and express an opimion on the
Parent Company financial statements tn accordance with
applicable law and ISAs (UK & Ireland) Those standards require
us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical
Standards for Auditors

Ths report, mcluding the opintons, has been prepared for and
only for the Company’s members as a body 1o accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other
purpose We do not, 1n giving these opinions, accept or assume -
responsibihity for any other purpose or to any other person to
whom this report 18 shown or into whose hands 1t may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent i writing

OTHER MATTER

We have reported separately on the Consohidated financral
statements of St James's Place plc for the year ended

31 December 2013

Craig Gentle (Senior Statutory Audjtor)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

Bristol

24 February 2014

Notes

+  The maintenance. and integrity ot the St Jamess Place ple wabsite 15 the
respousibility of the directars, the work carried out by the auditors does not
mvolve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no
rusponstbility far any changes that may have oceurrid to the financial statemunts
since they were inutizlly presented on the website

= Legulation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination
of financial statements may diffcr from Legislation i sther juresdictions

Registered No (3183415
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Balance Sheet of the Parent Company

31 December 31 December

Notes 2013 2012
£ Malhion £ Milheo

Fixed assets
Investment 1n subsidiaries 2 3907 3828
Current assets
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 546 149
Other debtors - 01
Current habihities
Corporation tax labihties 02 —
Net current assets 544 150
Total assets less current lzabilities 4451 357 8
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 3 773 760
Share premium account 4 1422 1277
Share option reserve 4 812 734
QOther reserves 4 0t 01
Profit and loss account 4 144 3 120 6
Total shareholders’ funds 4451 397 8

The financial statements on pages 159 to 163 were approved by the Board of Directors on 24 February 2014 and signed on 1ts behalf by

Yoser A\ oo

D Bellamy A Croft
Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer

The notes and nformation on pages 160 to 163 form part of these accounts
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Notes to the Parent Company Accounts ‘

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Bas:s of preparation

St James's Place plc (‘the Company’) 1s a limited Liability company incorporated n England and Wales and whose shares are publicly
traded The Company offers a range of insurance, investment and other wealth management services through 1ts subsicharies, which are
mcorporated m the UK and Ireland

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with appheable accounting standards and under the historical cost
convention The Company has elected to continue to prepare the parent financial statements 1n accordance wath UK Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice In publishing the Parent Company financial statements, the Company has taken advantage of the
cxcmption 1n Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to present its indrvidual profit and loss account and rclated notes that form
part of these financial statements The Company 15 not required to present a statement of total recognised gains and losses

As discussed 1n the Directors’ Report the going concern basis has been adopted 1n preparing these accounts

All accounting pohetes have been reviewed for appropnateness in accordance with Financral Reporting Standard (FRS) 18 (Accounting
Pohcies) and have been applied consistently to all periods presented 1o these Parent Company financial statements The Company has not
presented a cash flow statement as a conselidated cash flow statement 15 presented m the consohidated Group financial statements

Significant accounting policies
(a) Investment return
Investment return comprises dividends from subsidranies, which are accounted for when received

(b) Taxation
Taxation 1s based on profits and income for the period as determined 1n accordance with the relevant tax legaslanon, together with
adjustments to provisions for prior periods

(c) Investment n subsidiartes
Investments 1n subsidiaries are carried at ¢ost after imparrment losses, plus the cost of share awards granted by the Company of 1ts

own shares

(d) Debtors
Debtors are mutially recognised at fair value and subsequently held at amortised cost less impairment losses

(e) Amounts owed to Group undertakings
Amounts owed to Group undertakings imtially are recognised at fair value and subsequently held at amortised cost

(f) Impdirment losses

The carrying amounts of the assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there 15 any indication of impairment

if there 15 any indication of irrecoverability or impairment, the asset’s recoverable amount 1s estimated based on the present value of its
estimated future cash flows

Remstered No 03183415
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2, INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES
2013 012
£' Malhion £ Milhon
Cost at 1 January Q
Investment 1n Growp undertakings 3114 311 4 g
Share opuons granted by Company 73 4 680 g
384 8 379 4 s
Additions in the year
Investment 1n Group undertakings - —
Share options granted by Company 78 54
78 54
Cost at 31 December
Investment tn Group undertakings 3114 311 4
Share opnions granted by Company 812 73 4
392.6 384 8

Impairment 1n value
Investment m Group undertakongs (19 29

Net book value at 31 December 3907 3828
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The Directors” believe that the carrying value of the investments 15 supported by their underlying net assets

Principal Subsidiary Undertalings at 31 December 2013

Investment Holding St James's Place Investments plc §

Companies St James's Place Wealth Management Group ple E

Life Assurance St James’s Place UK ple %
St James'’s Place International plc {incorporated 1n lrelond) g

Unit Trust Management St James's Place Umt Trust Group Lumited g

Distribution St James’s Place Wealth Management plc g

Management Services St James’s Place Management Services Limrted

IFA Acquisitions St James’s Place Acquisiion Services Limited

Internal Reassurance St James's Place Reassurance (2009) Limited

A full hst of subsidiaries 1s available on request from the registered office and will be submitted with the Company’s Annual Return
The Company owns erther directly or indirectly 100% of the voting ordinary equity share capital of the above-named subsidiaries

All of these companies are registered in England and Wales and operate principally in the United Kingdom except where
otherwise stated

Due to ongomng solvency requirements, there are restnictions on the amount of distributable reserves within the hife assurance, unt
trust and financial services operating campanies of the Group which restricts their ability to transfer cash dividends to the Company
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3. CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL

Number of Called up

Ordinary Share

Shares Capital

£ Million

At 1 January 2012 493,422,751 740
- Exeraise of options 13,408,396 20
At 31 December 2012 506,831,147 76 0
— Exerase of options 8,384,836 13
At 31 December 2013 515,215,983 77.3

The total authorised number of ordirary shares 1s 605 rmillion (2012 605 million), with 2 par value of 15 pence per share
(2012 15 pence per share) All 1ssued shares are fully pad

8,384,836 shares were 1ssued 1n the year at a nominal value of £1 3 mullion, for which the Company recerved consideration of
£15 8 malhion

4. RESERVES Share Profit Share
Premmm and Loss Option Other
Account Account Reserve Reserves Total
£ Malhion £ Milhon £ Milhion £ Malhon £' Mallion
At 1 January 2012 110 4 102 5 68 0 01 2810
Profit for the finaneial year 63 4 63 4
Dividends (45 3) (45 3)
Issue of share capital
Exerase of options 173 17 3
Cost of share options expensed 1n subsidiary 54 54
At 31 December 2012 1277 120 6 73 4 01 3218
Profit for the financial year 89 0 890
Drvidends (65 3} {65 3}
Issue of share capital
Exeraise of options 145 145
Cost of share options expensed in subsidiary 78 78
At 31 December 2013 142 2 144.3 B1 2 01 367.8

5. AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
The total audit fee 1n respect of the Group 1s set out 1n Note & on page 120 of the consolidated financial statements The audit tee

charged to the Company for the year ended 31 December 2013 15 £1,000 (2012 £1,000)

6. DIVIDENDS
The following dividends have been paid by the Group

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2013 012 2013 2012
Pence per Pence per £’ Mallion £ Million
share share
Final dividend 1n respect of previous financial year 639 4 80 32.6 239
Interim dividend in respect of current financial year 638 4 25 32.7 21 4
Total 1277 90§ 653 453

The Directors have recommended a final dividend of 9 58 peace per share (2012 6 39 pence) This amounts to £49 4 mullion
(2012 £32 6 mullion) and will, subject to shareholder approval at the Annual General Meeting, be paid on 16 May 2014 to those
sharcholders on the register as at 11 Aprl 2014
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7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
At the year end the following related party balances existed

31 December 31 December

2013 2012
£ Milhon £ Milhon
Investments 1 Group companies
St James's Place Partnership Limated 420 49 Q
St James's Place Wealth Management Group ple 168.9 161 0
St James's Place Investments ple 179 8 179 8
Intra group debters
St James's Place Investments ple 54 6 149

During the year, the Company recerved £89 0 milhon (2012 £63 4 millon) dividends from subsichary undertakings

The following wholly-owned subsidraries of St James's Place plc have taken advantage of the exempton from statutory audit granted by
scction 4794 of the Cormparues Act 2006 In accordance with section 479C, St James’s Place ple has therefore guaranteed all the
outstanding habihities as at 31 December 2013 of

Anglia Financial Limited (03835743)

BFS Financial Services Lumited (4609753)

Chapman Hunter Group Limited (6034452)

Chapman Associates Limited (3047530)

Dellkerk Limated (5487108)

Entellus Limited (01611224}

EW Smth & Co Independent Financial Advisors Limited (4088394)
Lopsystem Linuted (01503794)

MHS (Holdngs) Lumited (00559995)

St James’s Place 1990 Limited (02513402)

St James's Place Acquisition Services Lirnited (7730835)
St James's Place Administration Limted (00740495)

St James’s Place Investment Trust Limited (00209445)
St James's Place Investments plc (01773177)

St James's Place Partnership Lumted (00425649}

St James's Place Property Services Limted (02608806)
St James's Properties Lunited (01075927)

SJPC 2000 ple (SCO13363)

SJPC Group Limuted (01873546)

SJPC 7 Limuted (02102279}

8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The Directors’ responsibilities relate primanly to the trading companies of the Group and accordingly their costs are charged te those
compames and nene are met by the Parent Company Disclosure of the Directors’ emoluments 1s made within the Remuneration
Report on page 82

9 COMPANY INFORMATION
In the opimon of the Directors there 1s not considered to be any ultimate controlling party

Copies of the consolidated accounts of St James’s Place plc may be obtained from the Company Secretary, St James’s Place ple,
St James's Place House, James’s Place House, 1 Tetbury Road, Cirencester, Gloucestershire, GL7 1FP
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Independent Auditors’ Report
to the Directors of St. James’s Place plc (‘the Company’)

REPORT ON THE SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
— EUROPEAN EMBEDDED VALIIE BASIS

Our opinion

[n our opinion, the supplementary information, defined below,
for the year ended 31 December 2013 has been properly
prepared, n all materal respects, 1n accordance with the

EEV basis set out in Note I — Basts of Preparation to the
supplementary mformaton

This opanion 1s to be read i the contéxt of what we say in the
remainder of this report

‘What we have audited

The supplementary information — European Embedded Value

(‘EEV’) bass {the ‘supplementary information’), which s

prepared by St James's Place ple (the ‘Company’), compnses

— the consolidated statement of financal poation — European
Embedded Value Basis as at 31 December 2013,

— the consolidated statement of incomne — European Embedded
Value Basis for the year then ended,

— the consolidated statement of changes i equity — European
Embedded Value Basis for the year then ended, and

~ the notes to the European Embedded Value Basis, which
include the EEV basis and methodology set out in Notes [and II
and other explanatory mformation

The hnancial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation 15 the EEV basis set out 1o Note [ — Baas of
Preparation to the supplementary information

What an audit of supplementary information involves

We conducted our audit 1n accerdance with International

Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) ('ISAs (UK & Ireland)’)

An audit mvolves obtaimng evidence about the amounts and

disclosures in the supplementary informanion sufficient to give

reasonable assurance that the supplementary information 15 free

from materral musstatement, whether caused by frand or error

This includes an assessment of

— whether the accounting polieres are appropnate to the Group's
arcumstances and have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed,

— the reasonahleness of signtficant accounting estimates made by
the directors, and

— the overall presentation of the supplementary information

In additron, we read all the financial and non-financial
information m the Annual Report and Accounts to identify
material inconsistencies with the audited supplementary
nformation and to sdent:fy any information that 15 apparently
materially incorrect based on, or matertally inconsistent wath, the
knowledge acquired by us in the course of performmg the audst
If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or
mconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE SUPPLEMENTARY
INFORMATION AND THE AUDIT

Our responsibilities and those of the directors
The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
supplementary information 1n accordance with the EEV
basis set out 1n Note I-- Basis of Preparation to the
supplementary information

Our responsibility 13 to audit and express an opinion on the
supplementary information 1 accordance with apphcable law and
I5As (UK & Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with
the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Thus report, mcluding the opimon, has been prepared for and
only for the Company’s directors as a body 1 accordance with
our letter of engagement dated 22 July 2013 and for no other
purpose We do not, mn giving this opimion, accept or assume
responsibihity for any other purpose or to any other person to
whom this report 1s shown or mnto whose hands it may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent 1n writing

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants

Bristol

24 February 2014

Notes

*  The maintenance and integnity of the St. James’s Place plc webste s the
responnbility of the directors, the work carnied out by the anditors does not
involve consideration of these mattersand, aceordingly, the auditors accept no
responability for any changes that mayhave occurred to the fnancial statements
unce they were mtially presented on the webmze

*  Lepsluonia the United Kingdom gaverning the preparatson and dussernination
of inancial statements may differ from legislation in other jursdictions
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Consolidated Statement of Income
European Embedded Value Basis

The following supplementary information shows the result for the Group adopting a European Embedded Value (*EEV') basis for

reporting the results of its wholly owned hife and unit trust busimesses

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 December

Note 2013 2012

£ Milhon £ Million

Life business 3657 293 9
Unit Trust business 130 8 32 6
Distnibution business (1) 53
Other (277) (i5 9)
EEV operating profit 4627 3659
Investment return variances 344.2 190 4
Economic assumption changes 106 37
EEY profit before tax 817.5 552 6

Tax

Life busimess {127 5) [CERY]
Unit Trust busmess (423) (28 9
Dhstnbution busioess 14 (13)
QOther 65 52
Corporation tax rate change 189 216
(143 0) (92 9)

EEV profit after tax 674 5 459 7
EEV proft attributable to non-controlling interests - —
EEV profit attributable to equity share holders 6745 459 7
EEV profit on ordinary activities after tax 674 5 459 7
Pence Pence

Basic earmings per share Vi 132.4 92 4
Diluted earnings per share V1 13041 90 8
Operatmg profit basic earmings per share Vi 729 585
VI 716 575

Operating profit diluted earnings per share

The potes and information on pages 169 to 176 form part of this supplementary mformation
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

European Embedded Value Basis

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
£ Mallion £ Mallion
Opening shareholders’ equity on an EEV basis 23363 1,899 5
EEV profit after tax for the year 674 5 459 7
Issue of share capital 15.8 193
Retamed earnings credit 1n respect of share option charges 7.8 54
Retamed earnings credit in respect of proceeds from exercise of share options of shares held 1n trust 01 01
Dividends paid (65 3) 45 3)
Consideration paid for own shares (53) (24
Non-controlling interests arising on purchase of subsidianies during the year Q0.2 -
Closing sharcholders’ equity on an EEY basis 2,964 1 2,336 3

The notes and mformation on pages 169 to 176 form part of this supplementary imnformation
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
European Embedded Value Basis

31 December 31 December

2013 2012%
£' Malhion £' Mallon
Assets
Intangible assets
Deferred acqusition costs 888 8 971 6
Value of long-term business in-force
— long-term insurance 1,583.7 1,223 6
— unit trusts 506.3 3835
Computer software 87 117
Customer hst - 30
2,987.5 2,593 4
Property & equipment 58 36
Deferred tax assets 181 8 190 9
Investnent property 7327 5976
Investments 38,967.7 29,585 5
Reinsurance assets 64.2 386
Insurance and investment contract receivables 499 46 5
Income tax assets - 852
Other recervables 554.0 5261
Cash & cash equivalents 3,845.7 3,080 1
Total assets 47,389 3 36,747 5
Liabibties
[nsurance contract habilines 466 4 424 0
Other provisions 97 92
Finanoal habilities 33,904 0 27,271 0
Deferred tax habilities 488 6 259 1
Insurance and nvestment contract payables 381 249
Deferred income 538.6 616 §
Income tax habihites 4.9 772
Other payables 439.4 435 8
Net asset value attributable to unit holders 8,535.4 5,2935
Preference shares 01 -
Total habalities 44,425.2 34411 2 -
Net assets 2,964.1 2,336 3
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital 773 760
Share premium 1422 127 7
Treasury share reserve (102) B9
Mascellaneous reserves 23 23
Retained earnings ) 2,7525 2,139 2
Total shareholders’ equity on an EEV basis 2,964 1 2,336 3
Pence Pence
Net assets per share 575.3 461 0

* Restated to reflect the adoption of IFR5 10 See [FRS Note fa

‘The supplementary information on pages 166 to 176 was approved by the Board of Directors on 24 February 2014 and signed on its
behalf by

Yo, A co

D Bellamy A Croft
CbngExecunve Chief Financral Offtcer

The notes and 1nformation on pages 169 to 176 form part of this supplementary mformatnon
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Notes to the European Embedded Value Basis

L. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The supplementary information on pages 166 to 176 shows the Group’s results as measured on a European Embedded Value (EEV)
basts This includes results for the life, pension and investment business, mcluding unit trust business The valuation 15 undertaken on a
basis determmed 1n accordance with the EEV Prinaiples 1ssued in May 2004 by the Chief Financial Officers Forum, a group of chief
financai officers from 19 major European msurers a3 supplemented hy the Additional Guidance an EEV Misclosures 1ssued i October
2005 (together ‘the EEV Principles’) The treatment of all ather transactions and halances 1s unchanged from the primary financial
statements on an IFRS hasis The EEV basis recagnises the long-term nature of the emergence of sharehnlder cash returns by reflecting
the net present value of expected future cash flows

Under the EEV mcthodology, profit 15 recogoised as it ts carned over the Iife of the products within the covered business The
embedded value of the covered busimess 15 the sum of the shareholders’ net worth 1n respect of the covered busmess and the present
value of the projected profit stream

I METHODOLOGY
(2) Covered business
The covered busimess 1s the life, pension and mvestment business, including umit trust business, undertaken by the Group

(b) Calculation of EEY on existing business

Profit from exisnng business comprises the expected return on the value of in-force business at the start of the year plus the impact of
any changes 1o the assumpttons regarding future operating experience, plus changes mn reserving bas:s {other than economic assumption
changes), plus profits and losses caused by diferences between the actual experience for the period and the assumptions used to
calculate the embedded value at the end of the pertod

{c) Allowance for risk

The allowance for risk in the shareholder cash flows 1s a key feature of the EEV Prinaples The EEV Principles set out three main areas
of allowance for risk in the embedded value

- the risk discount rate,

— the allowance for the cost of financal options and guarantees, and

— the cost of holding both prudential reserves and any addrtional capital required

The reported EEV allows for risk via a risk discount rate based on a bottem-up market-consistent approach, plus an appropniate
additional margin for non-market r1sk The Group does not offer products that carry any sigmificant financral guarantees or opnons

(d) Non-market risk

Best esumate assumptions have been established based on available informanion and when used within the market consistent
calculations provide the primary evaluation of the impact of non-market risk However, some non-market operational rsks are not
symmetric, with adverse expenence having a higher impact on the EEV than favourable experience Allowance has been made for this
by increasing the risk discount rate by 0 8% (2012 O 8%)

(¢) The risk discount rate
A market-consistent embedded value for each product class has been calculated

In principle, each cash flow 15 valued using the discount rate applied to such a cash flow m the capital markets However in practice,
where cash flows are either independent or move linearly with market movement, 1t 13 possible to apply 2 smplified method known as
the ‘certainty equivalent’ approach Under this approach all assets are assumed to earn the risk free rate and are discounted using that
risk free rate A market-consistent cost of holding the required capital has also been calculated

As part of thrs approach, an appropriate adjustment has been made to reflect the fact that the value of tax relief on expenses does not
move linearly with market movements Finally, an additional allowance for non-market risk has been made by increasing the discount
rate by 0 8%

For presentational purposes, a risk discount rate has then been calculated which under the EEV bass gives the same value determined
above Tlis provides an average risk discount rate for the EEV and 1s described 1n relation to the risk Ffree rate Thus average nisk
discount rate has also been used to calculate the pubhished value of new business
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Notes to the European Embedded Value Basis

continued

II METHODOLOGY continued

(f} Cost ef required capatal

In light of the results of internal analyss, the Directors consider that the mummum regulatory capital provides adequate capital cover
for the risks imnherent in the covered business The required capital for the EEV calculations has therefore been set to the optimused
minimum regulatory capital

The EEV weludes a reduction for the cost of holding the required capital No allowance has been made for any potential adjustment
that the nvestors may apply because they do not have direct control over their capital Any such adjustment would be subjective, as
different 1nvestors will have different vicws of what, 1f 2ny, adjustment should be made

{g) New business
The new business contribution ansing from reported new business premiums has been calculated usng the same assumptions as used

i the EEV at the end of the financial year The value of contractual incremental premiums to existing business 1s treated as new
business 1 the year of the increment, rather than at the outset of the policy This approach better reflects the way the Group manages
its business

The value of new business has been established at the end of the reporting peniod and has been calculated using actual acquisition costs

(h) Operating profit
Operating profit1s deterrmined as the increase m the embedded value over the year excluding market-related 1mpacts such as the effects
of economuc assumption changes and wnvestment vanances and grossed up for shareholder tax

() Tax
The EEV includes the present value of tax relief on life assurance expenses calculated on a market-consistent basis Thas calculation
takes 1nto account all expense and income amounts projected for the in-force business (including any carried forward unutilised relief

on expenses)

In determuning the market-consistent value an appropriate allowance 1s made to reflect the fact that the value of tax relief on expenses
does not move linearly with market movements

‘When calculating the value of new business, priorty 1s given to relieving the expenses relating to that busimess

III. ASSUMPTIONS
(2} Economic assumptions
The principal cconomtc assumptions used within the cash flows at 31 December are set out below

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 December

2013 2012

Rask free rate 31% 1 8%

Inflation rate 32% 2 5%

Rusk discount rate (net of tax) 6 2% 4 9%
Future mvestment returns

— Gilts 31% 1 8%

— Equities 61% 4 8%

— Unat linked funds

— Capital growth 2 5% 12%

— Dividend mcome 29% 2 9%

—Total 54% 4 1%

Expensc wmflatzon 4 0% 34%

The risk free rate 1s set by reference to the yield on 10 year gilts Other ivestment returns are set by reference to the risk free rate

, \

The mfation rate 1s derved from the imphait inflation i the valuation of 10 year index-linked gilts This rate 15 increased to reflect
higher increases 1n earmngs related expenses
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{b) Experience assumphons
The principal experience assumptions have been set on a best estimate basis They are reviewed regularly

The persistency assumptions are derived from the Group’s own experience or, where msuffient data exists, from external
ndustry experience

The expense assumptions mclude allowance for both the costs charged by the relevant third party administrators for acquisition and
mamntenance, and the corporate costs incurred i respect of covered business The corporate costs have been apportioned so that the
total maintenance costs represent the anticipated ongorng expenses, including systems development costs, which are expected to arise
in future years m meeting the policy servicing requirernents of the in-force business

Mortality and moerbidity assumptions have been set by reference to the Group’s own experience, published industry data and the rates
set by the Group’s reassurers

(c) Tax

The EEV result has been calculated allowing for tax and has been grossed up to a pre-tax level for presentation in the profit and loss
account The corporation tax rate used for this grossing up 18 20 3% (2012 21 3%) for UK life and pensions business, 12 5%

(2012 12 5%) for [rish ife and pensions business and 20 5% (2012 21 7%;} for umt trust business Future tax has been determimed
assuming a continuation of the current tax legislation The reduction 1n tax rates for UK business reflects the changes in tax rate

enacted 1n the year

IV. COMPONENTS OF EEV PROFIT

(@) Life business
Year Ended Year Ended
31 Becember 31 December
Note 2013 2012
£' Maulbon £' Mailien
New business contribution 1 213 6 208 9
Profit from existing business
Unwind of discount rate 89.4 769
Experience variances 539 69
Operating assumption changes 46 {7
Investment 1ncome 42 29
EEV operating profit 3657 293 9
Investment return varmnces 2718 1395
Economic assumption changes 7.7 (3 5)
EEV profit before tax 645.2 429 9
Tax (127.5) (82 5)
Corporation tax rate change 152 147
EEV profit after tax ) 5329 35581

Note 1 New business contribution after tax 1s £171 4 mulhion (2012 £165 2 milhon)
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Notes to the European Embedded Value Basis

continued

IV. COMPONENTS OF EEV PROFIT contmued
(b) Unit Trust business

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 3t December
Note 2013 2012
£ Malhon £" Million
New business contrbution 1 113.6 679
Profit from existing business
Unwind of discount rate 22.7 19 1
Experience variances (6.5) (23)
Operating assumption changes - (26)
Investment income 1.0 05
EEV operating profit 130.8 826
Investment return variances 72.4 509
Econormuc assumption changes 29 {0 2)
EEV profit before tax 206.1 1333
Tax , (42.3) (28 9
Corporation tax rate change 3.7 69
EEYV profit after tax 167.5 1113
Note 1 New busmness contmibution after tax 13 £50 3 rulhion (2012 £53 1 mullien)
{c) Combined Life and Unit Trust business
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
Note 2013 2012
£ Million £' Million
New business contribution 1 327.2 276 8
Profit from existing busness
Unwind of discount rate 1121 56 0
Expenence variances 474 46
Operating assumption changes 46 (4 3)
[nvestment income 52 34
EEV operating profit 496 5 376 5
Investment return variances 344.2 190 4
Economic assumption changes 106 37
EEV profit before tax 8513 5632
Tax (169.8) (118 4)
Corporation tax rate change 189 216
EEV profit after tax 700.4 466 4

Note { New business contribution after tax is £261 7 mallton (2012 £218 3 milhon)
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(d) Detailed analysis

In order to better explain the movement 1n capatal flows, the components of the EEV profit for the year ended 31 December 2013 are
shown separately between the movement in I[FRS net assets and the present value of the in-force busmess (VIF) 1n the table below All

figures are shown net of tax
Movement
m IFRS Movement Movement
Net Assets 1w YIF m EEV
£ Million £ Mallion £ MaHion
New business contribution (45 8) 307.6 2618
Profit from existing business 191.4 {191.4) -
Unwind of discount rate - 89.6 89.6
Experience variances 413 (113) 300
Operating assumption changes (50) 20 40
Investment return 42 - 42
[nvestment return variances 18 4 257.1 2755
Economic assumptron changes 39 48 87
Miscellaneous (18.2) - (18.2)
Corporation tax rate change - 189 189
EEV profit after tax 150 2 484.3 674 5
The comparative figures for 2012 are as follows
Maovement
in IFRS Movement Movement
Net Assets in VIF mn EEV
£ Milbon £' Mallien £" Malhon
New business contrbution (67 8) 2861 218 3
Profit from existing business 160 3 (160 3) -
Unwind of discount rate — 75 8 758
Experience variances 173 (94 79
Operating assumption changes 10 4 4) 34
Investment return 28 - 28
Investment return variances i04 1397 1501
Economic assumption changes (6 6) is @3B
Miscellaneous (10 3) - {10 3)
Corporauon tax rate change - 21 6 216
352 6 459 7

EEV profit after tax 107 1
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V EEV SENSITIVITIES

The table below shows the esamated 1mpact on the combined life and unit trust reported value of new business and EEV to changes n
key assumptions The sensitivities are speafied by the EEV principles and reflect reasonably possible levels of change In each case, only
the indicated 1tem 1s varied relatsve to the restated values

Change i

Change i new business EE:;:EE:S

contribution Yalue

Notes Pre-tax Post-tax Fost-tax

£ Milhon £ Mallion £ Malhon

Value at 31 December 2013 327.2 2617 2,964.1

100bp reduction in risk free rates, with correspondmg change

fixed interest asset values 1 34 (2 8) (6 0)

10% reduction in withdrawal rates 2 252 234 155 7

10% reduction 1 expenses 58 4 8 295

10% reduction 1n market value of equity assets 3 — - {276 §)
5% reduction n mertality and morbidity 4 — — -
100bp increase 1n equity expected returns 5 - — —
100bp mcrease m assumed milation 6 [ERY)] 40 (20 8)

Note 1 This s the key economc basis change sensiavity The business model 13 relatively insensitive to change in economicbasi: Note that the sensitivity assumes a
correspondicg change 1 all investment returns but no change 10 mnflanen

Note 2 The 10% reduction 1s apphied to the lapse rate For instance, 1f the lapse rate 15 8% then a 10% sensitivity reducton would reflect a change to 7 2%

Note 3 For the purposes of this required sensitivity, all unst hinked funds are assumed to be invested 1n equities The actual mix of assets varies and 1n recent years the proportion
savested darectly 1n UK and oversess equities bas exceeded 70%

Note4 Assumes the benefit of lower experzence 15 passed on to clients and reassurers at the earhest apportumty

Note § As a market-consistent appraach s used, equity expected returns anly affect the dernved discount rates and not the embedded value or contributien to prefit from new busmess
Nate & Assumed inflation 18 set by reference to 10 year index linked gilt vields

Change m

European

Change in new business Embedded

contribution Value

Pre-tax Post-tax Post-tax

£ Milhon £ Mialhion £ Mallion

100bp reduction 1n nsk discount rate 412 330 205 2

Although not directly relevant under a market-consistent valuation, this sensitivity shows the level of adjustment which would be
required to refleet differing investor views of risk

YI. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
Pence Pence
Basic earnings per share 132 4 92 4
Diluted earnings per share 130.1 908
Operating profit basi carnings per share 72.9 585
Operaung profit diluted earnings per share 716 575

Registered No 03183415
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The earmings per share calculations are based on the following figures
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
213 2012 o
£ Millon £ Million by
8
Earnings 8
Profit after tax { for both bastc and drhuted EPS) 674 5 459 7 ®
Operating profit after tax {for both basic and diluted EPS) 371.5 2910
Milhon Mullion
Weighted average number of shares )
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue (for basic EPS) 509.4 4977
Adjustments for outstanding share options 92 85
Waeighted average number of ordimary shares ( for diluzed EPS) 518.6 506 2

VII RECONCILIATION OF IFRS AND EEV PROFIT BEFORE TAX AND NET ASSETS

Year Ended Year Euded
31 December 31 December

=
3
=
ba]
=
g
=
“
=]
3
>

2013 2012
£ Malhon £' Malton
IFRS profit before tax 461.2 2518
Tax attributable to policyholder returns {270.5) (117 2)
Profit before shareholder tax 1907 134 6
Add back amortisation of acquired value in-force business 32 32 g
Movement 1n hfe value of m-force (et of tax) 3601 273 4 ]
Movement 10 umit trust value of in-force {net of tax) 122.8 777 5
Tax gross up of movement 1n value in-force 1406 7 637 L§’
EEY profit before tax 817 5 5526 g
[+
31 December 31 December |
2013 2012
£ Mullien £ Milhon
IFRS netassets 506 1 7625
Less acqured value of in-force (40 0) (43 2)
Add deferred tax on acquired value of in-force 8.0 99
Add hfe value of in-force 1,583.7 1,223 ¢
Add umt trust value of in-force 506.3 3835
EEV net assets 2,964 1 2,336 13
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VIII RECONCILIATION OF LIFE COMPANY FREE ASSETS TO CONSOLIDATED GROUP EQUITY AND ANALYSIS OF
MOVEMENT IN FREE ASSETS !

31 December 31 December

2013 2052

£ Million £ Milhon

Life company estimated free assets 2349 1557
Estimated required life company solvency capital 493 43 8
Other subsidianies, conselidation and IFRS adjustments 6219 5630
IFRS net assets 9306 1 762 5
31 December 31 December

2013 2012

£ Milhon £ Million

Life company estimated free assetsat 1 January 1557 1223
Investrment 1n new buginess (287) (64 4
Profit from exasting business 157.0 1208
Dividends pard (47 0) 250
Investment return 34 24
Movement 1n required solvency capital (3.5) 04
Life company estimated free assets at 31 December 234.9 155 7

Regstered No 03183415
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Shareholder Information

ANALYSIS OF NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS

Analysis by Number of Shares Holders % Shares held %
1-999 ’ 2,385 43 46 914,629 018
1,000 - 9,999 2,274 41 44 6,876,041 133
10,000 — 95,959 523 952 16,292,127 316
100,000 and above 306 558 491,133,186 95 33
5,488 100 00 515,215,983 100 00
2014 FINANCIAL CALENDAR
Ex-dividend date for final dividend Wednesday, 9 April 2014
Record date for final dividend Friday, 11 Apnl 2014
Announcement of first quarter new business Tuesday, 29 April 2014
Annual General Meeting Wednesday, 14 May 2014
Payment date for final dindend Friday, 16 May 2014
Announcement of Interim Results and second quarter new business Tuesday, 29 July 2014
Ex-dividend date for interim dividend Wednesday, 27 August 2014
Record date for interim drnndend Friday, 22 August 2014
Payment date for interim dividend Wednesday, 24 September 2014
Announcement of third quarter new business Thursday, 30 October 2014

The above dates are subject to change and further information on the 2014 financial calendar can be found on the Company’s website,
www 5)p co uk

DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN

The Directors mtroduced a Dividend Reinvestment Plan (DRP) during 2012 If you would prefer to recetve new shares instead of cash
dividends, please complete a Dividend Rexmbursement Flan (DRP) mandate form, which 15 available from our Registrars,
Computershare Investor Services PLC Their contact details are on page 179

SHARE DEALING
A telephone share dealing service has been established with the Registrars, Computershare Iuvestor Services PLC, whach provides
shareholders with a simple way of buying or selling 5t James's Place plc shares on the London Stock Exchange If you are 1nterested m

thus service telephone 0870 703 0084
ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS
If you would hike to have access to shareholder communications such as the Annual Report and the Notice of General Meeting through

the internet rather than receive them by post, please register at www etreeuk com/stjamesplace

An internet share dealing service 1 also available Further information about this sectron can be obtatned by logging on to
www computershare com/investor/sharedealing

Regustered No 03183415
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How to Contact Us and Advisers

HOW TO CONTACT Us

Registered Office

St James’s Place House
1 Tetbury Road
Cirencester

GL7 IFP

Tel 01285 640302
Fax 01285 640436
www sjp co uk

Chairman
Sarah Bates
email c/o hugh gladman@syp co uk

Chuef Executive
David Bellamy
emal david bellamy@sjp co uk

Chaef Financial Officer
Andrew Croft
email andrew croft@s)p co uk

Company Secretary
Hugh Gladman
email hugh gladman@s)p co uk

Customer Service

Will Alterman

Tel 01285 878352

Fax 01285 878111

emal will alterman@sjp co uk

Analyst Enquiries

Andrew Croft

Tel 01285 878079

Fax 01285 657208

email andrew croft@sp co uk

Media Enquaries

Bell Pottinger

Tel 0207861 3917

emal S[P(@Bell-Pottinger com

ADVISERS

Bankers

Bank of Scotland
150 Fountambridge
Edinburgh

EH3 9PE

Barclays Bank PLC
1 Churchil! Place
London

E14 5SHP

The Royal Bank of Scotland
135 Bishopsgate

London

EC2M 3UR

Brokers

JPMorgan Cazenove Limited
25 Bank Street

London

El4 5]P

Bank of America Merrill Lynch
2 King Edward Street

London

ECIA tHQ

Independent Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audrtors
31 Great George Street

Bristol

BS1 5QD

Registrars & Transfer Office
Computershare Investor Services PLC
The Pavilions

Bristol

BS99 677

email web quenes@computershare co uk
Tel 0870702 0197

wWww computershare com

uodsy nfapig
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St. James’s Place Partnership Locations

Aberdeen

3 Queens Gate
Aberdeen
ABI15 5YL

Mark Wylhe
0122 420 2400

Belfast

St James’s Place House
14 Cromac Place
Belfast

BT7 2JB

Gerry Quinn
Tel 028 9072 6500

Bristol

Beech House
Brotherswood Court
Great Park Road
Bradley Stoke
Bristol

BS32 4QW

George Hills
Tel 01454 618700

City

St James's Place House
3 Moorgate Place
London

EC2R 6EA

Simon Coll
Tel 0207638 2400

Edinburgh

Melwnille House

18 — 22 Melwille Street
Edinburgh

EH3 7NS

Steve Herkes
Tel G131 4595200

Elstree

St James's Place House
S Oaks Court
Warwick Road
Borehamwood

Herts

WD6 1GS

Mark Newman
Tel 020 8207 4000

Glasgow

Minerva House

131 — 133 Manerva Street
Glasgow

G3 8LE

John Noble
Tel 0141 304 1700

Hamtilton Place
11 Hamualton Place
Mayfarr

London

W1 7DR

Nick Brett
Tel 020 7495 1771

Kingsway
3rd Floor
York House
23 Kingsway
London
WC2B 6]

Nigel Preston
Tel 020 7744 1600

Leeds

2nd Floor
Chancellor Court
The Calls

Leeds

LS2 YJEH

Richard Balmforth
Tel 0113 244 4054

Liverpool

5th Floor
Martins Building
‘Water Street
Liverpool

L2 38X

John Ronan
Tel 0151 224 8700

Manchester
7th Floor
Sunhght House
Little Quay Street
Manchester

M3 3JZ

Frank Gorrie
Tel 0161 834 5480

Newbury
Montague Court
London Road
Newbury

Berks

RG14 1JL

Chris Faerber
Tel 01635 582424

Newcastle

One Trimty Gardens
Broad Chare
Newcastle upon Tyne
NEI1 2HF

Phahp Pringle
Tel 0191 26035373

Nottingham

St James’s Place House
Castle Quay

Castle Boulevard
Nottingham

NG7 IFW

Richard Thompsen
Tel 0115 924 2899

Piccadilly
117 Paccadilly
London

Wi 7ju

Danmnan Bradbury
Tel 0207399 6889

Solent

St James's Place House
1480 Parkway

Solent Business Park
Whitley

Fareham

Hants

PO15 7AF

Jason Flood
Tel 01489 881400

Solxhull

St James’s Place House
Central Boulevard

Blythe Valley Business Park
Shirley

Schhull

B30 8AR

Sean McKillop
Tel 0121 733 6733

Westerham
1st Floor
The Crown
London Road
Westerham
Kent

TN16 1D]

Nick Froggatt
Tel 01959 561 606

Witham

Roslyn House

16 Newland Street
Witham

Essex

CMB 2AQ

Paolo Payne
Tel 01376 501947

Registered No 03183415
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WEALTH MANAGEMENT

ST JAMES’S PLACE PLC

ST JAMES'S PLACE HOUSE
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T 080001 38 137
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